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Letter to Shareholders

Greetings to all of our Valued Shareholders,

With many efforts of the company's management team and all colleagues, the
consolidated gross margin was 3% in 2021, and continuing raising, and basic earnings per
share was NT$3.07, which broke the historical record. By adopting a steady business
strategy, and in addition to further understanding of market trends and requirements, we
focus on cultivating various product lines and enhancing technical services to increase added
values, creating considerable results.

The result of our operating performance in 2021, business plan for 2022, are
illustrated as follows:

A. Operating performance in 202|

(A) Results of business plans implementation

As the economic scale of cloud service grows, Sysage is responding to this new
economic wave by not only acting as a distributor for world-famous network &
communication software and hardware products, and building on its vast experience in
building project and distribution, but also extending beyond the traditional distributor
scope, and actively integrates its ample resources of cloud and on-premises services for
connecting the overall application system and strengthening the growth of future
operations. Whether the cloud migration, cloud connect or cloud application
development are able to meet customers’ requirements.

As for operating result in 2021, the company’s total consolidated revenue stood at
NT$ 11.953 billion, consolidated income from operations was NT$ 0.487 billion,income
before income tax was NT$ 0.71 billion, and net income attributable to shareholders of
the parent was NT$ 0.578 billion, compared to the preceding year, 5.2% in year-over-
year growth. Basic earnings per share was NT$3.07, compared to NT$2.91 in the
preceding year, 0.16 dollars in year-over-year growth.

Overviewing 2021 result, consolidated revenue is NT$ 11.953 billion, which is
lower than 2020. The lower revenue is due to chaotic in shipment services, suppliers
suspending production for lake of material, delay in shipment, and customers sitting on
the fence and delaying purchase plan due to global COVID-19 pandemic.

Although the company's revenue was lower than expected due to the impact of
the pandemic, but because of various industries have strengthened their digital
transformation plans, due to the epidemic,and at the same time, due to the continuously
permeating in digital technology and applications in different fields, the company not only
continues to develop support of cloud platforms, but also provides customers with new
cloud connect integration with relative application services. The consolidated gross
margin was 13% in 2021, and continuing to raise, and basic earnings per share was
NT$3.07, and these amounts break the historical record.

(B) Budget implementation: Not applicable. The company has not announced 2021 financial
forecast to the public.

(C) Financial status and profitability analysis
I. Financial Status :
As for the consolidated financial statements in 2021, the company’s cash used in
operating activities was NT$ 0.195 billion, and cash provided by investing activities
was NT$ 0.148 billion, cash used in financing activities was NT$ 0.042 billion, as well
as cash and cash equivalents decrease NT$ 0.1 11 billion during the period. Cash and
cash equivalent at the end period were NT$ 0.651 billion.



2. Profitability analysis -
As for the consolidated financial statements in 2021, the company’s ratio of return
on total assets, ratio of return on shareholders’ equity, ratio of profit before income
tax to capital stock, and profit ratio were 7.21% ~ 13.16% ~ 37.5% and 5.00%, with
0.94ppt and |.05ppt in year-over-year growth in return on shareholders’ equity ratio
and profit ratio.

(D) Research and the development status :

Sysage serves as a distributor of global leading brands of software and hardware
products in the information industry, and all brands have world-top-notch technical
capabilities. Thus, Sysage strives to increase technical capabilities at all times, in order to
provide professional services for customers.The company's technical professionals focus
on researching various new products, and acquire manufacturers’ professional
certificates, in order to provide completed services for customers.

In addition, for requirements of enterprise digital transformation for software
integration and consulting services, the company has set a team for software
development and consulting integration services to assist customers in transforming
existing business procedures to meet changes in the markets and create proficient
operating efficiency for the enterprise.

B. Business plan for 2022
(A) Business objectives

The company serves as a distributer for famous global leading brands of software,
hardware and cloud products of information and system, upholds the concept of the
integrated marketing of "Brands channels; Cloud Connect.", and provides customers
with integration of information and communication in different fields, through
cooperation with partners in Taiwan, and integration with cloud-to-premises
connection to meet advantages of the security, cost and flexibility required by different
enterprises. In addition to continuing to exploit the market in Taiwan and provide
customers with more diversified solutions, the company will gradually expand its
business to overseas markets. In addition to replicating the successful experience in
Taiwan for overseas markets, we also hope to enhance the company as a regional
value-added service distributor, and obtain more cooperation opportunities with
famous global brands and enhance the cooperative relationship with the original
distributing brands. In 2021, the company merged Advanced TEK International Corp.,
which specializes in providing import and maintenance services of ERP, and Corex in
South Africa, which also serves as distributor of products of information and
communication. The company will continue to focus on its target of increasing the
width and depth of services to customers.

Sales forecast and its reference and important policy of production and sales:

|. The company mainly distributes software and hardware products of information and
communication, most are project sales and value-added services. As the product
differentiation is vast and unit price varies, the sales forecast of each product is
difficult to predict.

2. The operating strategy and business development focus on consolidation and
enhancing “Brands channel; Cloud Connect.”: To develop traditional distributing
business and cloud business, and to promote products in 6 segments, such as
network, system, information security, business software, big data analysis, and
cloud, etc., maintain a good interaction with important customers, and maximize
the effectiveness of distributing products. As products are diversified and complete,
it will assist digital transformation for customers.



3. Continuing to develop the next stage of SYSAGE management platform of cloud
services and MSP center, and incorporate more product lines into the platform, the
company expects to expand the cloud and subscription product lines of AWS -~
Akamai ~ Azure ~ Google Cloud ~ Oracle Cloud ~ Cisco Webex, etc., in 2022.

C. Development strategy of the company in the future

(I) To dedicate on existing distributing product line, and continue to introduce new
products with added-value and synergy: With more than 20 years of sales experience,
the company has distributed more than 50 world-renowned IT brand products. With a
variety of vertically integrated solutions, excellent product specifications, a deep and
meticulous distribution channel system, and 24/7 uninterrupted service capabilities, we
are able to accurately understand the key demands of enterprises, and continue to
expand the width of operations and increase the depth of technical services. We have
formulated a product development strategy focusing on four major solutions, including
"cloud service", "Al data analysis", "microservice integration" and "information security",
and put much effort in strengthening the arrangement of related products and services,
and also make in-depth connections with Domain Know-how in dufferent industries. In
the future, we will continue to expand the arrangement of distribution, and reserve the
integration tools of software and hardware for digital transformation withcloud,
digitalization, internation, and mobilization for customers.

(2) Integration with group resources, expanding product lines and developing new
customers: Integrating resources from Qisda to help company expand present product
lines, develop new product lines, carry out diversified business investment plans, and
jointly develop opportunities of potential group customers to enhance the company
increases its operating revenues, profits, and shareholders' equity.

(3) To improve demonstrations, display environment, and increase innovation of technical
services: Except for continuing to increase innovation and services in the scope of
business and technical services, and having sufficient support of technical logistics, we
provide excellent exercises and demonstrations. Since our operating sites include 4
locations, in Taipei, Hsinchu, Taichung, and Kaohsiung, and Demo environments across
the island, it could immediately provide the best market coverage, technical support,
education and training, as well as new equipment and solutions of exercises and
demonstrations to manufacturers and partners, hence we increase gross profit margin
through the increase in the ratio of services revenue.

D.The impact of the external competitive environment, regulatory environment, and
macroeconomic conditions

As the pandemic continues to affect the world in 2021, it encourages enterprises to pay
attension on relevant basic infrastructure, and sense importance of gickly implementing
digital transformation, and provide a positve effect on the company’s operation. However,
since macroeconomic became unstable due to the pandemic, enterprises adopt a
conservative attitude in all expenditures, and it triggers challenges to the company that put
much effort in increasing business and we hope to expand business more rapidly, as the
pandemic becoming endemic and economics becoming stable.

While the industry of information and communication booms and brings various
business opportunities, legal compliance is increasinly becoming an important part of the
business operation. Besides continue to streghten the legal compliance requirmenets for its
distributed brands, the company also continue to increase various controls that will ampify
legal compliances, and to become a trustworthy partners for the ICT brands its distributing.



We offer our sincerest thanks for shareholders’ trust and all employees’ effort. During
a new year, the company and its subsidiaries shall continue to strive for the increase in
operating performance, assume earning profits as our important mission, and focus on
becoming a professional suppliers of professional application services of information and
communication of the ICT solution provider.VWe hope to strive for greatest motive behind
progress and seek for the best interest of the shareholders. we offer our sincerest
appreciations for shareholders’ support and openly welcome for feedbacks.

Sincerely yours,

Chairman: Michael Lee

President: Michael Lee



ll.  Company Profile
I. Date of Establishment: April 16, 1998

2. Company History

1998/04 Company established at Hsinchu, with a capital at NT$34,300,000, authorized by Ministry of
Economics Affairs, ROC.

1998/05  Acquisition of distribution rights of network product of CISCO US.

1998/07  Establishing the Taipei office.
1999/01 Establishing the Kaohsiung office.

1999/01 Acquisition of distributing rights of products of the work station of Dell.
1999/09  Acquisition of distributing rights of products(Oracle) of data base of the US company.
2000/12  Acquisition of distributing rights of work station products and servers of IBM.

2001/08  Officially listed at OTC(stock code:6112).
2002/06 To purchase the office building at 8-11 Floor; No.512,514 and 516, Sec. |, Neihu Rd., Neihu

Dist., for integrated requirements of marketing, research and development, test and
warehouse.

2003/07  Acquisition of exclusive distributing rights of the access platform of enterprise information
application of Citrix.

2003/08 Officially listed at TWSE, from OTC.

2007/04  To officially become OAEC.

2007/08  Acquisition of the distributing right of EMC in Taiwan.

2008/08  Acquisition of the distributing right of IBM Cognos.

2008/12  Acquisition of the distributing right of HDS.

2009/02  Acquisition of the distributing right of Informatica.

2009/03  Acquisition of the distributing right of Novell.

2009/10  Acquisition of the distributing right of Falconstor in Taiwan.

2010/07  Acquisition of the distributing right of VMware in Taiwan.

2013/01 Acquisition of the distributing right of SafeNet in Taiwan.

2013/07  Acquisition of the distributing right of Red Hat in Taiwan.

2013/11 Acquisition of the distributing right of Quantum in Taiwan.

2014/03 Formally distributing the audit system of security control of CPS Systems.

2015/01 Formally distributing products of Eaton.

2016/01 To become an enterprise partner authorized by Apple.
2016/05  To become an authorized partner of the manufacturer(STULZ) of conditioning of the data

center in German.
2017/04 To become a member of DIGI-CLOUD Alliance of Dell.
2018/05  Acquisition of the distributing right of Akamai in Taiwan.

2019/09  Merged into Qisda Group.

2020/01 Acquisition of the distributing right of apigee.

2020/02  Acquisition of the distributing right of SecurityScorecard.
2020/03  Acquisition of the distributing right of datto.

2020/05  Acquisition of the distributing right of UiPath.



2020/06  Acquisition of the distributing right of Hubspot.

2020/10  Acquisition of the distributing right of SYNERGIES.

2021/03  QISDA CORPORATION purchased additional 16.37% outstanding shares of the company,
aggregately holding 51.41% of the shares of the company.

2021/12  Acquisition of the distributing right of Infobip.

lll. Corporate Governance

A.  Organization

(A) Organizational Structure

Audit Committee

Shareholders’ Meeting

Compensation Committee

Board of Directors

Internal Audit Office

ESG Committee Chairman
T

President
1

| | | |
. New Business Product Development
Operating Management i
perating § Development Center & Support Center Business Development Group

Financial Division

Human Resources Division

Supply Chain
Management Division

Legal Affairs Division

Marketing & Public Relations
Division

Information
Management Division

Risk Management Committee




(B) Business Scope for Main Departments

Departments and Units

Functions and Responsibilities

Business Development

Group

|. To understand customers’ requirements and pain points, and provide professional customized services
to keep a good relationship with customers and operate sustainability.

2. To continue to explore new markets and expand different scope of customer groups.

3. To increase the sales contents and scopes of products and services.

4. To provide products, services, solutions and consulting, and provide one-stop pre-sales and after-sales

services to customers.

Product Development &

Support Center

I. Available assessment of acquisition of distribution rights of ICT products.

2. To assist business development markets, provide customized project services of pre-sales assistance and
development training programs for partners.

3. To provide overall solutions for enterprise customers, and propose planning and implementation plans
of specific software and hardware integration, based on the company's distribution products.

4. To provide customers with complete and professional installation, construction and after-sales support

services, including network, information security, system storage, cloud to on-premises integration, etc.

New Business

Development Center

I. Cloud business development and market strategies.

2. Responsible for sales management, customer services and market development of cloud products.
3. To provide AWS cloud solutions, cloud consulting services, and migration structure suggestions.

4. To provide enterprise cloud market planning and market links.
5

. Evaluation of distributing cloud services and confirmation of workshop.

Internal Audit Office

To set the annual plan and execution of audit and implementation, improvement, follow-up survey of the

internal control policy.

Operating Management

Center

To manage all operating related matters and supervise financial division, human resources division, supply
chain management division, legal affairs division, marketing & public relations division, information

management division, etc.

Financial Division

I. Accounting policies, conducting, analysis and planning of accounting and tax.
2. Acquisition, utilization and arranging financial funds and other related matters, etc.
3. Application of various financial statement data for providing business directions.

4. Stock affairs, tax planning and other related businesses, etc.

Human Resources Division

Responsible for the company's personnel appointments, salaries, education and training, and employee

benefits.

Supply Chain Management

Division

I. The responsible working includes Purchasing (including import and export), inspection and acceptance.

2. Related operations include purchasing and sales management, warehouse management for inventory.

Legal Affairs Division

|. Drafting of contracts, trial and negotiation.

2. Legal compliance with international operations.

3. Management and execution of non-litigation/litigation cases.

4. Legal aspects of layout of strategies of international business cooperation.
5

. Drafting the standard contract template and developing SOP for the company.

Marketing & Public

Relations Division

Responsible for marketing of all the company’s products,
Plan and promote the business of all product lines. At the same time, the division is also responsible for
negotiating cooperation plans with media, providing press releases and events information,filing lists, holding

and executing relevant issues of seminars.

Information Management

Division

|. Development and maintenance of the company's internal information system.
. To plan and establish enterprise network,and to protect network securities, etc.

. Design and analysis of internal business intelligence system of the enterprise.

A W N

. To assess and improve the current system and to develop structure design of the application system in

the future.




B. Directors, Supervisors and Management Team
(A) Directors and Supervisors (|

March 28,2022 ; Units: Shares

Shareholding in the

Executives, Directors or

Nationality Date Shareholding When Spouse & Minor Selected Education, Past | Selected Current Positions at Sysage and Other
Gender Date Current Shareholding names of other Supervisors who are spouses or
Title or Place of Name Term First Elected Shareholding Positions & Current Positions Companies Note
Age Elected persons within two degrees of kinship
Registration Elected - - - at Non-profit Organizations (Note 2)
Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares % Title Name Relation
QISDA CORP. - 66,000,000 | 35.04% | 96841239 | 51.41% - - - - The reason why
the  chairman
also serves as
the president is
to represent the
company
externally and
effectively
Chairman coordinating the
ACE PILLAR CO,, LTD. management
AEWIN Technologies Co., Ltd team. At  the
LA FRESH INFORMATION CO., LTD same  time, in
PHD of Department of d
BENQ ESCO CORP. order o
Electrical  Engineering  of BENG GURU CORP. strengthen  the
NTU, The president of Smart .
BenQ Guru Software Co., Ltd.(Suzhou). independence
Solution Business Group of i
Deputy Chairman and supervision
Qisda Corporation, fi : f th
Chairman& Male DFI INC. unction of the
ROC . 2019.9.26 3 2019.9.26 Chairman of ACE PILLAR - - - board f
President Representative: i ) ) ) ) } PARTNER TECH CORP. oar °
Michael Lee 41~50 81,000 0.04% CO,LTD . directors,  the
Director
Chairman of AEWIN board of|
years old APLEX TECHNOLOGY INC.
Technologies ~ Co.,  Ltd, directors of the
Expert Alliance Smart Technology Co. Ltd.
Deputy Chairman of company  has
Expert Alliance Systems and Consultancy
PARTNER TECH CORP three
(Hong Kong) Limited
independent

BenQ Guru Holding Limited
Brainstorm Corporation

Partner Tech Europe GmbH

directors, so as

to improve
operation of
board
directors
comply with
principles
CDFPOFB(E

governance.

the
the

of
and
the

of




Shareholding in the

Executives, Directors or

Nationality Date Shareholding When Spouse & Minor Selected Education, Past Selected Current Positions at Sysage and Other
Gender Date Current Shareholding names of other Supervisors who are spouses or
Title or Place of Name Term First Elected Shareholding Positions & Current Positions Companies Note
Age Elected persons within two degrees of kinship
Registration Elected at Non-profit Organizations (Note 2)
Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares % Title Name Relation
Chairman
QISDA CORP. - 66,000,000 35.04% 96,841,239 51.41% - - - - BENQ CORPORATION
Darly Venture Inc.
Director, Darly2 Venture, Inc.
Director, Darly Consulting Corporation.
Director
DARFON ELECTRONICS CORP
ALPHA NETWORKS INC.
SIMULA TECHNOLOGY INC.
DATA IMAGE CORPORATION
K2 INTERNATIONAL MEDICAL INC.
BENQ CORPORATION
California  State  University,
QISDA OPTRONICS CORP.
Fullerton MBA, CFO of Qisda
BenQ Healthcare Consulting Corporation
Director ROC Female |3019926| 3 |2019.9.26 Group, Assistant CFO of Qisda - - -
R L BenQ Hospital Management Consulting
epresentative: Corporation, CFO of Daxon
. . - ° - ° - - - ° : (Nanjing) Co., LTD
Chiu-Chin Hung | 51~60 Technology Inc.
years old NANJING BenQ Hospital Co., Ltd
Suzhou BenQ Hospital Co., Ltd
Suzhou BenQ Investment Co., Ltd.
BenQ Biotech (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
TECH FILTER (Shanghai) CO., LTD.
Qisda Co., Ltd
BenQ (Hong Kong) Limited
BenQ BM Holding Corp.
BenQ BM Holding Cayman Corp.
Qisda Sdn. Bhd.
Qisda (L) Corp.
Darly Venture (L) Ltd.
QISDA CORP. - 66,000,000 35.04% 96,841,239 51.41% - - - - ) -
Master of Economics, University
of Nottingham, President of
Chairman
business development center of
Female GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK| EPIC | Chien-
SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO,
Director ROC Representative: 2019.9.26 3 2019.9.26 CO, LTD. CLOUD | Cheng, Spouse
2,616,127 1.39% 116,127 0.06% 171,425 0.09% LTD., Chairman of GLOBAL
Shu-Erh Kuo 51~60 Director Director | Shih
INTELLIGENCE  NETWORK
years old EPIC CLOUD CO,, LTD.
CO,, LTD,, Director of EPIC
CLOUD CO, LTD.




Shareholding in the

Executives, Directors or

Nationality Date Shareholding When Spouse & Minor Selected Education, Past Selected Current Positions at Sysage and Other
Gender Date Current Shareholding names of other Supervisors who are spouses or
Title or Place of Name Term First Elected Shareholding Positions & Current Positions Companies Note
Age Elected persons within two degrees of kinship
Registration Elected at Non-profit Organizations (Note 2)
Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares % Title Name Relation
QISDA CORP. - 66,000,000 35.04% 96,841,239 51.41% - - - - Directors
Master of Department of
BENQ GURU CORP.
Male Mechanical Engineering of NTU,
BenQ Guru Software Co.,, Ltd. (Suzhou).
Director ROC Representative: 2019.9.26 3 2019.9.26 Senior Director of creative - - -
- - - - - - - - BenQ Guru Holding Limited
Wen-Hsing Tseng | 51~60 Strategic Planning of Qisda
President
years old Corporation
BENQ GURU CORP.
QISDA CORP. - 66,000,000 35.04% 96,841,239 51.41% - - - - Chairman
EPIC CLOUD CO., LTD.
Director
Juris Doctor, Suffolk University GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK
Male
Representative: Law School, CLO of Qisda CO,, LTD.
Director ROC 2019.9.26 3 2019.9.26 - - -
TK Young - - - - - - - - Corporation, COO of SYSAGE GRANDSYS INC.
41~50
(Note 1) TECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD. ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL
years old
CORP.
Statinc Co., Ltd.
COREX (PTY) LTD.
EMBA of National Tsing Hua | Director
Male University, Bachelor degree of Tia-Nai Art Center Co,, Ltd.
Independent Accounting, Feng Chia Independent director
ROC Wen-Tsung Wang 2019.9.26 3 2016.6.13 - - - - 11,903 0.01% - - - - -
Director 51~60 University,, CPA of Hui-Min COREMAX CORPORATION
years old Accounting Firm, CPA of Biing- |Supervisors
Cherng CPAs EMAXTECH CO, LTD.
Chairman
NCKU Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
Chairman&V.P.
PHD of Business ELITEGROUP COMPUTER SYSTEMS CO,,
Male
Administration, NCCU, MD of LTD.
Independent
ROC Chin-Lai Wang 2019.9.26 3 2019.9.26 - - - - - - - - Ernst & Young Global Limited, |Director - - -
Director 61~70
Chairman of EY Management GenomeFrontier Therapeutics, INC.
years old

Services Inc

Independent director
LANDMARK
CORPORATION

OPTOELECTRONICS

PCL Technologies, Inc.




Shareholding in the Executives, Directors or
Nationality Date Shareholding When Spouse & Minor Selected Education, Past Selected Current Positions at Sysage and Other
Gender Date Current Shareholding names of other Supervisors who are spouses or
Title or Place of Name Term First Elected Shareholding Positions & Current Positions Companies Note
Age Elected persons within two degrees of kinship
Registration Elected at Non-profit Organizations (Note 2)
Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares % Title Name | Relation
Chairman(Legal representative)
PHD, Business Administration, Unitech New Energy Engineering Co., Ltd
NTPU, MBA of Indiana ECO Technical Services Co., Ltd.
University of Pennsylvania, Xiang Yueh Industrial Co., Ltd.
Chairman of TOPCO Yun Yueh Technologies, Co., Ltd.
Male
SCIENTIFIC CO, LTD, Director(Legal representative)
Independent
ROC Shan-Kuei Lai 2019.9.26 3 2019.9.26 - - - - - - - - President of ICSB, Chairman of TOPCO SCIENTIFIC CO., LTD. - - -
Director 61~70
CSBC CORPORATION, ANYONG FRESHMART, INC.
years old
TAIWAN, Director of SMEA, JIA YI ENERGY CO,, LTD.
MOEA, Deputy of director, TAI YING RESOURCE INDUSTRIAL CORP.
Department of Commerce, Independent director
MOEA Y1 JINN INDUSTRIAL CO,, LTD.
LEATEC FINE CERAMICS CO,, LTD.
PHYTOHEALTH CORPORATION

Note | : 2021/11/05 Qisda Corporation appointed TK Young as the new representative of the corporate shareholder, and Chi-Nan Tsai was discharged.

Note 2 : Please refer to the section “Directors, supervisors and presidents of affiliates” in annual report.

Substantial shareholders of the corporate shareholder

Name of Substantial shareholders of the corporate shareholders
corporate :
shareholders Name Pzt:;ii‘:glglzi)
(Note I)
AU Optronics Corp. 17.04%
Acer Incorporated 4.15%
Konly Venture Corp. 2.55%
DARFON ELECTRONICS CORP. 1.86%
QISDA UBS Europe SE 1.12%
CORPORATION JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.Taipei Branch in custody for Norges Bank 1.06%
(Note 2) Polunin Developing Countries Fund, LLC 1.02%
VANGUARD EMERGING MARKETS STOCK INDEX FUND, A SERIES OF VANGUARD | 00%
INTERNATIONAL EQUITY INDEX FUNDS )
Taishin International Bank entrusted with the Qisda Corporation Employee Stock Ownership Trust Account 0.94%
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A,, Taipei Branch in custody for Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund, a 0.91%
series of Vanguard Star Funds )

Note I: For directors acting as the representatives of institutional shareholders.
Note 2:The book closure date is 2021/4/26.




Substantial shareholders of corporate shareholders who are the substantial shareholders of the Company’s corporate

shareholders

Substantial Substantial shareholders of the corporate shareholders
shareholders of the Name Shareholding
corporate shareholders Percentage (%)
Qisda Corporation 6.90%
Quanta Computer Inc 4.61%
Trust Holding for Employees for AU Optronics Corp. 4.58%
ADR of AU Optronics Corp. 4.19%
Fubon Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 3.93%
AU Optronics Corp  |Tong Hwei Enterprise Co., Ltd. 1.58%
(Note 1) JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., Taipei Branch in custody for Vanguard Total .
International Stock Index Fund, a series of Vanguard Star Funds -26%
Norges Bank 0.97%
VANGUARD EMERGING MARKETS STOCK INDEX FUND, A SERIES 0.94%
OFVANGUARD INTERNATIONAL EQUITY INDEX FUNDS '
New Labor Pension Fund 0.79%
Hung Rouan Investment Corp. 2.42%
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. Taipei Branch in custody for Universities | 539
Superannuation Scheme Limited ’
VANGUARD EMERGING MARKETS STOCK INDEX FUND, A SERIES OF | 339
VANGUARD INTERNATIONAL EQUITY INDEX FUNDS '
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. Taipei Branch in custody for Vanguard Total 1 21%
Acer Incorporated |International Stock Index Fund, a series of Vanguard Star Funds ]
(Note 2) Credit Suisse International 1.20%
J.>. MORGAN SECURITIES PLC 1.16%
Stan Shih 1.15%
ISHARES MSCI TAIWAN ETF 1.01%
Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority - fund manager Amundi Asset Management -
. . 0.97%
Mandate: Emerging Market Equity
Acer GDR 0.95%
Konly(\'/\el:zz:r:;e)Corp. AU Optronics Corp 100%
Qisda Corp. 20.72%
BenQ Corp. 5.01%
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.Taipei Branch in custody for Norges Bank 2.06%
Ching-Jui Chang 1.66%
DARFON Mega'lnte.rnational Cc?mmercial Bank Co., Ltd. 1.62%
ELECTRONICS CORP Credit Suisse International 1.48%
(Note 3) Andy Su 1.45%
VANGUARD EMERGING MARKETS STOCK INDEX FUND, A SERIES OF | 08%
VANGUARD INTERNATIONAL EQUITY INDEX FUNDS ]
J.>. MORGAN SECURITIES LTD 1.07%
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. Taipei Branch in custody for Vanguard Total 0.95%

International Stock Index Fund, a series of Vanguard Star Funds

Note | :
Note 2 :
Note 3 :
Note 4 :

The book closure date is 2020/4/19.
The book closure date is 2021/4/13.
Source of information for Department of Commerce, MOEA.
The book closure date is 202 1/4/25.




(B) Directors’ Information (2)

|. Professional qualifications of directors, and disclosure of independence analysis of independent directors

Date: December 31,2021 ; Units: Shares

The situation of taking Diversity of the Board of Directors Personal Spouse & Minor | Number of
Conditions of Independence(Note 2)
Industry experience Professional skills Shareholding Shareholding other public
Nation- Companies
ality or where the
Condition Gender Manage- Informa-
Place of Professional qualifications and experience ment Lead & Internati Account- Director
Name ( Note | Age admini- IT tion | Account-
Registr- . Decision | Finance onal . ing Law | 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 11 12 [Shares % Shares % concurrently
stration industry techno- ing
ation market practices serves as an
logy
Independent
Director
PHD of Department of Electrical Engineering of
NTU, The president of Smart Solution Business
Male
Representative of Qisda Group of Qisda Corporation, Chairman of ACE
P ROC | 4150 P P v v v v v v v|v
Corp. : Michael Lee PILLAR CO, LTD
years
Chairman of AEWIN Technologies Co., Ltd,
Deputy Chairman of PARTNER TECH CORP
California State University, Fullerton MBA, CFO
Female of Qisda Group,Assistant CFO of Qisda
Representative of Qisda Corporation, CFO of Daxon Technology Inc.
P RoC 51~60 v v v v v v vIivi| v
Corp. : Chiu-Chin Hung
years

Master of Economics, University of Nottingham,
Female |President of business development center of
51~60 |SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO, LTD,, Chairman of| v v v v v VIv|Vv
years |GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK CO,
LTD., Director of EPIC CLOUD CO,, LTD.

Representative of Qisda| roc
Corp. : Shu-Erh Kuo

Male |Master of Department of Mechanical Engineering

Representative of Qisda| roc
51~60 |of NTU, Senior Director of creative Strategic 4 4 v v v Vi iv|v

Corp. : Wen-Hsing Tseng
years |Planning of Qisda Corporation

Juris Doctor, Suffolk University Law School, CLO
of Qisda Corporation, COO of SYSAGE

Male
Representative of Qisda ROC TECHNOLOGY CO.,, LTD.

41~50 v v v v v v v Iv |V
Corp. : TKYoung

years




The situation of taking Diversity of the Board of Directors Personal Spouse & Minor | Number of
Conditions of Independence(Note 2)
Industry experience Professional skills Shareholding Shareholding other public
Nation- Companies
ality or M where the
Condition Gender anage- Informa-
Place of Professional qualifications and experience ment Lead & Internati Account- Director
Name ( Note | Age admini- IT tion | Account-
Registr- . Decision | Finance onal . ing Law 4 5 6 7 8 9 10| 11 12 |Shares % Shares % concurrently
stration industry techno- ing
ation market practices serves as an
logy
Independent
Director
Male EMBA of National Tsing Hua University, Bachelor degree
Wen-Tsung Wang ROC 51~60 of Accounting, Feng Chia University,, CPA of Hui-Min v v v v v vivivivivIiviviv]y _ B 11,903 |0.01% |
Accounting Firm, CPA of Biing-Cherng CPAs
years
Male PHD of Business Administration, NCCU, MD of Ernst &
Chin-Lai Wang ROC 61~70 Young Global Limited, Chairman of EY Management v v v v v v vivivivivIiviviv]y _ B B B 2
Services Inc
years
PHD, Business Administration, NTPU, MBA of
Indiana University of Pennsylvania, Chairman of
Male
ROC TOPCO SCIENTIFIC CO., LTD., President of
Shan-Kuei Lai 61~70 v v v v v v v iviI|ivI|ivI Iiviiv | iv]|v ]|V - - - - 3
ICSB, Chairman of CSBC CORPORATION,
years
TAIWAN, Director of SMEA, MOEA, Deputy of
director, Department of Commerce, MOEA

Note | : The directors have more than 5 years of work experience, and not been involved in any of situations defined in Article 30 of the Company Act, through searching on the website of Judicial Yuan and Taiwan

Clearing House.

Note 2 : Please add "V"in the field under each criteria number if the director meets the criteria two years prior to being elected and during his/her term of service.
(1)Not an employee of the company or any of its affiliates.

(2)Not a director or supervisor of the company’s affiliates. The same does not apply, however, in cases where the person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, or any subsidiary, as appointed in accordance with the Act or with the laws of the country of the

parent or subsidiary.

(3)Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's spouse, minor children, or held by the person under others' names, in an aggregate amount of one percent or more of the total number of issued shares of the company or ranking in the

top 10 in holdings.

(4) Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, of a managerial officer under (1) or any of the persons under (2) and (3).

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds five percent or more of the total number of issued shares of the company, or that ranks among the top five in shareholdings, or that designates its representative to serve as a director or

supervisor of the company under Article 27, paragraph | or 2 of the Company Act. (Do not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company and its parent or

subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.).

(6) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of other company if a majority of the company's director seats or voting shares and those of that other company are controlled by the same person. (Do not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws

and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.).

(7) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of other company or institution if the chairman, general manager, or person holding an equivalent position of the company and a person in any of those positions at that other company or institution are the same person or are spouses.

(8) Not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding five percent or more of the shares, of a specified company or institution that has a financial or business relationship with the company. (Do not apply in cases where the specified company or institution holds more than 20

percent but less than 50 percent of the Company'’s issued shares and are the independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company and its parent or subsidiary or a

subsidiary of the same parent.)




(9) Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that, provides auditing services to the company or any affiliate of the company, or that provides commercial, legal, financial,
accounting or related services to the company or any affiliate of the company for which the provider in the past 2 years has received cumulative compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof; provided, this restriction does not apply to a member of the remuneration
committee, public tender offer review committee, or special committee for merger/consolidation and acquisition, who exercises powers pursuant to the Act or to the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or related laws or regulations.

(10) Not a spouse or a relative within the second degree of kinship to any director.

(1) Not been involved in any of situations defined in Article 30 of the Company Act.

(12) Not elected on behalf of a government agency or corporate or as a representative of these organizations as defined in Article 27 of the Company Act.

2. The diversified approaches and independence of BOD:
(1) The diversified approaches of BOD:

® The company has formulated a diversification policy for the composition of the Board of Directors of the " Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles ". Based on the professional
background and working fields, the company selects the directors with capabilities of business management, leadership decision-making, and industry experience (finance, international
markets, IT Industry, accounting practice), professional abilities (information technology, accounting, law), in order to implement the company's policy of diversity for the composition of
the Board of Directors.

® The company’s BOD has composed of 8 directors(including 3 independent directors and 5 representatives of the legal director). All directors have capabilities for diversification of
business development. In addition to the overall competence of the Board of Directors, the company's situation of taking Diversity of the Board of Directors (Please see P.I3 Directors’

Information).

(2) Independence of BOD:

The company has set up three directors to ensure the independence of BOD; the current proportion is 37.5%.The company has obtained a paper statement from all directors and confirmed

that directors’ spouse or second degree relatives in accordance with independence of BOD.



(C)Documents of president, vice president, associate vice president and managers of each department and division

March 28,2022 ; Unit : Shares

Shares held by spouse or

Shareholdingby Nominee

Managers who are Spouses or Within Two

Nationality Number of shares held Position concurrently held in other
Name underage children Arrangement Primary work or academic Degrees of Kinship
Title or Place of Gender |Date Appointed companies Note
Age Number | Shareholding | Number | Shareholding | Number | Shareholding experiences
Registration (Note) Title Name Relation
of shares | Percentage (%) |of shares Percentage (%) | of shares | Percentage (%)
Chairman The reason why the
ACE PILLAR CO,, LTD. chairman also
AEWIN Technologies Co., Ltd serves as  the
LA FRESH INFORMATION CO,, LTD president is to
BENQ ESCO CORP. represent the
BENQ GURU CORP. company externally
PHD of Department of Electrical BenQ Guru Software Co,, and effectively
Engineering of NTU, President of Ltd.(Suzhou). coordinating  the
Smart Solution Business Group of |Deputy Chairman management  team.
At th ime, i
Chairman & Qisda Corporation, Chairman of ACE DFI INC. € the same time, in
ROC Michael Lee Male 2020/11/05 81,000 0.04% - - NA NA NA " |order to strengthen
President(Note) PILLAR CO, LTD PARTNER TECH CORP.
the independence
Chairman of AEWIN Technologies Co., |Director
and supervision
Ltd, Deputy Chairman of PARTNER APLEX TECHNOLOGY INC.
function of the
TECH CORP Expert Alliance Smart Technology Co.
board of directors,
Ltd.
the board of!
Expert  Alliance  Systems  and
directors of the
Consultancy (Hong Kong) Limited
company has three
BenQ Guru Holding Limited .
independent
Brainstorm Corporation X
directors, so as to
Partner Tech Europe GmbH .
improve the
operation of the
board of directors
Master of Economics, University of and comply with
Nottingham, President of business Chairman the principles of
development center of SYSAGE GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE corporate
President of Business EPIC CLOUD Chieh-
ROC Shu-Erh Kuo Female 2016/05/01 116,127 0.06%| 171,425 0.09% -|TECHNOLOGY CO.,, LTD., Chairman NETWORK CO,, LTD. Spouse |governance.
Development Center Director Cheng Shih
of GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE Director
NETWORK CO,, LTD.,, Director of EPIC CLOUD CO,, LTD.
EPIC CLOUD CO, LTD.




Shares held by spouse or Shareholdingby Nominee Managers who are Spouses orWithin Two

Nationality Number of shares held Position concurrently held in other
Name underage children Arrangement Primary work or academic Degrees of Kinship
Title or Place of Gender | Date Appointed companies Note
Age Number | Shareholding | Number | Shareholding | Number | Shareholding experiences
Registration (Note) Title Name Relation

of shares | Percentage (%) |of Shares| percentage (%) | of shares | Percentage (%)

President of Product PHD of Computer Science of GLOBAL
Chieh-Cheng Director
Development & ROC Male 2019/10/01 171,425 0.09% 116,127 0.06% - -|University of Nottingham, Engineer of INTELLIGENCE| Shu-Erh Kuo | Spouse
Shih EPIC CLOUD CO,, LTD.
Support Center Kinmen Information Co., Ltd. Chairman
Chairman

EPIC CLOUD CO,, LTD.

Director
Juris Doctor, Suffolk University Law GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK
School, CLO of Qisda Corporation, CO,, LTD.
COO & CLO ROC TK Young Male 2020/11/05 20,000 0.01% - - - - NA NA NA
COO of SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY GRANDSYS INC.
CO,, LTD. ADVANCEDTEK  INTERNATIONAL
CORP.

Statinc Co., Ltd.

COREX (PTY) LTD.

Mechanical ~ Engineering of NTU,

Consultant  of TAISIN BUILDING
Vice president of
ROC Hui-Fen Liao | Female 2019/10/01 81,634 0.04% - - - -|SYSTEM CORP, Officer of the|- NA NA NA
Business First Group
department of Information Management

of Concord Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd.

Vice President of Director
Bachelor of Business Administration of
Product Development ROC Li-Tsung Lin Male 2020/11/05 50,592 0.03% 53,789 0.03% - - ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL NA NA NA
NCU, PM of Sysage Technology Co., Ltd.
& Support Center CORP.
Director
GRANDSYS INC.

COREX (PTY) LTD.

Everlasting Digital ESG Co., Ltd.

Department of Accounting, MCU,|Supervisor

CFO ROC Mavis Lin Female 2021/01/01 - - - - - -|Senior Investment Manager of Qisda| GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK NA NA NA

Corporation CO, LTD.

EPIC CLOUD CO,, LTD.

ADVANCEDTEK  INTERNATIONAL
CORP.

Statinc Co., Ltd.

Note:Please refer to the section “Directors, supervisors and presidents of affiliates” in annual report.



C. Documents of directors, president, vice presidents, associate vice presidents, and managers of each departments and divisions

(A)Director Information

December 31,2021 ; Unit:NT$ 1,000

Remuneration Relevant Remuneration Received by Directors Who are Also Employees Ratio of Total
Ratio of Total Remuneration Compen-
Salary, B Compensation
Directors Compensation (A+B+C+D) to Net Sy SEITESS, sation Paid to
Base Compensation (A) retirement pension (B) Allowances (D) and Allowances retirement pension (F) Employee Compensation (G) (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)
©) Income (%) (E) Directors from
to Net Income (%)
— an Invested
Tide Name Al companies Companiesin Companiesin Companiesin Companiesin Companiesin Companiesin it bdin Companiesin
consolidated Company Other
in the the the the the the the fE=coreany financial the
The The The The The The The The than the
consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated
Company Company Company Company Company Company Company Company Company’s
financial financial financial financial financial financial financial financial
Cash | Stock | Cash Stock Subsidiary
statements statements statements statements statements statements statements statements
Q Qisda Corporation Corporate
g‘ Representative:
Michael Lee
o Qisda Corporation Corporate
é Representative:
Chiu-Chin Hung
o Qisda Corporation Corporate
g Representative:
9
3 Shu-Erh Kuo
2 6,679 6,679 0 0 3,905 3,905 250 250 1.88% 1.88% 14,279 14,279 216 216 2,700 0 2,700 0 4.85% 4.85% 32,531
S o Qisda Corporation Corporate
g Representative:
Chi-Nan Tsai(Note )
9 Qisda Corporation Corporate
g Representative:
Wen-Hsing Tseng
o Qisda Corporation Corporate
g Representative:
Tk Young(Note )
o =
F
g 3 Wen-Tsung Wang
E3
& _
] gz
g g 7
a § 3 | Chin-laiWang 4,008 4,008 0 0 1,674 1,674 150 150 1.01% 1.01% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1.01% 1.01% 0
9
g
g
o =
s 3 Shan-Kuei Lai
(A)  Please describe the policy, system, standard, and structure of remuneration to independent directors, and the correlation between duties, risk, and time input with the amount of remuneration: Directors’ remuneration includes
monthly fixed remuneration and directors’ remuneration in accordance with the company’s Articles of Incorporation, based on the company’s current operating conditions and scale of operations, and with reference to industry
standards. It will be implemented in accordance with the company's directors and functional committee members' remuneration procedures.
(B) In addition to the information disclosed in the table above, has any Director of the Company provided services to any of the companies included in parent company, the Financial Statements and investees, and received compensation

for such services(e.g. provided consultation services in a non-employee capacity): None.

Note: 2021/11/05 Qisda Corporation appointed TK Young as the new representative of the corporate shareholder; and Chi-Nan Tsai was discharged.
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Compensation range for each Director

Names of Director

Sum of the first 4 items (A+B+C+D)

Sum of the first 7 items (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

The Company

Companies in the
consolidated
financial statements |

The Company

Companies in the
consolidated
financial statements |

Less than NT 1,000,000

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(TK Young)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(TK Young)

NT$1,000,000 (included)~2,000,000 (excluded)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Chiu-Chin Hung, Shu-Erh

Kuo, Wen-Hsing Tseng,
Chi-Nan Tsai), Independent
Director (Chin-Lai Wang,
Shan-Kuei Lai)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Shu-Erh Kuo, Chi-Nan Tsai,
Wen-Hsing Tseng, Chiu-
Chin Hung), Independent
Director (Chin-Lai Wang,
Wen-Tsung Wang, Shan-
Kuei Lai)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Shu-Erh Kuo, Chi-Nan Tsai,
Wen-Hsing Tseng, Chiu-
Chin Hung), Independent
Director (Chin-Lai Wang,
Wen-Tsung Wang, Shan-
Kuei Lai)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Shu-Erh Kuo, Chi-Nan Tsai,
Wen-Hsing Tseng, Chiu-
Chin Hung), Independent
Director (Chin-Lai Wang,
Wen-Tsung Wang, Shan-
Kuei Lai)

NT$2,000,000 (included)~3,500,000 (excluded)

Independent Director
(Wen-Tsung Wang)

Independent Director
(Wen-Tsung Wang)

Independent Director
(Wen-Tsung Wang)

Independent Director
(Wen-Tsung Wang)

NT$3,500,000 (included)~5,000,000 (excluded)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Michael Lee)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Michael Lee)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Michael Lee)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Michael Lee)

NT$5,000,000 (included)~1,000,000 (excluded)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(TK Young)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(TK Young)

NT$10,000,000(included)~15,000,000
(excluded)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Shu-Erh Kuo)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Shu-Erh Kuo)

NT$15,000,000(included)~30,000,000
(excluded)

NT$30,000,000(included)~50,000,000
(excluded)

NT$50,000,000(included)~100,000,000

(excluded)
More than NT$100,000,000 - - - -
Total 9 Persons 9 Persons 9 Persons 9 Persons
(including 6 corporate (including 6 corporate (including 6 corporate (including 6 corporate
Directors) Directors) Directors) Directors)




(B) Compensation for President and Vice Presidents

December 31,2021 ; Unit: NT$ 1,000

Ratio of total Compensation
. . . compensation Paid to the
Salary(A) Retirement Pension (B) Bonuses and Allowances(C) Employee Compensation (D) (A+B+C+D) to net President and
income (%) Vice President
. f
Title Name Companies Companies in Companies Compan{es n Companies rom af
] . theconsolidated X Invested
in the the in the The Company . inthe
The . The ) The . financial The . Company
consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated
Company . Company . Company . statements Company . Other than
financial financial financial financial the Company’s
statements statements statements Cash Stock | Cash Stock statements . .P 4
Subsidiary
President Michael Lee
President of Business Shu-Erh Kuo
Development Center
President of Product
Development & | Chieh-Cheng Shih
Support Center
C'OO & CLQ TK Young 12,329 12,329 532 532 20,422 20,422 5,100 0 5,100 0| 6.65% 6.65% 19,187
Vice  president  of Hui-Fen Liao
Business First Group
Vice  president of | Wen-Chuan Tseng
Business Third Group Removal:2021/02/28
Vice  President of
Product Development | Li-Tsung Lin
& Support Center

Compensation range for each President and Vice
President

Name of President and Vice President

The Company

Companies in the consolidated financial statements

Less than NT 1,000,000

Michael Lee

Michael Lee

NT$1,000,000(included)~2,000,000 (excluded)

Wen-Chuan Tseng

Wen-Chuan Tseng

NT$2,000,000(included)~3,500,000 (excluded)

NT$3,500,000(included)~5,000,000 (excluded)

NT$5,000,000(included)~10,000,000 (excluded)

Shu-Erh Kuo, Chieh-Cheng Shih, TK Young,

Hui-Fen Liao, Li-Tsung Lin

Shu-Erh Kuo, Chieh-Cheng Shih, TK Young,
Hui-Fen Liao, Li-Tsung Lin

NT$10,000,000(included)~15,000,000 (excluded)

NT$15,000,000(included)~30,000,000 (excluded)

NT$30,000,000(included)~50,000,000 (excluded)

NT$50,000,000(included)~100,000,000 (excluded)

More than NT$100,000,000

Total

7 Persons

7 Persons
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(C) Names of managers provided with employee's remunerations and state of payments

December 31,2021 ; Unit: NT$ 1,000

Ratio of total amount to

Title Name Stock Cash Total the net income after taxes
(%)
President Michael Lee
President of Business Development Center Shu-Erh Kuo

President of Product Development & Support

Chieh-Cheng Shih

Vice president of Business Third Group

= Center

8 |COO & CLO TKYoung o
03 Vice president of Business First Group Hui-Fen Liao 0 >100 3,100 0.88%
[}

Wen-Chuan Tseng
Removal:2021/02/28

Vice President of Product Development &
Support Center

Li-Tsung Lin

(D) Compare and analyze the total compensation as a percentage of net income after taxes stated in the parent company
only or individual financial statements paid by the Company and by all companies listed in the consolidated financial
statement in the most recent two years to the Company's Directors, supervisors, president and vice president.
Describe the policies, standards, and packages for payment of compensation, the procedures for determining
compensation, and its linkage to business performance and future risk exposure:

. The ratio of total remuneration paid by the Company and by all companies included in the consolidated
financial statements for the two most recent fiscal years to directors, supervisors, president and vice
president of the Company, to the net income.

Unit: NT$ 1,000
Proportion of the total remuneration to net profit after tax %
2021 2020
Title Companies in the Companies in the
The Company consolidated The Company consolidated
financial financial
statements statements
Directors 4.85% 4.85% 5.81% 5.81%
Independent Directors 1.01% 1.01% 0.88% 0.88%
the President and Vice President 6.65% 6.65% 10.15% 10.15%

2. The policies and standards for the payment of remuneration

(N

(2)

3)

According to Article 22 of the Articles of Incorporation, the company, if profitable
in the year, shall set aside no less than 8% of the profit as compensation for the
employees and no higher than 2% as remuneration for the directors. However, the
company, when accumulated losses remain on the account, shall reserve a portion
of its earnings to offset the losses first.

The Remuneration Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities
relating to the Company’s compensation and benefits policies, plans and programs,
and the evaluation of the directors’ and supervisors’ compensation. Remuneration
is appropriated according to the business performance of the Company, operational
risks and trends of development of industries, and also the directors’ and
supervisors’ compensation is appropriated in accordance with personal
achievements, contribution made to the business operation. Relevant performance
indicators and reasonability of remuneration shall be approved by the remuneration
committee and the board of the directors, and reviewed in relation to business
operation and relevant laws and regulations.

Senior managers were determined in accordance with the salary considerations,
market averages and individual performances. The procedures for determining
remuneration is based on key performance indicators of the Company, including
the financial index and non-financial index. Relevant performance indicators and
reasonability of remuneration shall be approved by the remuneration committee
the and board of the directors, and reviewed in relation to business operation and
relevant laws and regulations.
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IV. Implementation of Corporate Governance
(A) Operations of the Board of Directors
A total of 5 meetings of the Board of Directors were held in 2021. The attendance of director and
supervisor were as follows:

Number of Number of
Actual attendance rate
Title Name actual proxy Remark
(%) (B/A)
attendance (B) | attendance

Qisda Corporation
Chairman | Corporate Representative : 5 0 100%
Michael Lee

Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative - 5 0 100%
Chiu-Chin Hung

Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative : 5 0 100%
Shu-Erh Kuo

Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative : 5 0 100%
Chi-Nan Tsai(Note)

Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative : 5 0 100%
Wen-Hsing Tseng

Independent

Wen-Tsung Wang 5 0 100%
Director
Independent : .
Chin-Lai Wang 5 0 100%
Director
Independent o
] Shan-Kuei Lai 5 0 100%
Director

Note: 2021/11/05 Qisda Corporation appointed TK Young as the new representative of the
corporate shareholder, and Chi-Nan Tsai was discharged.
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Other items that shall be recorded:

(A) When one of the following matters occurs during the operation of the Board of Directors, the dates,

terms, contents of proposals of the meetings, the opinions of all Independent Directors and the responses

by the Company shall be clearly described:

A. Items specified in Article 14-3 of Securities and Exchange Act:
Opinions by
BOD . . Independent Directors
Discussions
Date/Terms and Treatment by the
Company
I.To amend the "Handling Procedures for the Acquisition or Disposal of
101 ] Assets".
2021/02/25 2.To revise the "Handling Procedures for Fund Loan and Endorsement | |. All  Independent
Guarantee". Directors
BOD 3.2021 Professional fee for service of CPAs
presented at the
meeting agreed
[0%-12 It is proposed to sell the building of KUANG CHUN CHENG in Taoyuan. without objection.
2021/05/06
2. Treatment to
BOD .
|. Approved the proposal for making guarantee for GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE opinions by
10™-14 NETWORK CO,, LTD., with 79.43% holding shares. Independent
2021/11/05 2. Approved the proposal for making guarantee for Corex (PTY) LTD., with Directors: None.
BOD 100% holding shares.

3. Approved the proposal for 2021 appointment of CPAs by the Company.

(B) In addition to the aforementioned matters, any other resolutions from the Board of Directors where an

Independent Director expressed a dissenting or qualified opinion that has been recorded or stated by

writing: None.
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B. When Directors abstain themselves for being a stakeholder in certain proposals, the name of the

Directors, the content of the proposal, reasons for abstentions and the results of voting counts should

be stated.

The name of

The content of the

The results of

Date the Reasons for abstentions .
. proposal voting counts
directors

Michael Lee, |To lift non-competition|Relevant to personal interests of directors. Except for
Chiu-Chin  [restrictions on current directors abstain
Hung, Chi- |directors and their themselves for
Nan Tsai, representatives. being a
Wen-Hsing stakeholder in
Tseng and certain
Chin-Lai proposals, All

2021/02/25 Wang : _ Directors
Michael Lee, |Approved Donation to|Counterparty to the donation is the related  |presented
Chiu-Chin  |BenQ Foundation party of Legal director-Qisda. agreed without
Hung, Shu- objection.
Erh Kuo,
Chi-Nan
Tsai and
Wen-Hsing
Tseng

2021/11/05|Shu-Erh Kuo |Approved the proposal|Due to Shu-Erh Kuo is Chairman of GLOBAL

for making guarantee
for GLOBAL
INTELLIGENCE
NETWORK CO,, LTD,
with 79.43% holding
shares.

INTELLIGENCE NETWORK CO,, LTD, and

relevant to personal interests.

C. Implementation Status of Board Evaluations:

The Board of Directors of the company approved the "Board Performance Evaluation Measures" on

September 18, 2019, and it was edited on November 5, 2020, stipulating that the Board of Directors

shall perform at least one performance evaluation for the Board of Directors and its directors each

year. The company began to conduct board evaluations every year in 2021. In February, 2022, the

evaluation result was “superior” of BOD and its members, as well as the functional committees, which

is sufficient to indicate that the company's Board of Directors is functional and efficient.
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Evaluation | Evaluation Scope of Evaluation o
) . Evaluation items
cycle period evaluation method
. Alignment of the goals and missions of the company
. Participation in the operation of the company
3. Management of internal relationship and
communication
Internal self- . . ,
Board and assessment . Improvement of the quality of the board of directors
Board made by the decision making
members Board of . .
Directors 5. Composition and structure of the board of directors
6. Awareness of the duties of a director
. Election, professionalism and continuing education of
the directors
. Internal control
January, . Participation in the operation of the company
2021 to
Annually December . Awareness of the duties of Audit Committee
2021 Internal Self- 3. Improvement of quality of decisions made by Audit
Audit Evaluation c .
Committee made by Audit ommittee
Committee . Makeup of Audit Committee and election of its
members
. Internal control
. Participation in the operation of the company
. Awareness of the duties of Remuneration
Internal Self- )
. Evaluation Committee
Remuneration . .
Committee made by . . Improvement of quality of decisions made by
Remuneration R ion C .
Committee emuneration Committee

. Makeup of Remuneration Committee and election of

its members

D. Targets for strengthening the functions of the Board of Directors in the current and the most recent
year (e.g., setting up an Audit Committee and enhancing information transparency) and evaluation of
target implementation:

(A) The Company had established positions of Independent Directors and the Audit Committees in 2019
to exercise the functions required by the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company Act and other
legal regulations. In 2011, the Remuneration Committee was established to enhance corporate
governance and improve the remuneration and compensation system for Directors and Managers of
the company.

(B) Based on Paragraph 8 of Article 26-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act, Sysage has promulgated
the “Rules Governing the Procedures of Meetings of the Board of Directors” which stipulated
requirements to contents of meetings of the Board, the operating procedures, the matters to be
recorded in the proceedings, the announcements and any other matters. Meetings of Sysage Board
shall be convened at least once per quarter. All members of the Board shall exercise the due care of
a good administrator and bear fiduciary duty to manage exercise their powers with a high degree of
self-discipline and prudence under the guidance of optimization of Shareholders’ interest.
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(B) Operations of the Audit Committee

I. Operations of the Audit Committee:

The Company had convened 5 Audit Committee meetings in 202 | with the following attendance:

Attendance Number of
Title Name in times attended | Attendance rate (B/A) | Remark
Person(B) by proxy
Independent Director | Wen-Tsung Wang 5 0 100%
Independent Director | Chin-Lai Wang 5 0 100%
Independent Director | Shan-Kuei Lai 5 0 100%

Other items that shall be recorded:

A. If any of the following matters occurs during the operation of the Audit Committee, the dates, terms,

contents of the proposal of the Board meetings, the opinions of all Independent Directors and the

responses by the Company shall be cleanly described:
I. Items specified in Article 14-5 of Securities and Exchange Act:

Opinions by
Independent
BOD Discussions Di d
Date/Terms Bl irectors an
Treatment by
the Company
|. Proposal of 2020 Statement of Internal Control System and Report on the
Results of Self-appraisal.
2th-8 2. The 2020 financial statements and business report, and the 2021 business plan. | All Audic
" . .. . " . udi
2021/02/25 3. To amend the "Handling Procedures for the Acquisition or Disposal of Assets". Committee
4. To revise the "Handling Procedures for Fund Loan and Endorsement Guarantee". Members
5. 2021 Professional fee for service of CPAs. presented
. o . at the
2th-9 It is proposed to sell the building of KUANG CHUN CHENG in Taoyuan. meeting
2021/05/06 agreed
Iei d ize the 2021 Q2 consolidated financial without
2th-10 t is proposed to recognize the Q2 consolidated financial report. objection.
2021/08/05 2. Treatment
|.To set up the internal audit plan in 2022. to opinions
2. Approved the proposal for making guarantee for GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE léy AUd'_Et
ommittee
2th-11 NETWORK CO,, LTD., with 79.43% holding shares. Members:
2021/11/05 3. Approved the proposal for making guarantee for Corex (PTY) LTD., with 100% None.

holding shares.
4. Approved the proposal for 2022 appointment of CPAs by the Company.

(B) Other matters except the preceding ones, which are not approved by the Audit Committee but

approved by two-thirds or more of the Directors: None.

B.  For the implementation of Directors’ avoidance due to conflicts of interest of Directors, please clearly

specify the names of Directors, the content of the proposals, the reasons of avoidance due to conflicts of

interest and the participation in the voting and resolution: None.
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C.  Communication between Independent Directors, the Internal Audit Director and CPAs (the major issues,

methods and results of the Company's financial and business conditions shall be descripted in details):

(A) The audit manager shall submit audit report to the independent directors next month from the

completion of the audit project, and the independent directors haven’t objected about any matters.

(B) The audit supervisor attends the company's periodic audit committee as non-voting delegates and makes
audit business reports(including the audit report at the period and the follow-up audit report after the
period, etc.). Independent directors have no objection. The independent directors may contact the
accountant when they deem it necessary to understand the findings of the inspection and the

improvement of the deficiency.

(C) The accountant reports to the independent directors at least half year on the company's financial status,
overall operation status and internal control review. The major contents include the scope and method
of financial statement review or review, the results of the second quarter or annual financial report
review or review, important accounting procedures, regulatory updates and other relevant issues of
communication.

D.  Annual key functions and operations:

(A) Annual key functions

I. Communicate results of audit report with the head of internal audit regularly according to the annual
audit plan.
2. Communicate with CPA regularly over financial statement review or audit results in each quarter.
3. Review financial reports.
4. Assessment of the effectiveness of internal control system.
5. Review the hiring, dismissal, compensation, and service matters concerning CPAs
6. Review the Company's operational procedures and material transactions of assets, derivatives, capital
lending and endorsement/guarantees.

7. Legal compliance.

(B) 2021 operations: Proposals of the Audit Committee meetings have all been reviewed or approved by

members of the Audit Committee with no dissent from any of the Independent Directors.
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(C) Implementation of Corporate Governance, and Differences with Contents of Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and Reasons:

Evaluation Item

The Operations

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-

Practice Principles for

Yes No Summary Description
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their
Reasons
A. Does the Company establish and| V With having the prior approval of the board No differences
disclose the Corporate Governance of directors on May 12, 2017, relevant
Best-Practice Principles based on matters were revealed in Sysage ’s website.
“Corporate Governance Best Practice
Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed
Companies™?
B. Corporate Ownership Structure and No differences
shareholders' equity establish.
(A) Does the Company establish the| V The company establishes a stakeholder area
internal operating procedures to on the website and establishes a
handle the shareholders’ spokesperson and acting spokesperson
proposals, inquiries, disputes and policies  to handle shareholders’
litigations issues as well as carry suggestions, doubts, disputes and litigation
out through following matters.
procedures?
(B) Does the Company retain at all| VvV The company regularly updates the list of
times a register of major shareholders and major shareholders in
shareholders who have accordance with regulations, and acquires
controlling power, and of the the list of major shareholders who actually
persons with ultimate control control the company and the final
over those major shareholders? controllers of major shareholders.
(C) Does the Company establishand| V The company handles various financial and

implement the risk management
and firewall mechanism between

affiliated enterprises?

business matters amount the related

parties, in accordance with the company's

internal control system, internal audit

system and relevant laws and regulations.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-

Practice Principles for

Yes No Summary Description
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their
Reasons
(D) Does the Company establish the| V The company has established the " the
internal guidelines  prohibiting Ethical Corporate Management Policies"
company insiders from trading and " Ethical Corporate Management Best
securities using information not Practice Principles of Employees" and "
disclosed to the market? Procedures for Handling Material Inside
Information " to regulate the use of
undisclosed information on the market by
insiders to buy and sell securities.
C. Organization and Responsibilities of No differences
the Board of Directors
(A) Does the Board of Directors v The company has formulated a

formulate the diversified
approaches, specific
management objectives, and
implement aimed at Board

Member organization?

diversification policy for the composition of

the Board of Directors in Article 20 of the

Corporate Governance Best Practice

Principles ". Based on the professional
background and working fields, the
company selects the directors with
capabilities of business management,

leadership decision-making, and industry
experience (finance, international markets,
IT  Industry,

accounting  practice),

professional abilities (information
technology, accounting, law), in order to
implement the company's policy of diversity
for the composition of the Board of
Directors. The board of directors of the
company shall direct company strategies,

supervise the management, and be

responsible to the company and

shareholders.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

Summary Description

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their

Reasons

The various procedures and arrangements
of its corporate governance system shall
ensure that, in exercising its authority, the
board of directors complies with laws,
regulations, its articles of incorporation, and
the resolutions of its shareholders
meetings. All members of the board shall
have the knowledge, skills, and experience,
decisions of the industry, and management
capabilities etc., necessary to perform their
duties. The Company continuously arranges
a variety of courses for the board members
to improve their decision making quality
and supervision skills, thus strengthening

the functions of the board of directors.

The company’s BOD has composed of 8
directors(including 3 independent directors
and 5 representatives of the legal director).
All  directors have capabilities for
diversification of business development. n
addition to the overall competence of the
Board of Directors, the company's situation
of taking Diversity of the Board of

Directors(note I).
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

Summary Description

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their

Reasons

(B)

©

Aside from establishing the
Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee, does the

Company  also  voluntarily

establish  other  types  of

functional committees?

Does the Company establish the
rules for the board performance
evaluation and its assessment
methods for annual performance
evaluation on an annual basis, as
well as report its result to the
Board of Directors by applying
that as a reference to
remuneration  of individual
director and to nomination and

continuous employment?

The company has established the Risk
Management Committee. For more details
on the operations, please see the website-
ESG regarding risk management of the
annual report. On the other hand, although
the Company does not establish the
Nomination Committee, it adopts the
candidate nomination

system for the

election of the directors (including
independent directors) in terms of practical
operations. The candidate list of the existing
directors (including independent directors)
shall be submitted by shareholders who
hold over 1% shares of the company, and
the Board of Directors. Meanwhile, the
Board of Directors shall review and
approve in advance the candidate list in
accordance with the laws, and shall report
to the regular shareholders' meeting for
election.

On September 18, 2019, the Board of
Directors of the Company has passed the
“Rules for Board Performance Evaluation”,
and it was edited on November 5, 2020,
The internal board performance evaluation
for the current year shall be conducted at
least once a year as well as be conducted
by external independent institutions or

panel of external experts and scholars at

least once every three years.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

Summary Description

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their

Reasons

Sysage has completed the board evaluation
by the end of 2021.And it is expected that
the Company will hold a Board meeting to
report the evaluation results in February,

2022.

The Company shall take into consideration
its condition and needs when establishing
the criteria for evaluating the performance
of the board of directors and its members,
which should cover, at a minimum, the

following eight aspects:

(I) Master the company's goals and

tasks;

(2) Participation in the operation of the

company;

(3) Internal relationship management

and communication

(4) Improvement of the quality of the

board of directors' decision making;

(5) Composition and structure of the

board of directors;
(6) Directors' duties cognitive.

(7)  Election and continuing education of

the directors; and

(8) Internal control.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

Summary Description

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their

Reasons

This  performance  evaluation  was
conducted in the way of internal
questionnaire based on operation of the
Board and directors’ participation that
enables directors to evaluate their
functions over the operation of the Board,
The evaluation results showed that the
achievement is excellent. According to
results of the Board evaluation in 2021, the
overall operation of the Board performed

at a consistently high efficiency level.

According to the provisions in Article 22
specified in the Articles of Incorporation,
the Company’s director compensation shall
not exceed the 1% of annual profit. The
directors’ compensation is prescribed
based on the Company’s operating results
and the “Remuneration Guidelines for
Directors and Committee Members of
Functional Committee” with reference to
evaluation results of Board performance by
the Remuneration Committee and Board of

Directors.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

Summary Description

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their

Reasons

(D) Does the Company regularly
evaluate and the independency of|

an attesting CPA?

At least once a year, the Company evaluates
the independence and suitability of its CPA)
and submits the result for reviewing(see
note 2 for assessment sheet).The
Company's Hung-Wen Fu and Mei-Ping Wu
of CPAs has been verified to be in

compliance  with  requirement for
independence as specified in the related
independence regulations, and CPAs have
issued a statement of independence based
on No. |10 report of code of professional
ethics of CPAs of ROC, with an approval by
the Board of the Directors on November

05,2021.

D.Does the TWSE/GTSM Listed
Companies allocate the adaptation and
appropriate number of corporate
governance personnel as well as assign
the corporate governance supervisors
to be responsible for matters related
to corporate governance (including
but not limited to required
information provided to directors and
supervisors performing their duties,
assistance provided to directors, legal
compliance of supervisors, handling
matters related to Board of Directors’
and  shareholders’ meeting in
accordance with the laws, preparation
of the minutes of Board of Directors’
shareholders' and

and meeting,

more.)?

On February 25, 2021, Sysage may, after
having a resolution adopted by the Board of
Directors, hire Mavis Lin to take part as a
role of corporate governance officer
responsible for supervision and planning of
corporate governance. Hung’s qualifications
for the position meet the provisions
regarding Corporate Governance
Supervisors set out in Paragraph One of
Article 3-1 of Corporate Governance Best-
Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies. The official powers performed

by the corporate governance supervisors

include:

No differences
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

Summary Description

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their

Reasons

Providing the information required by the
directors and Audit Committee and the
latest regulations regarding corporate
operation, providing assistance in legal
Compliance of the directors and Audit
Committee, regularly reporting the
operations of corporate governance to
Corporate Governance Committee and
Board of Directors on an annual basis,
handling matters related to Board of
Directors’ and shareholders' meeting in
accordance with the laws, preparation of
the minutes of Board of Directors’ and
shareholders' meeting, providing assistance
in assuming office to directors and Audit
Committee members and continuing

education.

The operation in 2021 is updated as

follows:

I. Assist the independent directors and
general directors to perform their
duties, provide the required information
and arrange the continuing education

for directors.

2. Regularly inform the Board members
dedicated to the revised regulations
regarding corporate operating domain

and corporate governance.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

Summary Description

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their

Reasons

. Inspect the confidential levels of relevant

information and provide the corporate
information required by the directors to
maintain the communication and
smooth interaction between directors

and supervisors.

. Review the release of announcement of

material news upon the adoption of
important resolutions after meetings to
ensure the lawfulness and correctness as
well as protect the equal information on

transactions for investors.

. The Company has convened 5 times of

the Board of Directors and 5 times of

Audit Committee in 2021.

. The Company has convened the regular

shareholders' meeting once in 2021.

. Sysage has helped the directors and

important employees apply for liability
insurance and has reported to the Board

of Directors after renewal of insurance.

. The Company has engaged a board

performance evaluation and the

evaluation result showed excellence.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-

Practice Principles for

website containing the
information regarding financial or
business operations as well as

corporate governance?

English  (http://www.sysage.com.tw) that
discloses the information regarding financial
or business operations as well as corporate

governance.

Yes No Summary Description
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their
Reasons
. Does the Company build the channels| V Sysage has built the stakeholder mailbox on No differences
of communication with stakeholders its website that is used as the channels of
(including but not limited to communication in response to important
shareholders, employees, customers, issues on corporate social responsibility
) concerned by stakeholders in a proper
suppliers and so on.) as well as
manner and in good faith.We also regularly
designate a stakeholder area on its . . .
disclose the financial and business
website in response to important information of financial conditions and
issues on corporate social operations on the Market Observation
responsibility concerned by Post System (MOPS) and on the website
stakeholders in a proper manner and established by the Company. Moreover, we
in good faith? will timely release announcement of
material news dedicated to events that
result in significant impact on stakeholders.
. Does the Company engage a| V The company has appointed the Stock No differences
professional  shareholder  services Transfer Agency Department of Taishin
agent to handle shareholders meeting Securities Co., Ltd as our registrar for our
matters? stock affairs.
G. Information Disclosure No differences
(A) Does the Company set up a| V Sysage has established the Investor
Relations in its website in Chinese and
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-

Practice Principles for

Yes No Summary Description
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their
Reasons
(B) Does the Company adopt other| V Sysage has adopted various methods of
methods of information information disclosure, such as set up the
disclosure (such as set up the English  website, specified personnel
English website, appoint responsible for gathering and disclosing the
information, establish a spokesperson
personnel responsible for
system, regularly or unregularly hold the
gathering  and  disclosing  the operations conference briefing and upload
information, establish a the presentation materials to the
spokesperson system, display the Company’s website and establish investor
Company’s website during the mailbox in response to investors’ questions.
investor conference briefing, and
more.)?
(C) Does the Company publicly] V On February 24, 2022, Sysage has publicly

announce the annual financial
reports within two months after
the close of each fiscal year, as
well as the financial reports in Ql,
Q2 and Q3, plus the addition of
monthly operating status prior to
the designated deadlines in

advance?

announced the consolidated and parent
reports in 202l; the financial
reports in 2021 QI, Q2 and Q3,in addition
to the monthly operating status will be
Market
Observation Post System (MOPS) prior to

financial

publicly announced on the
the designated deadlines and then upload

them to the Company’s website.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-

Practice Principles for

Yes No Summary Description
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their
Reasons
H. Has the Company disclosed other| V Employee  rights and care: To|  No differences

information to facilitate a better
understanding of its corporate
governance practices (e.g. including
but not limited to employee rights,
employee wellness, investor
relations, supplier relations, rights of
stakeholders, directors’ training
records, the implementation of risk
management  policies and risk
evaluation measures, the
implementation of customer
relations policies, and purchasing

insurance for directors)?

Continuously plan various welfare
measures for employees, and set up an
employee welfare committee to protect
employee rights, in order to enhance
employee welfare, and give employees a
better working environment and
development. In addition, to establish
good employee relations and benefits, so
that employees have job satisfaction and
provide equal employment
opportunities; To provide employees
with a comfortable and safe working
environment, etc.; To protect employee
basic rights and interests, such as,
working rules, pensions, medical care,
accident insurance, education and
training, etc.(Please see P80-81 for

relevant rights).

. Investor relations: Sysage’s specified

personnel shall publicly announce with
timely information on company financial
conditions. businesses and event of
changes regarding insider shareholdings
on the Market Observation Post System
(MOPS) in with  the
provisions to achieve the information

accordance

disclosure and transparency. Moreover,

the information regarding investor
contact person on the Company’s

official website.

. Supplier relationship: As an information

service provider, we resell ICT products
with “leading brands and value-added
service” as the overall operational
strategy. Ve resell network and system
hardware and software products made
by world-leading brands to provide
customers in different fields with ICT
integration solutions. Currently, we have

about 300 suppliers.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

Summary Description

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their

Reasons

Most suppliers are world-leading brands
and foreign public companies that have
signed CSR best practice principles
complying with the regulations of their
own countries. In addition, we spare no
effort in complying with the RBA Code
of Conduct and the spirit of social
responsibility, hoping to put the
emerging trends of “corporate social
responsibility” and “sustainable
development” into practice together
with  upstream and downstream
partners.

In 2014, we established the management
approach according to the Code of
Conduct (CoC) published by Electronic
Industry Citizenship Coalition (EICC) to
practice the CSR requirements in the
CoC together with original
manufacturers and suppliers. Since the
EICC reorganized as the Responsible
Business Alliance (RBA) in 2017. Since
then, we also expanded promotion to
suppliers according to five sections
(Labor, Health and Safety, Environment,
Ethics, and Management Systems) of the
new CoC published by the RBA to
ensure no obstruction of the freedom of
association of workers, no use of child
labor or forced labor. Apart from
responding to international trends, we
also enhanced the CSR, environmental,
and OH&S performance of the supply
chain.

. Stakeholders' rights: To set up an area

for stakeholders on the company's
website and respond to importance
important  issues of CSR by
stakeholders.

40




Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

Summary Description

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed
Companies And Their

Reasons

Directors’  training records: The
company holds trainings for directors, in
accordance with “Directions for the
Implementation of Continuing
Education for Directors of TWSE Listed
and TPEx Listed Companies”. The
situation of Directors ‘training of the
company in 2021 (see note 3).

. The implementation of risk management

policies and risk evaluation measures:
The Company has already instituted
internal control systems as required by
law and has properly reviewed
regulations of internal controls of risk
management and assessments at any
time. The Company also purchases
insurance for directors, in order to
reduce management risks. In 2021, we
set up the risk management committee
and risk management policies for
evaluating company risks and reducing
corporate risks. Please see the
company’s website.

The implementation of customer
relations  policies: The Company
maintains a good relationship with
customers for increasing profits.
Purchasing insurance for directors: The
Company maintains liability Insurance
for its directors, and submits it to the
Board of Directors.

A

B)

are the top 21% to 35%, respectively.

Please describe the improvement status according to the evaluation results of Corporate Governance Evaluation publicly
announced by Governance Center of Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporate (TWSE) in recent years. In addition, the Company
shall propose the matters and measures given priority to strengthen.

The evaluation results of Corporate Governance Evaluation for Sy sage in 2020 were classified into three groups, which

Sy sage has designated a stakeholder area on its website in response to important issues on corporate social responsibility
concerned by stakeholders. We will continue to strengthen the items for improvement relating to the following:
Protection of shareholders' rights, equal treatment of shareholders, reinforcement of the Board structure and operations,

improvement of information transparency, actual implementation of the corporate social responsibility, and more.
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Note | :

The situation of taking Diversity of the Board of Directors goes as follows:

I. Aleast electing | female director(2 female directors).

2. Directors are in different age levels(41-50 years old-25% ~ 51-60 years old-50% * 61-70 years old-25%).

3. Election of directors with different professional knowledge and skills; Please see P.I3 Directors’

information

Note 2 : The assessment standard of independence of CPAs goes as follows:

Evaluation Correspondent to
No. The assessment items results independence
Y/N Y/N
I Does CPAs have direct and material financial interests with the Company. N Y
2 Does CPAs make endorsements/ guarantees with the Company. N Y
Does CPAs have a closer relationship regarding the business and
} employment with the company. N Y
CPAs and their members of audit team have served as directors, managers
4 of the company or any job positions that have a significant impact on the N Y
audit work, during the audit period.
Does CPAs have any services items of non-audit, which may affect the
> company’s audit work. N Y
Whether CPAs have brokered stocks or other securities issued by the
¢ company. N Y
Whether CPAs have acted as the defender of the company or coordinated
! conflicts with other third parties on behalf of the company. N Y
Whether CPAs are relatives of the company’s directors, managers, or
° persons in a job position that have a significant influence on the audit work. N Y

Conclusion: After evaluation by the company, the appointment of CPAs does not have any situations in the above

independence assessment items, and it can be confirmed that the appointment of CPAs complies with

requirement for independence.

Note 3:The situation of Directors ‘training of the company in 2021 goes as follows:

Train Length of
Title Name raining Organizer Course Name the
Date .
curriculum
Securities and Futures|Discussion on the employee rewards strategy
2021/08/19 . o 3.0
Institute and tools application
Corporate )
Michael
Director
, Lee Digital Governance|Corporate Integrity Governance and Insider,
Representative 2021/11/18 3.0
Association Transaction Control
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Training

Length of

Title Name Organizer Course Name the
Date :
curriculum
Securities and Futures|Discussion on the employee rewards strategy
Corporate 2021/08/19 . o 3.0
Chiu-Chin Institute and tools application
Director
. Hung Digital Governance|Corporate Integrity Governance and Insider
Representative 2021/11/18 3.0
Association Transaction Control
Securities and Futures|Discussion on the employee rewards strategy
Corporate 2021/08/19 3.0
Institute and tools application
Director  |Shu-Erh Kuo
. Digital Governance|Corporate Integrity Governance and Insider
Representative 2021/11/18 3.0
Association Transaction Control
Securities and Futures|Discussion on the employee rewards strategy
Corporate 2021/08/19 . o 3.0
Wen-Hsing Institute and tools application
Director
, Tseng Digital Governance|Corporate Integrity Governance and Insider,
Representative 2021/11/18 3.0
Association Transaction Control
Taiwan Corporate|Management of corporation and crisis on
2021/11712 3.0
Governance Association |public opinion in news
Digital Governance|Corporate Integrity Governance and Insider
2021/11718 o . 3.0
Corporate TK Association Transaction Control
Director Taiwan Corporate|Discussion on the case of fraud of corporate
) Young 2021/12/24 o i . 3.0
Representative Governance Association [financial statements
) In the fast-changing environment of]
Taiwan Corporate
2021/12/28 .. [technology, directors lead corporate among 3.0
Governance Association ]
countermeasure strategies
o The case in accordance with the article of real
2021/03/23 |CPA Association R.O.C. 3.0
estate trust
Independent | Wen-Tsun
P € | 2021/07/16 |CPA Association R.O.C. |A plan of stack rights 3.0
Director Wang
2021/07/20 |CPA Association R.O.C. |A plan of inheritance of the family business 3.0
2021/07/30 |CPA Association R.O.C. |Money Laundering Control & CFT Policy 3.0
» As a lecturer of “ The art of interpreting
2021/03/31~|Securities and Futures
financial information of directors and 3.0
Independent Chin-Lai 2021/10/20 |Institute . .
supervisors” for courses to be waived
Director Wang
Securities and Futures|Discussion on the employee rewards strategy
2021/08/19 3.0
Institute and tools application
Securities and Futures|Discussion on the employee rewards strategy
2021/08/19 3.0
Independent | Shan-Kuei Institute and tools application
Director Lai Digital Governance|Corporate Integrity Governance and Insider
2021/11/18 o ) 3.0
Association Transaction Control
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(D) Composition, duties, and operations of the Company's Remuneration Committee:

|. Information on the members of the Remuneration Committee

Date: December 31,2021 ; Units: Shares

Title

Conditions of Spouse &
Personal .
Independence _ Minor
Shareholding
Condition (Note 2) Shareholding | Number of other public Companies where the
Professional qualifications

Director concurrently serves as an member of
and experience
the Renumeration Committee
112(3|4(5(6|7|8]|9(10 | Shares | % |Shares| %

Name

Independent Services Inc

Director

EMBA of National Tsing
Hua University, Bachelor
Wen-
degree of Accounting, Feng
Tsung VIVIV[VIV|V|V|V|V| V - - [11,903| 0.01% |
Chia University,, CPA of
Wang
Hui-Min Accounting Firm,
CPA of Biing-Cherng CPAs
PHD of Business
Chin- Administration, NCCU,

Lai MD of Ernst & Young

Wang |Global Limited, Chairman

of EY Management

PHD, Business
Administration, NTPU,
MBA of Indiana University
of Pennsylvania, Chairman
Shan- of TOPCO SCIENTIFIC
Kuei |CO., LTD, President of
Lai ICSB, Chairman of CSBC
CORPORATION,
TAIWAN, Director of
SMEA, MOEA, Deputy of
director, Department of

Commerce, MOEA

Note | : Please reference P.|3 directors’ information.

Note 2 : Please add "v'" in the field under each criteria number if the member meets the criteria two years prior to being elected and during

his/her term of service.

(1) Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

(2) Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates. (Do not apply to independent directors appointed in
accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company
and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.)

(3) Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person’s spouse, minor children, or held by
the person under others’ names, in an aggregate amount of 1% or more of the total number of issued shares of the Company or
is ranked in the top 10 in shareholdings.

(4) Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, of a managerial
officer under () or any of the persons under (2) and (3).

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds five percent or more of the total number
of issued shares of the company, or that ranks among the top five in shareholdings, or that designates its representative to serve
as a director or supervisor of the company under Article 27, paragraph | or 2 of the Company Act. (Do not apply to independent
directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as
such at, the Company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.)

(6) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of other company if a majority of the company's director seats or voting shares and
those of that other company are controlled by the same person. (Do not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance
with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company and its parent
or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.)

(7) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of other company or institution if the chairman, general manager, or person holding an
equivalent position of the company and a person in any of those positions at that other company or institution are the same

person or are spouses.
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(8) Not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding five percent or more of the shares, of a specified company or institution
that has a financial or business relationship with the company. (Do not apply in cases where the specified company or institution
holds more than 20 percent but less than 50 percent of the Company’s issued shares and are the independent directors appointed
in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company
and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.)

(9) Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership,
company, or institution that, provides auditing services to the company or any affiliate of the company, or that provides commercial,
legal, financial, accounting or related services to the company or any affiliate of the company for which the provider in the past 2
years has received cumulative compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof; provided, this restriction does not apply
to a member of the remuneration committee, public tender offer review committee, or special committee for

merger/consolidation and acquisition, who exercises powers pursuant to the Act or to the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act
or related laws or regulations.

(10) Not been involved in any of situations defined in Article 30 of the Company Act.
2. Responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee:
(1) There are 3 members in the Remuneration Committee.

A total of 2 Remuneration Committee meetings were held in 2021.

Duties of the Remuneration Committee:

A.To review regulations of the remuneration committee and propose amendment of it at all
times.

B. To establish and regularly review the policies, systems, standards and structures for
performance assessment and remuneration of directors and managers.

C.To regularly assess renumeration of directors, and managers, and set their renumeration.
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(2) The 5" Term: From September 26, 2019 to September 25, 2022; The current term is the

same as that of the board of directors. A total of 2 Remuneration Committee meetings were

held in 2021. The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members was as

follows:
Position Name Attendance | Attended Attendance Remark
in Person (B) | by Proxy | Rate (%) (B/A)
Convener Wen-Tsung Wang 2 0 100%
Committee Member Chin-Lai Wang 2 0 100%
Committee Member | Shan-Kuei Lai 2 0 100%

Other items that shall be recorded:

I. If the Board of Directors chooses not to adopt or revise recommendations proposed by the Remuneration

Committee, the date of the Directors’ Meeting, session, contents of proposals, results of meeting resolutions,

and the Company’s disposition of opinions provided by the Remuneration Committee shall be described in

detail (also, where the salary and compensation approved by the Directors’ Meeting is better than that

recommended by the Remuneration Committee, the differences and the reason for the approval shall be

described in detail): None.

. For the decisions made by the Remuneration Committee, if there are members who hold objection or

reservation to a resolution and such objection or reservation is on record or raised through a written statement,

the date, session, contents of proposals, all members’ opinions, and ways in handling these opinions should be

elaborated: None

The Company handled opinions from committee members in 2021.

(3) The Remuneration Committee meetings’ date, period, the content of motions, Resolutions and

Remuneration

The Company handled

Committee Item Resolutions opinions from committee Note
meeting members
gth 4 l. Approved the 2020 distribution
2021/02/25 of employees and directors
remuneration.
2. Proposed the 2021 | convener of
compensation distributions to the
senior managerial officers. Remuneratlon
Committee
3. Approved distribution rates of | consulted the
compensation of employees and | ©Ppinion of all The proposal was
directors attending approved without dissent
) remuneration and submitted for
4.  Approved the amendments to committee resolution at the Board
"Compensation Policy to the members. meeting.
Directors and  Functional
Committee Members".
5th 5 Compensation of the manager who | The report
2021/11/05 achieves performance in 2021. item shall not

applicable.
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(E) Status of sustainable development promotion and status and causes of inconsistency with the
Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies (Sustainable
Development Best Practice)
Status of Implementation Status and
causes of
inconsistency
Objective with
Yes/No Summary Sustainable
Development
Best Practice
Did the company| V |.Based on the laws and regulations of the competent authorities, international global No
implement a ESG trends, and the requirements for social and environmental responsibility of | significant
governance customers and suppliers, we have established the Corporate Social Responsibility Best | difference.
framework and Practice Principles. After Board approval for the amendment projected in 2022, these
establish a  full- principles will be renamed Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for the
(part-) time unit for reference of policy promotion and implementation. In addition, to enforce corporate
sustainable social responsibility and improve the quality of information disclosure to address the
development,  with expectation of various stakeholder groups, we will manage and disclose sustainable
senior management development issues in terms of six topics, i.e., customer commitment, information
authorized by the security, employee care, environmental protection, responsible supply chain, and social
Board to handle the contribution.
related matters, and 2.We established the CSR Committee in May 2017, and changed its name as ESG
what is the status of Committee in 2021, to specialize in promoting sustainable development. It is chaired
Board supervision? by the chairperson, with the chief executive officer (CEO) being the executive
secretary and a number of working groups to facilitate committee operations in
accordance with the Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles approved by
the Board. Each working group gathers related issues within its scope of responsibility
and includes important issues in the implementation plan and routine operations after
assessment and analysis. Then, the Committee will present a report to the Board
periodically, and the directors review development of ESG strategies and goals each
year, and urge the management team to make adjustments when necessary.
Did the company| V | .We established the Risk Management Committee (RMC) in August 2021 as a proactive No
assess by materiality risk management mechanism to facilitate related units to promptly address risk events | significant
the risks of| through a set of risk management procedures to lower or avoid the impact of risk | difference.
environmental, events and enhance the risk awareness of employees in order to ensure the Company’s
social, and sustainable operations.
governance  issues 2.We manage risk through the RMC which, after internal meetings, classifies risks into
relating to corporate six categories: business risk, product and technical service risk, financial risk,
operations and information security risk, legal compliance risk, and human resource risk. These six
establish related risk categories cover a total of 2| potential risks, which will serve as the framework

policies or strategies
for risk management?

for the annual risk assessment and information disclosure in the future. The RMC
reported its operations and business contents to the Board periodically each year.

3.We have also established the Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles, Code of
Ethics and Conduct for Directors and Officers, Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice
Principles, and Employee Code of Ethics and Conduct to promptly capture and respond to
the risks of the environment, employees, customers, suppliers, and various stakeholder
groups that relate to business operations through various management systems, best-
practice principles, and procedures.

4.Based on the material principle, the company conducts risk assessments on important
ESG issues, and sets up relevant risk management policies or strategies, based on the
assessed risks. Please refer to the company's website - ESG.

47




Status of Implementation

Status and

causes of
inconsistency
Objective with
Yes/No Summary Sustainable
Development
Best Practice
C. Environmental No
(A) Did the company| V I.In response to the green, sustainable development initiative and trend, and in | significant
establish cooperation with the country’s overall energy management and greenhouse gases | difference.
environmental (GHG) reduction policies, we began to inventory internal GHG emissions, water
management consumption, and the total weight of waste in 2016 to understand the actual condition
systems of energy use and emissions. We have also set reduction targets, comparison base
appropriate to the years, and improvement measures to facilitate the long-term management and tracking
characteristics of of corporate environmental issues.
its industry? Impact on
Risk Financial Countermeasures and Management Measures
Position
Increased
transportation I stablish an early warning mechanism and countermeasures for the
Extreme costs and storage and transportation of materials.
Weather influence on 2. Publicize the typhoon response measures and cautions to
shipping and employees.
production.
Impact  from Conduct the GHG inventory every year, continue identifying energy-
GHG GHG usage hot spots, and assess energy-using equipment requiring
Emissions emissions and replacement to ensure that carbon emission management can deal with
carbon caps the future cap requirements.
2.We have set the energy conservation target at |% each year of the per capita
electricity consumption. In the future, we will further set the carbon reduction path
with reference to the Science Based Targets initiative (SBTi).
Opportunities Impact on Financial Position Countermeasures and Management Measures
Meet customers’ Constantly keep track of global trends of green
Distributing environmental protection product development and comply with domestic and
green requirements to enhance overseas environmental protection laws and
products customer  satisfaction and regulations to meet customers’ green product
increase market share demand with the greatest effort.
(B) Did the company| V We are an information service provider, offices are the main sources of environmental
make efforts to impact, and electricity and the fuel used by company cars are the major sources of energy
enhance energy consumption of our business activities. However, we constantly implement office
efficiency and use environmental protection through the following four carbon reduction measures to
recycled materials achieve the goals of internal energy conservation and carbon reduction: digital solutions,
to lower the energy conservation measures, management at the source, and awareness education.
impact on
environmental
load?
(C) Did the company| V | .We regularly study and gather information related to environmental protection within

assess the present
and future
potential risks and
opportunities

from climate
change and take
the relevant
countermeasures?

the Company through the ESG Committee. Besides identifying the risks and
opportunities brought by climate change, we also establish corresponding strategies
and management measures for possible hazards and development opportunities.

2.Risk: We are headquartered in Taipei City, with physical risks as a result of climate
change including torrential rain and extreme temperature changes (extreme heat or
extreme cold). Geographically, our suppliers and customers also experience climate
change risks to different degrees, with physical risks focusing on transportation and
delivery.

3.Opportunity: In recognition of customers’ rising demand for energy-efficient and eco-
friendly products, we actively introduce energy-efficient and eco-friendly products and
promote compliance with the requirements of global ecolabels to meet customers’
demands and thereby increase market share at the same time.
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Status of Implementation

Objective

Yes

No

Summary

Status and
causes of
inconsistency
with
Sustainable
Development
Best Practice

(D) Did the company| V I.In response to the green, sustainable development initiative and trend, and in
produce statistics cooperation with the country’s overall environmental protection and greenhouse
on GHG gases (GHG) reduction policies, we began to inventory internal GHG emissions, water
emissions, water consumption, and the total weight of waste in 2016 to understand the actual condition
consumption, and of energy use and emissions. We have also set reduction targets, the comparison base
the total weight of year (2020), and improvement measures to facilitate the long-term management and
waste and tracking of corporate environmental issues. In 2021, water consumption per capita
establish policies decreased by 1.29(t), compared to 2020’s. In the future, it will further refer to the
to reduce GHG Science-based targets initiative (SBTi) to set carbon reduction pathways.
emissions and 2.The table below shows the water consumption, and the total weight of general
water industrial waste:
consumption or Year
other i waste ltem 2020 2021
management Tap Water Consumption (m?) 5,368 4,488
t";'(')“‘: ;:,the last Total Weight of General Industrial Waste (t) 7.54 4.05

years: 3.The table below shows the per capita consumption of water, and the total weight of
waste per capita:
Year | 2000 2021
Item
Tap Water Consumption (m?) 9.176 7.887
Total Weight of General Industrial Waste (t) 0.013 0.007
4.The table below shows the GHG Emissions (expressed in tCO2e)
Category 2020 2021 Remarks
Direct GHG Emissions 3.797 2512 Company cars
(Scope 1)
D. Social issues \ | .Besides recognizing and voluntarily following the internationally recognized human No

(A) Did the company rights principles including the UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights (UDHR), UN| significant
establish related Global Compact (UNGC), United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights| difference.
management (UNGPs), and International Labour Organization (ILO), we have also established
policies and regulations and procedures for human rights management in accordance with the Code
procedures in of Conduct (CoC) of the Responsible Business Alliance (RBA) to respect the protection

accordance with
the related laws
and  regulations
and the
International Bill of]
Human Rights?

established by these conventions on human rights.

2.We have also established the Employee Recruitment, Selection, and Appointment
Regulations; Measures of Prevention, Correction, Complaint and Punishment of Sexual
Harassment at Workplace; Corrective and Preventive Action Management Procedures; and
Maternity Health Protection Management Procedures in accordance with the related labor
laws and regulations, human rights conventions, and occupational safety and health laws
and regulations to maintain the rights and interests of employees and protect their
health and safety.
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Status of Implementation

Status and

causes of
inconsistency
Objective with
YesNo Summary Sustainable
Development
Best Practice
(B) Did the company| V |.The employee welfare measures and remuneration policy are implemented in
establish and accordance with the Company’s Working Rules. We share our operational performance
implement with our employees by periodically assessment. Additionally, our Articles of|
reasonable Incorporation stipulate that when there is profit in the year, the Company shall
employee welfare appropriate 5%-20% of such profit as the reward for employees. In 2021, we already
measures distributed all the 2020 reward for employees in cash.
(including 2.Employee benefits: We have established the Employee Welfare Committee (EWC) and
remuneration, appropriate a sum of over NT$5 million each year as the employee welfare fund for
leave, and other planning and providing employees with various benefits, such as the employee travel
benefits) and allowance, scholarship, birthday gift voucher, marriage allowance, birth allowance,
appropriately funeral (death care) allowance, hospitalization consolation money, and festival
reflect its celebrations. We also offer other benefits including group insurance, free medical
operational checkups, and meal allowances. In the leave system, in additional to the long weekend
performance or leave, we also grant special leave according to the Labor Standards Act and absence of
achievements in leave to employees requiring longer leave from work for parenting, catastrophic injuries
the  employee’s and illness, and serious incidents for employees to balance work and family care.
remuneration 3.We are committed to realizing equal remuneration for the same job for women and
constantly? men and provide equal requirements for reward and remuneration and equal
opportunity in promotion to promote sustainable and inclusive economic growth. In
2021, the women-to-men ratio for non-management jobs was 49%:51%, and the ratio
for management jobs was 57%:43%.
4.We value the rights, interests, and benefits of employees. In hardware facilities, we offer
free snack supply; stress-relieving video games; karaoke kiosks; books, newspapers, and
magazines; breastfeeding (lactation) room; coffee bar; sparkling water fountains, and
others to provide employees with a range of daily necessities. In the care for employee
mental and physical health, we arrange the in-house massage service, annual health
checkups, physician consultation service, and health talks to provide employees with
stress relief and healthcare.
(C) Did the company| V |.To build a zero-accident workplace environment, we establish, plan, supervise, and

provide
employees with a
safe and healthy
work
environment and
arrange  regular
safety and health
education for
employees?

promote safety and health management through the occupational safety and health
management unit. We have also established the Occupational Safety and Health
Committee to make recommendations for and review and coordinate occupational
safety and health policies. We also arrange education and training on occupational safety
and health for both new and active employees.

2.For employees to understand the potential hazards in the work environment, we
arrange the General Safety and Health Education and Training for both new and active
employees. To enhance the employee’s awareness, prevention, and management of
workplace safety and health, we arrange for staff CPR and AED training, first aid training,
nursing staff education and training, and occupational safety and health management
training to maintain the safety of the workplace environment and employees.

3.We hire qualified operational environment monitoring institutions certified by the
Ministry of Labor (MOL) to examine the workplace and operational environment every
six months. We also maintain the aircon and lighting systems regularly to ensure that
the workplace meet the safety, health, and indoor air quality standards. We further plan
and establish risk assessment sheets for the work environment, job contents, and the
equipment and tools and adopt related control measures to lower risk to reduce the
damage and loss caused by occupational hazards.

4.We produce statistics on staff with work-related injuries. If an occupational accident
occurs, besides conducting investigations and analysis with labor representative and
maintaining the related records, we also implement engineering control or
administrative improvement. The table below shows the occupational accidents of this
Company in 2021:

Items Persons Ratio to all employees

3 3 0.6%
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Objective

Status of Implementation

Yes

No

Summary

Status and
causes of
inconsistency
with
Sustainable
Development
Best Practice

(D)

(E)

Did the company
establish effective
career
development and
training programs
for employees?

Did the company
handle customer
health and safety,
customer privacy,

marketing and
labeling issues
relating to
products and
services in
compliance  the
related laws and
regulations  and
international

standards and
establish policies
and grievance
procedures to

protect the rights

and interests of
consumers or
customers?

.Besides arranging a complete new employee training system and designing training
courses for development of different competencies, we also organize management
practice workshops for specific staff and develop training courses for engineers to build
work-related skills. Additionally, employees can acquire new knowledge through
external sources, including external training for professional licenses/certificates,
sharing of industry information with external professionals, and talks on social welfare.

2.In addition, with the smart use of the cloud service of products we distribute, we
digitize the employee training course platforms, streamline platform contents, and
mobilize learning to significantly enhance the learning and work efficiency of employees
through the cloud training portal, Al WordClouds, and collaboration platform to fulfill
the employee’s demand for multi-competence development and ubiquitous e-learning.

. We deeply understand the importance of privacy and are thus committed to ensuring,
respecting, and protecting customer privacy and trade secrets. Except with definite
authorization or at legal requests, we will neither disclose nor use the privacy or trade
secrets of customers for any purpose. We have established the Information and
Communication Security Inspection Management Regulations, built a secure and trusted IT
environment, and equipped the IT environment with various information and
communication security equipment such as firewalls and antivirus systems to ensure
the security of corporate IT data, systems, equipment, and networks and thereby
protect customer privacy data. Additionally, we have established the Employee Code of|
Ethics and Conduct, which stipulates that employees shall carefully manage the matters
or confidential information acknowledged from their duties and shall not disclose them
to others or use them for purposes unrelated to work, except after the disclosure by
the Company or for provision required to perform their duties. This obligation shall
remain valid after the resignation of employees. To prevent employees from leaking
confidential information for personal reasons, we request employees to sign the
Consent for Personal Data Use to protect the rights and interests of customers and
prevent customer data from exploitation by interested parties.

2.We implement strict protection and control over customer data. Internally, we

enhance awareness education on the importance of protecting customer data and
technical trade secrets and persistently make employees understand the importance of
information security through internal email communication and new employee
education and training. Additionally, we protect confidential documents by means of
privilege control. Except for the related operation staff, employees with lower
relevance must acquire the permission of their immediate supervisor before accessing
part of such documents. Every year we verify if there is customer complaint about data
loss. If there is, we will conduct a full-scale review.

3. We have set up a customer service helpline covering customer complaint and after-

sales service mechanisms. Additionally, we conduct the dealer satisfaction survey every

year and disclose the results in our sustainability reports.
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Status of Implementation

Objective

Yes

No

Summary

Status and
causes of
inconsistency
with
Sustainable
Development
Best Practice

Did the company
establish a
supplier
management
policy to request
suppliers to
comply with the
relevant standards
in environmental
protection,
occupational
safety and health,
and labor human
rights? And what
is the status of
policy
implementation?

2.So far, 70% of our top ten suppliers have become RBA members. Since then, we have

4. As for becoming a qualified supplier, regular evaluation is necessary. The top ten major

. We are an information service provider. Currently, we have about 300 suppliers. We

. For first-time suppliers, the procurement, product, and financial departments will assess

. For existing qualified suppliers, we conduct supplier risk assessment. By regularly and

purchase product based on accountability and maintain proactive communication with
suppliers to understand the rights and interests and work environments of their
employees in order to demonstrate our positive influence in the supply chain.

also expanded promotion to suppliers according to five sections (Labor, Health and
Safety, Environment, Ethics, and Management Systems) of the new CoC published by
RBA to ensure no obstruction of the freedom of association of workers, no use of
child labor or forced labor. Apart from responding to international trends, we have
also enhanced the CSR, environmental, and OH&S performance of the supply chain.

their basic qualifications, including company basic data, financial status, product quality,
service and supply capacity, procurement-related contracts or other supplier
documents. We also request these suppliers to sign the supplier undertaking to comply
with the CSR aspect in the RBA CoC.

suppliers are evaluated, according to each aspect of the standard each year, and the
evaluation level of each supplier shall be listed. The results will be an important basis
for purchasing strategies.

irregularly investigating the operation and financial status of suppliers and paying
attention to high-risk groups of manufacturers, we can avoid any situations, such as
unwarranted closures affecting shipments or disruptions, etc. In addition, we carry out
major risk investigations on suppliers. For example, during special periods, such as the
peak period of the new influenza, labor shortages, etc., relevant understandings will
also be conducted on manufacturers in relevant areas, or appropriate communication
with to avoid operational hazards.

Did the company
prepare and publish
such reports as the
sustainability report
in accordance with

the internationally
accepted reporting
standards or

guidelines to disclose
the company’s non-
financial information?
Did the company
apply for third-party
verification and
assurance to a third-
party  certification
body for the above
report!

2.We have our report contents verified for assurance by Bureau Veritas Certification

. We published our first corporate social responsibility report in 2016 and prepare the

report in accordance with the GRI Core Options in 2020 for the first time, and will
write ESG report in 2022.

(BVC), an independent third-party verification body, to ensure compliance with the
disclosure requirements of GRI Core Options and AA 1000/Type |/Moderate. Reports
are available for download from the ESG section of our corporate website. The
Statement of Assurance is appended to the end of the report.

No
significant
difference.

If the company has established its own Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles with reference to the Sustainable Development
Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies, please state the differences from the CSR best-practice principles it establishes
and operates:

We have established the Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles upon the principle of ethical corporate management and
business integrity. After Board approval for the amendment projected in 2022, these principles will be renamed Sustainable Development
Best Practice Principles and included in the Company’s operations and management. We also abide by the law and business ethics and
strengthen the trust of various stakeholder groups to archive sustainable operations. We regularly review the status of implementation
of and make improvements to these principles. There is no non-compliance between our operations and these principles.
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Status and
causes of
inconsistency

Objective with

Yes|No Summary Sustainable
Development
Best Practice

Status of Implementation

G. Other important information that helps understand the promotion of sustainable development:

(A)

(B)

(©

(D)

We digitize and automate operations relating to human resources (HR) by integrating the products of different brands distributed
by this Company. In 2021, we built the brand-new HR selection and retention digital solution that includes Al talent selection,
ESG pioneers, cloud training, and advance talent retention, hoping to persistently optimize employee experience and reduce
paper consumption for all employees to enjoy a smooth, low-carbon talent selection and cultivation journey.

To donate NT$2 million to support the core values of BenQ Foundation, narrow the digital gap between urban and rural areas,
enhance original cultural ideas, and handle affairs such as to be Friendly to the Earth, and promotion of charitable activities and
culture education, thereby increasing the company's corporate social responsibility. For the implementation plan, please see the
company's website - ESG.

Our employees took actions to help support cultivation of local good rice on BenQ Foundation.

BenQ Foundation is committed to the concept of "favorable land". For many years, the concept of "Friendly Farming on the land"
has supported farmers, who protect the land at first, and supported the non-toxic good rice cultivated by natural farming
methods. Sysage Group recognizes the values of preserving soil and water resources, ecological environment, biodiversity and
favorable agriculture. We support eco-farming. Employees thus supported the Earth Care rice adoption program advocated by the
BenQ Foundation in real action to support farmers on the first line of environmental protection. Employees and their family are
confident to enjoy toxin-free rice grown with natural farming.

Donation of activities of Charity Gift of Children's Day of “stepping stone”

Sysage Group has cared for learning and development of children and youths, and participated in the " activities of Charity Gift
of Children's Day " held by "STEPPING STONE LIBRARY CO., LTD." and "Chinese Childrenhome & Shelter Association". It
helps children of Chinese Childrenhome & Shelter Association select and purchase books and stationery for school, and provide
a sweet day the children. We hope all children can obtain necessary resources on the path of learning, and grow in a stable and
healthy life.
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F

Implementation of Ethical Management and Implemented Measures:

Evaluation Item

The Operations

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles

Yes | No Summary Description for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
and Their Reasons
A. Establish ethical management policies and No differences
plans
(A) Does the Company establish the ethical| V The company has formulated the " Ethical Corporate
management policies passed by the Management Best Practice Principles ", expects and
Board of Directors and then publicly requires the members of the Board of Directors and
specify the policies and methodology of employees to implement the policy of ethical
ethical management in regulations and management.
document as well as the commitment in
terms of management policies actively
fulfilled by the Board of Directors and
senior management?
(B) Does the Company establish the|V The company has set up the” Ethical Corporate
evaluation mechanism on higher risk of Management Best Practice Principles”, " Ethical
unethical behavior, regularly analyze and Corporate Management Best Practice Principles of
evaluate the business activities with Employees " and the "Measures for Reporting Cases of
higher risk of unethical behavior, as well lllegal, Unethical or Untrustworthy Behavior" and
as adopt the preventative measures at announced them on the company's website, for
least covering the Paragraph 2, Article 7 advising the company’s employees on the importance
of the Ethical Corporate Management of honest behavior at times, based on “Ethical
Best Practice Principles for Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies? TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies”.
(C) Are the operational procedures,|V The company has set up the " Ethical Corporate
guidelines, disciplinary and appeal Management Best Practice Principles of Employees "
system of impairment included in the and the "Measures for Reporting Cases of lllegal,
Company’s prevention programs of Unethical or Untrustworthy Behavior" and announced
unethical behavior thorough them on the company's website, set up regulations for
implementation? And any regular review unethical behavior and implement them, as well as
of the foregoing programs for better reviewed and revised the relevant regulations at times.
implementation?
B. Implementation on ethical management No differences
(A) Does the Company consider the ethical| V Before establishing business relationships with others,

practices of the transaction partner as
well as the clauses regarding ethical
conduct contained in the agreement
with the other party?

the company will first assess its legality and whether it
has a record of dishonest behavior.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles

Yes | No Summary Description for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
and Their Reasons

(B) Does the Company establish the| V The company promotes corporate ethical
designated unit set up under the Board management by a unit human resource center, and
of Directors responsible for promoting reports implementation to the Board of Directors
the corporate ethical management and regularly every year. In order to establish a corporate
regularly (at least once a year) reporting culture of ethical management and sound development,
its ethical ~management policies, the " the Ethical Corporate Management Policies " has
prevention programs of unethical been established.
behavior and implementation to the
Board of Directors?

(C) Does the Company establish the| V The company’s " the Ethical Corporate Management
policies for preventing conflicts of] Policies " and " Ethical Corporate Management Best
interest, provide the appropriate Practice Principles of Employees " have set out the
presentation channel and implement? policy for conflict of interest avoidance. When the

company’s employees implement business, which
triggers conflicts of interest, they can not only directly
report to the officer of the division, but also connect
with human resource center.

(D) Has the Company established the| V Sysage complies with legal requirements, continuously
effective accounting system and internal revises the internal control system as well as review
control system for implementing the and evaluate the effectiveness of internal control
ethical management, where the relevant system implementation. The Auditing Office devises
audit plans are devised based on the relevant audit plans according to evaluation results
evaluation results of the risk of unethical of the risk of unethical behavior as well as regularly
behavior by internal audit unit, or by reviews the related information. The legal
commissioning the accountant to requirements of Auditing Office are covered in annual
review the information related to review items, and the relevant results and
prevention programs of unethical improvement status are quarterly reported to the
behavior? Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. All the

corporate accounting system will follow the legal
requirements to establish the regulations.The attesting
CPA also quarterly reviews or evaluates the
Company’s financial statements, issues the reports and
regularly reports on evaluation results to the Audit
Committee members in Audit Committee.

(E) Does the Company regularly organize| V In 2021, the company holds education and trainings on

the internal and external training

sessions on ethical management?

issues related to ethical management for employees

(including, compliance with ethical management

regulations, advocation of RBA, accounting policies and
internal control, etc.), totaling 2,541 hours.

55




Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

No

Summary Description

Comparison Against
the Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
and Their Reasons

C. The operations of corporate whistleblowing

system

(A)

(B)

(©)

Does the Company establish the
concrete whistleblowing and rewards
systems, set up the convenient reporting
channel as well as assign the appropriate
special personnel to process complaints

dedicated to the person being accused?

Does the Company establish the
standard operating procedures for the
investigation, as well as the follow-up
measures and relevant confidentiality
mechanisms that shall be adopted after
investigation?

Does the Company adopt the measures
for protecting whistle-blowers from
inappropriate disciplinary actions due to

their whistleblowing?

The company has established the ” Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles” and "Methods
for Reporting Cases of lllegal, Unethical, or Dishonest
Behavior" and set multiple communication methods,
including internal appeals mailboxes, and a special area
for stakeholders on the company website, in order to
provide internal and external appeals policies and
methods.

The company has established the "Methods for
Reporting Cases of lllegal, Unethical, or Dishonest
Behavior".

The company promises to protect the reporter from
being improperly punished due to the report.

No differences

D. Strengthening the information disclosure.

Does the Company disclose their ethical

corporate
principles and the effectiveness

management  best  practice

of the

promotion on the websites or on the Market
Observation Post System (MOPS)?

The company's website has a corporate governance

area disclosing information related to ethical

management. In addition, the relevant and reliable
information on ethical management are also indicated
in the annual report and CSR/ESG report.

No differences

E. If the Company has established the ethical corporate management policies based on the Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice

Principles for TWSE/ TPEx Listed Companies, please describe any discrepancy between the policies and their implementation:

The Company has established the Ethical Corporate Management Policies based on the Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice

Principles for TWSE/ TPEx Listed Companies, and also set the relevant regulations called ‘Ethical Corporate Management Best

Practice Principles of Employees”.

F.Other important information that helps to understand the operations of corporate social responsibility: (For example, the

Corporate reviews the presented results to facilitate the timely amendment of the ethical corporate management principles, and

more.

|. The company irregularly advocates and holds education and trainings of the importance of integrity behavior at times, in order

to strengthen the implementation of ethical management.

2. The company irregularly reviews and revises its “the Ethical Corporate Management Policies” at times.
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(G) Please disclose the access to Company’s “Corporate Governance Best Practice” and relevant
regulations:

Please disclose the access to Company’s “Corporate Governance Best Practice” and relevant
regulations The Company has established the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles on May
12, 2017. For the Company's corporate governance operations, please refer to the chapter of
Implementation of Corporate Governance of this Annual Report and corporate governance report.
Regulations such as Regulations for Procedures of Shareholders' Meetings, Organizational Rules for Audit
Committees, Organizational Procedures for Remuneration Committee, Corporate Governance Best
Practice, Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice, Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice,
Directors and Managers Ethical Practice, Regulations for the Election of Directors, Regulations Governing
Loaning of Funds, Regulations Governing Making of Endorsements/Guarantees, Regulations Governing
the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets, Guidelines for Management of Subsidiaries and Process of Internal
Major Information and Insider Trading Prevention Management, etc., have been issued by the Company,
please visit contact the website of the company for details of these regulations

(H) Other important information for enhancing understanding of the implementation of corporate
governance:

I. On November 10, 2015, the Company reached the resolutions of the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors for approving “Guidelines for Process of Internal Major Information and Insider
Trading Prevention Management”. On November 5, 2020, the Company approved to ament the
Guidelines, and then announce the revised version in the regulation area of the Company’s internal
public folder so that managers and employee can be generally known.

2. On February 25, 2021, the Board of Directors made the resolution of appointing corporate
governance officer to protect shareholders' rights and enhance the functions of the Board of
Directors.

3. As one of citizens on the earth, we focus on CSR/ESG. The company’s main suppliers are also
members of RBA (Responsible Business Alliance Code of Conduct, RBA) and require the company’s
commitment to comply with " Code of Conduct - Responsible Business Alliance”, and the company
has also been audited by the member of RBA. For relevant information, please refer to
http://www.responsiblebusiness.org/.
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(I) Status of Implementation of Internal Control System:

|.Statement of internal control system:

Sysage Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of Internal Control System
Date: February 24,2022

Based on the findings of a self-assessment, Sysage Technology Co., Ltd. (Sysage) states the following
with regard to its internal control system during the year 2021:

Sysage’s board of directors and management are responsible for establishing, implementing, and
maintaining an adequate internal control system. Our internal control is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance over the effectiveness and efficiency of our operations (including
profitability, performance and safeguarding of assets), reliability, timeliness, transparency of our
reporting, and compliance with applicable rulings, laws and regulations.

. An internal control system has inherent limitations. No matter how perfectly designed, an

effective internal control system can provide only reasonable assurance of accomplishing its
stated objectives. Moreover, the effectiveness of an internal control system may be subject to
changes due to extenuating circumstances beyond our control. Nevertheless, our internal
control system contains self-monitoring mechanisms, and Sysage takes immediate remedial
actions in response to any identified deficiencies.

. Sysage evaluates the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system based on

the criteria provided in the Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control Systems
by Public Companies (herein below, the Regulations). The criteria adopted by the Regulations
identify five key components of managerial internal control: (1) control environment, (2) risk
assessment, (3) control activities, (4) information and communications, and (5) monitoring
activities.

. Sysage has evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system

according to the aforesaid Regulations.

. Base on the findings of such evaluation, Sysage believes that, on December 31, 2020, it has

maintained, in all material respects, an effective internal control system (that includes the
supervision and management of our subsidiaries), to provide reasonable assurance over our
operational effectiveness and efficiency, reliability, timeliness, transparency of reporting, and
compliance with applicable rulings, laws and regulations.

. This Statement is an integral part of Sysage’s annual report for the year 2021 and prospectus,

and will be made public. Any falsehood, concealment, or other illegality in the content made
public will entail legal liability under Articles 20,32, 171,and 174 of the Securities and Exchange
Act.

. This statement was passed by the board of directors in their meeting held on February 24,

2022, with eight attending directors all affirming the content of this Statement.

Sysage Technology Co., Ltd.

Chairman & President
Michael Lee
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2. Companies which CPAs to professionally review the internal control system shall disclose the review
report provided by the accountants: NA.

(J) The Company and its personnel have been punished by law, the Company has undertaken disincentive measures
for its personnel for breaching the internal control system, and any material deficiencies and revisions in the
most recent year up to the publication date of the Annual Report: None.

(K) Material Resolutions Approved by Board Meetings & Shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders’

Date Content
I. The 2020 business report and financial statements, and the 2021 business plan.
2. It is proposed to recognize the 2020 surplus distribution case.
| ot 3. It is proposed to recognize the surplus distribution of cash dividends in 2020.
2021/02/25 | 4. To set the date and agenda of 2021 shareholders’ meeting.
BOD 5. To edit “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles” and set up ‘“corporate governance
personnel”.
6. The proposal of donation to the BenQ Foundation.
1012 . It is proposed to recognize the 2021 QI consolidated financial report.
2021/05/06 | 2. Approved the change of the stock transfer agency of the company.
BOD 3. It is proposed to sell the building of KUANG CHUN CHENG in Taoyuan.
1013 I. It is proposed to recognize the 2021 Q2 consolidated financial report.
2021/08/05 | 2. The Board resolution to convene 2021 Annual General Shareholders' Meeting.(Change
BOD Shareholders meeting date).
I. To recognize the 2020 surplus distribution proposal of the company.
Implementation status: Resolution approved. The cash dividend for this surplus distribution case is
NT$2.5 per share, and the total cash dividend is NT$470,893,340, setting August 5, 2021 as the ex-
dividend date, and issued on August 17,2021.
To amend the company's Articles of Incorporation
Implementation status: Resolution approved. It has been approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs
for registration on September 8,2021 and announced on the company's website.
2021/08/25 | 3. To recognize the company’s business report and final statements in 2020.

Implementation status: Resolution approved.

Meeting 4. To amend the company's "Handling Procedure for Acquiring or Disposal of assets".
Implementation status: Resolution approved. It was announced at the Public Information Observatory
on August 31,202| and handled in accordance with the revised procedures.

5. To amend the company's "Handling Procedures for Fund Loan and Endorsement & Guarantee ".
Implementation status: Resolution approved. It was announced at the Public Information Observatory
on August 31,2021 and handled in accordance with the revised procedures.
6. To lift non-competition restrictions on current directors and their representatives.
Implementation status: Resolution approved.
[0 It is proposed to recognize the 2021 Q3 consolidated financial report.
2021/11/05
BOD
I. The 2021 business report and financial statements, and the 2022 business plan.
| Q15 2. It is proposed to recognize the 2021 surplus distribution case.
2022/02/24 3. It is proposed to recognize the surplus distribution of cash dividends in 2021.
BOD 4. To set the date and agenda of 2022 shareholders’ meeting.

5. The proposal of donation to the BenQ Foundation.
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(L) Major contents of any dissenting opinions on record or stated in a written statement made by Directors
regarding material resolutions passed by the Board of Directors’ Meeting in the most recent year up to the

publication date of this report: None.

(M) In the most recent year up to the publication date of the Annual Report, a summary of the resignation and
dismissal of the Company personnel such as Chairman, President, accounting manager, financial manager,

internal audit manager and R&D manager: None.

E. Information on CPA fees

(A) Table of fee range of CPA fees

Amount until: NT$ 1,000

Accountin Period Non-audit
F‘?:m M& | Name of CPA | Coveredby | Audit Fee °Fee” " Total Remarks
' CPA’s Audit
Hung-Wen Fu Non-audit Fee includes
2021/01- translation fee of the
KPMG 2021/12 2,000 1,062 3,062 financial statements and
Mei-Ping Wu tax report, etc.

(B) When the Company changes its accounting firm and the audit fees paid for the fiscal yearin which such
change took place are lower than those for the previous fiscal year, the amounts of the audit fees

before and after the change and the reasons shall be disclosed: None.

(C) When the audit fees paid for the current fiscal year are lower than those for the previous fiscal year
by 10 percent or more, the reduction in the amount of audit fees, reduction percentage, and reason(s)

therefor shall be disclosed: None.

F. Information on replacement of CPAs

(A) Regarding former CPA:NA.
(B) Regarding the Succeeding CPA:NA.

(C) The former CPA's response for items specified in Article 10, Subparagraph 6, Item | and Item 2-3 of the
Accounting Standards: NA.

G. Has any of the Company’s Chairman, President, or managers responsible for finance or accounting duties served
in the Company’s CPA firm or its affiliated Company within the most recent year: None.
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H. The Situation of equity transfer or changes to equity pledge of Directors, managers or shareholders holding
more than 10% of Company shares in the most recent year (or initial date of a manager's term of service) up
to the publication date of this report:

(A) Changes in shares held by Directors, managers, and shareholders holding 10% or more of shares:

2021 As of March 28,2022
Increase Increase Increase Increase
Title Name (decrease) of | (decrease) of | (decrease) of | (decrease) of
shares held shares shares held |shares pledged
pledged
Chairman Qisda Corporation 30,841,239 — — —
Chairman& President Qisda Corporation oM 81,000 — — —
Corporate Representative : Michael Lee
Director Qisda Corporation 30,841,239 — — —
Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative : Chiu-Chin — — — —
Hung
Director Qisda Corporation 30,841,239 — — —
Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative : Shu-Erh (2,600,000) — — —
Kuo
Director Qisda Corporation 30,841,239 — — —
Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative : Chi-Nan — — — —
Tsai
Director Qisda Corporation 30,841,239 — — —
Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative : Chi-Nan — —|Not applicable | Not applicable
Tsai
Director Qisda Corporation 30,841,239 — — —
. Qisda Corporation
Director CorporatePRepresentative: TKYoung B B B B
Independent Director |Wen-TsungVWang — — — —
Independent Director |Chin-Lai Wang — — — —
Independent Director [Shan-Kuei Lai — — — —
President of Business Shu-Erh Kuo (2,600,000) o o o
Development Center
COO & CLO TK Young 20,000 — — —
President of Product
Development &|Chieh-Cheng Shih (1,400,000) — — —
Support Center
Vice president of . .
Businpess First Group Hui-Fen Liao B - - -
Vice president of Wen-Chuan Tsen . .
Businpess Third Group Remova|:202|/02/gZ8 (20,666) —|Not applicable| Not applicable
Vice President of Produ
Development & SupportLi-Tsung Lin — — — —
Center
CFO Mavis Lin — — — —
Major shareholder Qisda Corporation 30,841,239 — — —

Notel: 2021/11/05 Qisda Corporation appointed TK Young as the new representative of the corporate shareholder, and Chi-Nan Tsai was

discharged.

Note2:2021/11/05 Appointed as the representative of the corporate shareholder; Shares held had not changed from 201 1/11/05 to 2021/12/31.

(B) Counterparty of equity pledge is a related party: None

(C)Counterparty of equity pledge is a related party: None
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I. Information of relationships between Top 10 shareholders are related parties, spouses or relatives within the

second degree of kinship Relationship

2022/03/28; Unit: Shares

Name

Shares held

Shares held by spouse or

underage children

Total shares held in the

name of other persons

Familial relationships between top 10

shareholders who are either related

parties, spouses, or relatives within

the second degree of kinship,

his/her/its title (or name) and

relationships

Shareholding
Percentage
(%)

Number of

shares

Number of

shares

Shareholding
Percentage
(%)

Shareholding
Percentage
(%)

Number o

shares

Title(or Name)

Relationships

Remark

Qisda
Corporation

96,841,239 51.41%

NA

NA

Qisda
Corporation
Representative:
Peter Chen

NA

NA

Taishin
International
Commercial
Bank Entrusted
with Guo Shu-
erh’s Trust
Property
Account

2,000,000 1.06%

NA

NA

Standard
Chartered Bank,
Department of
Business in
custody for
Fidelity ~Puritan
Trust:  Fidelity
Low-Priced
Stock Fund

1,927,000 1.02%

NA

NA

CHIH-HSUN,
LIAO

1,685,172 0.89%

782,000

0.42%

CHIUNG-
YUEH, CHANG

Spouses

Dian-Jiang
Investment Co.,
Ltd.

1,154,660 0.61%

NA

NA

Dian-Jiang
Investment Co.,
Ltd
Representative:
Ming-Chao Kuei

NA

NA

CHIH-HUNG,
TAI

953,953 0.51%

CHIH-LI, TAI

Sibling

CHIH-LI, TAI

913,441 0.48%

CHIH-HUNG,
TAI

Sibling

FANG-CHUAN,
CHOU

805,000 0.43%

NA

NA

CHIUNG-
YUEH, CHANG

782,000 0.42%

1,685,172

0.89%

CHIH-HSUN,
LIAO

Spouses

TOKIO
MARINE NEWA
INSURANCE

738,000 0.39%

NA

NA
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J.. Shareholdings and Combined Joint Shareholdings of Businesses Invested in by the Company, Company Directors,
Supervisors or Executive Officers or Directly or Indirectly Controlled by the Company

December 31,2021; Unit : Shares ; %

Investment by Directors,
Investment by the Company |supervisors, managers and directly Combined investment
Investment or indirectly-controlled business
business Shareholding Shareholding .
Number of shares| Percentage | Number of shares | Percentage | Number of shares Shareholdlnog

%) %) Percentage (%)
UNISAGE
DIGITAL CO., 67,390 38.01% — — 67,390 38.01%
LTD.
GRANDSYS INC. 5,643,373 21.84% — — 5,643,373 21.84%
Everlasting Digital o o o o
ESG Co., Ltd. 500,000 29.41% 500,000 29.41%

Note: Invested by the Consolidated Company using the equity method

IV. Capital and Shares
A. Capital and shares
(A) Source of Share Capital

I. Source of Share Capital

March 28, 2022; Unit: Shares & NT$ Dollar

Authorized capital Paid-in capital Note
Year and Issued .Capital
month price Nus?:abrzr; of Amount Nljswat)rzr; of Amount Source of capital ;r;)cprf :jael Certificate No.
date
1998/04 10 5,000,000 50,000,000 3,430,000 34,300,000|Establishment — —
1998/08 10 5,500,000 55000000 5500000  55000000(S2Pita Increasesin ) -
Capital Increases in
Cash59,005,000
1999/05 10 19.000,000 190,000,000 12,000,000/ 120,000,000 [5urPls & Employee) -
to common stock
5,995,000
Capital Increases in _ _
1999/11 16 19,000,000 190,000,000 19,000,000 190,000,000 Cash70,000,000
Capital Increases in
Cash35,530,000
Capital surplus, Approved by Financial
2000/04 25 59,000,000 590,000,000{ 29,000,000 290,000,000(Surplus & Employee - Supervisory Commission
Benefits transferred Certificate No. 32514
to common stock
64,470,000
Capital Increases in Approved by Financial
2000/10 120 59,000,000 590,000,000 33,000,000 330,000,000| <2P — Supervisory Commission
Cash40,000,000 .
Certificate No. 84607
Capital surplus,
Surplus & Employee Approved by Financial
2001/05 10 80,000,000 800,000,000 47,565,000 475,650,000|Benefits transferred — Supervisory Commission
to common stock Certificate No. 123447
145,650,000
Approved by Financial
Supervisory Commission
Capital Increases in _ Certificate No. 1 10157
2002/04 54 80,000,000 800,000,000f 54,565,000 545,650,000 Cash70,000,000 &Approved by Financial
Supervisory Commission
Certificate No. | 14430
Surplus & Employee Approved by Financial
2002/07 10 140,000,000| 1,400,000,000 64,160,750  641,607,500|Benefits transferred - Supervisory Commission
to common stock Certificate No.
95,957,500 0910131622
Surplus & Employee Approved by Financial
2003/10 10 140,000,000  1,400,000,000{ 68,000,000 680,000,000 |Benefits transferred| _|Supervisory Commission
to common stock Certificate No.
38,392,500 0920131234
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Issued Authorized capital Paid-in capital Note
Year and  |price (par| Number of Number of Capital
month value per Shares Amount Shares Amount Source of capital increase Certificate No.
share) (thousand (thousand) (thousand (thousand) (thousand) approval :
shares) shares) date
. Approved by Financial
Decrease in Supervisory Commission
2006/01 10 140,000,000| 1,400,000,000 64,600,000 646,000,000|treasury - CeprtificateyNo
stock34,000,000 :
e 0950002178
. Approved by Financial
Decrease in Supervisory Commission
2006/05 10 140,000,000| 1,400,000,000 63,200,000 632,000,000|treasury stock - c pervisory
14.000.000 ertificate No.
s 0950010780
Capital surplus & Approved by Financial
2008/07 10 140,000,000  1,400,000,000( 69,520,000  695,200,000|3uPlus transferred | |3upervisory Commission
o common stock Certificate No.
63,200,000 0970033085
Capital Approved by Financial
Reductions in _ Supervisory Commission
2009/07 10 140,000,000| 1,400,000,000 62,568,000 625,680,000|~ 69,520,000 Certificate No.
0980032562
Capital surplus Approved by Financial
2010/07 10 140,000,000| 1,400,000,000 67,429,440  674,294,400|transferred to - Supervisory Commission
common stock Certificate No.
48,614,400 0990034735
Capital surplus — Approved by Financial
2011/07 10 140,000,000] 1,400,000,000| 73,992,384|  739,923,840|transferred to Supervisory Commission
common stock Certificate No.
65,629,440 1000031224
Decrease in — Ministry of economic
2011/11 10 140,000,000( 1,400,000,000| 72,192,384 721,923,840 |treasury affairs certificate No.
stock 18,000,000 0970062484
Capital surplus — Approved by Financial
2012/08 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000 79,411,622|  794,116,220|transferred to Supervisory Commission
common stock Certificate No.
72,192,380 1010028835
Capital surplus — Approved by Financial
2013/07 10 140,000,000] 1,400,000,000| 83,382,203|  833,822,030|transferred to Supervisory Commission
common stock Certificate No.
39,705,810 1020025498
Capital surplus & — Approved by Financial
2014/07 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000| 91,720,423|  917,204,230|Surplus transferred Supervisory Commission
to common stock Certificate No.
83,382,200 1030025092
Surplus transferred — Approved by Financial
2016/08 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000 96,306,444 963,064,440(to common stock Supervisory Commission
45,860,210 In 2016/6/24
Surplus transferred — Approved by Financial
2017/08 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000| 101,121,766 1,011,217,660|to common stock Supervisory Commission
48,153,220 In 2017/7/14
Capital surplus & — Approved by Financial
2018/08 10 140,000,000  1,400,000,000| 111,233,942| 1,112,339,420|SurPlus transferred Supervisory Commission
to common stock In 2018/7/3
101,121,760
Capital surplus & — Approved by Financial
2019/07 10 180,000,000( 1,800,000,000 122357,336| 1,223,573,360| SurPlus transferred supervisory Commission
o common stock In2019/6/10
111,233,940
Private stock — Ministry of Economic
2019/08 10 | 250,000,000 2500000,000| 188,357,336 1,883,573,360|0r2nsferred to Affairs Certificate No.
common stock 10801118730
660,000,000
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2. Shares Type and Shares Outstanding

March 28, 2022; Unit: Shares

Authorized Shares Notes
Shares Type
Outstanding shares | Un-issued shares Total shares
Common
188,357,336 61,642,664 250,000,000
Shares

3. Related information of the general declaration system : Not applicable.

(B) Shareholder structure

March 28,2022

Shareholder Foreign
structure| Government Financial Other . institutions
) U . . Individual Subtotal
Quantity institutions | institutions | corporations and

foreigners
Number of persons I 5 176 29,191 49 29,422
Number of shares held 55 2,780,484| 99,632,217| 82,187,401 3,757,179 188,357,336
Shareholding 0.00% |.48% 52.90% 43.63% 1.99% 100.00%

Percentage (%)

(C) Distribution of Equity Ownership

March 28, 2022

Class of Shareholding shNa[:'?hb;;::s Number of shares held Shareholdir(\i)Percentage
| ~ 999 18,642 991,532 0.53%
1,000 ~ 5,000 7,808 16,576,704 8.80%
5,001 ~ 10,000 1,484 11,032,256 5.86%
10,001 ~ 15,000 507 6,254,722 3.32%
15,001 ~ 20,000 267 4,805,510 2.55%
20,001 ~ 30,000 266 6,588,969 3.50%
30,001 ~ 40,000 133 4,637,121 2.46%
40,001 ~ 50,000 95 4,292,555 2.28%
50,001 ~ 100,000 123 8,647,144 4.59%
100,001 ~ 200,000 59 7,920,076 4.20%
200,001 ~ 400,000 23 6,372,454 3.38%
400,001 ~ 600,000 4 1,784,082 0.95%
600,001 ~ 800,000 3 2,173,746 [.15%
800,001 ~ 1,000,000 3 2,672,394 1.42%
1,000,001 or more 5 103,608,071 55.01%
Total 29,422 188,357,336 100.00%
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(D)List of Major Shareholders

March 28,2022

Shares

Major Shareholders’ Name

Number of shares held

Shareholding
Percentage (%)

Qisda Corporation 96,841,239 51.41%
Taishin I’nternatlonal Commercial Bank Entrusted with Guo 2,000,000 1.06%
Shu-erh’s Trust Property Account

Standard Chartered Bank, Department of Business in

custody for Fidelity Puritan Trust: Fidelity Low-Priced Stock 1,927,000 1.02%
Fund

CHIH-HSUN, LIAO 1,685,172 0.90%
Dian-Jiang Investment Co., Ltd. [,154,660 0.62%
CHIH-HUNG, TAI 953,953 0.51%
CHIH-LI, TAI 913,441 0.48%
FANG-CHUAN, CHOU 805,000 0.43%
CHIUNG-YUEH, CHANG 782,000 0.42%
TOKIO MARINE NEWA INSURANCE 738,000 0.39%

(E) Information on Market Price, Book Value, Earnings Per Share and Dividend:

Fiscal Year As of March 31,
Item 2020 2021 2022 (Note 5)
Market |Highest 47.20 46.00 40.00
Price Per |Lowest 28.85 37.10 38.00
Share  |Average 38.74 41.10 38.94
Net Worth |Before Distribution 22.68 22.78 -
Per Share
(Note 1) |After Distribution 20.18 (Note 6) -
Earnings |Weighted Average Shares Number
Per Share |(thousand Shares) 188,357,336 188,357,336 i
(EPS)  |Earnings per share 291 3.07 -
Cash dividends 2.5 2.5 -
Dividends |Free share|Dividend from retained earnings - (Note 6) -
Per Share |distribution |Dividend from capital reserve - - -
Cumulative unpaid dividend - - -
Return on Price/Earnings Ratio (Note 2) 13.31 13.39 -
Investment Price/Dividend Ratio (Note 3) 15.50 16.44 -
Cash DividendYield (Note 4) 6.45% 6.08% -

Note |:Based on the number of issued shares at the end of the year, and the distribution based on the resolution of

the shareholders’ meeting in the following year.

Note 2: Price/Earnings ratio = Average market price/Earnings per share.
Note 3: Price/Dividend ratio = Average market price/Cash dividends per share.
Note 4: Cash dividend yield = Cash dividends per share/ Average market price.

Note 5: As of the publication date of the annual report, there is no information regarding with earnings per share
and net Worth Per Share that have been reviewed by CPAs for the most recent quarter. The Market Price
Per Share is the information for the current year as of the publication date of the annual report.

Note 6: Resolution of 2021 earning distribution at the 2022/02/24 BOD Meeting, and then the company will report
it for an approval of the shareholders’ meeting in 2022.
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(F) Dividend Policy and Execution Status:

the Articles of Incorporation of the Company regulates the dividend policy as follows:

The company, If there is profit in the year, the Company shall appropriate 5-20% as the reward for
employees and no more than 1% as the reward for directors.When there is a deficit, however, the amount
for compensation shall first be reserved.

If there is net profit after the account is closed, the Company shall first pay the taxes and compensate
the previous deficits before appropriating 10% as the legal reserve (except when the accumulated amount
of the legal reserve equals the amount of the paid-in capital). The special reserve may be appropriated or
reversed based on the operational needs and by law.The remaining balance, if any, shall be combined with

the accumulated beginning unappropriated earnings for the Board to formulate a proposal for allocation
as dividends and submitted to the AGM for resolution. If the retained earnings in the preceding paragraph
are distributed in cash dividends, the Board is authorized to make a decision and report it to the meeting
of shareholders.

In the startup and growth stages, the Company adopts the residual dividend policy. After the end of
the fiscal year, based on the profit in the year and the accumulated profit in the previous years and in
consideration of the profit status, capital structure, and future operational needs, if there is profit after the
final accounting and the amount of distributable earnings in the year exceeds 2% of the total authorized
capital, the dividends shall not be lower than 10% of the distributable earnings of the year. Dividends are
distributed either in cash or in stock, and the minimum amount of cash dividends shall be 10% of the total
amount of dividends.

The dividend distribution proposal by the Shareholders’ Meeting:

On February 24, 2022, the Board of Directors has made resolutions to determine the distributable
amount of the cash dividend for the shareholders as NT$470,893,340. After the approval, the
announcement will be announced at the Market Observation Post System and will be reported to the
2022 Shareholders' Meeting.

(G) Effects upon business performance and earnings per share of any stock dividend distribution proposed or

adopted at the most recent shareholders' meeting : Not applicable.

(H) Compensation of Employees, Directors

Information Relating to Compensation of Employees, Directors in the Articles of Incorporation

Amounts decided: If there is profit in the year, the Company shall appropriate 5-20% as the reward for
employees and no more than 1% as the reward for directors.When there is a deficit,
however, the amount for compensation shall first be reserved.

Scope: The recipients of the employee reward, either in stock or in cash shall include employees meeting
specific requirements of controlled companies or subsidiaries. The Board or a person authorized
by the Board shall be authorized to determine these requirements and the methods of distribution.

Estimation basis of this annual period for the remuneration and compensation for employees and Directors,
and the accounting approach for handling the differences between the calculation basis for the shares of
employees' remuneration distributed by stock and the actual distributed amount and the estimated
number of shares:

(1)  Estimation basis of this annual period for the remuneration and compensation for employees and
Directors: The company, If there is profit in the year, the Company shall appropriate 5-20% as the
reward for employees and no more than 1% as the reward for directors. When there is a deficit,
however, the amount for compensation shall first be reserved.

(2) The calculation basis of the number of shares for employee renumeration distributed by stocks:
Calculation is based on the closing price on the day before resolution date of the Board of
Directors.

(3) If there is any discrepancy between that amount and the estimated figure for the fiscal year, it shall
be recognized as the profit and loss next year.
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3. The resolution of remuneration distribution by the Board of Directors:

The amount of any employee compensation distributed in cash or stocks and compensation for directors
and supervisors. If there is any discrepancy between that amount and the estimated figure for the fiscal
year these expenses are recognized, the discrepancy, its cause, and the status of treatment shall be disclosed.

(1)  The distribution amount of employee compensation & Directors’ Renumeration:
A. Employee Cash Bonus: NT$ 59,513,370.
B. Directors’ Renumeration: NT$ 5,579,378.
C.There is no discrepancy between that amount and the estimated figure for the fiscal year

(2) The proportion of employee remuneration paid by stocks to the total amount of the amount of
individual profit (after tax) plus the amount of employee remuneration in the current period: Not
applicable.

4. Distribution of Remuneration of Employees and Directors of the Previous Annual Period:

(1) The amount distributed to employees’ remuneration in cash was NT$ 60,450,000 and NT$
5,650,000 for Directors’ one.

(2) The difference between the proposed distribution amount approved by the Board of Directors
and the actual amount distributed: the actual distributed amount was the same as the proposed
distribution amount approved by the Board of Directors.

(I) Repurchase of the Company’s Shares by the Company: None.

Status of Corporate Bonds: None.

Status of preferred shares: None.

Status of global depository receipt: None.

Status of Employee Stock Options: None.

Status of Restricted Employee Shares: None.

Status of New Shares Issuance in Connection with Mergers and Acquisitions: None.

Financing Plans and Implementation: None.
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V. Overview of Operations
A. Our Businesses
(A) Business Scope:

I.  Major contents of business:

The Group mainly focuses on distribution, purchasing and selling of products of ICT,
and we aim at brands channel, value-added services and building the bridge to the cloud
world, and provide the ICT Solution of network equipment, hardware and software to
customers, for enterprises and users to build a more efficient ICT cloud application

environment.

The structure of business operations of the company is as follows:
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Network Infrastructure: Switch, Router, Wireless LAN

ICT System Integration and Application

EIELELT Data and Information

IT Education and Training Services

The company and its subsidiaries distribute more than 40 internationally famous
network and system software and hardware IT brands, such as, AWS ~ Cisco ~ Check Point~
Citrix ~ Dell ~ Google ~ IBM ~ Juniper * Microsoft ~ Oracle ~ Pure Storage ~ Red Hat ~ VMwar |
etc. For more than 20 years of experience as a distributor, we are familiar with the
ecosystem and business operation of ICT market, and we can provide the most
professional consultancy and project collaboration for one-stop services with different IT

brands for system Integration partners and enterprise users.

2. Operating ratio of products and services of the company at present.

Unit : %

Product - 2021

Computing & Data Utilization 45.23
ICT Infrastructures 31.52
Digitalization 13.75
Clouds, Software and Services 8.06
Other products .44
Total 100.00
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3. Products and services of the company at present

The company's overall operating strategy is based on “brands channel; Cloud Connect” as the
main operating purposes, and the product line distributed by the company including ICT hardware and
software products of global leading vendors, such as Cisco, Citrix, EMC, IBM, Oracle, Red Hat, and
VMware, etc. For enterprises ICT infrastructure, including network, security, server, storage, data
analysis systems and backup systems, we plan overall structure of network, server system, security
mechanism, database performance, backup system and relevant solutions of application software and
hardware for enterprises.We can customize software and hardware ICT solutions to meet enterprises’
requirement, provide relevant technical consultancy, education and training, and improve added-on
values by overall planning and system integration services, so that enterprises and users can build more
effective ICT cloud application environment.

The development plan of new products and services
In order to meet requirements of enterprises' digital transformation, our plan for future research
and development will concentrate on the R&D of cloud application integration and big data analysis,
including:
(I) Development and optimization of the Cloud Management Portal for cross-cloud usages and
expenses management.
(2) To integrate Customer relationship management (CRM) system with social media.
(3) R&D integration with Helpdesk system, ERP and CRM conforming to ITIL specification.
(4) Application research and development of microservices and cloud applications for enterprises
digital transformation.
The total amount of R&D expenses expected to be invested in the new products is approximately
NT$18 million in 2022.

(B) Industry Overview

Current Status and Development of the Industry

According to IDC's 2022 Top Ten Trends in Taiwan's ICT Market, global digital transformation will enter
into the "Digital First Generation". IDC expects that in 2023, more than 52% of global GDP will be
generated by digital transformation and investment in digital technologies, and at least 65% of GDP in
Asia Pacific will come from digital technology-related contributions.

As more businesses go digital-first, digital transformation and related technologies spending shall be
expected to grow at twice the rate of overall IT.

The trends of development relevant to the company are as follows:
(1)  Energy saving and sustainability will trigger a new wave of development of the cloud market

Energy conservation and carbon reduction are important issues of global concern, and the
company pursuing sustainability is an irreversible trend. IDC research indicates that development
of cloud computing is closely related to environmental issues. In the next four years, data center
adopting cloud can help reduce global carbon emissions by at least | billion metric tons.Therefore,
reduction measures of renewable energy and various carbon emission are expected to achieve a
goal of environmental sustainability. According to an IDC survey, more than 80% enterprises,
around the world, believe that enormous public cloud data centers have the advantage of planning
and operation of sustainability. As for deployment of cloud, the goal of operation of sustainability
shall be reached.

(2) Arise of data sovereignty strategy

The data economy has become an important source of profits for countries around the world. In
the point of view, data sovereignty that establishes data privacy and access rights shall be gradually
emerging on the premise of national data security. According to the IDC survey, not only
government departments, but also most enterprises have begun to discuss implementation of data,
in order to improve their autonomy in data, so sovereign cloud was born accordingly. IDC
estimates that by 2024,20% of enterprises will deploy sovereign clouds to enhance data autonomy.
In this structure, multi-cloud has become an important structure for development of enterprise
digital infrastructure.With containerized multi-cloud/hybrid digital infrastructure, enterprises not
only have data autonomy, but also make up for the gap in management complexity and
compatibility. IDC predicts that by 2024, 50% of global enterprises will deploy information
applications in containerized multi-cloud environments.
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(3) Interoperability will be the key to future work development

After the outbreak of the epidemic, it will affect the future work environment from physical to
hybrid office environment.IDC believes that the key to whether future work can adopt integration
with remote and physical work environment lies in the ability to communicate with each other.
Therefore, it is expected that enterprises will gradually plan: 1.System integration and connection
in the office environment shall be the first, so as to achieve same work efficiency during physical
and remote office environment operations at the same time; 2.To achieve technical equivalence
between remote and physical office environments, allowing remote users to provide immediate
feedback and perform tasks in the physical environment on the shared information platform, the
company shall upgrade infrastructure for transmitting and communicating information in the office
environment to achieve the same technical level as the remote and physical office environment
shall become the focus of investments in the future work environment. IDC predicts that by 2025,
90% of new commercial buildings and office environments will deploy smart and connected
technologies as foundation for highly interoperable office environments in the future.

2. Connection of Upstream, Midstream and Downstream Industries

The company and its subsidiaries are midstream value-added distributors in the information service
industry, distributing various communication and Internet software and hardware equipment,
workstation and servers, tools integration application software and other products, etc. Through
capabilities of integration by distributing products, we provide professional consultancy, technical
services, and other solutions etc., to downstream partners, and then sell to end-users (End User)
through those partners. The upstream are mainly suppliers of various network software and hardware,
host systems and application software, and the downstream are system integrators, partners and end-
users engaged in selling information products.

At present, upstream companies in the information industry focus on R&D and manufacturing of
information products. Midstream retailers take market promotion and establish marketing channels as
their primary business objective, while downstream industries provide delivery, installation,
maintenance, and technical support services to end-users.

Simple connection of upstream, midstream and downstream industries, and end-users is as follows:

Upstream Midstream Downstream
Government
System Integrator
IT Hardware Supplier ValFl:et"Afldded — School
etailer
Value-Added
Partner Enterprise
IT Software Supplier Logistics Retailer J || Family
Ordinary Partner
T Person
— Others

3. Trends in development of products

Gartner identifies technology trends that are critical to business in 2022. This year, the list comprises
|2 strategic trends, including , that will enable CEOs to deliver growth, digitalization and efficiency —
and position ClOs and IT executives as strategic partners in the organization.

’

With CEOs and Boards striving to find growth through direct digital connections with customers, CIOs
priorities must reflect the same business imperatives, which run through each of Gartner’s top strategic
tech trends for 2022,” said David Groombridge, research vice president at Gartner. CIOs must find the
IT force multipliers to enable growth and innovation, and create scalable, resilient technical foundations
whose scalability will free cash for digital investments. These imperatives form the three themes of this
year’s trends: engineering trust, sculpting change and accelerating growth.”
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Those are relevant to the company are as follows:
(1) Hyperautomation

Hyperautomation has rapidly changed from being optional to vital because of the relentless
demand to shift to digital business models. Hyperautomation enables scalability, remote operation and
business model disruption. Gartner research shows that the top-performing hyperautomation teams
focus on three key priorities: improving the quality of work, speeding up business processes, and
enhancing the agility of decision-making

(2) Decision Intelligence (DI)

Decision intelligence is a practical discipline used to improve decision making by explicitly
understanding and engineering how decisions are made, and outcomes evaluated, managed and
improved by feedback. Gartner predicts that in the next two years, a third of large organizations will
be using decision intelligence for structured decision-making, to improve competitive advantage.

(3) Cloud-Native Platforms (CNPs)

To truly deliver digital capabilities anywhere and everywhere, enterprises must turn away from the
familiar “lift and shift” migrations and toward CNPs. CNPs use the core capabilities of cloud computing
to provide scalable and elastic IT-related capabilities “as a service” to technology creators using internet
technologies, delivering faster time to value and reduced costs. For this reason, Gartner predicts that
cloud-native platforms will serve as the foundation for new digital initiatives by 2025.

(4) Cybersecurity Mesh

Data is strung throughout many of this year’s trends, but it is only useful if enterprises can trust
it,” said Groombridge. “Today, assets and users can be anywhere, meaning the traditional security
perimeter is gone. This requires a cybersecurity mesh architecture (CSMA). CSMA helps provide an
integrated security structure and posture to secure all assets, regardless of location. Organizations
adopting a CSMA to integrate security tools to work as a cooperative ecosystem will reduce the
financial impact of individual security incidents by an average of 90%.

4. Competition Status of industries

The company acts as a value-added distributor of network system. In addition to distributing global
famous brand products, it also provides related technical consultancy, education, and training courses,
and uses overall planning and system of integration services to increase its added-value, and acts as a
few domestic professional service providers to provide complete solutions of network and system to
enterprises.

A distributor of ordinary information products can be divided into value-added retailers and
logistics retailers, according to the types of services they provide and their niche of competition. For
value-added retailers, they focus on the increase in the added-value of product sales, and establish their
niche of competition through value-added services. The company and its subsidiaries are typical value-
added retailers; Logistic distributors are proficient in logistics management, and their products are
highly standardized, and their sales policies concentrate on the increase in inventory turnover. Synnex
Technology International Corporation and Unitech Computer Co., Ltd., belongs to domestic logistic
retailers.

(C) Technology and R&D Overview

|. During the recent year and as of the print date of this annual report, investment amount of expenses
of research and the development is as follows:

Unit: NT$ 1,000
Item/Year 2021 2022 QI
R&D expenses $29,823 (Note)

Note: As of the print date of the annual report, the 2022 QI financial statements have not been
reviewed by CPAs yet, with no number of the quarterly report for reference.

2. During the recent year and as of the print date of this annual report, technologies and products
produced successfully.
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The company has completed the cloud service charging system, which can automatically total the
customer's cloud service usage every month and generate corresponding notices to charge the
customer. In addition, the charging system can provide usage data for system in some manufacturers,
and also activate/deactivate/manage products of cloud services of customers, reducing the workload
of human resources and service activation. At present, the integration of Akamai, VMware, Google,
AWS, Microsoft and other distributing brands of cloud services has been completed.

We continue to develop the management platform of cloud services, and MSP center, in 2022
and increase more product lines, including cloud and subscription product lines, into the platform,
such as AWS, Akamai, Azure, Google Cloud, Oracle Cloud, Cisco Webex, etc.

(D) Long-Term and Short-Term Business Development Plan
I. Short-term business plans

(1) To continue to introduce new products with value-added synergies, increase the breadth and
depth of the distributing product line, improve integration of sales and services across product
lines and acquire distributing rights in Taiwan.

(2) To continue to increase the original channels, actively understand market trends of manufacturers,
and improve project services and technical guidance, increase capabilities of project integrated
sales and advisory sales, and become a platform of connections/projects communication.

(3) In addition to improving internal management and training of employees' professional skills,
service capabilities and human resources, we also continue to encourage employees to obtain
professional technical certifications and implement target management mechanisms.

(4) To utilize the advantages of existing distributing products to provide enterprise users with mobile
business application solutions and various resources of integration applications to iOS
development manufacturers.

(5) To continue to develop the next stage of Sysage platform of information software of cloud
services: to build the foundation for winning future business opportunities of cloud service, and
incorporate more product lines into the platform. It is expected to expand product lines, such as,
Microsoft Azure, Citrix, Cisco Webex, etc., in the near future.

2. Long-term business plans
(1) Asarole of ICT Solution Provider, we continue to improve the quality of services to customers
and increase customer satisfaction, so as to consolidate the cooperative relationship with
downstream partners and system integrators and become their irreplaceable high-quality business
partners.

(2) Through the connection with existing partners, it shall make a closer integrated distribution
community; Through communication regarding with market information, technical knowledge, and
trends of enterprise users with one another; it shall establish cooperation model of professional
work distribution, group sales, as well as joint operation and sharing of business opportunities in
online services.

(3) As for continuous training of personnel for acquiring professional technical certification, such as,
Cisco, IBM, Oracle, etc., it shall improve the overall technical capabilities, provide customers with
overall technical support, and perfect after-sales services, and maintain competitiveness of the
company in the future, due to the irreplaceability of the value-added services.

(4) To continue to develop cloud platform’s application development and services and expand
product lines for cooperation and layout.

B. Markets and Sales Overview

(B) Market analysis
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2.

Areas of selling or providing products

Unit: NT$ 1,000; %

Selling areas

Year

2021

2020

Amount

%

Amount

%

Domestic sale

North area

8,847,719

74.02

9,474,509

66.36

Hsinchu area

1,413,841

11.83

2,530,881

17.72

Central area

278,064

2.33

415,704

291

South area

602,350

5.04

909,991

6.37

Foreign sale

810,860

6.78

948,099

6.64

Total

11,952,834

100.00

14,279,184

100.00

(M

o)

Market share

The company and its subsidiaries distribute and sell products, whether it is Cisco, IBM, Oracle,
Citrix, DELL, etc., all of which are global famous brands, and their occupation rate in our country's
network, computing, and data storage equipment products is higher. The consolidated operating
income of NT$ 11,952,834 thousand in 2021, occupies an important position in the field of
professional channel management of domestic information products. According to the ranking by
CommonWealth Magazine in 2020, Sysage ranked 6th in the sales and service category of
information equipment, and 128th in the 2000 service industries.

Situations and growth of the supply and demand of markets in the future

IThome's 2022 trend forecast: From the emergency fight against the epidemic in 2020, to the
rise of the new life in 2021, and the post-epidemic new world in 2022 gradually becomes the daily
routine of enterprises. The demand for zero-touch continues to accelerate the wave of digital
transformation. IT has changed from enterprise response to the driver of adaptation for
transformation, and become a weapon for enterprises to face the new future.

The trend and growth are relevant to the company are as follows:

IT modernization has become mainstream, and SRE has become an essential new capability for
IT teams

In 2021, the demand for a new type of talent, the Site Reliability Engineering SRE (Site
Reliability Engineering), will begin to emerge in Taiwan. Not only will the number of job vacancies
begin to increase, but also the demand of the industry will gradually spread from IT companies
to finance, retail, high-tech manufacturing, media, and even logistics, etc.

Taiwan has been relatively slow in concentration on SRE. A few years ago, a very small
number of IT companies, such as the live broadcast platform-17Live Group, began to try this
popular new method of maintenance and operation. Until 2020, large-scale financial controls
companies, manufacturing Industry operators have been exposed to the maintenance and
operation concept of SRE, and started to try it. Some IT companies and technology startups have
begun to recruit SREs in Taiwan. At the beginning of 2021, it is obvious that many companies are
recruiting jobs for SRE. The 104 job-search website had 70 SRE vacancies in April. By the end of
the year, the number of vacancies had doubled to more than 150. The keyword in Taiwan's IT
circle in 2021 is "microservices". Many companies are beginning to adopt cloud-native
technologies, attempt to microservices structure, and embark on the road of IT modernization,
but SRE is only the step to start the last half of the journey, and will become a keyword for IT in
Taiwan in 2022.

Epidemic has driven the re-evolution of Martech applications, and integration of data and
procedures that become a new challenge for IT.

In the past two years, the impact of the epidemic has not only brought challenges to
enterprises, but also taken opportunities for digital transformation.

According to the survey of digital transformation of Taiwanese enterprises released by
Google in 2021, nearly 80% of enterprises have accelerated their digital transformation due to
the impact of the epidemic, and more than 70% enterprises have adopted new digital sales
channels or marketing tools in order to improve communication with customers. It indicates that
under the epidemic, companies have adopted Martech and improved digital marketing, which has
become an necessary part of digital transformation.
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In other words, after the epidemic increases the adoption of martech by Taiwanese
enterprises, the trend of martech integration will become more obvious. The enterprise IT
department must cooperate with the marketing department closer. In addition to improving
capabilities of data analysis for precise marketing, it is also necessary to improve integration of
martech tools to increase efficiency and effectiveness of digital marketing.

(3) The Ministry of Health and Welfare promotes the application of electronic medical records to the
cloud, and medical care will become the driving force for different industries in Taiwan to adopt
cloud

The revised draft of the "Rules for the Production and Management of Electronic Medical
Records in Medical Institutions" announced by the Ministry of Health and Welfare on December
8, 2021 has two major points, one is cloud and the other is paperless. As far as cloud adoption is
concerned, the amendments first allow medical institutions to outsource construction of
information systems of electronic medical records, and then open medical institutions to use cloud
services for data collection, processing and database use. However, an important restriction on
cloud adoption is limited to domestic, and only under special circumstances can apply for the use
of overseas services.

The wave of hospital IT modernization and cloud demand has also attracted domestic and
foreign IT manufacturers to enter into the market. Microsoft, a major international manufacturer,
has entered Taiwan's medical cloud market and directly introduced the Azure cloud services and
technical resources that are dedicated to foreign medical care, in accordance with HIPAA to
provide medical application templates for users to modify and use them. Microsoft Taiwan also
announced that it will cooperate with 15 industry partners next two years, and create 100 smart
medical solutions.

Not only that, Google, whose data center is located in Taiwan, also intends to enter the
medical cloud market, and local hospitals have begun to use Google cloud products. Many local
medical manufacturers have also deployed new HIS market in the past two years. It will not only
bring more choices and technical resources to hospital IT, but will also drive development of supply
chain of Taiwan's cloud service and product line. The hospital's adoption of cloud will become
boost for different industries to adopt cloud much faster.

4. Operating purposes & niche of competition

The company and its subsidiaries are striving to become "The ICT Solution Provider”, aiming to
provide a comprehensive solution for integration and construction of ICT in enterprises, focusing on
early system planning, mid-term integration and construction, post-consulting services(three-stage
goals) to meet requirements of corporate customers for immediate and convenient one-time
purchases, and then assist enterprises to move toward goals of globalization, quality optimization, and
service efficiency, for improving industrial competitiveness.

"Success comes from the most powerful combination!" The company and its subsidiaries form
four cornerstones of business development with the best combination of "brand, technology,
distribution, and service", including software and hardware products of global famous brands,
excellent technology passed by the certification of manufacturers, extensive marketing channels, and
enthusiastic, sincere attitude for our sales and services with profound experience. We allow
enterprise customers to improve the operating efficiency of information equipment with a reasonable
budget, and improve IT functions, laying a solid foundation for the future development of the
enterprise, and facing more industrial products of aggressive competition.: Software and hardware
products distributed by the company and its subsidiaries are all global famous brands. In order to
increase depth and breadth of the product line, the company and its subsidiaries, except for continuing
to expand the existing brand market, and expand distributing rights of new products, we provide
enterprises with a wider and excellent integration construction equipment of network and system,
and then increase revenues and growth of profits.

»  Technology: The company and its subsidiaries have an excellent technical support team of
network and system, which constantly researches the integration efficiency of various brand
products, and adopt the most professional technology to enhance the added-value of
products. The support team works closely with technicians of manufacturers, and has a variety
of professional certifications of manufacturers, for providing enterprise customers with
accurate diagnosis and consultancy of IT problem.

»  Channels: The company and its subsidiaries have been widely recognized by customers, due
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to a variety of solutions.There are more than 1,000 system integrators and partners around
all counties, with extremely high market coverage, a closer and stable relationship with groups
of major customers,and an excellent channel expansion and market development capabilities.

Service:The company and its subsidiaries have lower employee turnover, high stability, a great
enthusiasm and dedication, and many years of professional experience. From pre-sale product
consultancy, planning and quotation, to after-sale installation and warranty, we provide
customers with the most immediate and secure information and services at times.

5. Factors of advantages and disadvantages, and countermeasures of the development for prospect
(1) Factors of advantages

A.

A range of distributing product is complete: The product lines represent global manufacturers
including Cisco, Citrix, EMC, IBM, Oracle, Red Hat,and VMware, etc., and providing a complete
product line to meet requirements of customers.

At present, the type of customers includes educational institutions, government authorities,
manufacturing, telecommunications, Internet service, distribution, medical, financial and
securities industries, etc. The range of customers is broad, and our business is stable, so it can
avoid the risk of excessive concentration on business.

The information security-related software market and continuous growth of requirements of
big data software and hardware, and cloud products indicates that information security, cloud
computing and big data related issues shall be one of the most concerned topics in information
environment of enterprises.

To combine business advisors with information technology to assist customers with software
and hardware issues related to the database and technical consulting services with knowledge
of products, and provide professional planning, consultancy, construction, maintenance,
outsourcing engineers, and other professional services, etc., in cooperation with various
application systems.

(2) Factors of disadvantages

A.

An aggressive competition with the same industry, due to the decrease in prices, which triggers
the decrease in profits
Countermeasures :

Except for becoming a professional ICT Solution Provider for brand channels and value-
added services, the company and its subsidiaries have increased and expanded integrated and
comprehensive products on the original basis to maintain a complete product line and provide
downstream customers with one-time purchase to fulfill their requirements, and researching
the integration efficiency of products among various brands, in order to provide customers
with complete solutions and increase the added-value of products.With high added-value and
reliable products, advanced network integration technology, and perfect after-sales
maintenance services to improve value-added services for avoiding price competition.

Being in the Industry of distributor
Countermeasures:

In addition to having many employees with professional and technical certificates, the
company and its subsidiaries also hold intensive internal and external education and training
to provide customers with overall technical support and after-sales services. With the
irreplaceability of value-added services, we can maintain a good relationship with customers,
and increase opportunities for extension of distributor agreements. At the same time, we
commit to expanding marketing channels and increasing the market share of products for
assuring continuation of distributor agreements.

On the other hand, the company and its subsidiaries are also searching for new
distributing rights of other brand products. With expansion of product lines, it not only
increases a variety type of products for one-time purchase services by customers, but also
reduces dependence on single-brand products, in order to reduce operational risks.
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C.

Information products with short life cycles and high inventory risks

Countermeasures:

Except for strengthening the control of progress of projects, the company and its
subsidiaries implement inventory monitoring, review the safe level of inventory at times in
response to market demand, and establish a good relationship with manufacturers, receive
immediate information of the product, and monitor situations during the change in inventory,
for preventing from a huge loss triggered by decline and obsolete and slow-moving inventories.

(B) Important applications and manufacturing processes of main products

I. The important applications of main products

Product line

Major product

Main purpose

IE and
software and
hardware of
communication
equipment

Router

Remote access device
Switch

Firewall

Safety-control equipment
Network security

For connection with local area network (Local Area Network;
LAN) and wide area network (Wide Area Network; WAN) or
hardware configuration accessed by remote workstation and
providing hardware equipment to increase network transmission
speed and improve network security management.

encryption 2. Internet security, encryption, control, and detection of software
Network management and hardware, for privacy and security of Internet transmission.
software
Internet playing system (3. To establish a management platform and provide remote network
Network phone system management functions.
Unified Communication
System (UC) 4. To provide a network playing system, which can be played on local
Bandwidth acceleration networks and wide area networks.
equipment
Wired and wireless 5. To replace traditional switches with Internet phone system (IP-
phones PBX) and use network IP technology to achieve integration
software with communication functions.
Tools integration  |Database software I. To provide management of internal files and huge storage data,
application Database management and enable information to be conducted systematically through
software and software filtering and analysis, etc.
services Database analysis
software 2. We develops packages application software, which provides an
Software development operating platform for customers to collect, analyze, and use data,
environment (tools) in order to improve the efficiency of information management of
Development application users.
software according to
requirements of
customers and market.
Workstation and  |Desktop workstation I. To provide equipment for enhancement of computing, files and
server hosts Server hosts data storage, server hosts of Internet application and office
Storage equipment automation, etc.
Blade Server
2. The blade server of green energy technology is used as the

computing platform to save energy and space.

2. Manufacturing processes of main products:
The company and its subsidiaries act as a distributor for network software and hardware
products, and provide consulting services for products, with no manufacturing procedures.

(C) Supply status of main materials
The company and its subsidiaries are the information service industry of computer-related
products. The main purchase items include software and hardware of Internet and communication
equipment, tools integration application software and services, workstation, and server hosts, etc. The
main manufacturers are Cisco, Citrix, Dell, EMC, IBM, Oracle, Red Hat, and VMware, etc., with a stable
cooperative relationship.
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(D) Major Suppliers & clients

Major Clients in the Last Two Calendar Years:

Units: NT$ 1,000

2020 2021 2022(As of March 31)(Note)
As % of . . . . . .
Relationship As % of Net | Relationship As % of Net | Relationship
Item|  Company Amount Net : Company Amount . Company Amount .
with Issuer Revenue with Issuer Revenue with Issuer
Revenue
| NA - - - NA - - - - - - -
Other 14,279,184 100.00 - Other 11,952,834 100.00 - - - - -
Net Revenue 14,279,184 100.00 -| Net Revenue 11,952,834 100.00 -| Net Revenue - - -
Note: As of the date of publication of the annual report, the 2022 QI financial statements have not been reviewed by CPAs.
2.Major Suppliers in the Last Two Calendar Years:
Units: NT$ 1,000
2020 2021 2021 (As of March 31)(Note |)
As % of Relationship As % of Relationship As % of Net | Relationship
Item Company Amount Net i Company Amount Net . Company Amount .
with Issuer with Issuer Procurement | with Issuer
Procurement Procurement
| |[Manufacturer A 2,301,173 18.36 NA Manufacturer A 2,839,128 28.62 NA - - - -
2 |Manufacturer B 2,111,889 16.85 NA Manufacturer C 1,491,260 15.03 NA - - - -
3 [Manufacturer C 1,807,278 14.42 NA - - - -
Other 6,310,648 50.37 Other 5,590,959 56.35 Other - - -
Net 12,530,988 100.00 Net 9,921,347 100.00 Net - i -
Procurement Procurement Procurement

Note |:As of the date of publication of the annual report, the 2022 QI financial statements have not been reviewed by CPAs.

Note 2:Reasons for the increase or decrease of procurement: As the company maintains a good and long-term cooperative relationship with major manufacturers.
Therefore, in the past two years, the company's main manufacturers have no major changes, except
for the increase or decrease in the purchase amount, due to new distributing products and

cooperation with the market supply and demand.
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(E) Supply Status of Main Materials

The company acts as the industry of information services, so it doesn’t have any production table.

(F) Shipments and Sales in the Last Two Years
The company acts as the industry of information services, and the distributing products are various and the
quantity units are different. Therefore, calculation of the sales values is based on the main products, categories

are as follows:

Units: NT$ 1,000; Each; Set, etc.

Year 2021 2020
Output Local Export Local Export
Major Quantity Amount Quantity| Amount Quantity Amount | Quantity | Amount
products
Computing &
863,907 5,142,547 82,368 263,345 201,609 6,294,693 387,182 385,949
Data Utilization
ICT
583,341 3,437,930 191,374 330238 668,756 3,580,606 260,312 297,052
Infrastructures ’
Digitalization 31,963 1,607,206 2,220 36,018 26,375 2,896,136 3,489 165,620
Clouds, Software
50,920 954,278 63 9,454 8,628 558,470 - 268
and Services
Other products 12 13 511,911 171,805 1,180 129,056 99,210
Total 1,530,143 11,141,974 787,936 810,860 905,368 13,331,085 780,039 948,099
C. Employee Information:
Year 2020 2021 As of March 31,2022
Salesman 265 227 229
Technical 206 305 294
Total number of Administration 100 190 189
I
employees Research 14 47 44
Total 585 769 756
Average age 36.47 36.48 36.50
Average duration of service (years) 4.44 4.64 4.80
Director of Philosophy 0.85 0.78 0.80
Educational Master's Degree 821 12.74 13.22
distribution Bachelor's Degree 88.38 82.58 83.86
ratio (%) Senior high school 2.39 3.77 2.12
Senior high school below 0.17 0.13 0
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D. Environmental Protection Expenditures:

The company’s business focuses on software and hardware equipment of communication and network
(distributing Cisco and other products, etc.), workstations and servers (distributing IBM, Dell, EMC and other
products, etc.), and tools integration application software (distributing Oracle and other products, etc.) to
integrate sales plans and provide relevant consultancy and services of education and trainings, research and
development of information application software, services and sales business, will not induce pollution and
damage the ecological environment, as the recent year and as of the publication date of the annual report, no

loss and disposition incurred by environmental pollution.

E. Labor-Management Relations:

(A) List of employee benefits, in-service training, internal training, retirement system, and implementation status,
as well as employer-employee agreements, and protection measures for employee entitlements
I. Employee welfare and implementation
The company established an employee welfare committee in accordance with the Employee Welfare
Regulations, and regularly allocates welfare funds to handle welfare matters. Employee welfare matters
include labor, health retirement and group insurance, birthday gift, Dragon Boat / Mid-Autumn Festival /
Spring Festival gift, wedding and funeral of employees and their family members support, maternity subsidy,
employee health inspection, employee injury and illness support, emergency support, emergency
condolences, employee leisure activities (such as, club and travel support, movie study (private room),
stress relief equipment (mobile KTV booth, PS4 recreation room), etc.), year-end parties(spring banquet)
and lottery, and the charitable event, etc.
2. Education & Trainings
The company has established education and training regulations to provide employees with domestic
and foreign professional skills and management skills and other education and training, etc. Employee
education and trainings include new personnel trainings, general education courses, management ability
trainings of officers, education and training of safety and health, and diversified learning development. Each
employee can improve professional abilities through diversified development methods, such as, on-the-job
training, job counseling, job transfer, lectures, etc., inside the company; Outside the company, employees
are able to participate in short-term training courses of professional training institutions. In addition, we
encourage employees to obtain professional certifications to enhance their professional capabilities. In
2021, the company's expenses of education and training amounted to NT$ 2,258 thousand.
3. Retirement Policy and execution
In order to take care of retirement life of employees, and promote good labor relations, the company
has adopted a definite allocation system in accordance with the Labor Pension Regulations. The monthly
retirement funds are allocated to the labor insurance account established by the Labor Insurance Bureau;
For voluntary payment for pensioners, the employee monthly salary shall be deducted from the employee
monthly salary to the individual pension account of the Labor Insurance Bureau,according to the voluntary
withholding rate.
(1) If the company’s employees who have one of the following circumstances may request retirement:

A.Employees who have worked for more than 15 years and are at least 55 years old.
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B. Employees who have worked for more than 25 years.

C.Employees who have worked for more than ten years and have reached the age of 60.

(2) If the company's employees have one of the following conditions, the company may force them to

retire:
A.Employees who are over 65 years old.
B. Loss of mind or physical disability is incapable of being a qualified worker.
For the age specified in the first paragraph of the preceding paragraph, the company may report
to the central competent authority for adjustment of workers who engage in dangerous and physical

works, but the very employees shall be no less than 55 years old.

(3) Pension standard:

A.For seniority based on the Labor Standards Law, the pension payment standard has been
approved by the Ministry of Labor (Approval Letter No. 09935829400) to settle all employees'
seniority in May, 2010, so there is no need to calculate the retirement pension.

B. For employees who are subject to the pension requirements of the Labor Pension Regulations,
the company shall pay 6% from their wages to the individual retirement account of employees

monthly.

4. Employer-employee agreements

The company always concentrates on various benefits, provides an excellent working environment,

and emphasizes two-way communication with employees. The labor relations is very harmonious, and the

employees have a remarkable degree of unity, without triggering any labor disputes.

5. Employee Code of Conduct of Ethics

The company sets up working rules and employee codes of ethics and conduct to standardize

employee service codes.

6. Protective measures for the working environment and personal safety of employees

(1
@
©)
4)
©)

()
?)
®)

©)

All entrances and exits are equipped with access control of card swiping devices.

To sign a contract with the security company to maintain safety of office and warehouse.

The company participates in 2 fire drills of the building management committee every year.

In response to changes in laws and regulations, we edit work rules of safety and health at times.
The business spot shall be completely banned smoking in accordance with regulations, health
seminars be held, and the office environment be cleaned and disinfected regularly.

To hold regular health examination for on-the-job staff every 2 years.

To insure labor, health and group insurance.

To hold lectures on stress (emotion) management, communication skills, creative thoughts, etc., for
enhancing employee psychological adjustment, knowledge and capabilities.

To establish a website for employees, with download areas of discussion areas, work forms and
various manuals, new Labor Standards Act, who can provide opinions, release emotions, and acquire

interactive learning channels.

8l



(B) List of losses due to labor disputes in the most recent year up to the date this report is published, disclosure

of the estimated amount, and countermeasures against current and possible future occurrences. If the amount

cannot be reasonably estimated, the reason shall be provided: None.

F. Cyber security management:

(A)Describe the cyber security risk management framework, cyber security policies, concrete management

programs, and investments in resources for cyber security management:

I. Cyber security risk management framework

(1

)

We establish an information security management team, with the Information Division leading and
planning information security and all business-related units implementing information security to
ensure the effectiveness of information security management.

The Information Division establishes the information security policy, enhances the awareness of

information security of employees, and periodically reviews and revises the policy.

2. Cyber security policies

(M

@)

Purposes

To ensure the confidentiality, integrity, availability, and legitimacy of information assets (hardware,
software, data, documents, and personnel related to information processing), prevent willful or
accidental internal or external threats to protect the privacy and maintain information security among

employees, suppliers, and customers during business contacts.

Objectives
A. Ensure business continuity and provide reliable IT services.
B. Ensure the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of information assets in our custody and
protect the privacy of personnel data.
C. Establish the business continuity plan and implement IT operations in compliance with related

laws and regulations.

3. Concrete management programs

(M

)

©)

(4)

©)

All employees, contractors and their suppliers must sign non-disclosure agreements to ensure that
personnel using the information system of the Company are responsible and obliged to protect the
information assets of the Company to prevent unauthorized access, alteration, damage, or
inappropriate disclosure.

Appropriate backup or monitoring mechanisms shall be established for critical information systems or
equipment and periodic drills are planned and implemented to ensure availability.

Anti-virus software shall be installed on all personal computers and virus definitions shall be updated
periodically, and the use of unauthorized software shall be prohibited.

Employees shall properly keep and use their user IDs, passwords, and privileges and change their
passwords regularly.

The internal emergency response SOP shall be emphasized during the establishment of the information
security management system. Drills on various security incidents and events shall be arranged for
personnel to ensure the effective activation of the emergency response SOP in case of emergency to

effectively shorten the incident/event response time and thereby reduce damage to the Company.
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4.

Investments in resources for cyber security management

In order to implement the company's information security, the Information Management Division has
built a firewall to further prevent viruses and hackers from invading the company's internal network and
installed anti-virus software to strengthen client protection. And, through the firewall function, reduction
attacks to physical, virtual and cloud servers, it provides sophisticated filtering rules and network policies
to prevent viruses and hackers from exploiting vulnerabilities triggered by programs, which are not
regularly updated.

The Information Management Division also plans to assess whether to adopt information security
insurance in the future, based on actual needs, so as to reduce the operational losses triggered by major
information security incidents. At the same time, the information security team has set the follow-up goals,
such as related standards of information standards, regular information security assessment, obtaining
international certifications of information security, and continue to strengthen the protection mechanism
of information security in the future. Also, to promote important concepts related to information security

to employees, through education and training programs.

(B) List any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the annual report publication

date due to significant cyber security incidents, the possible impacts therefrom, and measures being or to be

taken. If a reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why it cannot be made shall be

provided: None.

G. Material Contracts:

Contract Party Contract Term Content Restrictions
Type

CISCO 2022/03/28-2024/03/27

Oracle 2021/07/26-2022/07/25

HDS 2021/04/20-2022/04/19

DELL 2021/11/17-2022/11/16

EMC 2021/04/01-2022/03/31
Distributing

Distribution |Citrix 2020/03/01-2022/11/30 NA

commodities

IBM-Taiwan branch 2021/12/02-2022/12/01

IBM-Singapore 2020/06/08-2022/06/07

VMware 2022/01/12-2023/01/11

Juniper 2022/10/01-2023/09/30

RedHat 2022/03/28-2023/03/28
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V1. Financial Highlights

A. Condensed Balance Sheet and Statement of Comprehensive Income for the most recent five years

(A) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

Unit: NT$ 1,000

Financial data for the most recent five years (Note |)
As of March 31, 2022

Year
JE 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 (Note 2)
Current Assets 4804738 5482085 6436838 6804709 6,463,615
Property, plant and 836,642 865,896 995,883 958,530 943,464
equipment
Intangible assets - - - 117,304 192,243
Other Assets 181,085 214,226 440,558 683,448 832,402
Total Assets 5822465 6,562,207 7.873279| 8563,991| 8431,724
Before 3334742|  3,807,330| 2,784,583| 3,389,630 3,442,450
Current distribution
Liabilities |After 3,486,425  3,974,181| 3,349,655 3,860,524  (Note 3)
distribution
Non-current liabilities 248,440 238,430 481,639 545,646 530,616
Before 3,583,182|  4,045760|  3.266222| 3935276 3,973,066
Total distribution
Liabilities ~\After 3,734865  4212611) 3,831,294] 4406,170|  (Note 3)
distribution

Equity attributable to

2,064,955 2,260,003 4,286,896 4,271,301 4,290,563
shareholders of Sysage.

Common Stock 1,001,217 1,112,339]  1,883,573|  1,883,573| 1,883,573

Capital Surplus 444,122 422237 1,520,908  1,333,011| 1275919

. Before 609,616 725,427 882,415  1,054717| 1,161,414
Retained distribution

Farnings |After 457,933 558,576 317,343 583,823  (Note 3)
distribution

Other equity - - - - (30,343)

Treasury stock - - - - -

Equity attributable to
former owner of business

e - - - 82,369 -
combination under
common control
Non-controlling interests 174,328 256,444 320,161 275,045 168,095
Before 2239283|  2516447| 4607,057| 4628715 4,458,658
. distribution
Total Equity Afc
weer 2,087,600 2,349,596 4,041,985  4,157,82I (Note 3)
distribution

Note |:The accompanying financial data from 2017 to 2021 has been audited and attested by CPAs.

Note 2:The 2022 QI financial data has not been attested or reviewed by CPAs.

Note 3: Resolution of 2021 earning distribution at the 2022/02/24 BOD Meeting, and then the company will report it for an
approval of the shareholders’ meeting in 2022.
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(B) Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Unit: NT$ 1,000

Year

Financial data for the most recent five years (Note )

Item

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

As of March 31, 2022
(Note2)

Revenue

10,422,423

11,186,815

12,306,999

14,279,184

11,952,834

Gross profit

942,204

1,094,414

1,250,889

1,724,350

1,551,015

Profit from operations

358,572

427,254

467,289

670,925

486,763

Non-operating income and
expenses

2,148

17,838

50,175

46,834

219,681

Profit before income tax

360,720

445,092

517,464

717,759

706,444

Profit from continuing
operations for the year

299,423

347,113

414,831

564,132

598,135

Losses from discontinued
operations

Profit(loss) for the year

299,423

347,113

414,831

564,132

598,135

Other comprehensive
income (loss), net of taxes

21,718)

31,179)

Total comprehensive
income (loss) for the year

299,423

347,113

414,831

542,414

566,956

Profit attributable to
shareholders of Sysage.

283,390

318,055

379,456

549,017

577,591

Profit  attributable to
former owner of business
combination under
common control

(11,967)

Profit attributable to non-
controlling interests

16,033

29,058

35,375

27,082

20,544

Total comprehensive
income (loss) attributable
to shareholders of Sysage.

283,390

318,055

379,456

549,017

547,248

Total comprehensive
income (loss) attributable
to former owner of
business combination
under common control

(33,685)

Total comprehensive
income (loss) attributable
to non-controlling
interests

16,033

29,058

35,375

27,082

19,708

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

2.55

2.60

2.58

291

3.07

Note | : The accompanying financial data from 2017 to 2021 has been audited and attested by CPAs.

Note 2 : the 2022 QI financial data has not been attested or reviewed by CPAs.
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(C)Condensed Parent Company Only Balance Sheet

Unit: NT$ 1,000
VGED Financial data for the most recent five years (Note )
Item 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Current Assets 4,116,848 4,611,168 5,408,293 5,448,467 5,376,998
Property, plant and equipment 772,245 802,726 834,631 815,380 842,046
Intangible assets - - - - -
Other Assets 393,161 452,423 772,177 1,068,643 1,397,135
Total Assets 5,282,254 5,866,317 7,015,101 7,332,490 7,616,179
Before
Current distribution 2,970,593 3,369,618 2,290,415 2,502,117 2,866,097
Liabilities After
distribution 3,122,276 3,536,469 2,855,487 2,973,011 (Note 2)
Non-current liabilities 246,706 236,696 437,790 476,703 459,519
Before
o distribution 3,217,299 3,606,314 2,728,205 2,978,820 3,325,616
Total Liabilities After
distribution 3,368,982 3,773,165 3,293,277 3,449,714 (Note 2)
Common Stock 1,011,217 1,112,339 1,883,573 1,883,573 1,883,573
Capital Surplus 444,122 422,237 1,520,908 1,333,011 1,275,919
Before
Retained distribution 609,616 725,427 882,415 1,054,717 1,161,414
Earnings After
distribution 457,933 558,576 317,343 583,823 (Note 2)
Other equity - - - - (30,343)
Treasury stock - - - - -
Equity attributable to former
owner of business 82369
combination under common B B B ’ B
control
Before 2,064,955 2,260,003 4,286,896 4,353,670 4,290,563
. distribution VO OV 400, 10909 eV
Total Equity After
distribution 1,913,272 2,093,152 3,721,824 3,882,776 (Note 2)

Note | : The accompanying financial data from 2017 to 2021 has been audited and attested by CPAs.
Note 2 : Resolution of 2021 earning distribution at the 2022/02/24 BOD Meeting, and then the company will report it for an
approval of the shareholders’ meeting in 2022.
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(D)Condensed Parent Company Only Comprehensive Income

Unit: NT$ 1,000
. Financial data for the most recent five years (Note)
ear

ltem 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenue 8,613,555 9,113,792 10,286,217 11,071,939 9,437,728
Gross profit 768,563 887,510 998,461 1,318,446 1,178,691
Profit from operations 278,614 341,796 375,560 579,381 414,642
engg;ggiratmg income and 55,834 59,718 88,790 94,669 264,183
Profit before income tax 334,448 401,514 464,350 674,050 678,825
Profit from continuing
operations for the year 283,390 318,055 379,456 537,050 577,591
Losses from discontinued
operations B B B B B
Profit(loss) for the year 283,390 318,055 379,456 537,050 577,591
Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of taxes B B B (21,718) (30,343)
Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year 283,390 318,055 379,456 515,332 547,248
Profit attributable to
shareholders of Sysage. 283,390 318,055 379,456 549,017 577,591
Profit attributable to Former
owner of business combination - - - (11,967) -
under common control
Total comprehensive income
(loss) attributable to 283,390 318,055 379,456 549,017 547,248
shareholders of Sysage.
Total comprehensive income
(loss) attributable to Former 33.685
owner of business combination ) ) ) (33.685) )
under common control
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 2.55 2.60 2.58 2.91 3.07

Note: The accompanying financial data has been audited and attested by CPAs.

(E) The names of CPA and their opinions for the most recent five years.

The
Year | accounting CPA Opinion and content
firm
2017 KPMG Yung-Hua Huang/ Wan-Wan Lin Unqualified opinion
2018 KPMG Mei-Ping Wu/ Wan-Wan Lin Unqualified opinion
2019 KPMG Mei-Ping Wu/ Wan-Wan Lin Unqualified opinion
2020 KPMG Hung-Wen Fu/Mei-Ping Wu Unqualified opinion with other matters
2021 KPMG Hung-Wen Fu/Mei-Ping Wu Unqualified opinion with emphasis of and other matters
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B. Financial analysis for the most recent five years

(A) International Financial Reporting Standards - Consolidated Financial Analysis

Year
Financial analysis for the most recent five years(Note 2) As of March 31,
2022
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 (Note 3)
Item analyzed
) . Ratio of debts to assets (%) 62 62 41 46 47
Financial
structure - -
(%) Ratio of long-term capital
to property,J,)Iant an 297 318 511 540 529
equipment (%)
Current ratio (%) 144 144 231 201 188
Solvency | Quick ratio (%) 68 71 123 110 103
Interest coverage ratio 26 30 37 33 40
Receivables turnover rate
(times) 6.19 5.88 5.94 6.85 4.84
Average collection days for
receivables >9 62 6l >3 >
Inventory turnover rate
(times) 3.51 3.84 3.86 4.18 3.54
Operating |Payable turnover rate
gbility g (times) 8.56 7.01 7.34 8.29 6.89
Average days for sales 104 95 95 87 103
Property, plant and
equipment turnover rate 17.42 13.14 13.22 14.61 12.56
(times)
Total asset turnover rate
(times) 1.86 1.80 1.70 1.73 1.40
Return on assets (%) 6 6 6 7 7
Return on equity (%) 14 I5 12 12 13
Ratio of profit before
Profitability i(rg/c)ome tax to paid-in capital 36 40 27 38 38
Profit margin (%) 3 3 3 4 5
Earnings per share (NT$) 2.80 2.60 2.58 291 3.07
Cash flow ratio (%) 23 I (Note 1) 20 (Note 1)
Cash flow |5ash flow adequacy ratio 52 6l 47 52 56
Cash fl i
i (), reinvestment 24 (Note 1) (Note 1) 2 (Note 1)
Operating leverage 2.24 222 2.33 2.13 2.77
Leveraging
Financial leverage 1.04 1.03 1.03 1.03 1.03

Reasons for changes in financial ratios in the most recent two annual periods (if the difference exceeds 20%):
(1) Increase in interest coverage ratio: Due to the decrease in interest expenses in 2021.

(2)Decrease in Receivables turnover rate, and the increase in the collection days for receivables: Due to the average collection days for
receivables increased from large projects.

(3) Increase in Profit margin: Due to disposal of non-current assets held for sale and subsidiaries in 2021, and non-operating income
increased.

(4) Decrease in cash flow ratio and cash reinvestment ratio: Due to the impact of the epidemic, the revenue in 2021 a bit decreased
and collection days for receivables increased, resulting in a decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities.

(5) Increase in operating leverage: Due to the impact of the epidemic, the revenue in 2021 a bit decreased.

Note | : As a negative amount or zero.
Note 2 : The accompanying financial data from 2017 to 2021 has been audited and attested by CPAs.
Note 3 : the 2022 QI financial data has not been attested or reviewed by CPAs.
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(B) International Financial Reporting Standards— Parent Company Only Financial Analysis

Year

Financial analysis for the most recent five years(Note 2)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Item analyzed
Ratio of debts to assets (%) 61 6l 39 41 44
Financial
strt&t)ure Ratio of long-term capital to
property, plant and 299 311 566 592 564
equipment (%)
Current ratio (%) 139 137 236 218 188
Solvency | Quick ratio (%) 60 63 17 108 101
Interest coverage ratio 25 29 36 86 66
Receivables turnover rate
(times) 6.25 5.75 5.87 6.04 432
Aver.age collection days for 58 63 62 60 84
receivables
Inventory turnover rate 3.16 342 3.60 3.59 3.17
(times)
Operating [Payable turnover rate 831 6.50 7.16 722 6.25
ability (times)
Average days for sales 116 107 01 102 115
Property, plant and
equipment turnover rate 15.58 11.57 12.56 13.42 11.38
(times)
Total asset turnover rate 1.69 1.63 159 1,54 126
(times)
Return on assets (%) 6 6 6 8 8
Return on equity (%) 14 15 12 12 13
Ratio of profit before
Profitability [income tax to paid-in capital 33 36 25 36 36
(%)
Profit margin (%) 3 3 4 5 6
Earnings per share (NT$) 2.80 2.60 2.58 291 3.07
Cash flow ratio (%) 26 4 (Note 1) 26 (Note 1)
Cash flow adequacy ratio
Cash flow |7) quacy 52 66 55 60 63
Cash flow reinvestment
ratio (%) 26 (Note I) (Note I) 2 (Note I)
Operating leverage 2.36 2.27 2.34 2.00 2.50
Leveraging
Financial leverage 1.05 1.04 1.03 1.0l 1.02

Reasons for changes in financial ratios in the most recent two annual periods (if the difference exceeds 20%):
(I)Decrease in interest coverage ratio: Due to the increase in loans for short-term requirements of funds, and interest expenses

decreased.

(2)Decrease in Receivables turnover rate, and the increase in the average collection days for receivables: Due to the average

collection days for receivables increased from large projects.

(3) Increase in Profit margin: Due to disposal of non-current assets held for sale and subsidiaries in 2021, and non-operating income

increased.

(4) Decrease in cash flow ratio and cash reinvestment ratio: Due to the impact of the epidemic, the revenue in 2021 decreased

and collection days for receivables a bit increased, resulting in a decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities.
(5) Increase in operating leverage: Due to the impact of the epidemic, the revenue in 2021 a bit decreased.

Note | : As a negative amount or zero.

Note 2 : The accompanying financial data from 2017 to 2021 has been audited and attested by CPAs.
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Below are calculations:
I. Financial structure

(1) Ratio of debts to asset = Total liabilities / Total assets

(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant, and equipment = (Total equity + Non-current liabilities) / Net
property, plant and equipment

2. Solvency

(1) Current ratio = Current assets / Current liabilities.

(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - Inventories - Prepaid expenses) / Current liabilities

(3) Interest coverage ratio = Net income before income tax and interest expense / Interest expenses over this
period.

3. Operating ability

(1) Receivable (including accounts receivable and notes receivable due to business operations) turnover rate = Net
sales / Balance of average accounts receivable for various periods (including accounts receivable and notes
receivable due to business operations).

(2) Average collection days for receivables = 365/Receivables turnover rate.

(3) Inventory turnover rate = Cost of goods sold/ Average inventory.

(4) Payable (including accounts payable and notes payable due to business operations) turnover rate = Cost of goods
sold / Balance of average accounts payables of various periods (including accounts payable and notes payable due
to business operations).

(5) Average days for sales = 365 / Inventory turnover rate.

(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover rate = Net sale/Average net property, plant and equipment.

(7) Total asset turnover rate = Net sales / Average total assets

4. Profitability

(1) Return on assets = [Net income after taxes + interest expense x (| - tax rate)] / Average total assets

(2) Return on equity = Net income after taxes / Average total equity

(3) Profit margin = Net income after taxes / Net sales

(4) Earnings per share = (Net income attributable to shareholders of the parent company - preferred stock
dividend) / Weighted

average number of shares outstanding

5. Cash flow

(1) Cash flow ratio = Net cash flow of operating activities / Current liabilities.

(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities for the most recent five years / (Capital
expenditures + inventory increase + cash dividend) for the most recent five years.

(3) Cash flow reinvestment ratio = (Net cash flow from operating activities - cash dividends) / (Gross value of
property, plant, and equipment + Long-term investments + Other non-current assets + working capital).

6. Leveraging
(1) Operating leverage = (Net operating revenue - variable operating cost and expenses) / Operating profit.
(2) Financial leverage = Operating profit / (Operating profit - interest expenses).
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C. The Audit Committee's Review Report

& e SRR R

Audit Committee’s Review Report

The undersigned has duly audited the Operating Report, Financial
Statements and Schedule of Earnings Distribution prepared by the Board of
Directors for the year of 2021. Hung-Wen Fu and Mei-Ping Wu Certified Public
Accountants of KPMG have audited the Financial Statements. The 2021 Financial
Statements, Business Report, Independent and Auditors Report have been
reviewed and determined to be correct and accurate by the Audit Committee
of SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD. |, as the Chair of the Audit Committee,
hereby submit this report according to Article 14-4 of the Securities and

Exchange Act, and Article 219 and 228 of the Company Act.

2021 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting

Chair of the Audit Committee: Wen-Tsung Wang

February 24,2022
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D. Consolidated Financial Statements with Independent Auditors' Report of the most recent year: please refer to Appendix

E. Parent Company only Financial Statements with Independent Auditors' Report for the most recent year: Please refer to

Appendix 2.

F. Any financial difficulties experienced by the Company and its affiliate businesses during the most recent year up to the
publication date of this report need to be stated as well as the impact on the Company's financial position need to be

outlined: None.

A. Financial position Analysis

VII. Review and Analysis of Financial Position and Financial Performance, and Risk Management

Unit: NT$ 1,000
Year 2021 2000 Difference
ltem Amount %
Current assets 6,463,615 6,804,709 (341,094) (5)
Property, plant and equipment 943,464 958,530 (15,066) (2)
Intangible assets 192,243 117,304 74,939 64
Other assets 832,402 683,448 148,954 22
Total assets 8,431,724 8,563,991 (132,267) (2)
Current liabilities 3,442,450 3,389,630 52,820 2
Non-current liabilities 530,616 545,646 (15,030) (3)
Total liabilities 3,973,066 3,935,276 37,790 I
Equity attributable to shareholders 4290,563 4271301 19.262 i
of Sysage.
Common stock 1,883,573 1,883,573 - -
Capital surplus 1,275,919 1,333,011 (57,092) 4)
Retained earnings 1,161,414 1,054,717 106,697 10
Other equity (30,343) - (30,343) -
Treasury stock - - - -
Form.er ' owner of  business i 82,369 (82,369) i
combination under common control
Non-controlling interests 168,095 275,045 (106,950) (39)
Total equities 4,458,658 4,628,715 (170,057) 4)

Reasons for changes in proportion exceeding 20 % in the most recent two years:

I.Increase in intangible assets: Due to the increase in investment in subsidiaries in 2021, the relevant intangible assets

increased in 2021.

2.Increase in other assets: Due to the increase in investment in financial instruments in 202 |, the amount of financial assets

at FVTPI increased.

3.Decrease in Equity attributable to former owner of business combination under common control and equity attributable
to former owner of business combination under common control: The Group had fully acquired COREX from Parent
Tech by cash and obtained control over COREX. This transaction is an organizational reorganization under common
control in 2021, adopted the book value method and regarded as a combination from beginning. The company restated
the 2020 consolidated financial statements and recognized former owner of business combination under common control
and exchange differences on translation of Foreign Financial Statements, with relation to the acquisition.

4.Decrease in non-controlling interests: Due to disposal of subsidiary-DAWNING TECHNOLOGY INC., non-controlling

interests decreased.

92



B. Financial performance analysis

Unit: NT$ 1,000
Year 2021 2020 Increase (decrease) Change.in
[tem amount proportion
Net revenue 11,952,834 14,279,184 (2,326,350) (16)
Gross profit 1,551,015 1,724,350 (173,335) (10)
Operating income and expenses 486,763 670,925 (184,162) (27)
Non-operating income and expenses 219,681 46,834 172,847 369
Profit before income tax 706,444 717,759 (11,315) 2
Profit from continuing Operation 598,135 564,132 34,003 6
Loss from discontinuing operation - - - -
Profit(Loss) 598,135 564,132 34,003 6
Other comprehensive (loss) income
for the year, net of income tax (31,179) (21,718) (9461) (44)
Total comprehensive income 566,956 542,414 24,542 5

Reasons for changes in proportion exceeding 20 % in the most recent two years:
|. Decrease in profit and loss from operations: Due to the impact of the epidemic, the revenue decreased in 2021.
2. Increase in non-operating income and expenses: Due to disposal of non-current assets held for sale and subsidiaries,

non-operating income increased in 2021.

3. Decrease in other comprehensive profit and loss (net amount after tax): Due to acquisition of the subsidiary COREX
(PTY) LTD., exchange differences on translation of Foreign Financial Statements changed.

C. Cash flow
(A) Change in consolidated cash flow in 2021
Unit: NT$1,000
Cash balance at the beginning of 2021 2021 Net cash inflow(outflow) Cash balance at the end of 2021
761,715 (111,134) 650,581
(B) Analysis of changes in consolidated cash flow for recent 2 years
Unit: NT$1,000
vz | e
2021 2020 proportion
amount
NeF .c:f15h flows provided by operating (195,003) 665,563 (860,566) (129)
activities
NeF .C?.Sh flows used in investing 147.842 (274,322) 422,164 154
activities
NeF .c:f15h flows used in financing (42,454) (324,055) 281,601 87
activities

I. Net cash outflow from operating activities was NT$ 195,003 thousand, due to the impact of the epidemic, the
revenue decreased and the collection days for receivables increased, net cash outflow from operating activities

increased.

2. Net cash inflow from investment activities was NT$ 147,842 thousand, due to disposal of non-current assets held
for sale and subsidiaries in 2021, cash inflows from investment activities increased.

3. Net cash outflow from financing activities was NT$42,454 thousand, which increased NT$ 281,60 1thousand
compared to last year’s, Due to the increase in short-term loans for short-term fund requirements in 2021.

(C) Liquidity improvement plan: Not applicable.

(D)Analysis of cash liquidity in the coming year: Not applicable.

D. Material expenditures of the most recent year and impact on the Company's finances and operations

(A) Material expenditures of the most recent year: None.

(B) Impact on the Company's finances and operations: None.
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E.

Investment policy for the most recent fiscal year, the main reasons for the profits/losses generated thereby, the

improvement plan, and investment plans for the coming year

(A) The investment plan is expected to exceed 5% of the paid-in capital in 2021:The company obtained the full equity of
COREX (PTY) LTD. and issued common stock for cash on January 4, 2020, through a resolution of the Board of
Directors. To Sign a share purchase contract in January, 2021, and purchase all shares held by COREX (PTY) LTD,
the contract price is NT$ 140,000 thousand, and then the common stock is issued by NT$ 111,872 thousand. The
registration procedures for related transactions have been completed, and the contract price has also been paid. The
Company’s re-investment company has been disclosed in the financial report (please refer to Appendix | of the annual
report). The Company’s re-investment policy is in line with the company’s business development strategy and
operational requirements, and the profit of investments for the equity’s method was NT$3,839 thousand, in 2021
consolidated financial report.

(B) The investment plan is expected to exceed 5% of the paid-in capital in 2022:The company doesn’t have the investment
plan exceeds 5% of the paid-in capital in 2022.

Matters for Analysis and Assessment for Risks

(A) The impact of interest rates, exchange rates changes and inflation on the Company's profits and losses and future
countermeasures

I. The impact of recent changes in interest rates on the profit and loss of the company and its subsidiaries and

future countermeasures

The financial conditions of the company and its subsidiaries are sound. Therefore, the interest expense
recognized in this year is NT$ 17,968 thousand, due to short-term financing, which only accounts for 0.15% of
operating income.Therefore, interest rate fluctuations have little impact on the company.

. The impact of the recent exchange rate changes on the profit and loss of the company and its subsidiaries and

future countermeasures

The exchange profit recognized by the company and its subsidiaries in this year is NT$ 21,622 thousand,
accounting for 0.18% of the current net operating income. In order to avoid a decrease in the value of foreign
currency assets and fluctuations in future cash flows due to changes in exchange rates, the company and its
subsidiaries use the derivatives to avoid risks of the exchange rate, so the change in the exchange rate have limited
impact on the company.

(B) The main reasons for the high-risk, high-leveraged investment, capital loan, guarantee/endorsement and derivative
commodity trading, and the profits or losses and future countermeasures.

In the most recent year, the company has not engaged in transactions related to high-risk, highly leveraged
investments, lending loans to others, except for forward foreign exchange contracts. The transactions of the
derivatives focus on avoiding of foreign currency-denominated liabilities due to fluctuations in the exchange rate.
For a rise in risks, the company and its subsidiaries use the derivatives for hedging purposes that are highly
negatively correlated with changes in the fair value. In addition, the company and its subsidiaries are engaged in
the sale of foreign exchange options held for trading, and continuously and regularly assess the fair value risk
arising from the change in the exchange rate, and take appropriate countermeasures at times.

In the most recent year, the company's endorsements/guarantees, regarding with the amount of endorsements/
guarantees undertaken by COREX (PTY) LTD, for fund requirements, so the company provides guarantees to
assist it in obtaining short-term credit lines of the bank,and GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK CO,, LTD,, is
made due to needs arising from the ordinary relationship, with no unusual events.

In order to control the aforementioned transaction risks, the company has established internal management
measures and operating procedures in accordance with relevant laws and regulations, including " Handling

Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets", " Handling Procedures for Lending Funds to Other Parties or
Endorsements & Guarantees ", and conducting regular audit and public announcement.

(C)R&D expenses for future R&D projects and investment amount.

Please reference “The development plan of new products and services” of “V. Operations Overview”.

(D) The impact of important policies and legal regulations changes at domestic and abroad on the Company's financial status
and the countermeasures

There are no impact of important policies and legal regulations changes at domestic and abroad on the Company's

financial status and the countermeasures in 2021.

(E) The impact of technological and industrial changes on the Company's financial business and the countermeasures

The company and its subsidiaries are value-added distributors of professional network systems. Changes in

technology can create business opportunities for the network information industry to seek enhancement, innovation,
and security. It can provide opportunities for the company to sell new products and indicate the impact of changes
in technology.There is no negative impact on the company's financial business.
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(F) The impact of corporate image changes on corporate crisis management and the countermeasures.

The company and its subsidiaries have always abided by laws and regulations and fulfill social responsibilities, and
there are no negative reports.

(G)Expected benefits and possible risks of M&A and the countermeasures: Not applicable.
(H)Expected benefits and possible risks of the expansion of factory and the countermeasures
The company does not have a factory, so it is not applicable.
() Risk of procurement and sales concentration, and countermeasures
I. Procurement

The company makes an effort to acquire distributing rights of other well-known brands in order to reduce
the operational risk of procurement concentration.

2. Sales

The company and its subsidiaries accounted for 23.72% of the top ten customers in the most recent year,
and there is no risk of sales concentration.

(J) The impact and risk of a substantial transfer or replacement of equities by Directors, Supervisors or Shareholders
holding more than 10% of the total shares: Not applicable.

(K) Impact of changes in management on the Company and risks: Not applicable.

(L) Disclosure of disputed contents, amounts of the subject matters, commencement dates of the proceedings, parties
involved in the proceedings of litigation or non-litigation events, major closed or ongoing lawsuits and litigation or
non-litigation events involving the Company and its Directors, Supervisors, General Managers, Substantive
Persons—in Charge, major shareholders holding more than 10% of total shares and affiliates/subsidiaries with
results of which may have a material impact on the shareholders' equity or the price of the securities, and the
actual results as of the printing date of this Annual Report.

I. The company and its subsidiaries: NA.

2. The company and its Directors, Supervisors, General Managers, Substantive Persons—in Charge, major
shareholders holding more than 10% of total shares and affiliates/subsidiaries: NA.

(M) Other major risks and the countermeasures

G. Other material matters: None.
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VIII. Special Notes

A.Summary of affiliated companies in recent years(as of 12/31/2021) :

(A) Consolidated business report of affiliated companies :

|. Affiliated companies chart

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY
CO, LTD.

GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK CO,, LTD.

179.36%
holding by affiliated enterprises: :

EPIC CLOUD : 0.07%

EPIC CLOUD CO,, LTD./100%

STATINC COMPANY /34.99%
holding by affiliated enterprises: :

EPIC CLOUD : 0.02%

Corex(PTY)Ltd./100%

B

DKABio Co., Ltd./100%

ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL CORP.
/34.09%

APEO Human Capital Services Corp.
(APEO Human Capital)

/100%

Unit: NT$ 1,000
Compan Date of Place of Resistration Capital Stock | Main business or production
ompany Incorporation ot neg '° (NT$) activities
GLOBAL . Software and hardware
INTELLIGENCE 2000/03/21 ,'\l'e.Fh' Ng:sst '?;Se:.‘ é‘.tNe'h“ Rd, 132,000 | trading such as, network and
NETWORK CO,, LTD. MU LISt faipet ity communication system, etc.
EPIC CLOUD CO.,, 10F, No. 516, Sec. |, Neihu Rd., Data software and data
LTD. 2018/07/03 Neihu Dist., Taipei City >0,000 processing services
. Market research service,
STATINC COMPANY 2011/12/02 | ZF» No. 9, Aiguo W. Rd,, 50,130 | marketing consulting, and big
Zhongzheng Dist., Taipei City
data and cloud database, etc.
ADVANCEDTEK . Applications of
INTERNATIONAL 1998/01/26 | &7 No- 303, Sec. |, Fuxing S. Rd, 33,812 | software implementing
Da’an Dist., Taipei City :
CORP. services
. Import and export of
Corex(PTY) Ltd. 2003/05/29 590’ |6th Road, Randjespark, 134,262 | electronic products for sale
Midrand, 1685, Gauteng
and purchase
APEO Human Capital Applications of
Services Corp. (APEO 2005/07/07 | 5F., N,o' 57’. Sec. Zf D.unf.\ua S. 2,000 | software implementing
. Rd., Da’an Dist., Taipei City :
Human Capital) services
. Market research,
DKABio Co., Ltd. 2021/05/10 7F., No. 9, Algl.jo W. .Rd'.' . 20,000 | management consulting
Zhongzheng Dist., Taipei City .
and data processing

2. Presumed to be the same shareholder for those with relations of control and affiliation: None.

96




3. Directors, supervisors, and presidents of affiliates

Shareholding

Name of business Title Name or representative ( n\5122:|$15e nt (|I_?v|e‘3js_am%/n)t
Amount) olding
GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE | Chairman& SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD. 10,475,000 79.36
NETWORK CO,, LTD. President Representative : Shu-Erh Kuo
Director SYSAGETECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD. 10,475,000 79.36
Representative : TK Young, Hsiu-Ching
Cheng
Supervisor SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD. 10,000 0.07
Representative : Mavis Lin
EPIC CLOUD CO,, LTD. Chairman& SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 5,000,000 100.00
President Representative : TK Young
Director SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO.,, LTD. 5,000,000 100.00
Representative : Shu-Erh Kuo,
HUANG,SHU-FEN
Supervisor SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 5,000,000 100.00
Representative : Mavis Lin
Chairman& Ya-Hui Yang 606,500 12.10
President
Director SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 1,753,958 34.99
STATINC COMPANY Representative : TK Young - CHIH-
HSIUNG SU
Supervisor Mavis Lin * Shih-Chin Chuang - -
Chairman SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 1,152,800 34.09
Representative : Jung-Chien Chien
Director Yung-Fu Investment Co., Ltd. 43,601 1.29
ADVANCEDTEK Representative : Kuan-Chin Wang,
INTERNATIONAL CORP. Chen-Chung Wu
Director SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 1,152,800 34.09
Representative : TK Young * Li-Tsung Lin
Supervisor Shih-Chieh Yang 10,920 0.32
Supervisor Mavis Lin - -
COREX(PTY) LTD. Director TK Young * Mavis Lin * Hung-Chih Lu 773 100.00
APEO Human Capital Chairman ADVANCEDTEK  INTERNATIONAL 200,000 100.00
Services Corp. (APEO CORP.
Human Capital) Representative : Jung-Chien Chien
Chairman STATINC COMPANY 2,000,000 100.00

DKABio Co., Ltd.

Representative : Ya-Hui Yang
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4. Overview of affiliates’ operations:

Unit: NT$1,000
Profit or | Earnings
Name of business Capital | Total assets| . T?Fa,l Net Revenue Profit from loss for the per share
liabilities | assets operations | year (After |(dollar; after
income tax)|income tax)
GLOBAL
INTELLIGENCE 132,000 601,878 342,922| 258,956| 1,485,962 25,411 54,169 4.10
NETWORK CO,, LTD.
EPIC CLOUD CO,,
50,000 55,170 27,741 27,429 53,406 (19,152)]  (19,117) (3.82)
LTD.
STATINC COMPANY 50,130 138,411 31,232 107,179 81,245 (8,195) (7,680) (1,53)
ADVANCEDTEK
INTERNATIONAL 33,812 150,043 81,535| 68,508 202,206 19,054 18,647 5.52
CORP.
COREX(PTY) LTD. 134,262 368,592| 185,460/ 183,132 767,636 46,306 39,611 51,243.35
APEO Human Capital
Services Corp. (APEO 2,000 4,736 2,172 2,564 13,262 51 52 0.26
Human Capital)
DKABio Co., Ltd. 20,000 19,755 843 18,912 0 (1,090) (1,088) (0.54)

(B) Consolidated financial statements of affiliated companies

(C) Report of affiliated companies :

Not applicable.

A. Private Placement Securities in the Most Recent Years . None.

. Please refer to Appendix I.

B. Shares in the Company Held or Disposed of by Subsidiaries in the Most Recent Years: None.

C. Other supplementary information :

None.

IX. Any of the situations listed in Article 36, paragraph 3, subparagraph 2 of the Securities and Exchange Act, which

might materially affect shareholders' equity or the price of the company's securities, has occurred during the most

recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report: None.
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Appendix |
Consolidated Financial Statements with Independent Auditors' Report

for the most recent years
Representation Letier

The entities that are required to be incladed in the combined financial statements of SYSAGE TECHNOLOXTY
CO., LTD, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021 under the Criteria Governing Preparation of
Affiliation Repoerts, Consolidatcd Busincss Reports, and Consclidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterpriscs arc the sams as those included in the consolidated financial statements propared in conformity with
the Interational Financial Reporting Standard No. 10, “Consolidatcd Financial Staternents™ cndorsed by the
Financinl Supetvisory Commission of the Republic of China, In addition, the information requited to be
disclosed in the combined [inancial slatements is included in the consolidaled financial stalements.
Consequently, SYSAGE TECIHINOLOGY CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries do not prepare a separate sel of
combined financial statements.

Iereby declare

Company name:; 8YSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LT,
Chairman: Michacl CH l.ec
Date: Febuary 24, 2022
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Fonplidhy Travalaiion of Consslduied Finsnciel Statemvets und Report Origlnally Teied In Clioess)
SYSAGT TECTINOLLOGY CO, LTH. ANTI SUBSIDIARTES

Consolidated Statemenis of Comprehensive Income
For the years entded December 31, 2021 and 2020

{In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

For the years ended I* ber 31
2021 2024 (Restaied)

A M _A t %
NN Coperating revenue {Mater 6{v) and 7) $O11,950EM 0 14278081 100
5008 Operialing costy {Mules Se), fo), () 7. und 12) 10401819 87 _J2.534.834 38
Cirnes praBt LSSL0LS B2 _ 1724350 _ 32
COperating cxponses (Mober &(c), (m], {r (w), 7 and 12}
G100 Belling expenrax #55,504 7 TIR.555 &
6200 General and adminislrative expenses 194003 2 2171158 1
6300 Research and development expanees EZE - 16582 -
6430 Expected aredit loss (Reversal of expected eredit loss) {13378y _ - 11,)73 _ -
i,064.252 9 _ 1,053435 7
Net yperiting lncome 486761 _ 4 G70,8%5 5
Noo-operalng income and expunver
10 Crther income (Notes &{p), (x)and T 13238 - 13285 -
ti| Inlerest weome L173 - 1,704 -
e (ther gaine end logses (Mates &(3). (J) md (=)} 215,599 ) d4414 -
Tosn Fusmie costy (Notes B(p}, [x), ed 7) (IT0ER - 2nay -
60 Share of profit (lose} of azsocistes accounted for using equity method (Mote &)} BEIS - 9042 -
219581 2 A683 -
Proftt hefore income tax TO8 A4 & 711758 5
Targ Lega: Income tax expoacins (Note G(x)) gg.308 1 133627 1
Proftt i9R135 5 sed13z 4

2700 Ohiet cotnprelietsive Liveonye:
&310 Iiems that muy aol be reclasyiSed subzequendy Lo profit or lesy

#311 Bemuitre ents of ik Foed beoehl glans (Nole 6()) fl.268) - + -
8320 Hbare of other comprehensive noome of intes for using equity method [Nate 6(f)) M - - -
8349 I.ezz! Income tax related to comp ts nf other comprehensive mcom e that will not he reclessified to profit or loss - - - _-
Tremr thm may not ba reclaxsifed mbseqoantly s profi, o 1os ey _ - - -
2360 Tierus it maay be ceclassifed subiequently v probt or Loy
B34t Torchange differsnces on franslation of forelgn fmencial Aatem enes (30.26m - (2LmE -
3393 Legs: Inctnde tax related bo comp ol otier prebeudive oo e i mey be reclassited Lo grofil or lows - - - -
Itenr thm may be reciassiNed sehxequently s profit or lose (3060 _ - (21,718 -
300 Oibes - compreiensive income, net of bax (31178 _ - (21,718 _ -
Tulal comprehensive income §  S66ISE 5 542414 4
Profit dhoss} abtelbitlo to: T T
3610 Ovmers of thy perent & 5TRE9] 5 549,047 4
315 Former owner oftinginess conbiration wder commen contyel - - {117 -
8620 Num-cootrolling mieresie 20,544 _ - 27, -
f  SRISS S8 _ Seda3T 4
Comprehensive income (loss atdbodable Lo: T —
X710 [Tumerr. of the parert % W7TIME 5 549,007 4
3715 Former vwnet o't binuion wmder contyol - - {33888y -
&720 Men-controlling interests 8T8 _ - 7082 _ -
3 Sei956 0§ 2414 4
Earnings per shara {Nora 6[n)) T o
3750  Base carnings per slraes (NT doBlars) 5 3.7 291
L2500 Minted earnings perc diara {W']° dollarg) g i 1.K9

St decompanying noloz o the consolidated Tl stalamenly,
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(Eaglish Translafion of Conselidated Mnandal Statements and Report Origlhally Issued ie Cliinese)
SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Staiements of Cuash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Cash flows from operating acvities:
Profil befard income bax
Adjustments:
Adjustments to recondle profit {loss):
Deprecialion expense
Amortization axpense
Gains on disposal of investmant proparty and property, plar and squipment
Expected credit loss { Reversal of expected credit boss)
Net paing em valuation of financial ammets (labilities) ot fair valne through proefit or loss
Bhare of profit {Joss) of aesocidhes acconnad o weing eqity maflud
Getin om, dispusad, of non-cvren, gssets or 1sbilities held for sale
Gain on disposal of sulsidiaries
Inieresl expense
Inrerest incame.
Dividend income
Others
Talal adjusimenls Lo recandle profil (loss)
Changes iy operating assets and labit ies;
Total mel clanges In operaling assets:
Motes and accowtts recaivable (inclading related parties}
Curerit finencial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Invesivorics
Coieact assets
Oither cinment asrets
Other pon-currenl aesels
Total changes [n operating assets
Total cham%&& In operating labiliiies:
Cormract Habilitiss
Nistes and acconnts payable
Omer payables
Advancs teceipls
Orther current Habilities
Tilher non-cureni lialilities
Tatal changes In aperating anifties
Total changes En operatisg aseets aml Habilities
Tatal adjustments
(Cash nflows {ou Nlows) penerated from operalions
Inierest received
Dividends received
interest paid
Tneome baxes paid
Net cash inflows (oUtows) Trom opersing activities
Cash Nows from investing activiiies:
Aptuidition of nor-chrten Grmcisl assets al Gair values Grogeh profil or Lo
Proceeds from disposal of nen-cumen finaneial ezssts #f faic value throvgh profil or loss
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method
agh deerease in deposal gronns ¢lassified as held for aale
Nhare capital from acquisition of snhaidiaries
Consideration from disposal of sibsidisries
‘Wel cash inflows fom Losiness combinaton
Proceeds from disposal of non-cumrenl assets or lialidities 45 held (or sale
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Ixoceeds from disposal of investment property and property, plant and eqnipmone
Diecrease in refimdable deposits
Acrmigition of intangible asets
Avtuisilion of rghl-ol-use assels
Net cash fuflows (paiftows) from investing activitles
Cush flows [rom fiuundag activilies:
Inicrease in short-term barrowings
Repayments of long-tem borowings
Incresse (decresse) in other poyables
Detresss in guaranize deposils
Paymenty of lease liabilities
Change in nor-conlrolling irdered
Cagh dividends paid .
ividends to non-controlling interests from subsidiardes
Neb caxh {nflows (o tows) rom nacing actlvifics
Effect of exchange rate chanpes on cash and cash equivalents
Tncrease {decréase) In cash and cash enuival ents
Cashl and cash egolvalenls, bepinuing of perlod
Cash and cash equivalenis, end of period

See accompaltying notes ta the consolidaied financial staterments.
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{In Thoonsands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Far the years ended Decentiber 31
2021 202 0¢r estated)
b1 06444 7759
T&,BoE B A0
11154 5.251
(10,262) {330}
{13,378} 11,173
{76.717) (21.334)
12.839) {2.042)
184.732) -
[20,696) -
17563 22111
(11739 (1.704)
{7.312) {10,085
(428) (124}
1 110,557} 76,856
1799414} (198,460
154,049 46 997
142,988 (61.514)
(5420) -
28,374 {9,716)
1572 {3,019}
(478,751} 124,788
{108.285 (456,607
{144,373) 301,056
53.076 44,022
2,852 (24,376}
(7.448) 3,354
- . {134)
(192176} (132.679)
1670977 {8,361
(781484 88 465
{75.040) 786,221
1,140 1,704
7812 10,085
{17,859 [22,28%)
(111,058} (110,162}
{195.003) 663,967
1100000} (46,752}
- 617
(3,0001 {109,361
- (107, 704)
{130,000} -
46,246 -
40,431 -
265795 -
(7.534 {3,566
27.116 781
3499 2,592
{106} -

_ (168193
147,842 274,323
624,899 319,578
{16,874} 116,684}

(113.742) 53173
(441) (3,150}
(12,3835) 40,1223
(5007 (41,7343
{470,894} (563,072}
(22914} (30,0047
{42.454) 1324.055)
{21.519) {9.850]
(111,124) 57,336
761,715 704,375
3 650,381 761,715




{English Transkation of Consoliduled Financinl Statements Originully Lssued in Chinese)
SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UTnless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company hislory

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD, (*the Company™) was incorporated on April 16, 1998 under the
approval of Ministry of Economic Affair, Republic of Cluna (“E.0O.C."). The address of its registered
office is 107, No. 516, Sec. 1, Neihu Rd., Taipei City 114064, Taiwan (R.Q.C.). The consolidated
Bimancial stalements as of December 31, 2021 vonsist ol the Company and itls subsidiaries {collectively as
“the Group”), and ithe interests of associates. The Group's major business activilies include distribuling
and reselling soliware and hardware equipment of ICT Infrastruclares from Cisco and other companies,
Compuling & Dala Utilization from IBM, Dell, TMC, and other compimies, Digitalization fom Oracle
and olher companies, The Group provides mtegrated planning for the products # sells, including related
consulting education services as well as research, development of information applications, services and
sales business, and market research.

The Company had fully acquired COREX (PTY) LLTD (*COREX™) from DPariner Tech Corporation
(“Partner Tech™) by cash on January 4, 2021, Partner Tech and the Company has the same ultimate parent,
which iz Qisda Corporation. The transaction is an organizational reorganization under common control;
please refor to Note 6(g) for details,

(2) Approval date und procedures of the consulidated financial statements:

The conselidated financial statemenls were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directers on Febuary
24,2022,

{3) New stundards, amend ments, and inlerprelativns adepled:

(a) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRSs™) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission{“*F3C™), R.0.C. which have alrcady been adopted.

The Group has initially adopted (he [ollowing new amendments, which do not have a significant
mmpact on 11s consolidaled [inaneial stalements, from January 1, 2021

=+ Amendments to IFRS 4 “Extension of the I'smporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9™

e Amendments (o IFRS 9, IAS 39 IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and TFRS 16 “Inleresl Raie Benchmark Reflorm
—Phase 2

“The Group has initially adopied the following new amendments, which de not have a significant
impact en its consolidated financial statements, from April 1, 2021;

e Amendments to IFRS 16 “COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 20217

(Continued)
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(e)

SYSAGE TECIINOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements

The irnpact ol TFRSs issued by the FSC but not yel effective

The Group assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for from January
1, 2022, would not have a sigaificant tmpact on its consolidated financial statements:

¢ Amendments 1o IAS 16 “Property, Planl and Equipment —Proceeds before Intended Use™
» Amondments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts  Cost of Fulfilling a Contract™

#» Anmual Improvements 1o IFRSs Standards 2018- 2020

s Amcndments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework™

The impact of IFRSs issued by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™) but not yet
endorsed by the FSC

The following new and amended standards, which may be relevant to the Group, have been issued
by the IASB, but have vet to be endorsed by the FSC:

Standards or Effective dale per
Interpretations Content of amendment IASB
Amendments 1o IAS 1 The amendmenls aim W promole January 1, 2023
“Classification of Fiabilittes  consistency m applying the requirements
as Current or Non-curren™ by helping companies delermine whether,

in the stalement of balance sheel, debt and
other liabilities with an uncertain
selilement date should be classified as
current (due or potentially due o be seliled
within one year) or non-current.

The amendments include clarifying the
classification requirements for debt a
company might settle by converting it into
equity.

The Group is evalvating the impact of its mitial adoption of the abovementioned standards or
interpretations on its consolidated financial position and consolidated financial performance. The
resulis thereof wilt be disclosed when the Group completes its evaluation.

The Group docs not cxpeet the following other new and amended standards, which have vet to be
endogsed by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its conselidated financial statements:

o Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Betwuen an Inveslor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture”

IFRS 17 * Insuiance Contracts™ and amendments to TFRS 17 * Insurance Contracts™
Amendments to TAS 1 *Disclosure of Accounting Policies™

Amendments to IAS § “Definition of Accounting Estimates™

Amendments to TAS 12 “Deferred Tax refated to Asscts and Tiabilitics arising from a Single
Transaction™

{Continued)
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SYSAGE TECIINOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements

(9  Summary of sigrificanl accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation ot these comzolidated financial statements
are sct out as below. Except for those specifically indicated, the following accounting policies have been
applied conziztently to all perieds presented in these financial statcments,

(@)

(b)

Statement of comphiance

‘These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
(Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Sccurities Issucrs (*the Regulations™) and the
International Financial Reporting Standards, Intemational Accounting Standards, [FRIC
Interpretations, and SIC Intcipretations endorsed and issved inte effect by the Financial Suporvisory
Commission, R.O.CL (*the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC™).

Hasis of preparation

(i)

{in)

(1)

Basis of measurement

Excepl lor [he following sigmificant accounis, the vonsolidated [inancial siatements have been
prepared on a huslorical cest basis;

1) TFinancial instruments at Lair value Lhrough profit or Ioss are measured al fair value;

2)  The defined benefit assets are measured at fair value of the plan assets less the present
valhe of the defined benefit obligation.

Funectional and presentation curvency

The functional enrrency of each individual consolidated entity is determined based on the
primary economic environment in which the entily operates. The wonsolidated financial
stalements are presenled in New Taiwan Dollars, the Company’s [unctional currency. All
financial information presented in New Taiwan Dollars has been rounded to the nearest
thousand.

Busimess combinations under commaon control

'The business combinations under cotamon control often ocenr as the ownership of the
company change to another hut they are bath controlled by the same ultimate parent company.
'These combinations are treated as the later of cithar the carlicst comparative poried in financiat
statements or the datc urder common control to restate comparative information of prior
period. Under common control, assets and labilitics are recognized at their original carryving
amount. The conselidatod financial statements do net recognize the goodwill or the fair value
of acquirer” s share of the acquiree’s inferest in the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities,
and contingent liabilitics in excess of the common controlled carrying amount.

In preparing the consolidated balance sheel, the equity [rom acquisition record as “Equily
attributable to former owner of business combination under common control™, In prepating the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, the profit or loss belong to former
controlling sharcholders recerd as * profit (loss). attributable to former owner of business
cambination under common contral™

{Continued)
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(c)

SYSAGE TECIINOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements

DBauis of consolidation

(i)

(i)

Principle of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comptise the Company and subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are
entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is expossd to, or
has rights to, variable retums from its involvement with the entity, and has the ability to affect
those returng through its control over the entity.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries arc incladed in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group
fransactions are eliminsled in preparing the consolidaled financisl stalements, Losses
apphicable W the non-contrelling micrests in a subsidiary are allocaled (o the non-controlbing
mlerests even i doing so causes the non-controlling interests Lo have a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries” financial statements are adjusted to aligh the accounting policies with those of
the Group.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions. The difference between the adjustment of the
non-controlling interests and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized
directly in equity and attributed to the shareholders of the Company.

When the Group loses control of its subsidiaricy, the assets (including poodwill) and liabilities
and any non-comirolling interests of the former subsidiary at theix carrying amounts at the date
when contro] is lost will be derecogmized and any investment relained in the former subsidiary
at its fair value al the dale when control 1s Josl will be remeasured in the consohidaied financial
slatement. The difference of disposal gain or loss is belween the aggegale of (1) the fair value
ol the consideralion teceived and any investment relamed in the former subsidiary at its fair
valug at the dale when comtrol is lost and (1) the assets (including goodwill) and liabililies and
any non-conbrolling inlerests of the fermer subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date
when control is lost. When the Group loses control of its subsidiary, it accounts for all amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary on the same
basis as would be required if it had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

List of subsidiavics in the consolidated financial statcments

The subskitanes included m the consclidaled fmancial statements were as follows:

‘The subsidiarics included in the consalidated financial statements were as follows:

Sharehaolding
December 31, Decentber 31,
Name of Inveslor Mane of subajdiary Principal aclivity 2421 2020 Npie
The Coimpany and GLOBAL TNTELUIGENCE NETWORK Trading in hardwars snd 7943 % 943 %
EFIC CT.OUD COLTTR GLUBAL INTELLIGENCE  software tor nerwark angd
METWORK) comminications systems
The Company EPIC CLGUD C&, LTD.(EPIC Data suflware srd duta 100,60 % 95.00 % (Mot 1)
CLQUD: processing servives
The Company WEQ TREND TRECH CORPORATION  Talecammiinications - %a 100,00 % Note 2)
(MEC TRENIT TECH) engineering

(Continued)



SYSAGE TECIINOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements

Shareholding
December 31, December 31,

Num of investoy Name of subsidiary Prinecipal aclivity 2921 2020 Deole
The Company and TPAWNTNG TRCHNOLOGY Trading il hacdware ancd - k) 44,43 % (Note )
GLLORAL MWETWORK C0., LTIUDAWNING software tor network
LNTELLEGENCE THECHNOLOGY) Systems
NETWORK
The Compny COREX (FTY) LTD [COREX) Sale, impor and oxporl of 10000 % - % (Now3d)

eleciromie producls
The Company ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL.  Implemeanting services of 3409 % - Y5 tMote 4)
CORP. (ADVANCEDTEK applicalion sollwire
INTERNATIONALY
The Company and BTATING COMPANY (STATING) Market research servive, SNl % - % (Mote 5)
EPIC CLOUD marketing consulting, and
big data znd cloud
database, ete.
ADVANCEDTEK APEO [Tumam Capilal 3ervices Coip. Applications 100,60 % - % {Nole 4)
INTERNATIONAL  (APEO Human Capilal} implemenling sgevics
STATING DK ABig Cu,, Ltd_ (DK ABig) Markel wesearch service, 100.60 % . % (Mol &)

marksting congulling, and
big data and clond
database, efe.

Note 1:For the changes in the Group” s percentage of owmership in KPIC CLOUD
INFORMATION INTEGRATION, please refar to Note 6(h).

Note 2:For the changes in the Group™s percentage of ownership in NECQ TREND TECH and
DAWNING TRCHNOLOGY, please refer to Note §(i).

Note 3:0n January 4, 2021, the Group had fully acquired COREX from Parent Tech by cash
and obtained controt over CORBEX, ‘This transaction is an organizational reorganization
under common control, adopted the book value method and regarded as a combination
from beginning. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2020 have been restated for comparison with the financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

Note 4:The Group holds 34.09% of the vofing shares of ADVANCEDIEK
INTERNATIONAL. In January 2021, the Group obtained letters of support signed by
original sharcholders representing 20.36% of the company’s sharchelding, making the
(roup have control over ADVANCEIDTER INTERNATIONAL; and the group
obtained more than half of the total number of dircctors of the Beard in May 2021,
Please refer to Note 3,

Note 5:In February 2021, the Group aequired 35.01% of voting shares of STATINC and
ownocd morc than half of the total number of directors; thereforc, it is delormined that
the Group has control over STATINC. Pleasc refer to Note 3.

Note 6:DKABio was established by STATINC in May 2021.

(Continued)

112



(d)

(e)

SYSAGE TECIINOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements

Foreign currency transaciions and operations

(i)

{3)

Foreign cutiency transactions

Transactions in forsign currencies are translated nic the respective functional currencies of the
Group entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
subsequent reporting period (*the reporting date”) monetary items denominated in foreign
cutrencies are translated into the functional currencies using the exchange rate at that date.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign correncics that arc mcasured at fair value are
translated into the fanctional currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair valoe
was determined. Non-maonctary items denominated in forcign currencics measured based on
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transaction,

T'oreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwitl and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into the presentation cutrency at the exchange rates at the
reporting date. The income and cxpenscs of forcign operations arc translated into the
presentation ewrrency at the average exchange rate, Exchange differcnoes ats recognized in
other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence, or joint
cantrol is lnst, the camulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation
is raclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on digposal. When the Group disposes
of only part of it ntcrest in a subsidiary that includos a foreign operation while retaining
control, the relevant proportion of the cummlative amount 35 reativibuted to non~controlling
interests. When the Group disposes of only part of its investment in an associatc or joint
voenture that includes a forcign oporation while retaining significant influcnee or joint control,
the relevant proportion of the cnmulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss,

When ihe setilement of 2 monetary reesivable from or payable o a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely {0 occur in the {oreseeable fulure, Exchange dilferences arismg from soch a
monetary item that are considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(llassification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An assel is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

{1)

{ii)
(iii)
{iv)

I expeets to realize fhe assot, or intends te scll of consume it. i its noral operating cycle;
11 1s held primarily for the purposs of trading;
It is expected to be realized within twelve months aficr the reporting date; or

The asset is cash and cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

{Continued)
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SYSAGE TECIINOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
clagsified as non-cuirent.

{i) Itis cxpoeted to bo seitfed in its normal operating cyele;
{it) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(it} Ttis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting dats; ot

(W) The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer selllement of the Hability Lor at least
{welve months afler the reporting period. Terms of a habality that could, al the option of the
counlerparly, result in ils setllement by issuing equily instrumenis do not alfeot ils
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits. Cash equivalents comprise short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into lmown amount of cash and are subject to an
ingighificant risk of changes in their fair value. 1'tme deposits which meet the above definition and
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes should be recognized as cagh cquivalents,

Tinancial assets

Agcounts reccivables issued are dnitially recognized when thay are originated. All other financial
assats and fimancial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group bocomes e party to the
contractual provisions of the mstrument. A financial asset (unless 15 3 trade reecivable without a
significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value, plus, for an
item not at fair vahie through profit or loss (“FV1TPL™), transaction costs that are dircctly attributable
to its acquisition or isspe. An account teceivable without a significant financing component is
initiallty measurcd at the transaction price.

(i) Financial assets

All regular way purchascs or sales of financial assetg are recognized derccognized on a trade
datc and seitls date basis,

On milial recognilion, a financial assel 1s classificd as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 1o their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing financial agsets. in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.
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Financial assets measured at amorlized cost

A financial assct is measurad at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as mcasured at fair value through profit or loss:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

© ifs contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and intercst on the principal amount cutstanding.

A financial assel measured al amorlized cosl is inilially recognived si fair value,
plus/minus the comulative amortization wsing the effective interest method, and adjusted
for any loss allowance. Interest income. foreign exchange gams and losses, and
impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derscognition is
recagnized in profit or loss.

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss

AN financial assets not classified as amortized cost or fair value through other
comprebengive incoms (*° FVOCT™ ) deseribed as above ate measwred at FVTPL,
inctuding derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Groop may irrcvecably
designate a financial assct, which meete the requirements to be meagured at amortized
cost or at FVOCT, as at FVTPL i doing so climinates or significantly reduces an
aceounting mismatch that would otherwise atise. These asyots are subscquently measured
at fair value.

Net gains and losses, including any dividend and inlerest income, are recognized in prafit
or loss.

Impairment of financial asscts

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECL™) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, notes and
accounts receivable, other receivables, guarantee deposits and other financial assets),

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to hfctime ECL, except for the
following which are measured as 12-month ECL:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debl secunlies ard bunk balances [or which credit nsk (1e. the risk of delsull
oceurring over lhe expecled life of the financial nstrument) has nol mereased
significantly since mitial recognition.

Losi allowance for accounts receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECI..

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected
lift ol a financial instrument.
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12-month ECL. are the porlion of ECL that result from defaull events Lhat are possible
within the 12-month after the reporting date (or a shotter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maxitnum peried considered when cstimating ECLL is the maximum contraciual
petiod aver which fhe Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a finaneial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasenable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
inctudes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group™s
historicat exporicnee and informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking
information.

The Group ussumes that the credit risk on a {fmanctal asset has increaged significantly
onee 11 1s past due.

The Group considers a financial assct to be in defanlt when the financial assct is more
than 120 days past due or the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group
in full.

ECL are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected [ife of financial
assets. Credit losses are measured as the present value of afl cash shorifalls (ie. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group in acoordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects o roceive). HCL arc discounted at the offective
interest rate of the financial asset,

Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assels carried at amorbzed
cosl are credit-impaired. A [inancial assel is credit-impaired when one or more evenls
that have a delrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred. Evidence thal a [inancial asset is eredit-tmpaired includes the following
ubservable data:

- significant financial difficalty of the borrower or issucr
a breach of contract such as a defaull or bemng more than 120 days past due,

- the Tender of the borrower, for sconomic or contractual rcasons rclating to the
hotrower’s financial difficalty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lentder would not otherwise consider;

il 18 becoming probable thatl the borrower will enler bankruptey or other fmancial
reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial assct becausc of finaneial
ditficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted trom the
gross carrying amount of the assets.
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The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written ofl’ when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
‘The Group individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of
wtite-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group
expects no significant recavery from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with
the Group™s procedurcs for recovery of amounts due.

Derecogmition of financial assets

The Group derceognizes a fimancial assot when the contractual rights to the casl flows
from the financial assct expire, or it transfors the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial aspet are transforred or in which the Group neither transfers por rotaings
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain comtrol of
the fimancial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement
of balance shest but retains either all or substantialty all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Finaneial Babilitics and equity instruments

1)

2)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt or equity mstruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities or
equily in accordance with the substance of the contractual agresment and the definitions
of a financial Kabilily and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An cquity instrament s any contract that avidences a residual interest in the assety of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recognized at the
anount of consideration received less the dirget issuing cost,

Financial liabilities

Financial lisbilities are classified as measured al amortized cosi or TVTPL. A fimmcial
Lability 15 classilied as ol FVTPL if it 1s hekl for trading, it 1s a derivative, or it 1=
designated ay such on mitlial recognition. Finaneial abilities al FVTPL are measured at
[air value and nel gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recopmized m
profit or Luss.

Other finaneial liabilitics arc subscequently measurcd at amostized cost using the effective
interest method. Intercst expensc and foreign exchange gains and losses arc recognized in
profit or loss. Any pain or loss on detecognition is alse recognized 1 profit or loss,
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4)  Derecognition of financial habiities

The Group derscognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligation has been
discharged, cancelled or expired. The Group also derccognizes a financial liability when
its torms are modified and the cash flows of the modified lability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liabifity based on the modified terms 8
recognized at fair valus.

The difference hotween the carrying amount of a financial liability dorecognized and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transforred or liabilitics assumed) is
recagnizcd in profit or toss.

3 QOffseiting of finaneial assels amd linbilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of halance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforeeable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to setfle them on 2 net hasis
or to realize the assct and settle the Hability simultancounsly,

(iii) Detivative financial nstruments

Derivatives held for hedging risk exposure to anvency and interest rate are initially measured
at fair value, Subsequent to initial reeognition, dertvatives are measted at fair value, and
changes thorein are recogmized in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value, The costs of inventories
weighted-average principle include expenditure incurred in acquuring the inventories and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their prezent location and condition.

Net realizable vaiue is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less. the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classificd as held for sale

Non-curren{ assels or dispesal groups comprising assets and habililies that are expected 1o be
recovered primarily Lhrobgh a sale iransaction, rather than through conlinuing use, are reclassified as
non-current assels held for sale. Immedialely beflore the milial classification of the non-current agsels
or disposal groups as held fer sale, the carrying amount of the assets (or all the assets and liabilities
in the group) is measured in accordance with the Group’s applicable accounting policies, Thereafter,
the assets or disposal groups are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Onee classificd as beld for sake, intangible assets and property, plant and eyurpment, are no Ienger
amortized or depreciated and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equily accounted.
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Investment in associates

Asgociates are those entities in which the Group has significant influcnce, but not control, over their
financial and operating policics.

Investments ih associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in
argociates includes goodwilt arising from the acquisition, less, any acoumulated impairment losses.

‘The consolidated financial reports include the Group® s sharc of the profit or loss and othor

comptehensive moome of those associates, after adjustments to align their accounting polictes with
those of the Group [rom the dale on which significant influence commences until the daie on which
sigmificant influence ceases. When ap assovials’s equily changes due to reasons other than profit and
loss or comprehensive income, which did nol tesull in changes of the Group’ s shareholding
percenlage in the associale, the Group recognizes equily changes attributable 1o the Group by ils
sharcholding percentage as capital surplus.

Unrealized gains and losscs resulting from transactions between the Group and an associate are
recognized onty to the extent of unrelated party s interosts in the associate.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equal or exceed its interest in an associate, it
discontinues recoghizing its share of further losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero.
additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, anly to the extent that the Group has
incurred lagal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

When the Group subscribes to additional shares in an associate at a percentape different trom its
existing ownership percenlage, the resulling carrying amount of the investment will differ from the
amount of the Group’s proporlionale mterest m the net assets of the associate. The Group records
such 5 difference as an adjustment to mvestments, with the corresponding amount charged or
credited to capital surplus. The aforesaid adjustment should first be adjusted under capital surplus. I€
the capital surplus resulting from changes in ownership interest s not sullicient, the remaining
difference 18 debited to retained carnings. If the Group’s ownership inferest is reduced due 1o the
additional subscription to the shares of the associate by other investors, the proportionate amount of
the gains of losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
will be reclassified to profit or loss on the same basis as would he required i the associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities,

Investment property

Investmeni properly is the property held sither to sam rental ingome or for capilal appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business use in the production ot supply of goods or
services or for admimstrative purpeses. Investment property i8 measured at cest om initial
recognition, and subsequently at cost, less acoumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmerit
lnsses. Depreciation expense is caleulated based on the depreciation method, usefal lives, and
renidual value which are the same as those adopted for property, plant, and equipment,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an invesimenl propeity (caleulated as the dilference belween the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount) is recognized ih profit or loss.
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Rental incoms from mvestment property 1% recognized as olher revenue on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recopnized as an integral part of the total rental
inconie, over the term of the leasa.

Property, plant and equipment

i)

{ii)

(iif)

{1v)

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant, and equipment arc measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing cost, less aceummlated depreciation and any aceumulated impairment losscs.

Il sigmilicant parls of an ilem of properly, plant and equipment have dilferent useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on dispusal of an ilem of properly, planl and equipment is recognized in profit
or luss.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent cxpenditure is capitalized only when it 45 probable that the future economic
benefity associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of assets less their residual values and is recopnized in
profit or loss on a straighl-line basis over the eslimaled vselul lives of each componenl of an
Hem of property, plant, and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful Tives for the current and comparative years of significant ttems of
property, plant, and equipment are as follows:

1)  Baildings and improvements: 50 years
2)  Office and other cquipntent: 2 to 10 years

Depreciation methods, uselil lives and residual values are reviewed at each annval reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate.

Reclassification 10 mvestment property

'The property is reclassified to investment property at its carrying amount when the use of the
praperty changes from owner-ocenpied to investment property.
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(m) Lenses

At inception of a contract, the (roup assesscs whether a contract is, or contains, a leage. A contract
is, or containg, a lease if the contract canveys the right to control the use of an identificd assct for a
period of titmc in oxchangs for congidoration.

(i)

As a leases

The Group recognizes a vight~of-use asset and a tease Lability at the lease sommencement date.
The right-of-use assct is initially measured at cost, which compriscs the initial amount of the
Iease lability adjusted for any lease payments made at or befeore the conmnencement date, plus
any initial direel costs ineurred and an estimaie of costs o dismanlle and remove the
underlying assel or to restore the underlying assel or the site on which it 15 located, less any
lease incentives reecived,

‘The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the nsaful life of the right-of-use asset or the
cnd of the lease temi. In addition, the right-of-use assct is periodically reduced by impairment
Josses, if any, and adjusted for certain remcasurements of the Tease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date. ‘The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Giroup’s incremental
borrowing rate. (iencrally, the Group uscs its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease lability comprise the [ollowing:
—  fixed payments, including th-substance fixed payments;

variable leasc payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measurcd using the
index or rate &5 at the commencement daic;

—  amounts expected to he payable under a residnal value guarantes; and

payments or penaltics for purchase or termination optiens that are rcasonably certain to
be exercised.

The lease liability is subsequently measured al amertized cost using the effeclive mtercst
miethed. It is remeasured when:

—  there 15 a change in future Jense payments arsing from the change in an mdex or rale; or

—  there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residnal value guaraniee; nr

there is a change m the assessment of whether it will bave the option to cxercise a
purchase; or
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—  there 18 a change in ils assessment of whether 18 will exercise an exlension or lermination
option; or

there is any lease modification in lcase subject, scope of the Tcase, or nther terms.

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lcasc liability is rameasured to refleet the partial or full tetmination of the lease for
lease modifications that deecrease the scope of the lease, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
lo reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize the difference in profit or
loss any gain or loss relatmg to the partial or full {ermination of the lease.

‘The (roup presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of invesiment and lease
liahilities as a separate ling item respectively in the balance sheets,

The Group has elected not (o recognize nghl of use assets and lease liabilities for short lerm
leases of office equipment of low value assets, The Group recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a lcasor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it delermines al lease commencement whether each lease is a
finance lease or un operating lease. To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall
assgssment of whether the lease transfers Lo the lessce subslantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. Il this iy (he case, then the lease
is a finance lease; if not, then the lease is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease i for the major part of the
econemic life of the asgat.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lcasc and the
sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-leasc with reference to the
right-ol~use assel arising from the head lease, nol with relerence to the underlying assel. Il s
head lease is @ shorl-term lease o which the Group apphes the exemplion described above,
then il classifics the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-Tease components, the Group applies IFRS1S to
allocate the consideration in the contract.

For operating lease, Lhe Group recognizes renial income on a straighl-line basis over the lease
term.

‘The Group recognizes a finance lease teccivable at an amount equal to its ndt investment in the
lease. Initial direet costs, such as lossors to negotiate and arvange a lease, are included in the
measurcment of the net investment. The interest income is rocognized over the Tease torm
based on a pattorn reflecting a constant petiedic rate of return on the net investment in the
leage. The Group recognizes leasc payments received under operating leases as income on a
straiglt-tine basis over the lease term as patt of “other income™,
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Inlangmble asseta
(i} Recognition and measurement

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost, less accumulated
mmpairment losses.

Other intangible asscis, including customer relationships, patents and trademarks, that are
acuired by the Group and lhave finite nscful lives arc measured at cost less aconmulated
amortization and any accumulatod impairment losscs.

{(11) Subscquenl cxpenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalived only when it increases the fiture economic benefils
embodied in the specific assel Lo which it relales. All other expendilure, including expenditure
on tnternally generaled goodwill and brands, is recognized m profit or loss as meurred.

(iti) Amortization

Amortization is calculated over the eost of the asset, less ity rasidual value, and is recognized
in profit or loss on a straipht-line basis over the cstimated usctal lives of intangible asscts,
other than goodwill, from the dats that they are available for use.

The estimated uscful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:
1)  Trademarks and patents: 10years
2)  Cuostomer relationships and other: 3 to 10 years

Amortization methods, vseful lives and residual values are reviewed at each annual reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment of non-derivative financial assets

At cach reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication
of impaimaent. I any such indication exisis, then the asset’ s tecoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill 1s lested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing nse that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cagh-generating units (CGUs). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to C(7ls
or groups of C(GUs that are expected to benefit from the synergics of the combination.

‘The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less

costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valoe of
moneay and the risks specific to the asset or C(3LIL
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An impairment loss is recognized if Ihe carying amount of an assel or CGU exceeds ils recoverable
amount. Impaimment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are aliocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGL!, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets m the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of gondwill is not rovarsed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exeecd the cattying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

Revenuc from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured basing on the consideration 0 whick the Group expects  be entitled in
exchange for transferring proods or services 1o a cuslomer. The Group recognizes revenus when it
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a cusiomer. The
lollowing 18 a descriplion of the Group’™s major revenucs:

(i)  8ale of goods

Revenue is recognized when the control over a product has been transferred to the custorner.
When the produets are delivered o the customer, the customer has full diseretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that conld affect
the customer” s acceptance of the products. Delivery ocours when the prodnets have been
shipped 1o the specific location, the rigks of obaolescence and Joss have begn transferred to the
customer, and cither the customar has aceopted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for aceeptance have been satistied.

A receivable 15 recogmized when the goods are delivered as this is the poinl in time that the
Group has a night to an amount of consideration that 18 unconditional. Advance sales receipts
are recognized as conlract liabalities and are transferred to revenus upon the dehivery of goods.

(it) Services

The Group provides inslallation and mainlenance services on hardware and sofiware. The
reeogmlion of the revenue generated was based on the progress lowards completing the
transaclion recognized by Lhe two parties as of the reporting date.

The Group prevides services, such as information system management, desipn, introdnction,
application customization and so forth to customers. The customer simultancously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s petformance as the Group performs. Revenue
from providing services is recognized when services are rendored.
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{i1) Markel rescarch and survey services

(iv)

The Group provides services, such ay market rescarch and opimion survey, Rovenuc was
recognized when the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligations.

Estimates of revenues, costs, or extent of progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumatances that give rise to the revision
become known by the management.

In case of fixed-price contracts, the customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment
schedule. I the services tendered by the Group exceed the paymenl, a coniract assel is
reeognized. IF the paymenls excesd 1he services rendered. a contract Lability is recognized.

Financing components

The Group does nol expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As
a consequence, the Group does nol adjust any of the ransaclion prices [or the time value of
meney.

{q} Employce benefits

{1)

(11)

Defined coniribulion plans

(bligations for contributions to defined contribution penzion plans arc recogmized as an
ctoployee benefit expensc in profit or loss in the petiods during which serviees ate rendered by
amployeces.

Defined benefit plans

'The Group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benetit plans is caloulated scparately for
cach the plan by cstimating the amount of future benefit that employecs have carned in the
current and prior perieds, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets.

The caleatation of defined benefit obligations is performed annoally by a qualified actuary
using 1he projecled umt credil method. When the calculation resulte in a potential assel for the
Group, the recognized assel is limiled to the present valug of economic benefils available in the
form of any future refonds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To
caleulate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
minimum funding requirsments,

Remeasurements of the nel defined benefit hability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the retum on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effvcl of the asset caling (i any,
excluding interest), are recogneed immediately m olher comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings within equity. The Group determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate
uszd to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginhing of the annual period to the
then-net defined benefit liability (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined bencfit plans are recognized in profit or loss.
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When ihe benelits of a plan are changed or when a plan 13 curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service cost or the gain or loss on curtailment is recopnized
immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlement ocours.

(iil) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term emplovee benefit obligations are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recagnized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a resuft of past service provided by the empleyce
and the ohligation can be estimated reliably.

Income laxes

Income taxes include both current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations, ar recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all cmrrent and
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss,

Currenl laxes comprise the expecled lax payables or receivables on the laxable profils (losses) for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payables or receivables are measured vsing tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income taxes are recognized in respect of temporary ditfercnces botween the carrying
amounty of asscts and Iiabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tases are not recognized for the fellowing exceptions:

(i) temporary differences on the inilial recognition of assets and labilities in a transaction thal is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits (losses) at
the time of the transaction,

(i) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiarics, associates and joint arrangoments
to the cxtent that the Group is able to control the timing of the roversal of the temposary
differences and it is probable that they will pot reverse in the foresecable future; and

(it} taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of gondwill.

Drelerred tax assels are recognized for the carry [orward of unused tax losses, unused tax credils, and
deductible temporary differences to the exient that il 1s probable thel fulure taxable profits will be
available agains! which they can be utilized. Delerred tax assets are reviewed al each reporting date
and are reduced to the exient thal it 15 no longer probable that the related lax benefits will be
realized; such reduction are reversed when lhe probabilily of [ulure taxable profits improves,

Deferred taxes arc moasurcd at tax rates that arc expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantivelv enacted on the reporting date.
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Delerred tax assels and liabilitics may be oifsel against cach other if the following crileria are met:

(i} the Group has a legally enforecable right to set off curtent fax assets against current tax
Habilities; and

{it) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

1) the same taxable entity; or

2y dullerend taxable entities which intend either Lo settle current lax habilitics and assets on
anet basis, or lo realize the assels and selile the liabilities simultaneously, in sach [uture
period in which significant amcounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Business combination

The Group accounts for business combinations nsing the acquisition method. The goodwill arising
from an acquisition is measured a& the excess of (i) the congideration transferred (which ia generally
measured at fair value} and (i) the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree, hoth over the
identifiable net asscts scquired at the acquisition date. If the amount calculated above is a deficit
balance, the Group recognized that amount ag a gain on a bargain purchasc in profit or loss
immediately aftor reassessing whether it has correctly identified all of the assots acquired and all of
the Habilitics assumed.

All acquisilion-related lrangaction costs incurred are expensed as ineurred, except for the issuance of
debl or cquily mstrements,

For each business combination, the Group measures any non-controlling equity interest in the
acquitee sither at fair value or at the non-contiolling interest’s proportionats share of the acquiree™s
wdentifiable not assets, if the non-controlling interests arc prescnt ownarship interests and entitle their
holders to a propoitiemate share of the acquire™s net assets in the event of liquidation. Other
components of non-controlling interest are measured at fhciy acquisition date fair values, unless
anothet measurement basis is required by IFRSs endorsed by FSC,

‘The Group recognizes the acquisition-date fair value of the contingent congideration as part of the
consideration transferred. The cost of the acquisition and measuring goedwill will retrospectivaty be
adjusted when some changes in the fair value of contingent consideration that the Group recognizes
have been made after the acquisition datc, Measurement paoriod adjustments is fhe result of
additional information that the Group obtained afier that date about facts and circumstances that
existed at fhe acquisition date. The measurement period will pot execed one yoar from the
acyuisition date. The Group accounts for the changes in the fair value of confingent consideration
that are not measurement period adjusiments based on (he elassification of contingent consideration.
Contmgenl consideration classified as equily shall not be remeasured and its subsequent settlement
will be accounted for within equily. Others will be measored al fair value al cach reporling date and
changes n fair value will be recounized in prefit or loss.
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() Lamings per share

The Group discloscs the Company™s basic and diluted camings per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders. The cateulation of basic earnings per share 18 basic on the profit attributabie to
ordinary sharcholders of the Company divided by the weighted-avarage number of ordinary shares
outstanding. The caleulation of dituted camings per share is basic on the profit atiributable to
ordinary sharcholders of the Company divided by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Dilutive
polential ordinary shares comprise accrued employee remuneration.

(u} (perating segments

An operating segment is a component of he Group thal engages in business aclivities from which
may wam revenuer and incur expenses (inclading revenues and expenses relating to ransactions with
other components of the Group). The operating resulls of all operating segmenls are regularly
reviewed by The Group’s chiel operaling decision maker lo make deasions aboul resources to be
altocated to the segment and assess its performance. Each operating segment has ils financial
information.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and majar sources of estimation uncertainty:

'The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Regulations and the IFRSs
endorsed by the FSC requires management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the
application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses.
Actuat results may differ from thesc cstitates.

Manapgement conlinues to monilor the aceounling eslimates and agsumptions. Any chinges in accounling
estimales are recopnized during the period and the impacl of those changes 1n accounting estimates are
recognized in the [ollowmg period.

Information about judgments made in applying accomnting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the consnlidated financial statements is as follows:

Jodgment of whether the Group has substantive control over its investees

(a) The Group holds 34.09% of the voting shares and it the sole largest shareholder of
ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL. In January 2021, the Group obtained letters of support
signed by original sharcholders representing 20 36% of the company s shareholding, promising and
suppurting the Group to direct the company’s signilicant operaling activities and oblain more than
half of the total number of directors of the Board. After evaluation, the Group has substantive
control over ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL and tndirectly contrel over its subsidiary, APEQ
Human Capital. Therefors, ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL and s subsidiary have been
incladed in the Gronp's consolidated financial statements.

(b} The Group holds 35.01% of the voting shares and is the sole largest shareholder of STATINC.
Although the Group did not vwn more than hall of the voting righis of the company. the Group owns
more thin half of their Wlal number of directors of the Boarnd; therefore, it 1s delermined that the
Group has substantive conlrol over the entily. Ience, the company has been included in the Group™s
consolidated [mancial statements.
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(2) As the single largest shareholder, the Group holds 38.01% of the voting shares of UNISAGE
DIGITAL CO., LTD. (“UNISAGE™). Although the remaimng 61.99% shares of UNISAGL are not
concentrated n specific sharcholders, the Group still cannol obiain neither more than hall of he
Board of direclory of UNISAGE, nor more than half’ of the votmg nghts in the sharcholders’
meeling. Therefore, i is delermined that the Group would hiave a sigmficant impact on UNISAGE.

(d} As the single largest shareholder, the Group helds 21.84% of the voting shares of GRANDSYS INC.
(“GRANIISYS™). Although the remaining 78.16% shares of GRANDEYS are not concentrated in
specific shareholders, the Group still earmot obtain neither mors than half the Board of directors of
GRANIDSEYS, nor more than half of the voting rights in the sharcholders™ meeting, Thercforg, it is
determined that the Group would have a gignificant impact on GRANDSYS,

(&) {As the single larpest sharcholder, the Group holds 19.53% of the voting shares of DYNASAFFE
TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (“ DYNASAFE” ). Although the remaining 80.47% shares of DYNASAFE
are coneenirated within specilic sharcholders, the Group siill cannot oblain more than half of the
Buard of directors of DYNASAFE. Thercfore, i 15 determined that the Group would not have «
significant impact on DYNASAFE.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significani rigk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year is as
follows:

(2) Valuation of inventorics

As invontorics arc measured st the lower of cost or net realizable valus, the Group estimates the not
tcalizable value of inventories for normal loss, obsolcseence and unmarkctable items at the end of
the reporting peried and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The net
realizable value of the inventory fs mainly based on assumptions as to fiuture demand within a
specific time horizon. Due to the rapid industrial transformation, there may be significant changes in
the net realizable value of inventorics. Please refer to note 6{e) for the valuation ef inventories.

(b) Impaiment of goodwill

The assessment of impairment of goodwill requires the Group to make subjective judgments to
identify CGU, allocate the goodwill o relevant CGU, and estimate the recoverable amount of
tolevant CGUJ. Any changes in these estimates base on changed cconomic conditions or business
stratcgics could result in significant adjustments.

Valuation process

The Group’s accounting policies amd disclosure tnclude measuring financial and non financial assets and
liabilities al fair value through profil or loss. The Group’s financial mstrument valuation group conducts
mdependent vertfication on farr value by using dala sources that are mdependenl. rehiable, and
representalive of exercise prices, This financial instrumeni valvation also periodically adjusts valualion
models, conducts back lesting, renews inpul data for valuation models., and makes all other necessary [air
value adjustments 1o assure the rationality of fair value,
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The Group strives io use market vbssrvable inpuls when measuring assels and liabihligs. Difforent levels
of the fair value hierarchy to be used in determining the fair vatue of financial instruments ars as follows:

- Level 1:quotcd prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identificd asscis or liabilities.

+ Lavel 2:inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices} or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Lavel 3anput for the asset or hiability 15 not based on the observable market information,

For any fransfer within the (air value hierarchy. the impact of the transfer is recognized on the reporiing

date.
(6) Explanaiion of significant accounts:

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Decem ber 31, Decem ber 31,
2021 2020
Cash on hand and petty cash 5 442 283
Check and demand deposils 650,139 761,432
$ 650,581 761,715
(b} Tmancial assets and habihiies al fair value through profif or loss
(1) Details are yet out m the following table:
December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Finane<ial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Cugrent:
Open-end funds 8 - 177.017
Pre-purchased foreign currency forward
contracts 243 101
Non-current:
Foreign and domestic unlisted stocks 240,694 157,694
Domestic unlisted equitics 97.602 -
Total 3 338,539 334,812
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December 31, December 31,
2021 2020

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss:

Current:

Pre-purchased foreign currency furward
contracts $ (2,286) (635)

Contingent considerations arising from business
combinations {5.236) (2,395)

MNon-current:

Contingent considerations arising from business
combinations (97.986) (78.836)

Total 5 (105.508) (%1.886)

The above contingenl considerations ansing [rom business combinalions were generated from
the merger of COREX, the Pariner Tech’s sale and purchase agreement and the related
accessory contracts from ihe prior year, and the merger of STATINC. Under the contingent
consideralion arrangemenl, the contingent consideration was estimaled by the disceunted cash
flow method based on the future profitability of each subsidiary.

(1) The Group acguired 18.89% of cquity interest in GRANDSYS, an unlisted company, ata prics
totaling $74,58() thousand in May 2020, resulting in significant impact on GRANDSYS, which
was transferred to investment under the equity method. Please sce Note 6(f) for informatien on
the equity interest transaction.

(i) Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge assets or Habilities denominaled in loreigm
curreneies for risks arising from exchange mate {luctuations, The following lable sels out the
Group' s derivalives recogmized as held-for-trading financial assels amd liabilities 1o which
hedging accounting was not applicable:

December 31, 2021
Nominul Maturity Pre-agreed
Financial inslruments amounts period exchange rate
Pre-purchased foreign currency
forward contracts
USD14,240 2022.01.01~  27.692~27.895
Buy USD/Sell NTD
vy USDASell thousand 2022,03.01
Buy USD/Sell ZAR USD 1,850 2022.01.20-  15.951-15.966
thousand 20220131
Buy NTD/Sell CNY RMI3 1,000 202203.31~ 4.296

thousand 2022.04.15
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December 31, 2020

Nominal Maturity Pre-agreed
Financial instruments amounts period exchange rate
Pre-purchased foraign currency
forward contracts

Bll}' U SD)"SCH N1D 1131)22, 818 2021.01.04- 28.096-28.655
thousand 2021.03.25

Buy USI)/Sell ZAR US11,500 2021.01.29 14.9310)
thousand

(¢) Notes and acopunts recetvable (including long-term and related partics)

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
MNoles recervable (including long-term) % 290082 187,429
Accounts receivable (including long-term) 2,502,216 1,877,636
Accounts reweivable due [rom related partics 135,226 10,903
Less: loss allowance {2784 (47.33%)
Total % 2.908.680 2,028,635
Clrreni b 2874415 2,004,474
Non-currenl 34.265 24.161
Total 5 2.908.680 2028635
(1) As of Decamber 31, 2021 amd 2020 the Grouvp provide notes and accounts receivable

{i1)

(including long-term and related parties) pledged as collaleral for the short-lerm borrowings;
please refer o Nols 8. The above-mentioned notes and accounts recetvable, whose maturity
period were less than one year. were not discounted and their carrying amounts were presumed
to approximate their fair value.

Non-curgent notes receivable mainly arose from installment sales.
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{iti) The Group applies the simplilied approach o provide for its LCL, the use of lifetime ECL

provision for all notes and accounts receivables (inchuding long-term and related parties). Te
measure the ECL, notes and accounts receivable have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and customer’™s ability to pay all the amounts due baged an the terms of the
contract as well as incorporated forward-looking information. "Lhe analysis of ECL on notes
and accounts rcoeivable was as follows:

Curtent

1 to 30} days past due

3110 60 days past due

61 Lo 90 days past due

91 to 120 days past due
More than 121 days past dus

Currenl

1 to 30 days past due

31 to 60 days past due

61 to N days past duc

91 to 120 days pagt duz
More than 121 days past due

December 31, 2021

Gross carry Loss allowance
amount of Weighted- for lifetime

accounts and average loss  expected credit

notes receivable rate logses

5 2,812,725 0.11% 3,229

58,061 1.97% 1,141

19,656 9.37%, 1,842

2316 15.82% 398

2,889 49.84% 1.440

40,677 A8%.66% 19.794

3 2,936,524 27,844

December 31, 2020

Giross carry Loss allowance
amount of Weighted- for lifetime
accounts and average loss  expected credit
notes receivable rate losses

$ 1,937,264 0.11% 2,105
46206 1.17% 342

25,290 9.34% 2412

20,099 19.57% 3,533

17,492 49 989 8,742

29.617 99,949, 20,599

3 2,075,968 47,333
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{iv) The movements in the loss allowance [or noles and accounts receivable (including long-term

and related parties) were as follows:

For the years ended 1)ecem her 31

2021 2020

Beginning balance 8 47333 53 520
Acquisilion 162 -
Irmpairment losses {roversal of impairment Toss) (13,378) 11,173
Transferred {o olher recetvables (5,815) (15.953)
Reclassified to disposal group Tield for sale - (871)
Effects of exchange rate changes {458) (534)
Ending balance 5 27,844 47,333

Other recervables

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Other recervables % 21,463 18,406
Ltss: loss allowance {19.641) (16,927
$ 1,822 1479

{3}

{ii}

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there was no other receivables thal was past dug bul not
impatred.

The movements in the loss allowance for nther receivahles were as follows;

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Begming balanee 5 16.927 9,349
Write-offs of uncollectible amount for the period (3,101 (8,577)
Transferred [rom accounts receivahle 3815 15,955
Ending balance 5 19,641 16,927
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Inventories
Decem ber 31, December 31,
2021 20240
Merchandise inventory b 2,858,625 3,014,963

During 2021 and 2{)20, fosses on inventories written down to net realizable value and recognized as
oporating costs amounted to $1.098 thousand and $63,877 thousand, respectively.

Investments aceounted [or using equily method

Investments accounied for using the equity method were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020

Assoclales L) 110,312 132 265

{1

(i)

Az of February 1, 20021, the Group acquired 500 thousand shares of Everlasting Digital ESG
Co., Ltd. (29.41% of ownership) by $5,000 thousand of cash. The price had been fully paid up.

In September and October 2020, the Group purchased 1,153 thousand shares of
ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL [fom (heir [ommer sharcholders at a price lotaling
$30,091 thousand, representing a percentage of ownership of 34.09%. Although the Group was
the largest sharcholder, it did not obtam more than half of the total number of dircetors of the
Board and more than half of the voting rights of the sharcholder meeting. The Group only had
significant influence over ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL and evalualed using the
equity method. In January 2021, the Group oblamned lefters of support signed by original
gharcholders representing 20.36% of the company’s ghareholding, promising and rupporting
fhe Group to direct the company s significant operating activities and obtain more than half of
the total number of directors of the Board. After evaluation, the Group has substantive control
over ADVANCEDTER. INTERNATIONAL. Therefors, il has been included in the Group™s
consalidaled financial stalements; ,and the Group obtaned more than hall of the total number
of direclors of the Buoard in May 2021; please refer to Note 6(g) for delails.
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{iti) The Group originally held 3.46% equity interest in GRANDSYS, which was accounted for
under non-current financial assels at For value through profit or loss, In May 2020, pursuani 1o
the resolution of the Board, the Group putchased 4,520 lhousand shares (18.8%% ownership)
from their former sharcholders, the {ransaction price lotaling $74,580 thousand, resulting in =
significant influenee on GRANDSYS. Consequently, the investment, as a whaole, was
transferred from non-current financial assets at fair value through profil or loss to invesiments
accounted for using equily melhod. In November and December 2020, the Group purchased
239 thousand shares of GRANDSYS (1.08% ownership) and 30 thousand shares (0.15%
ownership) at $4,138 thousand and $582 thousand, respeclively, resulting in a total percenlage
of ownership of 23.58%. The above transaction price has been fully paid up. In Decembor
2021, GRANDIYS issued 1213 thousand shares to be exercised a5 employce stock options,
resulting in the Group’s shareholding in GRANDSYS to decrease from 23.58% 1o 21.84%, and
the Group’s capital surplus Lo increase by 3158 thousand due W the change in equity.

(iv) Agpregate financial infornation of associates for wesing equity method that were not
mdividually material was summarized as follows. ‘The financial information was included in
the Group™s consnlidated financial statements.

For the years ended Decem ber 31

2021 2020
Atiribuiable to the Group:
Met Profil b 3,839 9,042
Other comprehensive meome 349 -
Total comprehensive income § 4,188 9,042

{v) As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, none of the investments accounled for using the equily
method was pledged as collateral, or otherwise subject o any resiriction,

(g} DBusiness combinations
(i) Acgusition of the subsidhary-COREX
1) Acquisition of consideration transterred of the subsidiary

On JTanuary 4, 2021, the Group acquired 100% ownership of COREX amounting
$£140,000 thousand from Partner Tech, and obtained control ever COREX, Tharefore,
COREX has been included tn the Group’s consolidated financial statement from January
4, 2021. COREX is primarily engaged in fhe sals of computer peripherals. The Group
aciuired CORIX for fts business and customers and expend its marketing channel
Alffrica.
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In addition, the equity sale and purchase agresment and the Parlner Tech’s sale and
purchase agreement, as well as the related accessory contracts from the prior year, were
as tollows:

a)  The sales unit of COREX, POS, merged with COREX due to business restructuring
in February 2019. It thc company makes a profit between June 1, 2018, and
Deecmber 31, 2022, the amount paid to sellers of POS shall be caleulated based on
profit afler tax for each year mulliplicd by 54% and exchanged af the fixed rate of
ZAR to NTD of 2.1108 in accordance with the agreement.

b)  If the company makes a profil between November 1, 2018 and December 31, 2023,
the amount paid to sellers shall be calculated based on profil befors tax for vach
year multiplied by 50% and exchanged at the fixed rate of ZAR to NTD of 2.1108
in accordance with the agreement. The limitation of accumulated profit before
income lax durming the period amounled o ZAR 240,000 thousand. If the
accumulated profil before mcome tax does not reach the limiled amount of ZAR
240,000 thousand, the Group shall decide whether to extend the period o
December 31, 2025. The above-meniioned profit belore income tax of each year 1s
not meluded profil before lax [rom POS sales ymil.

The above aprecment was revised in December 2021 as follows:

Il the company makes a profit between May 31, 2018 and December 31, 2023, the
amount paid in ZAR 1o aellers sach year shall be caleulated based on profit before tax for
offsetting the accumulated losses from prior years, multiplied by 50% in accordance with
the agresment. 'The limitation of accumulated profit before income tax during the pariod
amounted to ZAR 240,000 thousand. If the accumulated profit before income tax does
not reach the limited amount of ZAR 240,(00 thousand, hoth companies will extend the
period to Deccmber 31, 2025,

Under the contingent consideration arvangement, the Group estimated ithe contingent
consideralion based on discounted cash flow method. As of sequisition date, the lulure
polential amount of the conlmgenl payment that the Group has 10 pay amounted lo
$81.231 thousand, which i recorded ag current and non-current financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss.
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Ldentifiable nel assets acquired

The following table summarized the carrying amount of CORFEX’s wdentifiable asscts
acquircd and liabilities assumed recognized at January 4, 2021:
Cousideration transferred:
Cash 5 140,000
Fair value of contingent considerations transferred ¥1.231

Carrying amouats of identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents h 30,976
Currenl [inancial assets al fair valus through profil

or loss 101
Noles and aceounts receivable (including related

parlies) 74,041
Inventories 106,499
Prepayments 34,233
Other current assets 17,741
Properly, plant and equipment 4.027
Right-of-usc agscts 16.629
Intangiblc asscty 117,304
Other non-currenl assels 15,004
Short-term borrowitgs (84,759}
Contract liabilities (4,323)
Notes and accounts payable (22,376)
(ther payables (117,837
Current lease labilities (8.402)
Other current liabilities (2,584}
Non-current lcase lahilitics (11,384}
Other non-currenl liabilitics (1,252) 163.600

Capital serplus ) 57,631

The combination is an orgamzational reorganization under common control
Accordingly, the dillerence between the consideration paid and the camrying amount ol

the nel identifiable assots of COREX 15 debited to the capifal surplus of $57,631
thousand.
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Acquisilion of the subsidhary-STATINC

1)

2)

Acquisition of consideratien transferred of the subsidiary

On February 4, 2021, the Group ebtamed 251 thousand ordinary shares from onginal
shatcholders from STATINC for $10,013 thousand. Furthermore, the Group subscribed
1.504 thousand preferred shares of STATINGC for 560,010 thousand and oblained 35.01%
of votmg shares. The Group became the largesi sharcholder and had more than hall
directors of the Board: (herefore, the Group hius conirol over the company, and
STATINC has been included m the Group's consolidaled Gnancial stalement from the
acquisition date. STATINC is primarily provide services for enterprises such as market
research, markeling consalting, and cloud database of Big data. The Group aequired
STATINC for improving the software and hardware business of the Group and increase
the enterprise’s valie in finance and medical services.

In addition, according to the equity nvestment agrecment, the former preferrod stocks
shall not be allowed to participate i the diswibution of swples in the three years
preceding their holding and shall be forcibly converted into ordinary shares in proportion
to one share after three years of holding. Under the contingent consideration
arrangement, the Group eslimaied the contingent consideration based un discounted cash
flow method and the sharcholding ratio of 33.01%. As of zequisition datc, the future
potential amount of the contingent payment that the Group lhas to pay amounted to
$23,298 thousand, which is recorded as currenl and non-current fmancial liabililies at
fazr value through profil or loss.

Identifiable net assets acquired

The following table summarized the fair value of STATINCG' s identifiable asseis
acquired and liabiliics assumed recognized at February 4, 202]:

Consideration transferred:

Cash 3 0,023

Non-controlling intorests 81,123

Fair value of conlingent. considerations trans{emred 23,298
(Continued)
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Fuir value of identifisble asse(s and liabilities

assumed:

(ash and eash equivalenis $ 86,330

Current conlracl assels 13,972

Notes and accounts reecivable, net 9,717

Prepayments 2,199

Other currenl. assels 322

Property, plant and equipment 1,056

Right-of-use assets 1,675

Inlangible assets 35,216

Deferred incomie tax assets 1,849

Other non-cutrent aggets 7.747

Short-term bomowings {6,000}

Notes and accounts payahle {2,669}

Other payables (12.574)

Current lease hiabilitics (1,706)

Other cutrent liabilities (5.27%)

Other non-current liabilities (1,402) 130,457
Goodwill by 43,987
Intanpible assets

Intangible assets are customer telationships, trademarks, patents and others. These are
amortized on a straight-line bagis over the cstimated future econemic useful life of 5.9
yoars, 10 voars, 10 years, and 10 years, respectively:

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of STATINC is due Lo the conlrol premium, the
synergics of the combination, fulure market development and value of workforce, neither
of which qualifics as an identifiable mtangible assel. None of the geodwill recognized i1s
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

Pro-lorma mlormaton

From the acquisition date to December 31, 2021, STALINC had contributed the
operating revenue of $81,122 (housand and the net loss of $(4,113) thouwsand o the
Group” s operaling resull If this acquisition had oceurred on January 1, 2021, the
management estimates that consolidated operating revenue would have been $11,932,957

thousand, and nel profit would have been 5394,568 thousand for the year ended
Devember 31, 2021.

{Continued)
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(1) Acquisilion of the subsidiary- ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL and 1is subsidiarics

1)

2)

Acquigition of the subsidiary

The Group holds 34.09% ol the voling shares and s the largest sharcholder of
ADVANCEDTEK INTCRNATIONAL. In Janvary 2021, the Group oblaned letiers of
support signed by original shareholders representing 20.36% of the company’ s
sharcholding, promising and sspportimg the Group to dircet the company’s significand
operaling activilies and oblain more than hall of the lolal number of direclors of the
Board. The Group had comtrol over ADVANCEDTEE INTERNATIONAL and its
subsidiaries; therefore, they had been included in the Group’s consolidated fingncial
statements, In May 2021, the Group cbtaimed more than hall of the total number of
directors of the Board. ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL mainly provides
integrated service for domestic ERI* systems and related consulting services of Oracle.
‘The main activities included the sale consulting services of ERP and related systems. Lhe
Group e¢xpends its information-refated consultancy service for strategic investment,

Tdentifiable nel assets acquired

‘The following table summarized the fair wvalie of ADVANCRIYTEK
INTERNATTONAIL s identifiable asscts acquired and liabilitics assumed recognized at
January 4, 2021:
Cuonsideration transferred:
Fair value of pre-exisling interest in the acquires 3 32,120
Non-controlling interssis 38,578

Bair value of identifiable assets acquired and
linbilities zssumed recognized at the acquisition

date;

Cash and cash cquivalents $ 44,124

Notes and aceounts reccivable, net 46,556

Prepayments 11,155

Other current assets 691

Properly, plant and eyuipment 030

Right-ol-use assels 21,185

Intangibic assets 44

Other non-current assets 11,985

Contract liability (35,974}

Naotes and accounts payable (V.434)

Other payables (11,088)

Currenl lease liabilifies (5,423)

Nun-current. lease Habilities (15,884) 58.567
Goodwill b 12,131

(Continged)
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3)  Iniangible asscls

Goodwill arising from its prefitability, fulure market devclopment and value of
warkforee, neither of which qualifics as an identifiable intangible asset None of the
goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax purposcs.

1) Pro-forma information

From the acguisition date to December 31, 2021, ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL
had contributed the operating revenue of 208,157 thousand and the net protit of $18,647
thousand to the Group’s operating vesult.

Changes in ownership interest in a subsidiary

{1)

(ii)

{111}

On March 2, 2021, the Group subscribed 4,000 thowsand shares of EPIC CLOUD
INFORMATION INTEGRATION for $40,000 thousand. On March 29, 2021, the Group paid
%500 thousand for 50 thousand shares from the original sharcholders. Therefore, the Group’s
shareholding ratio increased to 100%, and capifal surplus decreased by $440 thousand dusg 10
changes in equty.

T November and Decomber 2020, the Group acquired a portion of sharcholdings in GLOBAL
INTELLIGENCE NETWORE, increasing ils percenlage of ownership in GLOBAL
INTELLIGENCE NETWORK from 62.12% to 79.43% and increasing the capital surplus by
$1,104 thousand as a result of the change in equity.

In December 2020, the Group acyuired a porlien of sharcholdimgs in EPIC CLOUD
INFORMATION INTEGRATION, increasing its percentage of ownership in EPIC CLOUD

INFORMATION INTEGRATION [rom 70.00% 10 95.00%, and decreasing the capital surplug
by $644 thousand as a reeylt of the change in cquity,

Loss contrel of subsidiarics

()

Disposal of subsidiary-NEO TREIND TECII

On February 26. 2021, the Group sold all shares of its subsidiary, NEO TREND TECH,
approved by the Chairman. The contract of purchase and sale of shares had been signed, and
disposal-related matters had been completed. ‘Therefore, the Group had lost control over the

company. The disposal price was 850,000 thousand, and the gain amownting lo $20,696
thousand was recorded as other gains and losses.

1) Consxleration received

Tatal consideration received ) 50,000
Expenditure associated with consideration

received {150}
Net consideration raceived s 49,850

{Continued)
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2)  Ldentifizble nel assels acquired of NEQ TREND TECIT

Cash and cash equavalents 5 3,604
Current finaneial assets at fair value through
profit ot loss 23017
Notes and accounts roceivable, net 29
Invenlories 30
Other curtent agschs 1221
Righi-ol-use asscts 20,809
Other non-current assets 1.837
Noles and accounts payabls {108}
Accrued expenses (3,860)
Current lease liabilities {4,065}
Non-cusrent lease liabilities (13.380)
$ 29154

Disposal of the subsidiary-DAWNING TECHNOLOGY

Cn November 5, 2020, the Company, pursuant to a resolution of the Board, approved a change
i Lthe sharcholding 1 its subsicliary, DAWNING TECHNOLOGY. Accordmgly, the assets and
habilities of DAWNING TECIINOLOGY were recogmzed as disposal groups classificd as
held [or sale. Please refer to Note 6(f) of the consulidated financial stalements [or the year
ended December 31, 2020, On Janvary 4, 2021, the Company sntered inte an agresment and
completed the sale of the shares; therelore, losing eontrol over DAWNING TECIINOLOGY.
The disposal price was $266,595 thousand, and the gain amounting 1o $84,2372 thousand was
recorded as other goins and losses; the details arc as follows:

1} Consideration received

Total consideration received $ 266,595
Lxpenditure associated with eomsideration

raceived (800)
Net consideration received 3 265,795

(Continued)
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Identifiable net assels of DAWNING TECIINOLOGY

Non-current assets held [or sule
(Cash and cash equivalents
Invenlories

Notes anil aceounts receivable, net
Prepayments

Other current assets

Properly, planl and equipment
Right-of-use zssets

Delerred income tax assels

Other non-current pssets

Liabilities directly associated with non-current
assets held for sale

Shori-term horrowings

Current financial Habilitics at fair value through
profit or loss

Contract Habilities

Notes and accounts payable

Other payables

Current and non-current lease liabilitics
Advance receipts

Other current liabilities

Other non-current liabilitios

Non-controlling micrests
Receivables between the Group

144

107,704
177,319
423,595
1,546
5,773
9,315
33,630
8683

3,044 770,609

(43.022)

{(330)
(3.050)
(230,008)
{(51,564)
(22.609)
(6,907
{582)
{135) (358.207)

412,402
(227.162)

(3.677)
8 181,563
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Property, plant and equipment
Information about the costs and accumulated depreciation of proporty, plant and equipment was
presented below:
Office and
Buildings and other
Land improvements  equipment Tuotal
Coxt:
Balance on Janwary 1, 2021 3 589,896 375,930 210,314 1,176,140
Acqu isiti_on through hisiness
combination - - 19,133 19,133
Addiriens - - 7.534 7.534
Misposal (2,350) {1,039y (57.56T) (61,156}
Translerred from ivenlones - - 15,712 15,712
Effcets of éxchange rate changes - - (3.058) (3.058)
Balance on December 31, 2021 B} 587346 374,891 192 068 1,154, 305
Balance on January 1, 2020 $ 599,659 379,906 223,097 1,202,662
Additions - - 3,566 3,506
Disposal . . (1,321 (11,3213
Transferred to investment property (9,763) (3,976} - (13,739)
Transferred to non-curnent assets held
for sale - - (13,579 (13,574
Transferred from mventories - - 11,541 11.541
Effects of exchenge rate changes - - {2995} {29954
Ralance on 1Jecember 31, 2020 b SK9.89G 375,930 210,314 1,176,140
Accumulated deprecialion:
Balance an January 1, 2021 b3 - 701,384 147,226 217,610
Acquisition through business
comibination - - 17.447 17,447
Depreciation - 7450 28,304 35.754
Disposal - (217} (56.996) (57.213)
Filfects of exchange rate chunges - - {(2.757) (2,75
Halance on Decem ber 31, 2021 % - 71617 133.224 210,541
(Continued)
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Transferred to mvestment property

Iranslermed 1o non-current. assels held

for sale

Tilfects of exchange mle changes

Ralunce on ecember 31, 2020

Carrying amount:

TDrecember 31, 2021

Trecember 31, 2020

January 1, 3020

Office and
Haildings and other
Land improvements  equipment Total
i - 63.618 135,028 198,646
- 1475 29,304 36,715
- - (10,860) {10,860)
- {709) - {709)
- - {4,259 {4.259)
- - (1.987) (1.957)
3 - 70384 147226 217,610
587346 297274 58,844 943 464
589.896 305546 63,088 058,530
b ] 599,659 316,288 88,069 1,004,016

(1) In Scptember 2021, the Group disposcd its real cstate of Kaohsiung Shi Zheng Zong Cai
Ruilding (including investment property) at the amount of $27,488 thousand (tax excluded),
which had been fully roceived, based on a tesolution approved duving the board meeting,
resulting in a gain on digposal of 10,123 thousand (inclading the deduction from nhecessary
expenses amounting to 51,082 thousand) te be recognized a5 gains on disposal of investment
property and property, plant and equipment.

(1} The Group identified its property. plant, and cquipment from the acquisition of
ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL and STATINC, respectively, in January and February
2021. Please tefer to Note 6{g) for details,

{ii)

for short-term and long-tert borrowings, ploase refer to Note 8.

146
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(k) TRight-ol-use assels

Information about the costs and accumulated depreciation of leascs for which the (iroup as a lesses
was presented below:

Buildings and
improvements Qthers Total
Cost:
Balsnce on January 1, 2021 $ 280,530 5475 286,355
Agquisition 34,920 - 34920
Additions 34109 1.461 35570
Nerecogmzed of the subsidiary (24,416} - (24,416)
Decreasze (30.178) (Y] (30,235
Elfects of exthange rate chungres {3,540 (FOR) {4,250}
Balance on December 31, 2021 L 291,773 6,167 297,940
Balanece on Jaruary 1, 2020 b 264,861 1,702 276,563
Additions 68,917 1,889 70,806
Decrease (11,024} {3.326) {14,350}
Translerred Lo non-current assets held for sale (40,507 - (40,5013
Effects of exchange rate changes (5.373) (790) (6,163)
Ralanee on December 31, 2020 ) 280,880 5,475 286,355
Accumulated deprecialion:
Belance on January 1, 2021 by 82,557 2,390 84,947
Acquisition 12,0650 - 12,060
Depreciationt 41,346 1,690 43,045
Nerecognized of the subsidiary (3,607 - {3.607)
Decroase (23,699) 61 (23,760)
Elfects of exchuange rate chungres {2 274) {397} (2.671)
Balance on December 31, 202 % 166,383 3.631 110014
Balance on January 1, 2020 5 61,571 2,287 63,853
Deprecialion 41 873 1,728 43,601
Decrease (11,024} {14100 (12,434}
Translerred Lo non-current assets held for sale (6.8717 - (68713
Effects of exchange rate changes. {2,992} (2100 (3,202)
Balance on December 31, 2020 $ 82,557 2.3%) 84,047

{Contimued)

147



SYSAGE TECIINOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements

Buildings and
improvements Others Totak
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2021 g 188,390 2,536 187.926
[Jecem ber 31, 2020 ¥ 198,323 3,085 201,408
January 1, 2020 -] 207,290 5420 212,710

(1) The Group identifted its right-of-use assets from the acquisition of ADVANCEDTEK
INTERNATIONAL and STATINCG, rospectively, in Jamuary and February, 2021 Please refar
1o Nole 6(yr) for details.

(i) The Group derccognized right-of-use asscts due to Jost control over WEQ TREND THCH in
Fobraary 2021. Ploase rofer to Note 6(1) tor details.

() Investmenl properly
Information about the movement of investment property was presented below:

Buildings and

Land im provements Toulal
Cost:
Ralance on January 1, 2021 $ 9,763 3,976 13,739
Iispiosal {9.763) (3.976) {13.739)
Balance on December 31, 2021 $ - - -
Balance o January 1, 2020 5 - - -
Transferred from propaty, plant and
equipment 9,763 3,976 13,739
Balance on December 31, 2020 $ 9,763 3,976 13,739
Accumufated depreciatiom:
Balance on January 1, 2021 $ - 764 769
Deprecialion - 59 39
Disposal - {B28) (828)
Ralance on Deecember 31, 2021 3 = - -
Balanee on January 1, 2020 b - - -
Iepreciation - 6l 60
‘I'ransferred from property, plant and
gquipment - 709 709
Balance on December 31. 2020 L - 769 764
(Contimued)
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Buildings and
Land mprovements Total

Cuarrying amount;
December 31, 2021 8 - - -
December 31, 2020 9,763 3.207 12.970
January 1, 2020 $ - - -

Trair value:
December 31, 2021 3 -
December 31, 2020 3 23542

w5

(i) In Scptormber 2021, the Group disposcd its tcal estate of Kaohsiung Shi Zheng “ong Cai
Building (including investment property) hbased on the resolution appraved during the board
meeting; please refer to Note 6()) for details.

{i))  As of Decamber 31, 2021, none of the Group's investmenl property was pledged as collateral.

Intangible assets

Information aboul Lhe costs and accumulaied depreciation of intangible assel was presented below:

Patents and Customer
Goodwill irademarks  _relationships Others Total
Cost:
Balanse on January 1, 2021 % 115,315 - 0,850 - 122,371
Additions - - - 106 108
Acqgnizition 56,118 5.52) 1827 28,149 21,615
Disposal - a1} . - L
Fllzols of exchiange rate changes 11,59 - {724} - (12,316}
Balanee on Degember 31_2021 § 161,041 540 7,959 28,255 201,745
Balanee on January 1, 2020 5 127,670 - 7.502 - 135,262
Effects of exchangs rate changas {12 155 - {7361 - (128014
Bulance on Decamber 31. 2020 § 115,515 - 6,856 - 122,371

(Continued)
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Palenly and Cuoslomer
Goodwill trademarks relationships Others Tolal

Accumulated inspairment loss

and anwrtization:

Buiance on Jamuary 1, 2021 b3 1,066 - 3,101 - ifav

Aceisttion - a - 234 237

Amorlization - 500 1,795 2,620 4,930

Disposal - i3l - - (31

Effaots of axchange vate chanpes - - {7013 - {7013

Balance on Decamber 31, 2021 § 1,966 478 4,195 2,863 9,502

Balanee on January 1, 2020 3 1,966 - 2026 - 3902

Amorlization - - 51 - 1.511

Effects of exchangu rate changes - - (436} - {436)

Bulance on Decsmber 31, 2020 B 1,966 - 3,101 - 5,867
Carrying amouri:

Lecomber 31, 2021 ] 158,075 5012 3,764 25,392 192,243

December 31, 2020 3 113,549 - 3,758 - 117,304

Jamuary 1, 2020 3 125,704 - 5,566 - 131,270

{i) Amortization

'The ameitization of intangible assets is included in the following line items of the staternent of
camprehensive income:

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Operaling costs 5 26 -
Operating exponscs 4.904 1311
3 4,930 1,511

{it) Impamment test on geodwill

‘The Group evaluated the recoverable amounts of its goodwill, which is based on its value-in-
use, for impairment tosting at the repotting date, Value-in-use is basad on three to four years of
the estimated future cash flow, according to the future aperation plan of the Group, discounted
to their prosent value nsing the yeatly discount rate, which seflects the risks specific 10 CGTI
by 8.19% - 14.75%, for the year ended December 31, 2021, There were no impaimment losses
of poodwill in 2021,

{(iii) The (roup identificd its intangiblc asscts from the acquisition of ADVANCEDTEK
INTERNATIONAL and STATING, respcetively, n January and Febroary, 2021, Please rofer
to Note 6(g) for details.

(iv) As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, none of the intangible assels was pledged as collateral.
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Short-lerm borrowings
(i} 'The details of the Group’s short-term borrowings were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Unzecured hank loans £ 1,045,658 464,759
Secured bank loans 100,080 50,000
$ 1,145,658 514,759

Kange of interest rates at the end of period 0.80%~6.45% _ 0.82%~6.20%
{ii) For the collateral for bank loans, please refer to Note 8.
Long-term borvowings
“Ihe details of the Group’s long-term borrowings were as follows:

Decem ber 31, 2021
Currency Rate Maturity petiod Amount
Sccured bank loans NI 1:.10%-1.21% 2022.01-2035.03 § 293623
Iess: current portion {17.037)
Tolal § 276,586
Unused credit lines $ -
December 31, 2020
Currency Rale Maturily period Amounl

Sweured bank loans NTD 1.10%-1.30% 2021.01-2039.03 § 310,497
Less: curyent portion (16,820
Total 3 293,675
Unused credit liney $ -

Tor Lhe collaleral for bank loans, please refer to Note 8.
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Leasc Habilitics
The carrying amounts of the Group’s leasc liabitities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Current 5 41,931 33,265
Non-curient 131678 168349
- 193,609 203,614

The amounts recognized in profit of loss were as follows:

Tor the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Interest on lease liabtlities $ 3573 4,140

Inceme from sub-leasing right-of-use assets 5 1819 2,057

'The amounts recognized in the statements of cash flows of the Group were as follows:

For the vears ended December 31

2021 2020
Interest payments for lease liabilities in operating activities 8§ (3.573) (4,140)
Payments of lease habnlities iIn fnancing activities {42.383) (40,120
Total cash cutflow for lcases $ (45,958) (44.262)

Real estate leases

As of Deaamber 31, 2021 and 2020, the (roup leascs buildings and construction for ite office and
watehouse space. The lcases typically run for 2 to 10 years. S8ome leases include an option fo ronew
the lcase for an addstional period of the same duration aficr fhe end of the contract teim.

Tor the Group's leased right-of-use assets under operating leases, please refer 1o Note 6{q).
{perating leases

The Group leases oul 1ls investment property and right-of-use assets. The Group has classified thess
leases as operating leases, because it does not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of the assets. Please refer to Notes 6(k) and (1).
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A maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiseounted lease paymenls to be received aller
the reporting date was as follows:

December 31,  December 31,

2021 2020

Less than one vear 5 4,730 1,204
1 to 2 vears 1,139 857
2te 3 voars 1.139 857
3104 years 1,174 857
4 ta § years 1.174 214
More than 5 years 1.565 -

$ 10,941 3,989
Employee benefits
(i)  Defined benefit plans

(if)

Reconciliation of defincd benefit obligation at present value and plan asset at fair valuc arc as
follows:

December 31,
2021
Present value of the defined benefit obligations $ (10.236)
Fair value of' plan assets 13.275
Net defined benefit liabilities $ 3,639

'The Group makes defined Benefit plan contributions to the pension fand aceount at Bank of
Taiwan. Under the Labor Standards Act, each cmployce™s refirement payment is calculated
hased on yoars of service and the average salary for the six months prior to retirement.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group recognized as pension expense from the
defined benefit plans amounted to $0 thousand, and the retum om plan assets (lability)
recopinize as other comprehensive income amounted to 5(1,268) thousand.

Defined contribution plans

The Group allocates 6% of cach employec’ s monthly wages to the Labor Pension personat
account of the Bureau of Taber Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor
Pension Act. Under these dofined contribution plans, the Group allocates a tixed amount to the
Burcan of Laber Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation,

The Group® s pension costs under the defined contnbution method amounted 1o $25.430
thousand and $22.180 thousand {or the years ended Decernber 31, 2021 and 2020, respeclively.
Paymenl to 1he Bureau of Labor Insurance has been made.
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(3) Inmcome laxss

(i)

{w)

Income tax expenses:
Income tax expenses are summarnized as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Current income tax expenses 2 107,567 165,216
Deferred income tax expenses (benefit) 742 (11.589)
Income lax expenses 3 108,302 153,627

In 2021 and 2020, the Group had no income taxes recognized directly in equity and other
comprehensive income.

Reuconciliation of mcome tax expenses and profit before income tax was as follows:

For the years ended 1decem ber 31

2021 2020
Protit before income tax 5 706,444 717,759
Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax ratc 141,289 143,552
Undistributed earings additional tax 1,646 191
‘lax-cxorapt income {23,380} -
Gatns on valuation of financial assets (15,626) -
Income basic taxs 1,117 -
Oihers 3.263 9,884
Income tax exponse % 108,309 153,627

Deferred incomc tax asseis and Habilitics

1)  The Group had no unrecognized deferred meome tax habililies, and the unrecogmzed
delerred meome tax assels were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Deductible temporary ditference 3 062 1,000
The carryforward of unused lax losses 14,732 -
$ 15.694 1,000

The R.OLC. Income Tax Act allows nct losscs, as assessed by the tax anthorities, to offkct
taxable tncome over a period of ten years for local tax teporting putposcs. Deforred tax
agsets have not becn recognized in respect of these Hems bocause it is not probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilize the benefits
therefrom.
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As of December 31, 2021, the information of the Group's unused tax losses for which no
deferred tax assets were recognized are as follows:

nrecngnized
Year of loss tax losses Year of expiry
2014 {cxamined) b 51,365 2024
2018 (examined) 29 2028
2019 (examined) o04 2029
2020 (examined) 2,454 2030
2021 {examimned) 18,910 2031
] 73,662

Changes in the amount of deferred income tax assets and labilitics for 2021 and 2020
were as follows:

Fair value guins

and others
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Batance on January 1, 2021 $ 3.165
Credit profit or loss (2.291)
Acquisition 1,402
Balance on December 31, 2021 5 2276
Balance on January 1, 2020 ] 2,895
Debit profit or loss 405
Reclassified to LHabilities related to non-curient
assets classified as held for sale 135)
Balanice on December 31, 2020 $ 3.1
Allgwance
Inventory limit on
allewances bad debts Others Total

Deferred income tax assets:

Balance on Januvary 12021 §  {47,400) (8,063) (4.352) (60.017)
Debit (credit) profit or loss 300 4.966 (2,233) 3,033
Acquisition - - (1.849) {1,849)
Balance on Devember 31, 2021 $ (47,100) {3,099 (8,634) {58,833)
Balamee on January 1, 2020 § (44,224) {6,707) (5,775) {56,706)
Debit (ctedit) profit or loss {11,465) (1,358) 829 {11,994)

Rectassificd to liabilities
related to non-current assets
classificd as held for sale 8,289 - 394 B.683

Balance on December 31, 2020 % {47,400) (8,065) (4,552) {60,017)
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The Company’ s income lax returns have been assessed and approved by the RO.C. tax
authorities threugh the years to 2019.

Capital and other equity

As of both December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group™s aulhorized shares amounied v $2,500,000
thousand, divided inte 250,000 thousand shargs, with par value of 310 per share, The issued 188,357
thousand shares comprised only ordinary shares, and all issued shares wete paid up upon issuancs.

(i}

i)

(lapital surplus
The components of capifal surplus were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Share capital premum $ 1,192,319 1,249,950
Treasury share {ransactions 54,637 34637
Difference arising from subsidiary’s share price and ils
carrying value from acquisition or disposal of 27,984 28,424
Changes m cquity of associatos accounted under equity
method 979 -
b 1,275,919 1,333,011

According to the R.0.C. Company Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit, and
only the realized capilal surplus can be used lo increase the commeon stock or be distribuied as
cash dividends, The alorementioned realized capitlal surplus inclodes capital surplus resalling
from premium on issuance of capital stock and earnings from domaled assels received.
According to the Regulations Goverming the Offering and Issuance of Securilics by Securities
Issuers, capiial mereases by ransferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not
exceed 109 of the total common stock outstanding. The capital increase by transferring capital
surplus in excess of par value shall be capitalized in the subsequent year after such capital
reserve has been authorized for registration by the regulatory agency.

Retain caming

In accordance with the Articles of Association. if there are earnings at year end, 10 percerit
should be set aside as legal reserve (unless the amount in the legal reserve is already equal to
or greater than the total paid-in capital) and special reserve shall be appropriated or reversed,
according to operating requircments or regoiations of thre Company, after the payment of
meome tax and offsctting the acoumulated Josses from prior years, The ramaining portion will
be combined with the carnings from prior years, and the Board of directors can propose the
distribution plan to be approved during the sharchelders” mecting. The abovementioned
distribution plan, by way of cagh dividends, should be approved by the Company” s Board of
directors and should be teported during the Company’ & shareholdet” s meeting.
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As the Company is in its growth phase, 1t has adopted 2 residual dividend policy 1o pay the
dividends after the end of the year from the eamings of the current vear and the accumulated
eamnings from prior years. If there are earnings at year end and the cumeat wnappropriated
retained earitings exceeded the lower of 2% of the capital stock, the distribution ratie for
dividends shall not be less than 1024 of the current unappropriated retained eamings after
taking into consideration the Company’s profit, capital structure, and future operating needs.
Dividends arc distributed as either cash or stock, where cash dividends represent no fcss than
10% of the total dividends and the actual amount distributed is based on the amount approved
by the Board of directors.

1) Legal reserve

When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a sharcholders’
mecting, distribute its legal teserve by issuing new shares or by distributmg cash, and
provided that the balance of the reserve exceeds 25% of the Company’s paid in capital.

2)  Spxcial eserve

I accordance with FSC, a portion of cament-period samings and undistributed prior-
period carnings shall be reclassificd as special camings teserve during camings
distribution. The amount  be reclassified should eqovsl the current-period total net
teduction of othet sharchelders” equity. Similatly, a portion of undistributed prior-period
garnings shall be reclassilied as special eamings reserve (and does nol qualily for
carmings distribution) to account for cumulative changes to olher sharcholders’ equity
perlaining o prior periods. Amounis of subsequent reversals perlaining o the net
reduction of other sharcholders” equity shall qualify for additional distributions.

3)  Harnings distribution

On February 25, 2021, the distiibution plan for 2020 was resolved at the Board of
Direclors” mesting. Other distribulion items have reached the requirement the stalutory
resolution threshold by eleclronic vole vn May 23, 2021, and have held a sharcholders’
meeling on August 25, 2021. The distribution plan for 2019 was approved m
sharcholders” meeting on May 28, 2020. The amounis of dividends disinbuled to
shareholders were as [ollows:

For the years ended Decem ber 31

2021 2020
Dividends to shatcholders - cash, $2.5 and $2 per
sharc s 470,854 374,713
Dividends to sharcholders - cash from capital
surplus, $1 por share - 188,357
) 470,84 365.072
{Continued)
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Larmngs per sharg
The Comgany s basic and diluted camnings por share were calenlated as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Basic vurnings per share:
Profit attributable to the Company $ 577591 549,017
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(basic / thousand shares) 188,357 188.357
Harnings per share (dollars) L 3.07 29
Tor the years ended December 31
2021 2020
Diluted carnings per share:
Profit attributable to the Company $ 377,591 349,017
Werghtud-average nuraber of ordinary shares outstanding
(diluted / thousand shares) 190,083 190,106
Earnings per share (dollars) 3 3.04 2.89
For the years ended December 31
2021 2020
Weighted-average number of grdinary sharcs {basie/ thousand
shatcs) I88.357 188,357
Liect of employee remuneration 1.726 1.749
Weighted-average number of ordinary ghares oufstanding
(diluted/thousand shares) 190,083 190,106

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Details of revenuc

Tor the years ended December 31, 2021

Cotupiding & Cloads,
T Dala Bolbyrure and Diber
Tl gair Cifllzation = Digh Services Products Total
Major prowluetidsiraer lins!
Hale of goods 5 3765168 5,405,852 143224 151,804 171 .61z 11,240,905
Retrering of services - - - 711,539 - 711429
Total 1 3,763,168 5.405,892 1,845,224 963,732 171313 11,952 434

For the years ended December 31, 2820

Computing & Cloads,
wT Thata Soitware and {ihner
Ifrasbroctores Ttilizativn Digitaleatton Bervices =~ prodoct Totul
WMajor producissereice linas:
Sale nf goods H R 6,0180.642 RS 118,28 1iKb A 13,34, 500
Tendertng of services - - - 440,504 - R0 504
Tola! 5 ARTT658 6,580,642 381,756 859,738 106,390 279,104
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{if) Conitract balances

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2021 2020 2020

Notes receivable {including long-

term) 5 299,082 187 429 421,234
Accounts receivable (including

Tong-term and related parties) 2,637,442 1,888,539 1,896,694
Less: loss allowince {27.844) (47,333 (53,520

$ 2,908,680 2028 &35 2,264,408

Contracl asscts h 20,392 - -
Contract liabilitics h 251543 323,854 783,505

1} For the impatrment of notes and accounts receivable (including long-term and related
parties), please refer to Note G(c).

2} The amounts of contracl liability balance, recognized as revenue as of January 1, 2021
and 2020 at the beginning of the period, were as follows:

Far the years ended Decem her 31
2021 2020
Revenve Recognition $ 287.893 720,728

3)  The major changes in the balance of conteact assct and liability s the difference between
the time frame in the performance obligation to be satisfied and the payment to be
received,

(w} Remuneration to emplovees and directors

In accordance with the pre-amendsd Article of Assoetation, onie the company has annua) eamings,
the Company should contribute no less than 8% of the profit as employee remuneration and less than
2% as directors’ remuneration. owever, if the Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should
be reserved 1o offsel the deficit. Employees entitled to receive Lhe alurementioned employee
remuneration, in shares or cash, include employees of affiliates with over 50% of the sharcholding
raiio, The Company estimated ils remuneration to employees at $60,430 thousand for the year ended
December 31, 2020, and cstimated tts temuneration to divectors at 85,650 thousand.

On August 25, 2021, the Company amended its Article of” Association based on the resolution
approved during the atmual shareholders™ mecting. In accordance with the amended Article of
Aszociation, once the Company has annual carnings, 1t should contribate 5% to 20% of the camings
as emplayee remuneration, and less than 12a as directons™ remuncration. Howover, if the Company
has acoumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved to offset the dofictt. Employees entitled to
reccive the aforementioned employee remuncration, n shares or cash, include the emplovecs of the
Company whe meel cerlain specilic requirement. The aforementioned requirement and distribution
methods should first be approved by the Company's Board of directors or ils authorized person. The
Company cstimated its temuncration to employces at $59,513 thousand for the year ended Daoccmber
31, 2021, and cstimated its remuneration to dircetors at £5,580 thousand.

(Continged)
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The alorementioned amounts were calculated using the Company’s net income belorg lax, withoul
the remunerations to employees and directors for each period. multiplied by the proposed percentage
which is stated under the Company™s proposed Asticle of Incorperation. These remunerations were
expensed under operating costs or expenses for each period, related information is available on the
wehsite of the Market Observation Post System. The differences between the estimated amounts and
the actual amounts approved by the Board of directors for 2021, if any, shall be accounted for ag
changes in accounting estimates and recognized in 2022, ‘The actual amounts distributed for 2020
and the estimated amaounts for 2020 in the financial statements were the same,

Non-operaling mncome and expenses

{1y Other income

The Group’s olher income was as follows:

Rental income

Dividend income

(1) Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains and losses were as fellows:

Net loreign exchange gans

Net gains on valuation of financial asscts (liabilitics} at

fair value through profit ot loss

Gain on disposal of non-current assets or liabilities held

lor sale
Gam on disposal of subsidiaries

(ains on disposal of investment proparty and prroperty,

plant and equipment
(rthers

160

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
$ 5,426 3,200
7.812 10,085
$ 13,238 13,285

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020

5 21,622 19,261
76,717 21,834

84,232 -

20,696 -
10,262 330
5.870 3489
L 219,399 44914
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{iil) Tinance cosls

'The Group’s financial costs were as follows:

For the vears ended December 31

2021 2020
Interest on bank loans 8 14,395 17,971
Intarest on leasc liabilitics 3573 4.140
3 17,968 22111

(v} Tnancial instroments

{i)

Credit risk

A credit rigk & the rigk of having financial losses arising from counterparties failing to meet
their required contract obligation. The major potential credit tisks arc from defaults from
counterpartics who fail to mect their required contract obligation.

T

2)

Accounts reccivable and other receivables

The Group’ s credil policy is lransacling with creditworthy customers, and obtains
collateral o mitigale nsks ansmg from fiancial loss due to default i’ necessary, The
Group assesses the ralings based on publicly available [mancial information and
transactions records wilh i#s major customers. The Group conlinues to monilor the
exposure Lo credit risk and the credil rating of counferpariies, transaction amounl Lo all
qualified customers, and review annually the credit limil of counterparlics, so as Lo
manage risk exposure.

Dther financial asscts

The credit risk exposure in cash and cash oqunvalents, fixed income investmenls and
other fmometal nstruments are messured and monitored by the Group™ s [inance
depariment. As the Group deals with the banks and vther external partics with good
eredit standing and [inancial instilutions which are graded above investmenl level, the
management believes that the Group does not have any compliance issues, and therefore,
there is no significant credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assels, epresents the maximum amount exposed 1o
credit sk, As ol December 31, 2021 and 2020, the maximum exposure to eredit risk
amounted to $3.969,872 thousand, and $3,192 222 thousand, respectively.
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{11} Liquidity risk

The tollowings were the contractual maturitics of financial liabilitics, including estimated

intorest payment.
Currying Conlruclual  Wiihin 1 1-5 Overs
amounl cagh lows year Yeurs YeALS
December 31, 2021
Hom-derivative Fnuneial Butnlibes
Financial liabilities at faig value
through profit or 1oss - Contingent
considerations arising from
business combinations (Current
and Non-current) $ 103,222 147775 5,600 142,167 .
Liong-terru and shorl-termn
borrowings 1,439,281 1,470,642 1168203 w1542 220,807
T.ease lialili lies 193,500 0562 A4.830 123,726 32,103
Motes and accoumnts. payabla 1,446,248 1,446,248 [ 446,248 - -
Other payables 400,299 400,299 400,299 - -
Guarsnlee deposils 1,577 1,577 - 1,577 -
Darivative financial Habilites
Cutflowr 2,286 400,463 400,453 - -
Infleny - {398.177) (398 177) - -
$_3.586,522 _ 3,669.400 _3.067475 __ 349,015 __ 253,000
December 31, 2620

Nop-derivative Gnancial habilities
Finaneial liahilities at fair valne
through proft or loss - Conbingenl

comsideralions arising (rom

business combinaons (Curnel

and Non-currasf) ¥ #).23]1 157,887 2,383 6,767 148,725
T.omg-term and short-term

borrowings B25,256 860,775 534,851 81,957 241,867
Lease liabilitdes 03,614 212349 3R 429 EL7.04] 53,979
Notes and accounts payable 1.572.265 1,572,265 1.572.263 - -
Other payables 439,789 438,769 439,765 - -
Guarentes deposits 1,621 1,621 - 1621 .

Diorivative financial Labilities

Outflow 855 047,224 647,224 - -
Inflow - {6d46.569) {616.564) - -

5 3124411 _ 3,245321 _ 1,590,364 208,286 446,671

The Group deoes not expect the cash flows included in the matunity analysis to occur
signiticantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.
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{i1) Curency risk

1)

Exposure to currcncy risk

The Group”s significant exposure of financial assets and liabilities to foreign currency
risk was as tollews:

Leteanbrer 31, 2021 Dicember 31, 2020
Fareign Fioreign
cy (R [ orrteney {im Exchanyr
Hyomzandsh THite NTD Moasands) rabe NTD

Tnancial pasets

honefrary items

BN 1 2 530 27.68 70,018 4,902 1534 138930
Flnancial lisbdlites

Ionetary itenis

USoNTD 1 18,140 1768 448,758 33,110 g3 et AL
2)  Sensitivity analysis

‘The Group™s cxposure to foreign currency risk arises mainty from the transiation of the
forcign currency cxchango gains and lossce on cash and cash equivalents, notes and
accounts receivable, short-term berrowings, and notes and accounts payable denominated
in forcign currency. To aveid the decrcase in the value of forcign currency assets and
fluctuations of future cash flows rosulted from changes in exchange rates, the Group uses
derivative instruments to hedge exchange rate risk (see Note 6(b)). An appreciation
(depreeiation) of 1% of the USD against N'TT) as of December 31, 2027 and 2020, with
alt other variables including derivative financial instiuments remaining comstant, would
have decrcazad or increased the profit before income tax by $686 thousand and incroascd
or decreased $1,106 thousand, respectively. The analysis for both perinds was performed
on the same basis.

Foreign exchange pains and losses on monelary itemns

The ameunts of oxchange gaing and Yosscs (inclnding realized and umrealized) of
monetaty items of the Group which were converted into functional currency, and the
exchange rate information converted to the Company’s functional corrency, NTD, are as
follows:

For the yvears ended December 31,

2021 2020
Foreign Average Foreign Average
exchange exchange exchange exchange
{loss) gain rale (luss) gain rale
NTD & 21,686 1 31.664 1
ZAR (64) 1.90 {12.403) 1.88
§_____21,622 — 19361
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(iv) Inleresl rate analysis

{v)

The details of intetest-hearing financial instruments at the reporting datc were as follows:

Carrying amount
December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Variahle-rate inatrument:
Financisl assets. b 630,139 761,432
Financial liabilities {1.439.281) {§725.256)
§ (789,142) (63,.824)

According to the Group’s sensitivity analysis of risk exposure to non-derivative instroments on
the reparting date, if the interest rate had increased or decreased by 0.25%, with all ather
variable factors remaining constant, the (Group’ s profit hefore income tax would have
decreased or increased by §1,973 thousand and $160 thousand for the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. This is mainly due fo risk exposures io borrowings at variable
interest rate.

Fair value of financial instruments
1)  ‘Types of financial mstrument and fair value hierarchy

The fair value of finmmcial assets and habilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured on a recurring basis. The following sels oul carrying mmnount and lair value of
the Group™ s [inancial assels and liabililies, mcluding the information on fmir value
hierarchy but excluding financial instrumenls not measured at [air value with carrying
amount reasonably close 1o their fmr value, and lease liabililies, disclosure of fair value
in{ormation is not required:

December 31, 2021
Carrying Fair value
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Pre-purchased forward

exchange contracts £ 243 - - 243 243
Yoreign and domestic unlisted

stocks 240,694 - - 240694 240,609
Domesiic unlisted equitics 97.602 - - 97,602 97.602

$_ 338,539
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December 31, 2021
Carrying Fuir value
amounl Tevel 1 T.evel 2 Tevel 3 Tolal

Financial asscts at
amortized cost:
{Cush and cush equivalents ¥ 650581

Notes and accounts
recervable, nel (ncluding
iong-term and related

parties) 2,908,680
lher receivables 1,822
Refundable deposits 70.250

$3,631.333

Finuncial tinbilities nt fair
value through profit or loss:

Pre-purchased [erward
exchange contracts % 2286 - - 2,286 2286

Contingent considerations
arising from business
combinations 103 232 - - 103,222 103,222

% 105,508

Yinancial liahilities measured
al amortized cost:

Long-term and short-term

homrowings $ 1,435 281
Laase liabilines. 193,609
Notes and aceounts payable 1,446,248
Other payables 400,299
Guarentee deposits 1,577
53,481,014
December 31, 2020
Carrying Fair value

amopunt Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Taotal

Vinancial assels al Fair value
Lhrough prolil or loss

Open-end funds 3 177017 - 177.017 - 177.017
Forcign and domcestic unlisted
stocks 157,694 - - 157,694 137694
Pre-purchased forward
exchange contracts 101 - - 101 101
$ 334812
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December 31, 2020
Carrying Fuir value
amounl Tevel 1 Tevel 2 Tevel 3 Total

Financial assets at
amortfized cost
Cash and cash eguivalents ¥ 761,715

Notes and accounts
recervable, nel (ncluding
iong-term and related

parlies) 2,028,635
{her receivables 1.47%
Refundable deposits 65,581

$2.857410

Finuncial tinbilities al fuir
value through profit or loss:

Pre-purchased forward
exchange contracts 3 655 - - 635 655

Contingent considarations
arising from business
combinaiions 81,231 - - 81,231 81,231

$___B1.886

Yinancial liabilities measured
1l amortized cosl:

Long-term and short-term

horrowings % B25.256
Laase liabilines. 203,614
MNotes and aceounts payable 1,372,265
Other payables 439,769
Guarantee deposits 1,621
53,042,525

2)  Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fait value

The measurements ol fair value of equity instruments withoeul an aclive market are based
on the market comparable histed company approach, which assumes that the fair valoe is
measured by the mvestes” estimalsd net worth and the price-book ratio estimaled based
on comparable quoled markel price. The eslimale of the fair value of equity instruments
has been adjusted due to the effcdt of the discount arisimg [rom the Jack of murket
liguidity of the equity security.

Discounted cash flow model 1s used to estimate the fair value of contingent comsideration
arising from business combination, The matn assumption takes into considoration the
possibility of occurrence to estimate the consideration for payment, by the discounted
present valug.
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Measurement of the fairr value ol derivalive instrumenis is based on the valualion
techniques accepted by the market participants, such as the discounted cash flow or
optien pricing medels. Fair value of forward exchange contracts is usually determined by
the forward currency exchange rate.

Transfers between Level 1 and Tevel 2

‘There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 of the financial instraments for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Reconcihiation of Lovel 3 fair values

Measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Nun-derivative
linancial assets

(liabilities)
measured at
Derivative fair value
financial assets  through profit
(liabilities) or loss

January 1, 2021 b (3534) 76,463

Recognized in profit or loss {1,489 78,132

Addilions - 100,000

Contingenl considerations payments - 3777

Contingent considerations arising from busincss

comhinalions - {23.298)

December 31, 2021 $ (2,043) 235.074
January 1, 2020 b (7,772} 33.806

Recognized in profit or Tess 6,488 13,945

Additions - 40,752

Disposal - (627)

Reclassilication to mvesiments accountetl [or

using eyuily method - (11.413)

Reclassification to disposal group held for sale 330 -

December 31, 2020 & {554 76.463

The aforementionad total gains and losses that were recognized in “other gains and
losses™ ‘I'he gains or losses attributable o the asaets and liabilities held on December 31,
2021 and 2020 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Total gains and losses
Reeognized in profit or loss (recognized as other
gaing and losses) $ 76,08% 1339
(Continued)

167



SYSAGE TECIINOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements

Quantified information on significant unobservable inputs (Leve! 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Group’s financial instrumoents that use Tevel 3 inputs to measure fair value include
firancial asscts measured at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financiat
instruments.

The [air value of derivalive financial instruments resulied from the quotation of a third
party and did not use any unobservable inputs in its calculation. Therefore, the Group did
not disclose the quantitative informatien about significant unobservable inputs and
sensitivity analysis.

Quantificd information on other significant unobservable tnputs was as follows:

Interrelationship
between significant
unahbservable inputs

Valuation Significant and fair value

Ttem technique unohservable inputs measurement
Financral assets al  Comparable - Market liquidily The higher the
fair value through  lisled discount rate market Liquidity
profil or logs- CURpARIes {25.00%~31.34%as of  discoun rate, the
investments in approach December 31, 2021, lower the fair
equity instrument 25.00%-34.61% as of value
without active December 31, 2020)
market
Financial Diseounted © 1iscount rate The higher the
liabilitics at fair  cash flow {8.19%-14.75% as of discount rate, the
value through method December 31, 2021, lower the fair
protit or loss- 15.15% as of value
Contingent December 31, 2020)
considerations
arising from
business
sombinations
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§)  Fair value measurements in Level 3 — sensitivity analysis of reasonzbly possible
sliernative agsumplions

The Group® s moasurement on the fair value of financial instruments is deemed
reasonable despite differont valuation models or assumptions may lead to different
resulis. For fair value measurements in Level 3, changing one ot more of the assumptions
would have the following effects on profit:

Currenl profit (lass) arising from

changes in falr value
Inputs 10% Increzse 10% decrease
December 31, 2021
Finaneial assets (Halalies) al far valoe
through profit or loss
lnvestments in cquity instounent without  Discount for 5 {33,780 33,78l
active market marketability
Centingent considorations arising from Discount for b} 3,223 (3,39%
husiness combinations discount rate
Necember 31, 2020
Finanzial assets (labilies) af fair value
through profit or loss
Investments in equity tnstrumant withont  Discount for ) (22,57TH 22,579
active market marketability
Conbngenl consideraions ansmg [rom Discounl fur 5 4,760 (5, 146)
business cornbinalicns discournl rale

(#) Financial risk management
{) Cverview
The Group is exposed 1o the following risks arising from finaneial instruments:
1) Credit risk
2)  Ligudity nsk
3} Market risk

This note expressed the information on risk exposure and objectives, policies and process of
tisk meastwoment and management of the Group. For motc details about the quantitative
effects of these risk exposures, please refer to respective notes in the report.

{ity Structore of risk management

The Group's risk managemenl policies are esiablished to idenlily and analyes the risks faced
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to menilor risks and adherence to
hmits. Risk manapemen! policies and systems are reviewed regolarly to refloct changes m
markel conditions and the Group’s aclivilies, so as ty minimize risk exposure.

{Continued)
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The Board of dirselors oversess how mansgement monitors compliance with the Group™s nsk
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Board of directors is assisted in its
oversight role by an internal auditor. The intemal auditor undertakes both regular and ad hoc
reviews of risk management contrals and procedures, the results of which are reported to the

Board of directors.

Capital management

The Roard’s policy 18 to maintamn a strong capital baze, m order to maintain investor, ereditor, and
market confidence. Capital consists of ordinary sharcs, capital surplus, retained earnings, and non-
controlling interests, As of Deccrber 31, 2021, the Group had sufficient capital to moet the needs
for working capital and other expenditare in the next 12 months. The Group’s approach to capital
management has not changed on cach reporting date,

As of Doecember 31, 2021 and 2020, the debt ratios were 47% and 46%, respectively.

Investing and financing activities not affceting current cash flow

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group’s mvesting and financing activities, not
affecting the current cash flow, were as follows:

(i} Non-current financial assots at fair value through profit or loss were transferred to investments
accounted for using equity method, please refer to Notes 6(b) and (f).

{11} The assets and liabilities of DAWNING TECHNOLOGY, a subsidiary, were transferred to
assets or habilities direcily relatel to non-currenl assets or disposal groups classified as held
for sale, respectlively. Please reler to Note 6(1).

{(ii1) For the acquisition of right~-of-use assets by leasc, please refor to Note 6(k).

{iv) 'The reconciliation of liabilities ansing from financing activitics were as follows:

Long-term botrowings

Shart-term barmwings

Other payubles

Guaranlee depusits

Lease hahilities

Tatal liabilities from finencing
activities

Janusry 1, Non-tash December 31,
021 Cash flows changes 2021
$ 310,497 (16,874) - 293,623
514,759 624,899 6,000 1,145,658
113,742 {113,742} - -
1,621 {44) - 1,577
2u3.614 (42,385) 32,380 193,609
% 1,144,233 451,854 38,380 1,634,467
(Continued)
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January 1, Non-cash Tecember 31,
2020 Cash flows changes 2020

Long-term borrowings b 327,181 (16,684} - 310,497
Short-term borrawings 238203 319,578 {43,022 514,759
Other payables 60,569 53,173 - 113,742
Guarantee deposits 4811 {3,190} - 1621
Lease liabilitics 7,402 (40,122 26,334 MN3.614
Tolal habilities [rom fnancing  $ 548,166 312,755 {16,688) 1,144,233

activities

{7) Related-party transaclions:

(a)

(b}

Parent company and ultimate controlling company

Risda Corporation (*Qisda™) is buth the parent company and the ultimale controlling parly of the
Group. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, Qisda holds 51.41% and 35.04%, respectively, of the
number of ordinary shares cutstanding of the Group, and it has prepared the vonsolidated financial

slalements for public use.

Natnes and relationship with rolated partics

The [ollowings are related parfies that have had transactions with the Group during the periods

covered 1 the consolilated fGnancial stulements:

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

Qisda Corporation {Chsda)

UNISAGE DIGITAL CO,, LTD. {UNISAGE)
GRANDSYS INC, (GRANDSYS)

Bon() Foundation

Ben() Material Cotploration. (Ben() Material)

Benl) Gura Corporation (Ben() Guru)
Partner Tech Corporation (Partner T'ech)
DFI Inc. (DT}

Data Image Corporation (Dats Image)
Ben() Corporation {(New Ben(Q)

SIMULA TECHNOLOGY INC. (SIMULA

TECHNOLOGY)
Ben( Asia Pavific Corporation (BenQ) Asia Pacific)

171

Parent of the Group

Assocnate of the Group

Associate of the (roup (Note 2)

Substantive related party

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
paretit company

It and the Company have the same ulimate
paren! company

It and the Company have the same ultimats
parent company

It angl the Company have the same ultimate
parenl company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have lhe same ullimate
parent comparty

(Continged)
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Name of related party Relationship with the Group

BenQ E3CO Corporation (BenQ ESCO) It #nd the Company have the same ullimale
parenl company

ACE PILLAR CO., LTD. (ACE FILLAR) It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

AEWIN Technoulogies Co., Ltd (ALWIN It and the Company have the same ullimate
Technologres) parenl company

Ben() Medical Technology Corporation (Ben() It and the Company have the same vitimate
Medical Technalogy) parent company

Alpha Networks Inc. {Alpha) It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

Topview Optronics Corparation (Topview Uptranics) It and the Company have the same nitimate
paretit cotmpany

Ben() AR DentCare Corp. (Ben() AB DentCarc) It and the Company have the same ultimate
parett company
ASIACONNECT INTERNATIONAL COMPANY It and the Company have the same ultimate

LTD. (ASTACONNECT) parent company
Action Star Technology Co., Ltd. (Aclion Star) It asgl the Company hive the same ullimals
pareni company
EASTECHCO., LTD, (EASTECH) It and the Company have the same ultimate

parent company
BENQ IIEALTHCART CORPORATION (BIIS) L and the Company have the same ullimales

parenl company
Suzhou Super Pillar Avtomation Equipment Co., t and the Company have the same ultimate
Ltd.(Suzhou Super Pillar) parent company
‘I'ransnet Corporation (Transnet) It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company {Note 1)
HITRON TECHNOLOGIES INC. (HI'TRON It and the Company have the same ultimate
TECHNOLOGIES) parent company (Notc 1)
Interactive Digital Technologics Inc. (Intcractive It and the Company have the same ultimate
Digital) parent company {(Note 1)
Datfon Flectronics Cotporation (Darfon Electronics}  Associate of the parent company
ALT Optranies Corporation (ALJ0) Associate of the parent company
AUO Display Plus Corporation {ALO Display Plus)  Subsidiary of AL
Webest Solution Corporation {Webest Solulion) Subsithary of Partner Tech
Key management personnel Key manapement personnet of the Group

Netc 1:'The parent company of Transnet, HITRON TECHNOLOGIES and Interactive Digital is
Alpha, a former associate of Qisda, after which Qisda acquited Alpha in July 2020, making
them have the same ultimate parent eompany with the Cotapany,

{Continued)
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Mote 2: The Company acquirsd the shares of GRANDSYS 1o May 2020, afler which the percentage

of ownership in GRANDSYS was 22.35%, making it an associate of the Group.

(e} Significant related-party transactions

{i)

{i1)

Sales
The amounts of significant sales by the Group to related partics were as follows:

Far the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Parent company g 151,590 42 469
Assaciatos 3.592 622
Other associates 144,507 104,335
Other related partics - 78,213
b 299,689 225639

The sales prices and paymenl lemms to relaied parties were nol sigmficant different from thoss
of sales to customers, and the credit terms for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
both ranged from 30 to 120 days from the end of the month.

Purchases
The amounts of significant purchases by the Group from related parties wete as follows:

Far the years ended Decemher 31

2021 2020
Parent company b3 {486) 1.939
Other associates 24.414 15,417
Cither related parties - 20
¥ 23,928 17.376

Purchase prices and payment lerms [rom relaled parties were similar 1o those from third-party
suppliers. The payment terms for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 ranged
between 30 to 90 days from the end of the month and 30 to 120 days from the end of the
month, tespectively.

{Conlinued)
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{i1) Receivables [rom related partics

{iv)

v)

(vi)

'The receivables duc from related parties were as follows:

Category of December 31, December 31,
Account related party 2021 2020
Accounts recetvable Parent company 8 102,435 20
Accounts receivable Associates 2,551 158
Accounts recervable Other associates 30,240 10,725
5 135,226 10,903

Payables to related partics

'The payables to related partics were as follows;

Category of December 31, December 31,
Account related party 2021 2020
Accounts payable Other associates % 5,010 907
l.ease
Rental income
Yar the vears ended Decem bher 31
I.essee 2021 2020

{ther associates - DFI % 2012 -
Associates - 3

h] 2,012

The rent and guarantee are delermined based on nearby office rental rales, and the renl is paid
muonthly, As of December 31, 2021, receivables from Lhe alorementioned transaction had ben
fully recerved.

Financing from related partics

Borrowings of the Group Fom relaled parties were as follows:

Category of December 31,
Account related party December 31, 2021 2020
Dther payables Other essociates - Partner
Teoh b - 113,742

The borrowings from other associstes, Partner Tech, boar interest at 3.5% annually and
without collatcrals. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, intorest expenscs from
the interest-bearing borrowings from rclated partics amounted to $208 thousand and $3,299
thowsand tespectively. As of Tecembar 310 2021, the abave-tmentionsd other payables had
been fully repaid.

{Continued)
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{vii) Donalion

In 2021, the Group made a donation of $2.000 thousand to its snbstarttive related party, Ben(Q
Foundation.

{viii) Non-controlling interests acquired

The Group acguired non-controlling intercsts from related parties wore as follows:

Category of Decentber 31,
Account refated party Decentber 31,2021 2020
lnvestment in subsichiary kiey Tunugemenl
persorme] % - 10,344

{ix) Acquisition of the subsidiary

The Group had fully acquired COREX from other associates, Partner Tech., at the total price of
$140,000 thousand in January 2021, The price had been paid in full.

{d} Key management personnel compensation
Key managemenl personne] compensation includes:

Yar the years ended 1Jecember 31

2021 2020
Short-torm employee hencfits 5 88,773 63,245
Post-employment benelits 1,231 600
Terminstion benefits - -
Other long-term benefits - -
Share-based payment - -
b 90,004 65911

(8) Pledged assels

The carrying amounts of the assets which the Group pledged as collateral were ag follows:

December 31, December 31,
Assef Name Objoct 2021 2020

Pruperty, plant and equipment Long-letm and shori-

term borrowings 5 830,124 837,122
(Jther non-curient assets Shott-term

borrowings 3,037 -
Accounts receivable Credit lines for short-

term borrowings - 66,943

$ ¥33.161 H3.065
{Continued)
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(9 Significant commitmenls and cunlinpencies:

{a) The promissory netes, issucd by the Group for loans from financial institutions, forward cxchangs
transactions, and purchasc limits, arc detailed as follows:

December 31, December 31,

{Currency 2021 2020
Promissory noles issued NTD 3 5,771,000 4,691,000
usD h) 17,350 17,350

(1)) Losses due to major disasters: None
(11) Subsequent events: None
(12) Others:

The summary of employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization, by funclion, was as follows;

For the years ended December 31, For the years ended December 31,
2021 2020
By lunctiony Operaling | Operating Opersing | Operaling

By ilem osts expenses Total cosls expenses Total
[Employee benefits

Salary 84.881 612.560 697,441 - 609,347 605,347

Labor and health insurance 6,712 46,241 32,953 - 41,041 41,0441

Pension 3,375 22,055 25,430 - 22180 32,180

Other employge benefits expense 1.956 32,321 34277 - 30,748 30,748
Depreciation 4212 74,646 78,858 - 80,440 80,440
Aumortization 26 11,128 11,154 - 6,251 6,251

{13) Other disclosures
{2) Information on significant lransactions:;
The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reporis hy Seourities Issuers” for the Group for the year ended
December31, 2021;

{i} Loans to other parties: None

(Continued)
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{11) Guaraniegs and endorsements lor other partics:

{In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Limiaticn ool Highest | Balooce lop
ammmrt of | batonee for | poncsncess
pudruntesy | e wnied Bruperty
Cmmenrparty rf and amd mdar pledged fnr
Narre of e and as o EXLTTS paranives
s antot! endn reinant For 4 speelec| during the | repoTing | hargowiog and
Tin. Endorse ] snterpric Feriod date t ar
" ple Cocopany JOOREM | Subsidiery o] Mot 223,400 T2 A4 24737 -
bhe Cormpany
W e Commany fAOmALL v i 1 100,07 1010 -
pTTELLI]
[T TEHET)
e

LRaitie ur
agenr beed
amaunts al Tarent Subxidiary | suarsnless!
guarautess campany | gualdniess
md puarantees’ tathird
d h et v Giled partder v
nne worth | ammnt Mor n third paftiennn hehd K ol
of Lhe fatesl | guarantees | parles oo belinfl of | companlys o
Qmicial amd Letnll of pRYEnT Tk and
statements |mad groementd  spbsigh: | company | CHiinn
s1g% Mol r -
REER S v r -

ute Lo meeuml of B guerrdos s edoepemads £ 0 smaghe cetaly Coepasg Sl dol oeosd 285 of e Compiny 5 el worll of $898, 118 losesd s Qw
gharardees amd endorsensals was prvaled, the fnbal Ammmt ot guarantaes ard eoderssrets promded By the “oegany shall nat ammeed S of e Conqany’ s ne
wenthy ol 32, 160, HE2 Hlicdsand

(i) Sceuwitics held as of December 31, 2021 {escluding investment in subsidiaries, assnciates and

jomnt ventares):
Unil: thousand shares/thousand units
Rebllunshup Ending Balenre Biigmst habane durlog Lhe yeir
Hnldrr Cnrpany | Carmgory and name of with Accmmt SharesATnles Cerrying | Percentagenf | Falr value Bhares®nks | Fevientageal | Fore
serurity oy At JCnmeeship () ihuusuds) | mwtership (%)
o
Hhe Comprany TYNARAFF. INen aurent Franual 90 A 1953 277,410 3,0 1ent| (Hede 10
TROHYCR OOER, THS pecees AE FRIT abie
Fheough srafit o ks

[ oTe Hooldings Tiited v 40 [ ax i1 c

# [reec 1 - 0.42 1 042 '
TECIRCECCIES, INC

# Touch ClwdIne a 0% 56 140 255 2% 274 4

" 2 e Dila, Inc, B 1705 13,934 1,70 10,530 5704 254 B

# LT EL a4 AR Ta 1,45% 42 FEYE :
CHORIACR AT N
fi ity

# ITanrinis Capeta) DuBslo . o 24 7802 1272 grofe|  Moleds 11 -
prund ¥, 40

338,296 358,296

(i)

(v)

(vi)

Hote 1. Unlised corrpany
Hete > Tanted partnerchm

Individual securitics acquitod or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of
NTH300 million or 20% of the capital stock: Nene

Acqusition of mdividual real estale with atnount exceeding the lower of $300 million or 20%
of the vapital stock: None

Disposal ol individual real estate with amount exceedmg the lower o $300 million or 20% of

the capilal stock: None
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{vii) Related-parly transaclions for purchases and sales wilh amounts exceeding the lower of 100

niillion or 20% of the capital stock:

(In Thousands of Now 'l'aiwan Dallars)

Tramyacilogs #ill ieoms | Noivs'Aveonnts receivable
Lrunzuctinn detmlls diferend (o glkery (payablc)
IFer ceninge o]
Percentage of totak
trial t
Meme of Relpted Nare nf pur chases! Fayment Payment Toding sreqabvabile
Lompany party rdulicaship [Purchuve/Saly]  Amcunt ssler Lerins Unit prive lermy Lutunie Ly ubic) Nute
[The Znmpany [Gixda [Parent of the  [Saler (llﬁ.sﬁﬁﬁ 1. 2181 20 drye tram fNo agmanl N Agmficant 99,293 .91 B
Group 1&5 eny of the [ETerence  ARfference
anfh

(viti) Receivable [rom related parties with amount exceeding the lower of 3100 million or 20% of

the capital stock: None

(x) ‘lrading in derivative instruments: Flease refer to N

ote 6(b).

(x) Business relationships and signiticant intercompany transactions:
‘I'ransactlon detalts
Mo. Name of MName of Mature of Account Amount Trading terms P;:;:;E:g n":::
company counter-party relationship evenue or tatal assets
¢ Bhe Company IGLOBAL 1 [Saley 43,801 i duys frem (e gnd 0,37%
MNTELLIGTNCE lof the month
INETWORK
] " " 1 Accoints 212 " 01
yeceivable
G “ # 1 Rental incame 5,697 Payment on 1{th of 0},.05%
cach month
# " PR CLOUD 1 Salty 19,826 |50 days fronl th ond 0.17%
ot the month
# L " | Accounts 3875 F] 0.11%
peceivable
1 AL OB AL pre Compuny 2 kﬂulcs 13,448 [ 1%
INTELLIGENCE
[NETWORE
2 ATED ATVANCEDTERINTER 3 [Rales 312 Mate 3} 0.4)6%
[HumanCapital ~ [NATIONAL
Mote 1: Na. are tilled in as fallovs:
{1y 0" represents the parent company
(ii} Subsidiaries are numbered starting from “1".
Nute 2: Melure of reltionship with counterparty ere us beluw,
1 Parent company to subsidiary.
2 Subsidiary ta parent company.
3.Aubsidiary o sobsidiary.
Note 3: Clearance made within the menth and payments received before the end of the month.
Note 4; Disclosure of only the smounts axcezding of 35 million.
Note 5; Related tranzactions have been eliminated during preparing the consol idated financial statemnents.
(Continued)
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Informalion on mveslcss:

The tollowing is the information on investees for the vear ended Decomber 31, 2021:

Otigial Ryvesimant Highast halonce T,
Anount Ealance as of Decamber 31, 2021 during the Fear Incame Share of
Hnmenf | More of investe=|  Toncatinn | Maln kuginesses and | DrecemBer 31, Tre e 31, [ Percentage | CRrretog | ShameTinis [Parcentnge nf]  {hos) of [pr Hnte
nirsloy privtuds 1N k] ofjur 3 sl Owmershitp | bwislee | of vestes
shnTeE)
the Company  KLOBAL Twiwan  [rrading o bsrwee 119,142 19,14 104 7936 % L, S WATS 16 WIS 42,997 | @ckes |
T L LITIENCE und soften: fon md 3
i 1 el ani
st
ki 1 ko LT 3 Fuew:  Trading e bade e - T - 4, - MLl S - - Hoda )
FECEHOLOGY i #albwant Ror
yietwoek systans
w Towor Dt wofbwuns wd ) 0, e irdy AT V) R TUTYR: E 21478 4 IRE oy nae ciagar] ez |
RN and 3
18 e
# }oLREX Beath Adnca [Tmport nd expact ob 51,072 . 1| oo 2pses i W0 3961 41,385 | (ke 3
lebectrome praducts tor sl X
File end puriies
" (RTATTNG Tawan  [Market rmateh, 2,981 1751 1 79 4 ats A9 1,755 I I [RaeF] (Rt
Jremugeoint conaiting anil 3}
urid datu procsmng
e
i WECD TEED Temwan T eleronmronizabons ' 5,000 . - g 3,000 10000 % C5E05 oAt rHikes 3
TECTL Enzmearmy and 4y
4 T INISARE Tatwan  [Medlcal aqupiren: S [Xe:rg L7 W0 L6 S RELIRT L (lazy \ote
Framanherrg and 5
* IRANDEYE Tawun  {rats seftwari: g datol ™, 54T 4,547 5,543 2t 4 vy 104, 50 5043 1533 3250 amse | oleld
[reaesting seryices
" UV ANCEDEEE | Twwim [App biatoes o 0,601 004t 1,103 A 3,485 1,153 Mo 1B 5380 ('Nf*ﬂs_ 1
LY PEHNATIONA ollwun: weglacenlmg and 3
1. e oug
@ Erertagtmg Tupital Tauwtn  |Cereloproent and mlz 3000 - finn) 12 1 =] 4,133 300 941 % (L (3T Muilu iy
It rd oW
et cLouly dzlosan Taiwan  [Irading m hardware i - [} rY-Lh T i RE-R ST RY- - s |
T LA GSEL CE buried ukts une for ad 3
HET W GRS prebvork: unl
feavaTeaRlSaticng
B
- SN Tomp, gt menih, £ - 1 oL L ! Ul ey . o-To‘Je.; 1
T WY i 3h
larid daea processing
b-pgie]
otopAL U W Tuwag 5T mbiuwee . dd, sa4 . . u . 3304 14 10w . . Nrte 4
FITELL W e [UECHROL O mid 2aFrware for
e TWiCmL edeicel spsemns
VAR E R (ATEC Biasan, Tuwie  Yepplivsisns of 2,0l acn L0CH DO B 3,56 i) 100 00 w4y 53 sz | MHake1 1
e R eATIONA, Do ital Foftware urplemaniing wid 2%
lsep e
SN [T FNE Toiwars  [Purdost peseandy, W0, oA ZU00 | 1MeLa 1EE FALLT IRV I N = s ] ke |
W ugrenitrt e Uik and 5
landt dlaka processing

()

Ldote 1 Sulisidary of e Conekey

Hate ?+ Agwociaras ofthe Sampany

Hagte 5 Ehe equily tranzactions on the i3 have alresdy been Sliminated diirng prapanng the consolidated frandal tatements
etz 4 The Gl bas Rty digenoed of e squdy, pleane refer b Mote (i) for demils

‘Wote 5. The myestees compary have spplied tor dissohtica an torember 30, 2021,

Information on investment i Mainland China; Wone
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Major Sharsholders:
Unit: Shares
Shareholding
[Major shareholder’s name Shares Percenlage
K sda 06,841,239 51,41 %

(14) Segment information:

(a)

(b}

General information

The Group has four reportable product line segments: ICT Infrastructures, Computing & Data
Ulilization, Digitalization. and Clouds, Soflware and Services. The ICT Infrastructures segmend
distributes and resells products from Cisco and other brands; the Computing & Data Utilization
segmenl distribules and resells products from IBM, Dell, EMC, and other brands: the Digitalization
segment distributes and resells products from Oracle and other brands; and the Clouds, Software and
Services segment and resells sells cloud products, provides technical support, after-sales services
and market research, as well as survey services. It also generates revemue incurred from the
installation and support of software and hardware, foreign domain integration, as well as market
survey, information system integration, design and import,

The Group's reported segments consist of stratepic business units which provide ditterent products
and services. Since sach simalegic business unil vequires differenl technology amd markeling
siralgmes, 11 must be administered separately.

Information for reportable segment profit or loss, segment assets and their measurement and
reconciliations

The Group did not allocate operating cxpenzes, income tax cxpensc, and non-operating income and
expenses to reportable scgments. The roported amount i the same as the amount of the financial
stalemenis wsed by operating decision makers.

The measwrement of the profit or loss of the Group™s operating segments was based on gross profit
from operation, which has also been taken as the basis of petformance cvaluation. The accounting
policies for the oparating scgments are the same as those in the summary of significant aceounting
policies described in note 4, Besides. sales and transfors betwoen the segments are regarded as
second party transactions and arg measured based on cuarent market prices.

Other segments of the Group mainly sell commuanicalions squipment and provide education traimng
services. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the aforementioned segments did not
reach the quantitative thresholds of a reportable segment.

(Continued)
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The Group™s operating segmend information and reconciliation are as follows:

Fog the yeur ended December 31, 2021

Colnpating & Clouds,
T Date Eoltware and Qther Recondlintion
In[rastruciores ization _Digitsliwlon Scrvices products und cllminaliony ‘iotul

Revenue
Bevenie frons extenal

arfomers I M TGE16R 3,405,802 145403224 943,732 L17LB1G - 11.952,534
Intersegmept revenuss 17457 36.614 2,711 14 308 . 81301}
Tolal yeverue 5 3,785,638 5,442,506 1,645,985 S58241 74,51k BL301) 11,952,834
trass proft ] 483,033 541,272 135,501 238,159 32,453 wh 1,581,615

Tor Uie yesr ended December 31, 2020
Computing & Clouds,
el Dt Soltware amd Olher Becundlialion
Tniracrn ooess TeBzntion Digiesllzaiign Services prodnox and il Taia]

Revemt
Revenne from éxterng]

cuetomers 5 JETTESE 6680 642 3051756 SFETIR 100,370 - 14279.184
Tntersegment revenues 5039 51,832 7.8 11817 56 [EENEE Y]
okl reverie H AHN2.607 §.75.474 X, 60,114 571258 TiH). §45 (TS,77y 14,279,184
Gross profil (lus) H 514,745 TN.637 244,203 305,343 21.5¥ (85,305 1724350
Geographic m{ormation

In presenting information on the basis of geography, revenue is based on the geographicai location
of customers. and non-current assets are based on the gengraphical location of the asseta.

Revenue from the external customers;

For the yvears ended December 31

Creparaphic information 2021 2020
Taiwan $ 11,141,974 13,331,085
Africa 767,636 766,663
Others 43.224 181.436
‘Total b} 11,552,834 14,279,184

(Continued)

181



(d)

SYSAGE TECIINOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements

MNon-currend assely:

Decem ber 31, December 31,
Creagraphic information 2021 2020
Taiwan b 1,286,552 1,232,181
Africa 131.941 151.579
Total b 1,418,493 1,383,760

Non-cwrent assots mclude property, plant and equipment, invostment praperty, intangible asscis,
right-of-usc asscts, and ofher asscts, but cxcluding financial instruments and deferred income tax
asscls,

Major customers

The Group’s tevenues from a single castomer did not excecd 10% of eperating revetiues in the
statements of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, so the Group
does nol disclose any inflormation on major customers,
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Appendix 2
Parent Company Only Financial Statements with
Independent Auditors' Report for the most recent years
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(English Translation of Parent Company (ndy ¥Minandal Statements and Report Orlginally Jssusd En Chinase)
SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD,

Statemenls of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

{In Thongands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Trge the years ended Decemsber 31,

2021 2024 (Restated)
Amonnt % Awouat M
Operating revenue (Notes 6(u) and Ty § 9437728 100 11071938 100
QOperatlng costs (Notes 6(¢) and 7y 8,259,037 _ 8§ _ D753453 _ 83
Gross profit 1,178,691 2 131846 12
Cperaling cxpenses (Notes 6{ch, (q) (v}, 7 and 12):
Selling expenses 603,782 3 510,552 3
General and admirdsiralive expenses 151,384 2 200,705 2
Research and development expense I6EF - 16,582 -
Fxpected credit 1oss (Reversal of sxpected credit loss) (15.306) - 11,226 _ -
Teq,04% 8 735,065 7
Net aperafing [uname 414 647 4 579381 _ 8
Non-nperating Income and expenses;
Cihet ineomne (Nodes S(u). (p). {wiand 73 17,72% - 26,718 -
Injered income 355 - 556 -
£ her gaing and losses {Motea 6(1), (w) and 7) 189,859 2 57,846 1
Fupes coste (Notes 6(0), (wand 7) [10445) - (7.880y -
Share af profit (losa) of subsidizarfies and associates accounted for using, aguity methad (Mote 6(£)) 66,685 1 17438 -
264,183 3 94,669 1
Profit before tocomie by £TR.R25 7 714,050 [
Tess: Income 191 cxpenses (Noke 6{1)) i2M 1 1370060 1
Profil 577591 & 3758 5
Olher comprehensive iuporme:
Ttems ihiut may ot be recassified subsequently to prafit or loss
Share of other comprehsnsive income of subsidiaries and sssociales Tor nsing equity method (Nole
o {33) - - -
Less Income tax related to componemsa of other conmpichenstve incomes that will not be reclasst Red
to profil or loss - - - P
1tems that may not be redassifled subsequently to profit or loss 8 _ - - -
Ttews that may be reclassifled subsequently to profit or loss
Bxchange dithtences on ranslation of foreign filnancial statements (30:260) - 21718y -
Less Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss - - - -
Ttems that, may be recassificd sutisequently to profit or loss (30.260) _ - L2VL718) _ -
Oiher comprebeyelve imcame, net of ky (30.M3) - (21.718) _ -
Totdl comprehend ve Licome § SaT2d8 0 & 515332 5
Proftt (Joss) attribetable to: T —
Crwmers ofpamrﬂ. 5 T.AM & 49,017 5
Former owner of buginess combinglion under common coriral - - (1967
3 5TTS41 6 537050 %
Comprehensive Income (inss) atirfbutable ta: - —
Owners of parest 8 sTae 6 519017 5
Fommer owner of tusiness combination imder commen contral - = {33,685 _ -
5 547,248 & 15,332 5
Farnings per share (Nofe 6{t)): T T
Baslc earnings per share (NT dollars) % 3.n7 2,91
Diluled earnings per shiure (NT dollars) 5 304 2.89

See actompanying notes to parent company only financial staterents.
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(English Translation of Parent Company Only Mnancial Statements and Report Originally Tssued in Chinese)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD.

Statements of Cush Flows

Far the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
{In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

C'ash fows from operaling actlvilies:
Profit befare income tax
Adfustmenls:
Adjustnents, to recomelle profif (Joss):

Dregprecialion expense
Amortization expense
Clains on disposal of propesty, plant and equipment
Expected credit loss (Reversal of expected credit loss)
et gaing trom financial sssets of lisbilitice at fair value thiosgh protit or loss

Share of profit (loss) of nbsidiaries anid associates accommted for 1ing aquity method

Cain on disposal of subsidisries
3ain an digposal of nen-current assers held for sale
Tntérest expense
Intarest income
Dividend income
Others
Total atjusiments to recandile profit (loss)
Changes in operating assels aud linbil Hes:
Total net changes in operating assets!
Culif financial assets at Fair value through profit or loss
Noter and aceomnts teceivable (inchuding related parties)
Inverifories
Other currest assaie
Other non-corey assets
‘I'otal net changes in operating assets
Tokal net changes in operating lisbitities:
Conrract lability
Acconnts payable
Other payables
Ailvance reeeipls
Cther current tiabilities
“Total net changes in operating liabjlities
Total net changes in operating assete and liabilities
okl adjustments
(azh Inflows {outlows) penerated trom operations
trierest received
Dividends received
frtarest paid
Tncome baxes paid
Net cash Inflows (outflow) from operating activities
Cash flows Trom Investing activities:
Acquisition of non-camen financial assets at fair vaiue through protit or loss
Proceeds trom disposal of non-crurent financial assets et tait valne throngh profit or loss
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method
Procetds from disposal of'investments acconnted tor nsing equity methed
Proceeds from disposal of non-rument assets as held for sals
Actisition of propery, plait and equi pment
Proceeds from Jisposal of properly, plant, wned equipiment
Decrease in refimdable depeosits
Nel cash vutAows from invesling aclivilies
{ash flows from finandnp activides:
Tncrease in rhott-term horromings
Repayments of long-term borowings
Tecrense tn gimtamee deposits
Payments of leazz liabilities
Casli dividends paid
Net cash Inflows (outflows) from Anandng activiiles
Tnerease fdecrease) in cash and cesh equival ents
Cash and cash equlvatents, begtnning of perlod
(a5l and cash eqpivalents, end of period

See accompaltying notes to patent company anty financial statements,
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Hor the yeors ended Degember 31,

202} 2020 (Kestalady
% 678825 574,050
57,906 56,760
76Y 1,057
{136) (325)
{15,304 11,226
£76.542) (18,626}
(66.625) (17,438
{20,698) -
(57.528) -
10,445 7,880
{355) {536
{7,812} {10.&5)
- {1,425}
{175.934) 28,467
150,043 250,731
{646.202) (48,205)
258 603 {55,828)
(4,126} LUl
- {1,123)
{241,593} 155,546
{111,126} (367,160
{285.782) 277,535
45,016 26,364
9,205 (24,723}
214 124
(34.2.383) (137.8RUY
1583,975) 17,686
(759,904 ) 46,153
{81,084) 720,203
355 556
32263 37 405
{11.335) {7827}
(97417} {92.008)
156310} 638,333
100,00t ) (40,752}
- 627
(367,435} (203,853
49 890 -
181,454 -
{6.127) {3154
08 TR
4,256 4,275
{237.318) (238,071)
TON.000 300,000
{14.160) (13,473}
1330 (3.584)
(24,854 (25,556)
{470,894} [543.072)
189,757 (348,223
{203.780) 111,037
589,695 478,658
% 3IBS.S S8, 695



{Knglish Transtation of Purent Company Only Finaneisl Statements Originally Lssued in Chinese)
SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD.

Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
(Expressed in Thousands of New 'Taiwan Dollars, UTnless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company hisiory

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD, (*the Company™) was incorporated on April 16, 1998 under the
approval of Ministry of Economic Affair, Republic of China (“R.0.C."). The address of its registered
office 1s 10F, No. 516, See. 1. Nethy Rd., Taipei City 114064, Taiwan (R.Q.C.), The Company’s major
business aclivities include distributing and reselling soflware and hardware cquipment of ICT
Infrastructures from Ciseo amdd olher companiss, Computing & Data Utilization rom IBM., Dell, EMC,
and other companies, Digitalization from Oracle and other companies. The Company provides miegraled
plamning [or the products it sells, mcluding related consulting education services. as well as reseatch,
development of information applications, services and sales business.

The Company had fully acquired COREX (P1Y) 1113 (* COREX™) from Partner Tech Corporation
(“Partner Teeh™) by cash on Janusry 4, 2021, Partner Tech and the Cotnpany has the same ultimate parent,

which is Qisda Corporation. The transaction i an organizational rcorganization under commen control;
please refer to Note 6(g) for details.

(2) Approval date and procedures of the parent company only financial stalements:

The parent company only financial statements have been authevized for issuc by the Beard of Directors on
Febuary 24, 2022.

{3) New standards, amendmenis and inler pretations adopted:

(a) The tmpact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS8™)Y endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission (“FSC™), R.0O.C. which have already been adopted.

The Compary has initially adopted the following new amendments, which de not have a significant
itnpact on its patent company only fmancial statements, from January 1, 2021:

& Amendments to IFRS 4 “Extenston of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9"

® Amendments lo IFRS 9, IAS39, IFRS7, ITRS 4 and IFRS 16 “Interest Raie Benchmark Reform
Phase 27

‘The Company has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a significant
impact on its parent company only financial statements, from April 1, 2021:

» Amendments to IFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent Coneessions beyond June 30, 20217
(b} Theimpact of [FRSs issued by the FSC but not yet effective

The Company assesses thal the adoption of the {ollowing new amendments, eflective from Janeary
1, 2022, would not have 4 significanl smpacl on ils parent company only [inancial stalements:

s Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds befars Intended 1lse™

® Amondments to LAS 37 “Onerous Contractes  Cost of Fulfdlling a Contract™

{Continued)
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(e)

SYSACE TECHNOLOGY CO,,LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

o Annual Improvements Lo IFRSs Standards 2018-2020

& Amendments to IFRS 3 “Roference to the Conecptual Framework™

‘The impact of IFRSs isaned by Intemational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™) but not yet

endorsed by the FSC

The following new and amended standards, which may be relevant to the Company, have been
issued by the TASB, but have vet to be endarsed by fhe TSC:

Standards or Effective date per
Interpretations Contenti of amendment IASB
Amendments 10 IAS 1 The amendmenls aim  to promwole January 1. 2023
“Classification of Liabilities  consistency m applying the requirements
ag Current or Nen-current™ by belping companies delermine whether,

in the statement of balance sheel, debt and
other liabilities with an uncertain
settlement date should be classified as
current (due or potentially due to be settled
within one year) or non-current. The
amendments  inchude  clarifying  the
clasgification toquirements for debt a
company might sctile by converting it into
aquity.

The Company is evaluating the impact of its initial adoption of the abovementioned standards or
interpretations on its parent company only financial performance. The results thereof will be
disclosed when the Company completes its evatuation.

The Company docs not expect the following other new and amended standards, which have yot to be
endorsed by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its parent cornpany only financial statemonts:

& Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture™

IFRS 17 “ Insurance Contracts™ and amendments to IFRS 17 * Insurance Contracts™
Amendments to IAS 1 *Disclosure of Accounting Policies™

Amendments to TAS 8 *Definition of Accounting Estimates”

Amendments to TAS 12 “Defored Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction™

(Continued)
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SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO,,LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

(4} Summary of signiflicanl accounling policies:

The significant acconnting policies applied in the prepayation of these parent company only financial
statements arc xet out as below. Except for those specifically indicated, the following accounting policies
have beon applied congistently to all periods presented in these financial statcments.

(@)

(b}

Statement of comphiance

‘These parent company only financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Regulations (iovermning the Preparation of Financiat Reports by Sccuritics Issuers (¥ the
Regulations™).

Basis of preparation

{1

(1)

(i)

Rasis of measurement

Except lor financial assets (liabilities) at fair value through prolit or loss, the parent company
only financial slatements have buen prepared on a historical cosl basis.

Funetional and presentation curtency

The functivnal cutrency 1 delermined based on lhe primary economic eavironmeni n which
the Company operates. The parent company only financial statements are presented in New
Taiwan Dollars, the Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in
New [aiwan Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thonsand.

Business comMinations under commaon control

‘The business combinations under common control often oceur as the ownership of the
company change to anolher bul lhey are buth controlled by the same ullimate parenl company.
These combinations are reated as the later of either the carliesl comparalive penod m financial
statements or the date under common control te restate comparative information of prior
period. Under common control. assets and liabilities are recognized at their original cartying
amount. The parent company only financial statements do not recognize the goodwill or the
fair value of acquirer™s share of the acquiree’s interest in the acqnires’s identifiable assets,
liahilitics, and contingent liabilitics in excess of the common controtted carrying amount.

In preparing the balance sheet, the equily from acquisilion record as “Equity attributable 1o
former owner of business combination under common control™ ; In preparing the statements of

comprehensive income, the profit or loss belong to former controlling shareholders record as
“profit (loss), attributable to former owner of business combination under common control™.

(Continued)
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(d}

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO,,LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Foreign currency Lransaciions and operations

{i)

{3)

Foreign cutiency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated nic the respective functional eurrencies of the
Company entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
subseguent reporting period (*the reporting date”) monetary items denominated in foreign
cutrencies are translated into the functional correncies using the exchange rate at that date.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign curvencics that arc mcasured at fair value arc
translated into the fanctional currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair valoe
was determined. Non-manctary items denominated in forcign currencics measured based on
historical cost arc translated using the exchange rate at the date of transaction,

T'oreign operations

The assets and labilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair valne adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into the presentation cutrency at the exchange rates at the
reporting date. The incomc and cxpenscs of forcign operations are translated into the
presentation ewrrency at the average exchange rate, Exchange differences ats recognized in
other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence, or joint
cantrol is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation
it reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Company
disposcs of onty part of its intcrest in a subsidiary that includes a foroign operation while
retaining control, the relevant propottion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-
controlling intercsts. When the Company disposos of enly part of its investment in an associate
or joint venture that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant influence or joint
eontrol, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is teclassified to profit or Joss.

When Lhe setllement of & monetury recsivable from or payable 1o a foreign pperation is neither
planned nor likely {0 oceur in the {oreseeable fulure, Exchange dilferences arismg from soch a
monetary item that are considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(Jassification of current and non-cunrent asscts and liabilities

An assel is classified as current under one of the [ollowing criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

{1)

{ii)
(iii)
{iv)

I expeets to realize fhie assot, or intonds te scll of consume it. i its normal operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is expected to be realized within twelve months aficr the reporting date; or

The asset is cash and cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

{Continued)
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SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO,,LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
clagsified as non-cuirent.

{i) Itis cxpoeted to bo seitfed in its normal operating cyele;
{it) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(it} Itis due to bo sctiled within twelve months after the reperting date; or

(iv) The Company does nol have an unconditional nghl (o defer selllement ol the lmbility lor at
least twelve months aller the reporling period. Terms of a Lability that could, at the option of
the counterparly, resull in ils setllement by issuing equity instruments do pot afect ils
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits. Cash equivalents comprise short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into lmown amount of cash and are subject to an
ingighificant risk of changes in their fair value. 1'tme deposits which mest the above definition and
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes should be recognized as cash cquivalents,

Financial assets

Agcounts receivables issued are initially recognized when thay ate criginated. All other financial
asscts and financial labilitics arc tnitially reeognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provigions of the nstrument. A financial assct (unless it 13 3 tiads teceivable without s
significant financing component) or financial liability iz initially measured at fair value, plus, for an
item not at fair vahie through profit or loss (“FVTPL™), transaction costs that are dircctly attributable
to its acquisition or isspe. An account teceivable without 2 significant financing component is
initially measurcd at the transaction price.

(i) Financial assats

All regular way purchases or sales of fimancial asscts are recognized and derccognized on a
trade datc and seftlc date basis.

On milial recognition, a financial assel 15 classified as messured at amortized cost or FVTPL.
Financial assels are not reclassified subsequent to their inilial recognition unless the Company
changes its buziness model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financiat
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.
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Financial assets measured at amorlized cost

A financial assct is measurad at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as mcasured at fair value through profit or loss:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

© ifs contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and intercst on the principal amount cutstanding,

A [imancial assel measured at amorlized cosl is inilially recogniced st fair value,
plus/minus the comulative amortization wsing the effective interest method, and adjusted
for any loss allowance. Interest income. foreign exchange gams and losses, and
impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derscognition is
recagnized in profit or loss.

Financial assels at fair value {hrough profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or fair vatue through comprehensive
income (“FVOCT™) described as above are measured at FV1TL, including derivative
financial asscts. On initizl rccognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a
financial asset, which meely the requirements to be mocasured at amoitized cost or at
FVQCI, as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arisc. These assets arc subsequently measured at fair
value.

Nel gains and losses, meluding any dividend and inlerest income, are recognized i prolit
or loss.

Impairment of financial asscts

The Company recoghizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECL™) on financial
assets measured at amaortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, notes and
accounts receivable, other receivables. guarantee deposits and other financial assets).

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetie ECL, except for
the following which are measured ag 12-month LCL:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debl secunlies apd bunk balances [or which credit nsk (1e. the risk of delsull
oceurring over lhe expecled life of the financial nstrument) has nol mereassd
significantly since mitial recognition.

Losk allowance for accounts receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECI.
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Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result fom all possible delaull events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECI. are the portion of KCL that result from default events that arc passible
within the 12-month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months)

The maximum peried considered when estimating ECI, is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to eredit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a finanicial asset has increased signiticantly
since mitial recognilion and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable
and supporiable information (hat is relevant and available withoul undue cost or effori.
This includes both quaniitalive and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Company’ s hastorival experience and informed credif assessment as well as forward-
louking information.

‘The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial assct has tnercased significantly
ohee it ig past due,

‘The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more
than 120 days past due or the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Company in full.

ECL are probability-weighted cstimate of credit losscs over the expected Life of financial
assets. Credit Iosses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (ie. the
difference between the cash flows due 1o the Company in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows thal the Company expects to receive). ECL are discounted at the
effective interest vate of Lhe financial asset,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized enat are credit-impaired. A financial asset is eredit-impaired when one or more
ovents that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flaws of the financial
agsot have occurred. Mvidence that a financial assct ts credit-impaired includes the
following obsetrvable data:

sigmificant {inancial difficully of the borrower or issuer,
- ahreach of contract such as a default or boing mote than 120 days past duc;

* \he lender of the borrower, for economic or contraclual rcasons relaling to the
borrower’s [inaneial diflicully, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would nol otherwise consider;

- it & becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other finaneial
reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Luss allowances for [inancial assels measured al amorlized cost ars deducled from the
gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial assct is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset tn its entirety or & portion thereaf.
The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of
writc-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company
expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject 1o enforesment activities in order to comply with
the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derscognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights 1o the cash
flows [rom the [inancial assel expire, or it transfers the rights 10 recetve the contractyal
cash flows in a lransaction m which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferted or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not refain control of the financial asset.

The Company cnters mto transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its
statement of balance shect but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
tewards of the transferred asscts. In those cascs, the transferrcd assets are not
derecognized.

(i) Financial Kabilitics and equity instruments

h

2)

3)

Classification ol debl or equity

Debt or equity instraments issued by the Company are classified as financial liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement and the definitions
of a financial lability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the asscts of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities, Heuity instruments are recogtized at the
amount of consideration received less the direct ssuing cost,

Pinancisl habilitiss

Financial liabilittes are classified as measured at amortized cost or FYTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is held for trading, it is a derivative, or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial Habilitics at FV'LT1, arc measured at
fair valuc and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in
profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange paing and losses are recognized in
prafit or loss. Any gain or ess an derecognition is alao recognized in profit or Toss.
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4)  Derecognition of financial habiities

The Company derecognizes a financial lability when its contractual abligation has boen
discharged, cancdlled or cxpired. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability
when its tarms are modificd and the cash flows of the modified lability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial lability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair valus.

The differcnee hotween the carrying amount of a financial liability dorecognized and the
congideration paid (including any non-cash assets transforred or liabilitics assumed) is
recagnizcd in profit or toss.

3 QOffseiting of {inaneial assels and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforeeable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net hasis
or to realize the assct and settle the Hability simultancounsly,

(iii) Detivative financial nstruments

Berivatives held for hedging risk exposure to anvency and interest rate are initially measured
at fair value, Subsequent to initial recognition, dertvatives are measted at fair value, and
changes thorein are recogmized in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value, The costs of inventories
weighted-average principle include expenditre incurred in acquuring the inventories and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realizable vaiue is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less. the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Non-current asscts classified as held for sale

Non-curren{ assels or dispesal groups comprising assets and Habililies that are expected 1o be
recovered primarily throbgh a sale iransaction, rather than through conlinuing use, are reclassified as
non-currend assels held for sale. Immediately before the milial classification of the non-current agsels
or disposal groups as held for sale, the carrying amount of the assets (or all the assets and liabilities
in the group) is measured in accordance with the Company’ s applicable accounting policies.
‘Theteafter, the assets or disposal groups are generally measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fzir value less costs io sell.

Onee classified as held for sale, intangible assets and property, plant and eyurpment, are no Ienger
amortized or deprecialed and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equily accounted.
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Investment in associates

Asgociates arc those ontities in which the Company has gignificant influence, but not centrol, over
their financial and operating policics.

Investments ih associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in
associates inclades goodwill arising from the acquisition, Jess, any accumulated impairment losses.

‘The parcat company only financial reports include the Company’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of those associates, after adjustments to alipn their accounting policies
with those of the Company from (he dale on which significant inflluence commences until the dale on
which signilicant influence ceases, When an associale’s squity changes due 10 reasoms other than
profit and loss or comprehensive income, which did nol result i changes of the Company’ s
shareholding percentlage in the associile, the Company recognizes equity changes atiributable to the
Company by its sharchelding percentage as capital surplus.

Unrealized gains 2nd losses resulting from fransactions between the Company and an associate are
recognized onty to the extent of unrelated party’s interests in the associate.

When the Company”s share of losses of an associate equal or exceed its interest in an associate, it
discontinues recognizing its share of forther losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero,
additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that the Company
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments an behalf of the associate.

When the Compary subscribes ta additional shares in an associate at 2 percentage different from its
gxisting ownership percentage, the resulling carrying amount of the investment will difler [rom the
amouni of the Company’s proportionate inferest m the net assels ol the associate. The Company
records such a difference as an adjustment to invesiments, with the corresponding amount charged or
credited to capital surplus. The aforesaid adjustment should first be adjusted under capital surplus. 1€
the capital surplus resulting from changes in ownership interest s not sullicient, the remaining
difference 1 debited lo retaimed camings. I the Company®s ownership inferest 1s reduced dug to the
additional subscription to the shares of the associate by other investors, the proportionate amount of
the gains of losses praviously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
will be reclassified to profit or loss on the same basis as would he required i the associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities,

Investments in subsidiarics

Investments in subsidiaries are accounied for using the squity method when preparing Lhe parent
company only financial reports. There is no difference between net income and comprehensive
income in the Company’ s parent company only financial statements and net income and
comprehensive income attributable 10 stockhelders of the parent. The equity in the Company’s
parent company only financial statements and the equity attributable to stockholders of the parent in
the Company’s consolidated financial statements are also the same.

Changes m Lhe Company*s ownership mierest in a subsidiary that do nol resull m a loss of contrel
ate accounted for as equity transactions.
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Investrment properly

Investment property is the property held cither to carn rental income or for caprtal appreciation or for
both, but not for salc in the erdinary course of business use in the production or supply of goeds or
services ot for admindstrative purmposes. Investment property i moasured at cost on initial
tecognition, and subsequently at cost, Jess accumulaied depreciation and accumulaied impairment
losses. Depreciation expaonse 18 caleulated based on fhe depreciation method, useful Hves, and
residual value which are the same as those adopted for property, plant, and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
procecds from disposal and the carrying amount) is rocognized in profit or loss.

Rental incoms fom investment property is recognized as olher revenue on a siraight-line basis over
the lerm of the lease. Lease mcenlives granled are recoymized as an integral part of the total rental
neome, over the lerm of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment
{1) Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant, and equipment are measated at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing cost, less aceumulated dopreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

I signilicant parts of an ilem of properly, plant and equipmenl have dilferent useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate ilems (major components) of properly, plant and equipment,

Any gain or logs on disposal of an ftem of property, plant and equipment is tecognized in profit
or loss,

{ii) Subscquenl costs

Subscquent expenditure is capitalized only when it is peobable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

{un) Deprectation

Depteciation is calculated an the cost of assets less their residual valucs and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated uscful lives of cach component of an
itemn of property, plant, and equipment.

Land 18 nol depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of
property, plant, and eqnipment arc as follows:

1)  Buildings and improvements: 50 years
2)  Office and other cquipment: 2 to 7 yoars

Depreciation methods, uselul lives and residual values are reviewsd al each annual reporting
date and adjusted il appropriate.
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{iv) Retlassificalion lo investmenl property

The property is reclassificd to investment property at its carrying amount when the use of the
property changes from owner-occupicd to investment property.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesscs whether a contract is, or contains, a leasc. A
contract is, or containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right te control the use of an identified
assct for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

)

A3 i leases

The Company recognizes a righl-of-use asset and a lease liability ai the leass commencement
date. The righl-of-use assel is inilially measured al cost, which comprises the tmitinl amount of
the lease liability adjusied for any lease payments made at or belure the commencement date,
plug any initial direcl costs incurred and an estimale of costs 1o dismantle and remove the
underlying assel or 1o restore the underlying asset or the site on whach it 15 located, less any
lease mcentives recerved.

The right-of-usc asset is subscquently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commeneement date to the carlier of the end of the uscfidl life of the right-of-nsc assct or the
chd of the lease tetm. In addition, the tight-of-use asset is penodically reduced by impairment
loszes, if any, and adjusted for cortain temeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liabilily 15 mnittally measured ui the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid al the commencement date. The lease liabality is inilially measured at the present value of
the lease payments thal are nol paid al the commencement date, discounled using Lhe interest
rate implicil in the lease or, if that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Company’ s
ineremental borrowing rate. {3enerally, the Company uses ils incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments, ineluding in-substance fixed payments;

variable lease paryments that depend on an index or a eate, initially measmed using the
index or tale as at the commencement date:

—  amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

—  paymenis or penalties for purchise or lemmation oplions that are reasonably certain lo
be exercised.
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The lease Lability is subsequently measured al amerfized cost using the elfechive imterest
method. It is remeasured when:

there is a change in futitre lease payments anising from the change in an index or rate; or

—  thets is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a restdual value guarantee; or

there is & change in the assessment of whether it will bave the option to cxercisc s
purchasc; or

—  there iy a change in its assessment of whether it will exercise an exlension or lerminalion
option; or

—  there is any lease modification in lesse subject, seope of the lease, or other lerms.

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrving amount of the right-of-use asset, or in protit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zera.

Wlicn the lcasc liability is remcasured to refleet the partial or full termination of thc lease for
lease modifications that decreasc the scope of the lease, the Company accounts for the
remeasurernenl of the lease liability by decreasing (be carrying amount of (he right-ol-use assat
1o reflect the partial or full trmination of the lease, and recogmize the dufference 1 profil or
loss any gain or loss relating lo the parlial or full {ermination of the lease.

The Company presents gight-of-uge asects that do not mect the definition of investment and
laase liabilitics as a separatc line item respectively i the balance shoets,

The Company has elected not lo recognize right of use assels and lease lisbilities for short term
leases of office squipment of low value assets, The Company recognizes the leass payments
associaled with these keases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a leasor

When Lhe Company acls as a lessor, it delenmines al lease commencement whether each lease
is a finance lease or an operating lease. To classily each lense, the Company makes an overall
assessment of whether (he lease transfers to the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership meidental to ownership of the underlying assel. I this 15 the cesc, then the lease
is a finance lease; if not, then the lease is an operating lease. As part of this assessment. the
Company considers cerfain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the
econemic life of the asset.

When the Company 1% an infermediate lessor, 1t accounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sub-lease separately. Il asyesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the
right-of-use assel ansing fom the head lease, nol with reference to the underlying asset. I a
head lease i¢ a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above,
then il classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease ecomponents, the Company applics TFRS1S to
allocate the consideration in the contract.
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For operaling lease, the Company recognizes rental income on a straighi-line basts over the
lease term.

Impairment of non-derivative financial assels

At cach reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, then the asset”™ s recoverable amount is estimated. (foodwill is tested
annually for impairment.

For impaitment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest grotp of assety that penerates
cash inllows [rom continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other asseis or
cash geperating units (“CGU™). Guodwill ansing from a business combinalion 15 allocaled to CGU
or proups of CGU that are expeeted lo benefil rom the synergies of the combination,

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU s the greater of its value in use and its fair valie less
eosts to sell. Valoe in use is baged on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount vate that reflects cavent market assessmonts of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGUL

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or togs. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goondwill allncated to the (51, and then ta reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGLUT on a pro rata basia.

An impairment loss in respect of poodwill is not reversed. For other asssts, an impairment loss is
reversed only to The extent that the asset’s carying amount does nol exeeed the camying amount that
would have been delenmined, nel of depreciation or amorlzation, if no impairment loss had been
recogmized 10 pror years.

Revemue from contracts with customers

Revenue i3 measured basing on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for ransforring poods of services 1o a customer, The Company recognizes revenue when it
satislies a performance obligation by transferring control of a pood or a service to a customer. The
[ollowing 15 a deseription of the Company™s major revenues:

{t) Salsof goods

Revenue is reeomized when the control over a product has been irans{emred Lo the customer.
When the products are delivered 1o the customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell he products, and there 15 mo unfullilled obligation thai could affect
the customer’s acceplance of the preducts. Delivery ocours when the products have been
shipped 1o the specific location, the risks of obselescence and foss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract. the acceprance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that
all eriteria for acceptance have been satistied,
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A receivable is recognized when the goods are defivered as this is the poinl in time that the
Company has a right to an amount of consideration that iz unconditional. Advance sales
receipts are recognized as contract liabilities and are transferred to revenue upon the delivery
of goods.

(il SBerviccs
The Company pravidss installation and maintenance services on hardware and software. The

rocognition of the revenue gonerated was based on the progress towards completing the
transaction recognized by the two parties as of the reporting dats,

(iti) Tinancing components

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of
the promised goods or services te the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year.
As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value
of money.,

Employece benclits
(i} Defincd contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined confribution pension plans are recognized as an
employee benelil expense m profil or loss 1n the penods dunng which services are rendered by
employees,

(it) Short-term employee benefits

Short-lerm employee benefit obligations are expensed as the related service 1s provided. A
Kabihly is recognized for the amounl expected {o be paid if the Company has a presemt legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Income taxes

Inzoms laxes meluds buth current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations, or recognized dirdetly in equily or other comprehensive meome, all currenl and
delerred taxes are recognized m profit or loss.

Cutrent taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for
the year and any adjustment to the lax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of curzent lax payables or recervables are measured using {ax rales enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting dale,

Deferred income taxes are recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and labilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purpeses. Deferred taxes are not recognized for the following exceptions:

{i) wmporary dif{erences on the indtial recogmition of assets and labilities in a transaction thal is
nol a business combination and that afleets neither accounling nor taxable profits (losses) at
the time of the Isnsaction;
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{u) Llemporary differences relaled to investments in sybsidianies, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporaty
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foresecable fihure; and

{(1i) taxable tenporary differences artsing on the initial recopnition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unnsed tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible tempotary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
availahle against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date
and are reduced to the oxtent that it is no longer probablc that the related fax bencfits will be
realized; such reductions arc reversed whot the prabability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferrsd taxes are measured al tax rates thal are expected 10 be spplied o temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rales snacted or subslantively enacted on the reporting date.

Deferred tax assats and liabilities may be offset apainst each other if the following criteria are mat:

(1) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assels agamst current tax
Liabililies: and

(1) the deferred tax assots and the deferred tax labilities tolate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on eithor:

1)  the same taxable entily; or

2)  ditferent taxable entitics which intend eithor fo scitle current tax Habilities and assets on
# not basiy, or to realize the assety and settle the liabilities simultancously, in sach futurs
peried in whicl significant amounts of deferred fax labilitics or asseis are expocted to be
settled or recoveted,

Business combination

The Company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition methed. The goadwill
arising from an acquisition is measured as the excess of (7} the consideration transferred (which is
gencrally measured at fair value) and (ii) the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree, both
over the identifiable net assets acquired at the acquisition date. If the. amount caleulated above 13 a
deficit batance, the Company recognized that amount as a gain on a bargain purchasc in profit or loss
immediaizly afler reassessing whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of
the liabihties assumed.

All acquisition-related transaction costs incurred are expensed as incurred, except for the issuance of
debt or equity instruments.

For sach business combination, the Company measures any non-controlling equily interest in the
acquiree either at farr valug or at the non-conlrolling intérest’s proporlionate share of the acquiree’s
idenlifiable nel assels, i the non-gontolling inleresls are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquire™ s net assets in the event of liquidation. Other
components of non-controlling interest are measured at their acquisition date fair valves, unless
another measurement hasis is required by [FRSs endorsed by FSC.

{Continued)

206



&)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO,,LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

The Company recognizes the acquisilion-dale far value of the contingeni ¢onsideration as parl of the
consideration transferred. The cost of the acquisition and measuring goodwill will retrospectively be
adjusted when some changes in the fair value of contingent consideration that the Company
recognizes have been made after the acquisition date. Measurement period adjustments is the result
of additional information that the Company obtained after that date about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date. The measurement period will not exceed one year from the
acquisition datc. "I'he Company accounts for the changes in the fair value of eontingent consideration
that arg not measurement period adjustments based on the elassification of contingent congideration.
Contingent consideration classificd as equity shall not be remeasured and 1tz subsequent settlement
will be acconnted for within equity. Othars will be measured at fair value st cach reporting date and
changes in fair valuc will be recognized in profit or loss.

(3) LEarmngs per share

The Company discloses the Company’s basic and diluted camings per shars attributable to ordinary
equity holders. The caleulation of busic eamings per share is based on the profil attribulable Lo the
vrdinary shareholder of the Company divided by weighled-average number of ordinary shares
oulsianding. The caleylation of diluted eamings per share is based on (he profil aitnibutable lo
urdinary sharcholders of the Company divided by weighted-average number of ordinary shares
oulstanding afler adjustment for ihe effects of all dilulive potential ordinary shares. Diluiive
potential ordinary shares comprise accrued employes remuneration.

(t)  Operating scgments

Please refer 1o the Company’ s consolidated fmancial statements for Lhe year ended December 31,
2021, for Further details.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the paren! compmny only financial statements m conformity with the Regulations
requires management 1o make judgments, ostimates, and assumplions thatl affeet the application of the
accounting policies and the reporled amount of assets, lHabilities, income, and expenses. Acleal results
may differ from these estimates.

Management continucs to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. Any changes in accounting
estimates arg recognized during the period and the impact of these changes in accounting cstimates are
recognized m the following period.

Regarding cuntrol of investeus or judgmen! of significant mfluence, please reler lo the Company’s
consolidated financial stalements for the year ended December 31, 2021, for furiher details. There are no
critical judgments made in applying the accounting policies that have significant effects on the amounts
reeognized in the parent company only financial statements.
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Information about assumptions and eslimation uncertainties thal have a significant sk of resulling in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year is as
follows:

(a)  Valuation of inventorics

As inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Company estimates the
net realizable value of inventories for normal loss, ohsolescence and unmarketable itemy at the end
of the reparting perind and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. ‘The net
realizable value of the inventory is mainly bascd on assumptions as to future demand within a
gpecific time harizen. Due to the rapid industrial transformation, there may be significant changes in
the net realizable value of inventorics, Ploase refor to Note 6(s) for the valuation of inventorics.

(b} Valuation of impainment of goodwill ansing from investment subsidiarics

The carrying amounts of investments in subsidiaries include goodwill arising from the acquisition,
the assessment of impairment of goodwill requires the Company to make subjective judgments to
identify CGLU, allocate the goodwill to rolevant CGU, and estimate the recoverable amount of
telovant CGUL Any changes in these estimates based on the change in economic conditions or
business strategics could result in significant adjustments.

Valuation process

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosure include measuring financial and non-financial asscts
and liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss. The Company’s financial instrutnent valuation group
conducts independent verification on Iair value by using data sources that are independent, reliable, and
representalive of exercise prices. This {inancial instrument valuation also periodically adjusts valuation
models, conducts back lesting, renews mput dala for valuation models, and makes all viher necessary [air
value adjustments 1o assure the ralionality of fair value,

The Company strives to use market ohservable inputs when measuring assets and liahilities. Different
levels of the fair value hierarchy to be used in determining the fair value of financial instruments are as
follows:

® Level Liquoted prices (onadjusted) in active markets for identified assets or liabilitics.

e Lovel 2inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for fhe assct or
liability, cither dircetly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

® Lavel 3:input for the assel or liabilily is not based on 1he observable market informalion.

For any transfer within the fair value hierarchy, the impact of the transfer is recognized on the reporting
date.
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{6) Explanatien of signilicant accoumnis:
(a) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Cash on hand and pelty cash b 300 228
Check and demand deposits 385.615 589467
- 385,915 589,695

(b}  Financial asgets and labilitics at fair value through profit or loss
(1) Details are set oul in the following table:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Corrent:
Open-end funds b - 150,003
Non-current:
Foreign and domestic unlisted stocks 240.694 157,694
Damestic nnlisted equities 97,602 -
T'otal £ 338,296 307,697
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss:
Cumrenl:
Pre-purchased foreign currency forward contracts 8 (2.280) (635)
Contingent considerations arising from business
combinations (5,236) (2,395)
Nen-current:
Contingent considerations arising from business
combinations {V7.986) (78,836)
3 (105,508) (81 ,886)

The above contingenl considerations arising from business combinations were generaled from
the merger of COREX, the Pariner Tech’s sale and purchase agreement amd (he relaled
accessory contracts from lhe prior year, and the merger al STATINC. Under the contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration was estimated by the discounted cash
flow method based on the future profitability of each subsidiary.
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(it) The Company acquired 18.89% of equity intersst in GRANDSYS INC. (GRANDSYS), an
unlisted company, al a price totaling $74,380 thousand in May 2020, resulling m significant
mpacl on GRANDSYS, which was transferred to mvestment under the equily method. Please
ses Note &) for information on the squily inleresl transaction.

(iti) Detivative financial instruments are uscd to hedge assets or habilitics denominated in foreign
currencics for visks arising from eschange rate fluctuations. The following table scts out the
Company’ 3 detivatives reeognized as held-for-trading financial liabilitics to which hedging
accounting was not applicable:

December 31, 2021

Mominal Maturity Pre-agreed
Financial instruments amounts period exchange rate
Pre-purchased foreign currency
Buy USIYSell NID USD14.240  2022.01.01~ 27.692to 27.895
thousand  2022.05.01
Buy NTI¥/Sell CNY RMRB 1,000 2022.03.31- 4.296
thousand  2022.04.15
December 31, 2020
Nominal Maturity Pre-agreed
Financial instrumenty #mounly period cxchange rate
Pro-purchazed foreign currency
Buy USD/Sell NTD USD22.818  2021.01.04- 28.096 to 28.655

thousand  2021.03.25
Motes and accounts receivable (including long-torm and related partics)

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020

Noles receivable (including long-lerm) 5 275.999 172,478
Avcounts reeeivable 2,123.615 1,689,794
Accounts receivable due from related parties 134,201 31,136
Less: loss allowance {21.385) (42 3000
Total b 2,512,430 1,850,928
Current h 2,503,116 1,826,767
Non-current 9.314 24.161

Tutal 5 2,512,430 1,850,928

(iy The Company did nat discount or provide any of the notes and aceounts receivable {including
long-term and relited parlies) as collateral. The aforementioned noles and accounls receivable,
whose maturily peniod were less than 1 year, were nol discounled, and therr carrying amounts
were assummed Lo approximate their fair values.
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Non-turrent noles receivable mamly arose [fom 1nslallment sales.

(itt) The Company applics the simplificd approach to provide for its ECL, the use of lifetime ECL
provision for all notes and accounts receivablos (inchuding dong-term and related parties). To
measure the ECL, notes and aceounts receivable have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and customer’s ability to pay all the amounts doe basad on the terms of the
contract as well as incorporated forward-locking information. The analysis of expected credit
losses on notes and accounts receivabls was as follows;

Current

110 30 days pust due

31 tn 60 days past due

6] to 90 days past duc

91 to 120 days past due
More than 121 days past due

Current

1 to 30 days past due

31 to 60 days past duc

Gl 1o 9 dayy past duc

91 to 120 days past duc
More than 121 days past due

Decemher 31, 2021
Gross carrying Loss allowunce
amouni of Weighted- for lifelime
accounts and average loss  expected credil
noles receivable rate losses

3 ZA60,719 0.12% 2,940
24,716 3,00% 742

8714 10.00% 87

1,422 20.00% 284

2,494 50.00% 1,247

33.750 42 80% 15,301

§ 2.533,815 21,385

December 31, 2020
Gross carrying Loss allowance
amount of Weighted- for lifetime
accounts and average lnss expected credit
notes receivahle rate losses

b 1,796,892 0.11% 1972
14,474 3.00% 434

22,014 10.00% 2,201

16,787 20.00% 3357

17,451 50.00% 8,726

25,810 100.00% 25.811)

5 1,893,428 _ 42,500
(Continued)
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{iv) The movements in the loss allowance [or noles and accounts receivable (including long-term
and related parties) were as follows:

For the years ended IDecem her 31

2021 2020
Beginning balance 5 42.500 46.000
Impairment losses recognized (reversal of impairment
logs) {15,300} 11,226
Transferred to other recetvables {5.815) (14.726)
Euoding balance h] 21385 42,500

(4} Other receivables

(e)

Decem her 31, Decem her 31,

2021 2020
Other roceivablos 3 21,519 19,004
Less: Inss allowance (19.641) (16,927
$ 1878 2077

{1)  As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there was no other recetvable that was past due but not
impaired.

{if) The movemenls in the loss allowanee for other receivables were as follows:

For the yvears ended December 31

2021 2020
Beginning balance 5 16,927 5,156
Write-ofls of uncolleelible amount for the period (3,101) (2.955)
Transferred from accounts receivable 5813 14.726
Ending balance $ 19,641 16,927
Inventpries
December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Merchandise inventory 5 2,460,115 2,734,354

During 2021 and 2020, losses on mvenlories written down 1o nel realizabls value and recognized as
operating cosls amounted lo $0 thousand and $37,000 thousand, respectively.
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([ Investmenls accounted for using equily method

Investments aceounted for using the equity method were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Subsidiaries 5 641,393 389,187
Aggnciates. 110312 132265
$ 751,705 521,452
{i) Subsidiarics
1)  Please refer to Notes 6(g), (h) and (i) for the acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries by

{it)

the Company.

2)  Please refer to the Company” s consolidated financial statements for the vear endod
Deeember 31, 2021, for detajls of subsidianes.

Associates

1y As of February 1, 2021, the Company acguied 500 thousand shares of BEverlasting
Digital ESG Co., Ltd. {29.41% of ownership) by §$5,000 theusand of cash. The price had
been fully paid up.

2) In September and October 2020, the Company purchased 1,153 thousand shares of

ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL from their former shareholders at a price totaling
$30,091 thousand, representing a percentage of ownership of 34.09%. Although the
Company was the largest shareholder, it did not obtain more than half of the total number
ol directors of the Board and more than half of the voting rights of the sharsholder
meeting. The Company only had significant influence over ADVANCEDTEK
INTERNATIONAL and evalvated using the equity method. In January 2021, the
Company obtained lettets of support signed by original sharcholders representing
20.36% of the company” s shareholding, promising and supporting the Company to direct
the company” s sighificant operating activitics and obtain more than half of the total
number of dircetors of the Board. Afier evaluation, the Company has substantive centrol
over ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL., Therefore, it has been included in the
Company’s only financial statements, and the Company obtained more than half of the
total number of directors of the Beard in May 2021; pleasc vefer to Note 6(g) for details.
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The Company voriginally held 2.46% equily interest in GRANDSYS, which was
accounted for under non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. In
May 2020, pursuant fo the resolution of the Board, the Company purchased 4,520
thousand shares (18.89% ownership) from their former shareholders, the transaction
price totaling $74,580 thousand, resulting in a significant influence on GRANDSYS.
Consequently, the investment, as a whole, was transferred fromi non-current financial
assets at fair vahie through profit or loss to investments accounted for using oquity
method, In Nevember and December 2020, the Company purchased 259 thousand shares
of GRANDSYS (1.08% ownership) and 36 thotsand shares (0. 15% pwnership) at $4,138
thousand and 3582 thousand, regpeetively, resulting in a total percentage of ownership of
23.58%. The above transaction price has been fully paid up. In Decomber 2021,
GRANDSYS {ssned 1,913 thousand shares to be exercised as employee stock options,
resulling in the Group' s sharcholding in GRANDSYS to dewrease from 23.58% 1o
21.84%, and the Group’s capilal surplus to merease by $158 thousand dus 10 the changs

n equity.

Aggregate financial information of associates for using equity method that were not
individually material was summarized as follows, The financial information wag
included in the Company™s parent company onty financial stateraents.

For the vears ended December 31

2021 2020
Altributable te the Company:
Profit 8 3,839 9,042
Other comprehensive meome 349 -
Total comprehensive income b 4,188 9,042

5)

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, none of (he mvestments aceounted for using the
equily method was pledged as collateral.

(g) Acquisition of the subsidiary

{1)  Acqusilion of the subsidiary-COREX

n

Acquisition of consideration transteired of the subsidiary

On Tamuary 4, 2021, the Company acquired 100% ownership of COREX amounting
$140,000 thousand [rom Pariner Tech, amxl oblained control over CORIX. COREX 15
primarily engaged i the sale of computer penipherals. The Company acquired COREX
[or its business and customers and expend iy markgting channel i Alrica.
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In addition, the equity sale and purchase agresment and the Parlner Tech’s sale and
purchase agreement, as well as the related accessory contracts from the prior year, were
as tollows:

a)  The sales unit of COREX, IOS, merged with COREX due to business restructuring
in Fobruary 2019, It thc company makes a profit between June 1, 2018, and
Deecmber 31, 2022, the amount paid to sellers of POS shall be caleulated based on
profit after tax for each year multiplied by 54% and exchanged at the fixed rate of
ZAR 10 NTD of 2.1108 in accordance with the agrecment.

b)  If tho company makes a prefit between November 1, 2018 and December 31, 2023,
the amount paid to sellers shall be calenlated based on profit before tax for cach
yoar multiplied by 50% and exchanged at the fixed rate of ZAR to NTD of 2.1108
ir accordance with the agreement. The Uimitation of acoumulated profit Defore
income tax during the peried amounted to ZAR 240,000 thousand. If the
accumuisted profit before income tax does not reach the limiled amount of ZAR
240,000 thousand, the Company shall decide whether to extend the period 1o
December 31, 2025. The above-mentioned profit belore meome tax of each year 15
not mcluded profit before tax from POS sales unil.

The above agreement were revised in December, 2021 as follows:

If the company makes a profit betwoen May 31, 2018 and Decomber 31, 2023, the
amaount paid in ZAR lu sellers cach year shall be calculated based un profit before lax for
ollsetting 1he aceumulated Iosses from prior years mulliplied by 50% in accordanee with
the agreemenl. The limilation of accumulated profil before income tax during the penod
amounled 1o ZAR 240,000 thousand. If the accumulated profil before meome tax does
not reach the limited amount of ZAR 240,000 thousand, both companies will extend the
period 1o December 31, 2025.

Undor the contingent consideration arrangcinant, the Company estimated the contingent
consideration based on discounted cash flow mathod. As of acquisition date, the future
potential anmount of the contingent payment that the Company has fo pay amounted to
$81,231 thousand, which is rocorded as current and non-current financial hiabilities at
fair value through profit or Joss,
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Ldentifiable nel assets acquired

The following table summarized the carrying amount of CORFEX’s wdentifiable asscts
acquircd and liabilities assumed recognized at January 4, 2021:
Cousideration transferred:
Cash 5 140,000
Fair value of contingent considerations transferred ¥1.231

Carrying amouats of identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents h 30,976
Currenl [inancial assets al fair valus through profil

or loss 101
Noles and aceounts receivable (including related

parlies) 74,041
Inventories 106,499
Prepayments 34,233
Other current assets 17,741
Properly, plant and equipment 4.027
Right-of-usc agscts 16.629
Intangiblc asscty 117,304
Other non-currenl assels 15,004
Short-term borrowitgs (84,759}
Contract liabilities (4,323)
Notes and accounts payable (22,376)
(ther payables (117,837
Current lease labilities (8,462)
Other current liabilities (2,584)
Non-current lcase liahilitics (11,384}
Other non-currenl liabilitics (1,252) 163.600

Capital serplus 5 57,631

The combmalion 1s an orgonizational reorganization under common control
Accardingly, the dillerence between the consideration paid and the camrying amount of
the net identifiable assets of COREX is debited to the capital surplne of $57.631
thousand.
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Acquisilion of the subsidhary-STATINC

1)

Acquisition of consideratien transferred of the subsidiary

On February 4, 2021, the Company obtained 251 thousand ordinary shares from original
sharcholders from STATINC for 310,013 thousand. Furthermore, the Company
subscribed 1,504 thousand preferred shares of STATINC for $60,010 thousand and
obtained 35.01% of voting shares. 'I'he Company became the largest sharsholder and had
morg than half dircctors of the Boeard, therefore, the Company has eontrol over the
company. STATINC is primarily provide services for enterprises such as market
roscarch, marketing consulting, and clond databasc of Big data. The (Company acquired
STATINC for improving the software and hardware busingss of the Company and
increase the enterprisc’s value in finance and medical zervices.

In addition, according to the equily investmenl agreemenl, the former preferred slocks
shall not be allowed to partivipate in the distribution of surplus in the lhree yecars
preceding their hoiding and shall be forcibly converted into ordinary shares in proportion
to one share after three years of holding. Under the contingent congideration
arrangement, the Company estimated the contingent consideration based on discounted
cash flow method and the sharcholding ratio of 35.01%. As of acquisition date, the future
potential amount of the contingent payment that the (Company hay to pay amounied te
£23,29¢ thounsand, which is recorded as current and non-cutrent financial labilitics at
fair value through profit or Toss.

Identiliable nel assels acyuared

The following table summarized the fair value of STATINCY s identifiable asscis
acquired and liabilities assumed recognized at February 4, 2021:

Consideration transferred:

Cash g 70,023

Non-controlling interests 81,123

Fair value of conlmgent considerations tramsfemed 23,208
(Continued)
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Fuir value of identifisble asse(s and liabilities

assumed:

(ash and eash equivalenis $ 86,330

Current conlracl assels 13,972

Notes and accounts reecivable, net 9,717

Prepayments 2,199

Other currenl. assels 322

Property, plant and equipment 1,056

Right-of-use assets 1,675

Inlangible assets 35,216

Deferred incomie tax assets 1,849

Other non-cutrent aggets 7.747

Short-term bomowings {6,000}

Notes and accounts payahle {2,669}

Other pavables (12.574)

Current lease liabilitics (1,706)

Other cutrent liabilities (5.27%)

Other non-current liabilities (1,402) 130,457
Goodwill by 43,987

The carrying amount of the intvestments in subsidiaries accounted for using the equity
method includes goodwill arising from the acquisition.

(in) Acquisition of the subsidiary-ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL and its subsidiaries

1)

Acquisition of the subsidiary

The Company holds 34.09% of the voting shares and is the larpest sharcholder of
ADVANCEDTEE INTERNATIONAL. In Janmary 2021, the Company obtained letters
of suppert signed by oripinal shareholders representing 20.36% of the company’ s
shareholding, promising and supporling the Company to direet the company’s significant
operaling activilies and oblain more than half of the total number of directors of the
Board. The Company had conirel ever ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL and its
subsidiaries. In May 2021, the Company obisined more than half of the tolal number of
directors of the Board ADVANCEDILEE INTERNATIONAL mainly provides
integrated service for domestic ERF systems and related consulting serviees of Oracle.
‘The main activities included the sale consulting services of ERP and related systems. The
Company expends its information-related consultancy service for sirategic investment.
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2)  Identifiable nel assets acyuired

The following table suommarized the  fair

valus

of  ADVANCHDTHK

INTHRNATIONAL s identifiable asscts acquircd and liabilities assumed recognized at

January 4, 2021:

Consideration transferred:
Fair value of pre-existing interest in the acquiree
Non-conirolling injeress

Fair value of identifiable assets acquired and
lisbilities assumed recugnized at the acquisition
dale:

Cash and eash equivalenis $

Motes and accounts receivabic, nel

Prepayments

Other current assets

Property, plant and cquipmont

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Other non-current assets

Contracl hability

Nutes and aceounts payable

Other payables

Current lzase liabilitics

MNon-carrent lease liabilities
Goodwill

8 32,120
38,578

44124
46,556
11,155
691
630
21,185
44
11.985
(35,974)
£9,434)
(11,088)
(5.423)
(15.5%4) 58.567
s 12,131

The carrying amount of the investments in subsidiarics aceounted for using the equity

method includos goodwill arising fiom the acquisition,

{iv) Impairment test on goodwill

The Company evaluated the recoverable amounts of ity poodwill, which is based on its value-
m-use, for impairment testing at the reporting date. Value-in-use is based on three to four years
of the estimated BMure cash [low, according to the future operation plan of the Company,
disvounted to their present value using the yearly discount rate, which reflects the risks spucific
to CGU by 8.19%-14.75%, for the yeur ended December 31, 2021. There were o irnpairment

loszes of goodwill in 2021,
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Changes in ownership inferest in a subsidiary

(i}

(in)

{11}

On March 2, 2021, the Company subscribed 4,000 thousand shares of EPIC CLOUD
INFORMATION INTEGRATION for $40,000 thousand. On March 29, 2021, the Company
paid $500 thousand for 50 thousand shates from the original sharcholders and paid $100
fhousand for 10 thousand sharex from GLORAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK in the same
month. Thetefore, the Company’s sharcholding ratio incteased to 100%, and capital swplus
decreased by $440 thousand due to changes in equity.

In MNovember and December 2020, the Company acquired a portion of sharclioldings in
GLAOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWQORK, incrcasing tis percentage of ownership in GLOBAL
INTELLIGENCE NETWORK from 62.12% to 79.43% and increasing the capital surplus by
%1,104 thousand as a result of the change in equity.

In December 2020, the Company acquired a porfion of shareholdings m EPIC CLGUD
INFORMATION INTEGRATION, ncreasing its percenlage ol vwnaship m IPIC CLOUD
INFORMATION INTEGRATION from 70.00% to 93.00%, and decreasing the capital surplus
by $644 thousand as a result of the change in equity.

T.oss control of subsidiarics

(i)

{it)

Disposal of subsidiary-NEQ TREND TECH

On February 26, 20221, the Company disposed the entirc shares of its subsidiary, NEQ TREND
TECH, with the approval of the Chanman. Fhe contract of purchase and sale of shares had
been signed, and disposal-related matters had been completed, Therefore, the Company had
lost control over ils swbsidiary. As of the disposal date, the carying smeunt of investmenls
accounted {or using equily method and the disposal price, which had been fully received, wers
$29.154 thousand aml $50,000 thousand, respectively, resulting in a gam of $20,694 thousand
(nchwling the deduction of the expenditure associated wih the consideration of $150
thousand), te be recorded as other gains and losses.

Disposal of the subsidiary-DAWNING TECHNOLOGY

On Nowerober 35, 2020, a change in the sharcholding of the Company in its subsidiary,
DAWNING TECTINOLOGY, had been made based on resolution approved during the Board
mecting. Accordingly, the carrying amouni of investments accounted for using equity method
of $123.922 thousand was recognized as non-current assels classified as held-for-sale on
December 31, 2020. However, on January 4, 2021, the Company enlered inlo an agresment
and completed the sale of its shares in Dawning Technology at the dispusal price of $181,997
thousand, which had been fully received, resulting in a gain amounting te $57,528 thovsand
(including the deduction of the expenditure associated with the consideration of £547) to be
recorded as other gains and losses. Thereafter, the Company lost control over DAWNING
TECHNOLOGY.
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Properly, plant and equipment
Information about the costs and accumulated depreciation of proporty, plant and equipment was
presented below:
Office and
Buildings and other
Land improvements  equipment Tuotal
Coxt:
Balance on Janwary 1, 2021 ) 495,211 314912 178,602 998,725
Additions - - 6,127 6,127
Dispossl - - (53,970) (53,970
Transferred from investment property 20,605 14,053 - 40,638
Transfemed from inventorics - - 15,546 15346
Bzlance on December 31, 2021 $ 521816 338,965 146,305 1,007,086
Balunce on January 1, 2020 $ 495,211 324912 179,113 999,236
Additions - - 3,154 3.154
[Yisposal - - (11,207 (11,207)
Transferred from inventories - - 7.542 7.542
Balance on December 31, 2020 5 495211 324,912 178,602 008,728
Accumulated depreciafion:
Balance on January 1, 2021 b4 - 63689 1149655 183,345
TDepreciation - 6722 75,386 32,108
Disposal - - £53.308) (53,398)
Transferred from mvestment property - 2985 - 2985
Balance on December 31, 2021 ) - 73396 91,644 165,040
Talance on January 1, 2020 ) - 57.243 107,362 164,605
Pepreciation . 6,446 23,040 29 486
Disposal - - (10,746) (10,746)
Balance on [ecember 31, 2020 % - 435,689 119,656 183,345
Carrying amouni;
December 31, 2021 $ 521,816 265,569 54,661 842,046
December 31, 2020 $ 495211 261223 A8 0446 815380
January 1. 2020 5 495211 267,669 71,751 834,631

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 property. plant, and equipment were pledged as collateral for
short-term and long-term borrowings. please refer to Note 8.
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Right-ol-use assels

Information about the costs and accumulated depreciation of leascy for which the Company as a

lesyes was presented helow:

Cost:
Balance on January 1. 2021
Additions
Decrease
Balanee on December 3122021
Balanee on January 1, 2020
Additions
Dectease
Balance on December 31, 2020
Accumulated depreciatien:
Balance on January 1. 2021
Deprsciation
Decrease
Balance on December 31, 2021
Balance on January 1, 2020
Depreeiation
Decrease
Balance on December 31, 2020
Carrying amouent:
December 31, 2021
Deeember 31, 2020
January 1, 2020

222

Buildings and
ini provenients

b 212,19
5,258

{3.257)

$ 214,195
g 217.000
1.714

{6.520)

b 212,194
g 47.707
25,517

(3.257)

$ 69,967
g 27.510
26,717
{6.520)

§ 47,707

L 144,228
5___ 164487

S 189.490
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Investment properly

Information about the costs and accumulated depreciation of investtent property was prosented
helerw:

Buildings and
Land improvements Total
Cost:
Balmes on January 1, 2021 % 51,382 28,408 79,790
Transierred to property, planl and
equipment (26.603) {14.053) (40.658)
Balanee on December 31, 2021 $ 24777 14335 39,132
Balance on January 1, 2020 s 51.382 28,408 72,790
Balancc on December 31, 2020 8 51,382 28 08 79,790
Accumulated depreciation:
Balanez un January 1, 2021 8 - 5.667 3,667
Deprecialion - 281 281
Transteried to property, plant and
cquipment - (2,985) {2,985)
Balance on December 31, 2021 ] - 2,963 2,963
Balance on January 1, 2020 5 - 3.110 5,110
Depreciation - 557 557
Balance on December 31, 2020 $ - 5,667 3.667
Carrying amuvunt:
Decamber 31, 2021 5 24,777 11392 36,169
December 31, 2020 8 51,382 22,741 74,123
January 1, 2020 3 31,382 23298 74,650
Fair value:
December 31, 2021 5 83,880
December 31. 2020 L) 224,183

{1) Iovestment property comprises a number of commercial propertics which arc lcased te third
partics. Each of the leases contains an initial non-canccllable poriod from 1 to 3 years.
Subscquent rencwals are nepotiated with the lessec, and no contingent rents are charged.
Please refer to Wote 6(p) for further information (including tental incoms and related direct
operating expoense).

{Continued)
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{it) As there s no readily comparable information regarding the fair value of the alorementioned
nvestment property, managemeni determined its fair value according to the latest prices within
the vicinity. The inputs used to evaluate the fair value belonged to Level 3.

(i) As of both December 31, 2021 and 2020, mvestment proporty was pledged as collatoral for
shost-term borrowings, please refer to Note B.

Short-term borrowings
(i} The details of the Company’s short-term borrowings were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Crodit bank Toans 5 200,000 250,000
Secured bank loans 100.000 30.000
3 1,000,000 300,000
Range of interest rates at the end of period 0.80%~0.84% _ 0.82%-4.90%
(ii} For the collateral for bank leans, please refor to Note 8
Long-term borrowings
The details of the Company’s long-term borrowings were as follows:
December 31, 2021
Range of
Currency interest rates  Maturity period Amount
Secured bank loans WNTD 1.10%-1.20% 2022.01-2039.03 § 251,369
[ess: enrrent portion (14.325)
Total $ 237.044
Unused credit lines $ -
December 31, 2020
Range of
Currency inleresi ruies  Matuorily period Amount
Seoured bank loans NTD 1.10%1.30%¢ 2021.01-2039.03 § 265,529
Less: carrent portion {14.109)
Total 5 251,420
Unused credit lines % - :
For the eollateral for bank leans, please refer to Note 8.
(Contimued)
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Lease hiabilities
The carrying amounts of the Company’s lcase labilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Current § 24,168 23,702
Neon-current 123.239 143 306
% 147,407 167.008

“The amounts recognized in profil or loss were as follows -

For the years ended Decem ber 31
2021 2020
Interest on Iease liabilitics 8 1519 1,721

Ravenue from sublease of right-of-use asset $ 4,637 10,350

The amounts recognized in the statements of cash flows of the Company were as follows:

For the years ended Decembor 31

2021 2020
Interest payments [or lease liabilities in operating activities § 1519 1721
Payments of lease liabilities m financing activitics 24.859 25,390
Total cash outflow for lcases $ 26,378 27317

Reat estaie leases

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company leases buildings and improvements for its office
and warehouse space. The leases typically run for 2 to 10 years. Some leases include an option to
renew the lease for an additional period of the same duration after the end of the contract term.

For the Company’s leased right-of-use agsets undor operating leages, please refor to Nota 6ip).

{Jperating leases

‘The Company leasss out its investment property and right-of-use asscts, The Company has classified

these luases ns operating leases, because it does not transier substantially all of the risks and rewards
ineidenlal 1o (he ownership of the assets. Please reler 1o Notes 6(k) and 6(1).

{Conlinued)
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A maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiseounted lease paymenls to be received aller
the reporting date was as follows:

December 31,  December 31,

202t 2020
Less than one year 5 7.104 11.515
1to 2 years 1,139 4.655
2te 3 voars 1.139 -
310 4 years 1.174 -
4 to § years 1,174 -
More than 5 years 1.563 -
Undiscounted lease payments $ 13313 16,170

Tor the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the amounts of rental income from imvestment
property were $2.880 thousand and $6,496 (housand, respectively.

Emplayee benefits — defined contributien plans

The Company allocates 6% of cach employes” s monthly wages to the Labor Pension personal
aceount of the Bureau of Labor Insuranes in sccordance with the provisions of the Labor Pension
Act, Under these deltned contribulion plans, the Company allocates a lixed amoun! 1o the Burcau of
Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation.

The Company’s peasion costs under the defined contribution method amounted to $16.469 thovsand
and $14,462 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respoctively. Payment to
the Burcan of Labor Insurance has heen made.

Income taxes

(1} Income tax cxpenscs:

Income lax expenses are summarteed as [ollows:

For the years ended Decemhber 31

2021 20240
Current income tax cxpenscs 5 98,674 144,103
Deferred meome tax expenses (benefit) 2.560 {7.103)
Income tax expenscs 3 101,234 137,000

{it) The Company had no income laxes recogmized direclly in equily and other comprehensive
mcome.

(Continued)
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{1i) Reconciliation of income tax expenses and profit before incoms (ax was as lellows:

{iv)

For the years ended IJecember 31

2021 20240

Profit before income tax 5 678.823 674,050
Income tax using the Company s domestic tax rate 135,763 134,810
Undistributed carninge additional tax 1,161 -
Tax-exempt income {17,216} -

Shars of profit accounted for using equity method (9,467) (3.734)
Gains on evaluatiom of fmanesal assets (15,626) (4,979
Others 6.617 12,903
Income lax expense h) 101.234 137,000

Delerred meome lax assets and habihitics

'The Company had no uhrecognized deferred income tax assets and liahilitics. Changes in the
amount of deferred income tax assets and liabilities for 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Deferred income tax liahilities:
Balance on January 1, 2(:2]
Credit profit ot loss

Balance on December 31, 2021
Balance on January 1, 2020
Debit profit or loss

Balance on December 31, 2020

Deferred income tax assets:
Ralance on January 1, 2021
Pebit (eredit) profit or loss
Balance on December 31, 2021
Balance on January 1, 2020
Tiehit (credit) profit or loss
Balance on December 31, 2020

IFair value guins

and others

$ 1914
{1.718)

196

§ 1,112
302

$ 1,914

Allowance

Inveniory limit on

allowances  bad debis Othoers Total
$  (44,400) (8.065) (4351)  (56,816)
- 4966 {688) 4278
$ (44, 400) (3,099 (5,039 {52,538)
(37,000) {6,501) (5.410) {48.911)
{7.400) {1,564) 1,059 {7.905)
$ {44,400} (8,065) {4.351) {36,816)
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The Company' s income lax returns have been assessed and approved by the RO.C. tax
authority through the years to 2019,

Capital and other equity

As of both December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company's autherized shares amounted to §$2,500,000
thousand, divided into 250,000 thousand shargs, with par value of $10 per share, The issued 188,357
thousand shares comprised only ordinary shares, and all issued shares were paid up upon issuance,

(i}

{it)

(lapital surplus
The components of capifal surplus were as. follows:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Share capital premum $ 1,192,319 1,249,950
Treasury share {ransactions 54,637 34637
Difference arising from subsidiary’s share price and ils
carrying value from acquired or dasposed of 27,984 28,424
Changes m cquity of associates accounted under equity
method 979 -
b 1,275,919 1,333,011

According to the R.0.C. Company Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit, and
only the realized capilal surplus can be used lo increase the commeon stock or be distribuied as
cash dividends, The alorementioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus reselling
from premium on issuance of capital stock and earnings from donaled assels received.
According to the Regulations Goverming the Olfering and Issuance of Securilics by Securitios
Issuers, capifal mereases by ransferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not
exoeed 10% of the total common slock oulslanding. The capital inereases by transfaring
capital surplus in excess of par value shall be capitalized in the subsequent year after such
capital reserve hag been authorized for repistration by the regulator,

Retained camings

In accordance with the Articles of Association. if there are earnings at year end, 10 percerit
should be set aside as legal reserve (unless the amount in the legal reserve is already equal to
or greater than the total paid-in capital) and special reserve shall be appropriated or reversed,
according to operating requirements or regoiations of thre Company, after the payment of
imcome tax and offsctting the accumulated Josses from prior years. The remaining portion will
be combined with the carnings from prior years, and the Boeard of directors can propose the
distribution plan to be approved during the sharcholders® mecting. The abovementionod
distribution plan, by way of cash dividends, should be approved by the Company” s Board of
directors and should be teported during the Company’ & shareholder” 8 meeting.

{Continued)
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As the Company is in its growth phase, 1t has adopted 2 residual dividend policy 1o pay the
dividends after the end of the year from the eamings of the current vear and the accumulated
eamnings from prior years. If there are earnings at year end and the cumeat wnappropriated
retained earitings exceeded the lower of 2% of the capital stock, the distribution ratie for
dividends shall not be less than 1024 of the current unappropriated retained eamings after
taking into consideration the Company’s profit, capital structure, and future operating needs.
Dividends arc distributed as either cash or stock, where cash dividends represent no fcss than
10% of the total dividends and the actual amount distributed is based on the amount approved
by the Board of divectors.

1)

2)

Lugal reserve

When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a sharcholdors’
meeting. distribute its Iegal reserve by issuing new shares or by distributing cash, and
only the portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of capital may be distributed.

Special reserve

In accordance with FSC 2012, a portion of current-period carmings and andistributed
priov-pertod carnings shall be reclassified as special eamings reserve during camings
distrtbution. The amount to be reclassified should equal the current-period total net
reduction of other sharcholders” equity. Similarly, a portion of undistributed prior-period
carnings shall be reclassified as specinl camnings reserve (and does mot gualify for
carnings disiribution) to account lor cumulative chanpges to olher sharcholders® equily
perfaining fo prigr periods. Amounts of subsequent reversals perlamming to the net
reduction of other sharcholders” equily shall gualify for additional distributions.

Eamings distribution

On February 25, 2021, the distribution plan for 2020 was resolved at the Board of
Dircetors” meeting. Olher distribution items have reached the requirement the statutory
resolution threshold by slectronic vote on May 23, 2021, and have held a shareholders’
meeting on August 25, 2021, The distribytion plan for 2019 was approved in
sharcholders™ meeting on May 28, 2020. The amounts of dividends distributed to
sharehotders were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Dividends to shateholders - cash, $2.5 and §2 per
share $ 470,894 376,715
Dividends to shareholders - capilal increase
transferred from capilal surplus, $1 per share - 188,357
5 470,894 565072
{Continued)
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() DLamings per share
The Comypany's basic and diluted earnings per share weore calenlated as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Basic vurnings per share:
Profit alirtbulable 1o the Company g 377.591 349.017
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(basic/thousand shares) 188,357 188 3587
Basic gamings per share (Jollars) $ 307 2.91
For the years ended December 31
2021 2020
Diluted earnings per share:
Profit aliributable to the Company % 577,591 549,017
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares oulstanding _
(tiluted/ thousand shares) 190,083 190,106
Earnings per share (dollars) % 3.4 2.89
For the years ended December 31
2021 2020
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(basic/ thousand shas) 188,357 188,357
Effect of cmploves semuneration 1.726 1.740
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares eutstanding
(diluted/thousand shares) 194,083 190,106
(u) Revenue fom coniracts with cuslomers
(1) Disaggrogatien of revenue
2021
Compuling & Clonds,
IcT Duta Snltw wre sl
Infrastructires Utilzation Dipitaitzation Sorvires Total
Major producl/service lines:
Sale of guuds $ 3133251 3.811.134 1 622,357 233,523 9,102,215
Rerdering ul services - - - 335,513 335,513
Total % 3433251 3,514,184 1,622,257 558,136 9,437,728
(Continued)
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2020
Compullng & Clouds,
T Thata Software and
Tnfragtrmetares Utillzatlon Digktalixatbon Bervicos Tolal

Major productseryics lines:

Sale of goods % 3,204,339 4,391,083 3011695 114,455 L0 731,578

Eendering ot services - - - 344,361 341361

Total ] 3,214,338 4,391 088 3.011,696 454,516 11,071,934

{ii) Contract balances
December 31, December 31, Japuary 1,
2021 20240 2020

Noies recetvable (including long-

ierm) 5 275,992 172.478 347965
Accounts receivable (including

rolated partics) 2257816 1,720,950 1,511,984
Less: loss allowance {21.385) {42,500 {46.000)

% 2,512,430 1,850,928 1,813,949

Coniract liability 5 184,710 295,836 662,996

1) Tor the impament of notes and accounts receivable (including long-lerm and related
partics), please refer to Note 6(c).

2y The amounts of contract liability balance, recognized as revenue as af January 1, 2021
and 2020} at the beginning of the period, were as follows:

Far the years ended Decembor 31
021 2020
Revenue Recognition b 264,198 500,971

3)  ‘Tho major changes in the balance of contract assct and liability is the difference between
the time frame in the performance obligation to be satisfied and the payment o be
recoived.

(Continued)

231



{v)

(w)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO,,LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Remuneration ko employees and directors

In accordancs with the pre-amended Article of Association, once the company has annuaal earmings,
the Company shoutd contribute no less than 8% of the profit as employee remuneration and less than
2% as directors’ remuncration. However, if the Company has accumulated defieits, the profit should
be reserved to offsct the deficit. Employscs cntitled to teceive the aforementioned employee
remunerationt, in shares or cash, melude eraployees of affiliates with over 30% of the shatcholding
ratio. The Company estimated its remuneration to employecs at 560,430 thousand for the year ended
December 31, 2020, and estimated ils remuneration Lo directors al $3,650 thousand.

On August 25, 2021, the Company amended its Article of Association based on the resolution
approved during the annual sharcholders’ meeting. In accordancs with the amended Article of
Assaciation, once the Company has annual carnings, it should contribute 5% to 20% of the camings
as employec remuncration, and less than 1% as directors’ remuncration. However, if the Company
has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved to offset the deficit. Employees entitled to
reeeive the alorementioned employee remuneration, in shares or cash, include the employses of the
Company who meel certain specific requirement. The alorementioned requirement and distribution
methods should Grst be approved by the Company” s Board of directors or s authorized person. The
Company estimaled ils remuneration lo employess at $59.513 thousand for Lhe year ended December
31, 2021, and eslimated ils remuneration 1o dirsctors at $5,580 thousand.

The aferementioned amounts wore caleulated using the Company’s net income hefore tax, without
the romuncrations to employces and directoss for cach period, multiplied by the propesed percentage
which is stated under the Company™s proposed Asticle of Incorporation, These remunerationy wers
expenscid under operating costs or expenses for each period, related mformation is available on the
website of the Market Observation Post System. The differences between the estimated amrounts and
the actual amounts approved by the Board of directors for 2021, if any, shall be accounted for as
changes in accounting estimales and recogmized in 2022, The actual amounts distribuied for 2020
and the estimated amounts for 2020 1n the financial statemenls were the same.

Non-operating income and expenses
(1) Other income
‘The Company’s other income was as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Renta] income L 9917 16,633
Dividend income 7.812 10,085
b} 17,.72% 26,718
(Continued)
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(if) Other gains and losses

The Company’s other gains and losses were as follows:

For the vears ended December 31

2021 2020
Net foreign exchange gains 5 21.868 29882
Net pains on valuation of financial assets (liabilities) at
fair value through profit or loss 76,542 18,636
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held {or sale 57,528 -
(iain on disposal of subsidiarics 20,696 -
Gams on disposal of properly, plant and equipment 136 325
Revenue from system consulting and technical services 5979 5,345
Others 7.110 3.658
% 189,859 57,846

{iti) TFinance cosls

The Company’s finanee costs were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Intcrest on bank loans % 8,926 6,168
Interest nn lease liabilities 1.519 1.721
g 10,445 7,889

T'inancial instrumenis

(1)

Credit risk

A credil risk is the risk of having Gnancial losses arising (rom counterpartics failing 10 mest
their required confract obligation. The major polential credil risks are [rom defaudis from
counierparties who (a1l (o meet their required contracl obligation.

1Y Aceounts receivable and other receivables

The Company’s credit policy is transacting with creditworthy cusiomers, and obtains
collaieral o miligate risks arising from [inancial loss due to defaull if necessary. The
Company assesses the ratings based on publicly available (inancial informalion and
transactions records with its major customers. The Company continues to monitor the
exposure to credit risk and the credit rating of counterparties, transaction amonnt to all
qualified customers, and teview annually the credit limit of counterparties, so as to
manage risk exposure.

{Continued)
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2)  Other (inancial assels

The credit risk cxposure in cash and cash cquivalents, fixed income investments and
other finaneial instruments arc measured and monitored by the Company” s finance
department, As the Company deals with the banks and other extenal partics with good
credit standing and fnancial institutions which arc graded above investment level, the
management belioves that the Company dees not have any compliance issues, and
therefore. there is no significant credit risk.

‘The canrying amount of financial asscts, represents the maximum amount cxposed to
credit risk, As of Docember 31, 2021 and 2020, the maximum exposure to credit risk

amounted to $3,249,153 thousand, and $2,805,287 thousand, respectively.
(i) Liquidity risk

‘The followings were the contractual maturities of financial fiabilities, including estimated

intorest payment,
Carrying  Contracieal  Within 1 1-5 Over 5
amwount cash flows year Years years
December 31, 2021
Non-denvative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at foir value
threnigh profil ot loss —
Coniingent considerations ansing
[romn business combinabions
[Crrrent and MNon-eurrent) $ 103.222 117.776 5,609 112,167 -
Long-tenm and short-term
botrowings 1,251,369 1,276,443 1.018,052 68,612 189,779
Leasc liabilities 147,407 151,950 25,467 Q4387 32.102
Accounts payable 1,177 226 LIT7.226 [,177.226 - -
Other payables 330,428 330,428 330428 - -
Cuarantee deposits K7 R97 - 897 -
Denvative financial liabilitics
Cratlow 2,086 400,463 400,463 - -
Inflew - (39B,177) (398177 - -

$_3.012835 3087012 2559068 _ 306063 _ 221881
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Currying  Conlractyal  Within 1 1-5 Over 5
amaounl cash Mows year years years
December 31, 2020
Mon-denvative financial liabilities
Financial liabilites al far value
through profil or loss —
Uontingent considorations anising
from business combinations
{Crrent and Non-enrrent § ¥1.231 157,887 2,395 6,767 148,725
Lang-term ane short-term
homowings 563,529 594071 3(7,330 08,843 Y7 678
Lease liabilities 167,008 1730306 25 194 91,833 35,979
Avccounls payable 1,463,163 1.463,165 1,463,165 - -
Uther payables IR5.302 285302 285302 - -
Croarahtee deposits 1227 1,237 - 1,227 -
Denivalive finanidal Labilities
Outfiow G55 647,234 647,224 - -
Inflowr {546.569) {646,562

3 2,564,117 _ 2,675313 _ 2,094241 168,690 412,382

'The Company does not expect the cash flows included in the maturity analysis to necur
significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.

(i) Cwreney risk
1)  Expuswe Lo curency risk

The Company’s sipnilicant exposure Lo foreign curreney risk was as follows:

December 31, 2021 Decemiber 31, 2020
Foreign Foreign
currency (in  Exchange currency {in  Exchange
thousands) rate NID thousands) rate NTD
Financial sssets
Monelury 1tems
USD/NTD b 1,709 1768 47,209 834 2835 23633
Financial liabilities
Monetaty itoims
USTVINTD % 13,578 2768 375 B2E 24557 2835 696,194
(Continued)
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2)  Sensilivity analysis

The Company’s exposwre to foreign currency tisk arises mainly from the translation of
the foreign currency cxchange gaing and losses on cash and cash equivalents, notes and
aceounts reecivable, and accounts payable denominated in forcign curreney. To avaid the
decrease in the value of foreign currency assets and fluctuations of future cash flows
resulted from changes mn exchange rates, the Company uses detivative instruments to
hedgs exchange rate risk {sec Note G(b)). An appreciation (depreciation) of 1% of the
USD against NTD as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, with all other variables including
derivative financial insiruments remaining constant, wosld have increased or decreased
the profit belvre meome lax by $656 thousand and $257 thousand [or the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The analysis for bolh perieds was performed
on the same basis,

3)  Forcign axchange gains and lodses on monctary items

The Company” s [unclional cumrency is NTL), and {oreign exchange gain {loss) on
monetary ilems are recomizexd as foreign exchanye pain (loss): please refer to Notle 6{w)
for detals.

Tnterest rate analyss
The details of mleresi-bearing financial instruments at Lhe reporting date wure as follows:

Carrying amount
December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Variable-rale instrument:
Financial assels 5 385,613 380,467
Financial liabilities (1,251.369) {565,529
s (865,754 23.938

Aceording to the Company’s sengitivity analysis of risk exposure to non-derivative instruments
on the reporting date, if the interest vate had inercased or decreased by (025%, with ail other
variable factors remaining consiant, the Company® s profit hefore income tax would have
decrcased or increased by $2,164 thousand and increased or deercsased 60 thousand for the
years ended Dacomber 31, 2021 and 20120, respectively. This is mainly due to risk exposurcs to
borrowings at vatiable interest rate,
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{v) TFair value of financial instruments
1)  Kinds of financial instrument and fair valuc hicrarchy

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured on a recurrihg basis. The following sets out canrying amount and fair valne of
the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, including the information on fair value
hierarchy but excluding financial instruments not measured at fair value with carrying
amount reasonably close to their fair vahie, and lease liabilitics, disclosure of fair value
information is net required:

December 31, 2021

Carrying Fair value
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assels ot Fuir
value through prohi
or losy
Foreign and domestic
unlisted stocks % 240,694 - - 240, 604 240,694
Diomestic unlisted stocks D7.602 - = 97,602 97,602
$_ 338296
Financial asseis at
amortized cost
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 385915
Notes and accounts
recoivable, net
{including long-term
and related paitics) 2512,430
Other receivables 1,878
Refundable deposits 50,634
5 2950857
Financial fiabilitics at
fair value through
profit or loss
Pre-purchased forward
exchange conracts 3§ 2286 - - 2386 2,286
Contingent
songiderations arising
from businessa
comhbinations 103222 - - 103,222 103,222
§ 195,508

(Continued)
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Financial liabilitics
measured at
amortized cost

Long-term and short-
tern borrowings

Leaso ligbilities
Accounts payable
Cther payahley

Guarantee deposits

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss
Cpan-end funds

Foreign and domestic
unlisted stocks

Financial asyets at
amortized cost

Cash and cush
equivalents

Notes and accounts
receivahle. net
(including long-term
and relaed parties)

Other receivables

Refundable deposits

December 31, 2021

Carrying
amount

Fair value

Tevel 1 T.evel 2 Level 3

Tolal

§ 1251369
147.407
1,177,226
330,428

397

5 2,997,327

December 31, 2020

Carrying
amount

Fair valug

T.evel 1 T.evel 2 Level 3

Total

3 150,003

157,694

———

$ 307,697

$ 389,695

1,850,928
2,077
54,890

——

§ 2.497.590
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150.003

157.694

(Continued)



2)

SYSACE TECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Decembhber 31, 2020

Carrying Fair value
amount Tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tolal
Financia] liahilitics at
fair value through
profit or loss
Pre-purchased foreign
currency forward
contracts b3 G55 - - 635 635
Contingent
considerations arising
from husinass
eombinations 81.231 - - 81,23) $1.231

b 81,886
Financial Habilities
minsured ol
amortized cost

Long-term and short-

term bomowings § 565529
Lcasc lizbilitics 167.008
Accounls payable 1,463,165
Cther payables 385,302
Guarantec deposits 1,227

s 24,251

Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value

The measurements of fair value of cquily instruments witheul an active market ure based
on the market comparable histed company approach, which assumes that the fair value is
measured by the investee” estimated net worth and the price-book ratio esttmated based
ont comparable quoted market price. The estimate of the fair value of equity instruments
has baen adjusted due to the effect of the discount arising from the lack of market
liguidity of the equity security.

Discounted cash flow mode] is used to estimate the fair value of conlingent consideration
arising from business combination. The mam assumption takes inte consideration the
possibility of occurrence to estimate the consideration for payment, by the discounted
present value.

Measurement of the fair value of dorivative instruments is based on the valuation
tochniques accepted by the market participants, such as the discounted cash flow or
option pricing models. Fair value of forward exchange contracts is usually determined by
the forward currency exchange rate.

{Continued)
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Transfers betwsen Level 1 and Level 2

‘There was no transfer batween the level 1 and level 2 of fair value hicrarchy for the years
ended Docember 31, 2021 and 20240.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

Measured at fair valne through
profit or loss
Non-derivative
financial assets

(liabilities)
measured at
Devivative fair value
financial assets  throngh profit
{linbilities) or loss
January 1, 2021 g (655) 76.463
Rccognized in profit or loss (1,631) 78.132
Additions - 100,000
Contingent considerations payments - 3,777
Contingent considerations arising from business
combinations - (23.298)
December 31, 2021 g (2.286) 235074
January 1, 2020 $ (4,935) 33,806
Rucognized in profit or loss 4280 13,945
Additions - d0,752
Disposal - (627
Reclassilication to mvestments acoounted for
using equity method - (11.413)
December 31, 2020 3 {655) 76,463

The aforementioned tolal gains amnd losses thal were reeognized in “ other gmng and
losses™ The gains or losses altribulable to the assets and liabilities held on December 31,
2021 and 2020 were as [ollows:

Far the years ended Iecember 31

2021 2020
Total gains and losscs
Recognized in profit or loss (recognized as other
gains and losses) $ 75,846 13,290
(Continued)
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Quantified information on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Company® s financial instruments that use Level 3 mputs to measure fair value
inctude financial assets measured st fair valus throngh profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments.

The [air value of derivative financial mmstruments resulied from the quotation of a third
party and did not use any unobservable inputs in its calculation. Therefore, the Company
did nof disclose the cquantitative information about significant unobservabls inputs and
sensitivity analysis.

Quantificd mtormation on other significant unobservable mputs was as follows:

Interrelationship
between significant
unahbservable inputs

Valuatinn Significant and fair value

Ttem technique unohbservable inpuis measorement
Financial assets al  Comparable - Market liquidily The higher the
fair value through  lisled discount rate market Liquidity
profit or losy Companies {25.00%~31.34% as of discound rate, Lhe
investments in approach December 31, 2021, lower the fair
equity instrument 25.00%-34.61% as of value
without active December 31, 2020)
market
Financial Diseounted © 1iscount rate The higher the
liabilitics at fair ~ cash flow (8.19%-14.75% as of discount rate, the
value through methads Decamnber 31, 2021, lower the fair
profit or loss- 15.15% as of value
Contitigent December 31, 2020)
considerations
arising from
business
sombinations

(Continued)
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§)  Fair valne measurements in Level 3 — gensitivity analysis of reasonzbly possible
sllernative assumptions

The Company’ s measurement on the fair value of financial mstruments s deemed
reasonable despite different valuation modsls or paratacters may lead to different results.
For fair value measurements in Level 3, changing one o more of the assumptions would
have the following <ffects on profit:

Current prafit {los) arising
from changes in fair value
Inputs 10% Sncrease  10% decrease
December 31, 2021
Financial assets (liabilias) at fair value
threugh profil or loss
Tovesitnents n aoqiily imsrumend Dhxcount {or marketalnlily § {31,78m 33,780
without active mariet
Centngenl consideralions ansing rom  Discount Lor discourt rale % 3223 {3,399
buasiness comibinations
December 31, 2020
Finaneial assets (labilics) at fuir yablue
through profit or loss.
Trivestients in equity istrrment Diseount for marketability $ (22,57 22,579
without active market
Contingsnt considerations agsing from  Disconnt for disoonnt rate § 4,760 (5,340

tusinass eombinations

(y) Financial risk management

{1

Chverview

The Company is exposed to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

1)  Credit visk

2)  Liquidity risk

3)  Market nisk

This nute expressed the information on risk exposure and objectives, policies and process ol

risk measurement and management of the Company. I'or more details aboul the quantitative
elleets of these risk exposures, please refer to respective noles in the reporl.

(Continued)
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Structure of risk management

The Company® 4 risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks
faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherenes to limits, Risk management policics and systems are reviowed rogularly to refloet
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities, so a3 to minimize risk exposure.

The Board of directars oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s
risk management policies and procedurcs and reviews the adequacy ef the risk management
framewerk in relation 1o the risks faced by the Company. The Board of dircctors is assisted in
its oversight role by an intcrnal auditor. The internal auditor undertakes both regutar and ad
hae teviews of risk managemant controls and procedures, the resulbts of which are reported to
the Board of directors.

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base, in order to maintain investor, creditor, and
markct confidence. Capital consists of ordinary sharcs, capital swplus and retained earnings. As of
December 31, 2021, the Company had sufficicnt capital to meet the needs for working capital and
other expenditere in the nest 12 months. The Company’s approach 1o capital management has not
changed ot cach roporting date,

Ae of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the debt ratios were 44% and 41%, respectively.

Investing and financing activitics not affecting current cash flow

(i}

(i)

Non~-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were transferred to investments
accounted for using equity method. plaase refer to Notes 6(b) and (f).

The mvestments accounted for asing equity method were transfered to not-carcnt assets
classificd as held for sale, please refor to Note 6(1).

(i) Tor the acquisilion of righl-of-use assels by lease, please reler to Nole 6(k).

(iv)

'The reconciliation of liabilities ariing from financing activities was as follows;

Janoary 1, Nan-cash Decem ber
2021 Cash flows changes 31, 2021
Long-term borrowmgs b 265,529 (14,160} - 251,369
Short-term borrowings 300,000 700,000 - 1,000,000
{fuarantec deposits 1,227 (330) - 897
Lease Labilities 167.008 (24.859) 5,258 147,407
Total liabilities [rom 8 733,764 660,651 5,258 1,399.673
Iinagcing activilies
(Continued)
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Japoary 1, Nen-cash Decem ber
2020 Cash flows changes 31, 2020
Long-term borrowings 5 279,502 (13,973} - 265,529
Shert-term borrowings - 300,000 - 300,000
(Guarantee deposits 4,811 (3,584) - 1.227
1.2ase liabilities 191,890 (25,596} 1.714 167.008
Tolal Hahilitiss from 8 475,203 256,847 1,714 733,764

{mancing aclivities

(7) Related-party transactions:

(a)

(b}

Parenl company ind ullimate controlling company

Qisda Corporation (*(Jisda™) is both the parent company and the nltimate controlling party of the
Company. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, {3isda holds 51.41% and 35.04%, respectively, of the
number of ordinary sharcs outstanding of the Company, and it has prepared the consolidated

financial statements tor public use.

Names and relationship with related parties

The followings arc the subsidiarics and related partics that have had transactiens with the Company
during the periods covered in the parent company ondy financial statements:

Name of related parly

Relativaship wilk the Com pany

Qisda Corporation {Qisda)

GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK CO,, LTD.

(GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK)
EPIC CLOUD CO.L, LTD. (EPIC CLOUD)

AINVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL CORP,
{ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL)

APE() Human Capital Services Corp. (APEO Human

{Capital)
STATINC COMPANY (STATINC)
DKARio Co., T4, (DK ARio)
COREX (PTY) LTD.

DAWNING TECHNOLOGY INC. (DAWNING

TECHNOLOGY)

NEO TREND TECH CORPORATION (NEO
TREND THCH)

UNISAGE DIGITAL CO., LTD. {UNISAGE
DIGITAL)

GRANDSYS INC. (GRANDSYS)
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Farent of the Company
Subsidiary of the Company

Subsidiary of the Coempany
Subsidiary of the Company

Subsidiary of the Company

Subsidiary of the Company
Subsidiary of the Company
Subsidiary of the Company
Subsidiary of the Company (Note 1)

Subsidiary of the Company (Note 2)
Associate of the Company

Associate of the Company (Notc 4)

{Continued)



SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO,,LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Name of related parly

Relationship wilh the Company

BenQ Tounddation
Ben() Material Corporation (Ben{) Matcrial )

Tartricr Tech Corperation (Partner Toch)

Ben) Guru Corporation (Ben() Guru)

BenQ Corporation {New Ben()

Ben) ESCO Corporation (Ben(Q) ESCO)

¥ Ine. {IDFI}

Data Image Corporation (Data Image)

BenQ AR DentCate Corp. (Ben() AB DentCare}

AEWIN Technologies Co., Ltd (AEWIN
Technologivs)

ACE PILLAR CO., LTD. (ACE FILLAR)

Ben) Asia Pacific Corporation {BenQ Asia Pacific)

Suzhou Super Pillar Awlomation Equipment Co., Lid,

{Suzhou Super Pillar)

Interactive Digital Technologies Inc. (Enteractive
Dipital)

HI'TRON TECHNOLOGIES INC. (HITRON
TECHNOLOGIES)

AU Optronics Corporation (AUQO)

Darfon Electronics Cotrporation (Darfor Electronics)

Webest Solutiun Corporation (Webost Selulion)

Key management personnel

Substanlive related pasty
It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parcnt company

1t and the Company have the same uliimate
parenl company

It and the Company hove the same ullimals
parenl company

It and the Company have the same ullimals
parent company

1t and the Company have the same ultimate
parcnt company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent comparny

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parcnt company

It wnd the Company have the same ultimate
parenl company

It and the Company have the samc ultimate
parent compaty

It and the Company have (he same uliimale
parenl company

It imd the Company have the same ulimale
parenl company

It and the Compuny have the same ullimale
parent company (Note 3)

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parcnt company {Note 3)

Associate of the parent company

Associate of the parent company

Subsidiary uf Pariner Tech

Koy manapement petsotnel of the Cotupany

Note 1: As of January 4, 2021, the Company sold the entirc shares of its subsidiary, IDAWNING
TECHNOLOGY, rtesalting in a loss of conirol over it Thorcafter, DAWNING
TECHNOLOGY is no longer a related party of the Company.

Nole 2: As of February 26, 2021, the Company sold the entire shares of its subsidiary, NEO TREND
TECIL resuliing mn a loss of control evar it. Therealter, NEO TREND TECI is no longer a
related party of the Company.

(Continged)

245



(c)

SYSACE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Mote 3: The parent company of IDITRON TECIINOLOGIES and INTERACTIVE DIGITAL is

Alpha Networks Inc. (“Alpha™), a former associate of Qisda, after which Qisda acquired
Alpha in July 2020, making them have the same ultimate parent company with the Company.

Noto 4: The Company acquired the shares of GRANDSYS in May 2020, after which the percentage

of ownership in GRANDSYS was 22.35%, making it an associate of the Company.

Significant related-party transactions

(1)

Sales
The amounis of sigmficant sales by the Company 1o related parties were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2021 2024
Parent company 5 126,885 34,843
Subsidiaries 65,328 42,809
Associates 2337 408
Other associates 95,513 101,544
Other related partics - 07,368
% 290,065 246972

The selling price and payment terms to relatod partics were not significant different from those
of sales to customers, and the credit terms for 20021 and 2020 ranged from 30 to 120 days from

the end of the menih.

{1} Purchases

'The amounts of significant purchases by the Company from related parties were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Parent company s - 200
Subsidiaries 12,649 27,602
Other associates 326 6,728
Oiher related partics - 20
5 12,975 34,550

Purchase prices and payment terms from related parlies were nol signilicant dilferent [rom
third-parly suppliers. The payment ferms ranged belween 30~60 days from the emd of the
month and 30~120 days fom the end of the moenth [or the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

{Continued)
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(1) Receivables rom related partics

{(1v)

(v)

The receivables duc from related parties were as follows:

Category of December 31, December 31,
Account related party 2021 2020
Accounts recuivable Parent company $ 99,293 -
Accounts receivable Subsidiarics 17,016 21,262
Accounts receivable Assoriates 1.890 33
Accounts receivable Otlier asgociates 16.002 2921
b3 134,201 31,156

Payables 10 related parties

'I'he payables to related parties were as follows:

Category of December 31, December 31,
Account related party 2021 2020
Accounts receivable Subsidiaries 3 2,068 6,999
Accounts receivable Other associates 8 -
$ 2,076 6,904

Lease

1)

Lessor

The Company leascd out buildings to its related partics. The amounts of rontal income
were as follows:

Rental income
For the years ended December 31

Lessee 2021 2020

Subsidiaries:

GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK 5 3.697 5697

DAWNING TECHNOLOGY - 2091
Assueiates - 3
Other Asgociates!

DI 2,012 -
Total $ 7,709 14,791

According to the terms of the contracts, the deposit and the rental were by reference of
the rental price of the nearby offices. The rental was collected on a monthly basis. For
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, receivables of the rental income have been
fully paid up.

{Conlinued)
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2)  Lesses

The Company rented buildings from GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK and
enmtered into 3-vears lease contract by raferenee of the rental price of the nearby offices.
Fort the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recoghized the amounts
of $8 thousand and $17 thousand, respectively, as interest expensc. As of December 31,
2021 and 202{), the balance of lteasc liabilitics amounted to $401 thousand and $1,359,
rospectively.

{v1) Guaranies and endorsements
The cotnpany guarantecs and endevsements for related parties are as follows:

Guarantees and
endorsemenis amount

Counter party of guarantees December 31, December 31,
and endorsements 2021 2020
Subsidiaries
COREX (PTY) LTI, 5 221,440 141,750
GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK 100,000 -
5 321440 141,750

(vil) Services revenue

The Company provided system consulting and project supporting services to its related partics.
The amounts of scrvices revenue were as follows:

Services revenue
For the years ended December 31

2021 2024
Subsidiarics
GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWOREK b 4372 2,354
DAWNING TECIINOLOGY - 2,991
EPFIC C1.OUD 1.607 -
8 5,979 5345
(Continued)
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The outstanding balances for providing sysiem consulling and project supporiing servicss 1o ils
related parties were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Account Category of related party 2021 20240
Subsidiaries

(hiher recervables GLOBAIL INTELLIGENCE

NETWORK £ 1,148 18
Other recofvables DAWNING

TRCHNOLOGY - 785
Other receivables EPIC CLOUD 422 -

s 1.570 1,403

(viii} Donation

(ix)

(x)

In 2021, the Company madc a donation of $2,000 thousand to its substantive rclated party,
Ben() Foundation.

Investments accounted for using equity method acquired
The Conmpany acquired investmeonts accountod for nsing cquity method from its related partios.

For the years ended December 31

Account Calesory ol related partly 2021 2020

Investrments accounted  Subsidiaries- GLOBAL

for using equity INTELLIGENCE

method NETWORK % 100 -
Itivestrments accounted Other associates- Partner Tech

for using equity

method 140,000 -
Invostments zccounted  Key management personnel

for uging equity

methad - 10.344

$ 140,100 10,344

Disposal of investiments accounted for using equity methed

As of February 2021, the Company sold 1 thousand sharcs of STATINC to its subsidiary, EPIC
CLOUD, at the amount of §40 thousand, wherein the pricc had been fully recerved.

(Continued)
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() Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation comprised:

For the years ended December 31

2021 2020
Yhort-term employee benefits 8 58,699 (2352
Post-employmenl benalils 622 600
Termination bhenefits - -
Other tong-term bene[its - -
Share-based payment - -
$ 30321 62,952

(8) Pledged assets:

The carrying amounts of the assets which the Company pledged as collateral were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Asset Name Ohject 2021 2020
Property, plant and equipment Long-term and short-term
borrowings 5 732,888 701,501
Tnvestment property Short-term borrowings 36.169 74.123
b 769,057 775,624

(9) Commitments and contingencies:

{a) The promissory notes, issued by the Company for loans from financial institutions. forward
exchange transactions, and purchase limijts, are detaited ag foltows:

December 31, December 31,

Currency 2021 2020
Promissory notes issued NTD 5 4,915,000 3,965,000
UsD $ 14.350 13,850

{b) For the amounts of guarantees and endorsements for related parties, please see Note 7(c) 6.
(1) Losses due to major disasters:None

{11) Subscquent Events: None

{Conlinued)
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(12) Other;

‘The summary of cmployce benefits, depreciation, and amortization, by function, was as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
2021 2020
By functionf  Operating Operating
By item CXpeDses cXpenses
Lmployee benelits
Salary 429 458 411,264
Lubor and health insurance 35,322 29,286
Pension 16,469 14,462
Benefits of direciors 16,666 15,102
Other employee benefits expense 22,726 20,768
Depreciation 57,806 36,760
\Amortization i) 1LU57

The following were the additional information on the Company’s employees and employee benefits
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

For the years ended Decemher 31

2021 20240
Nambers of cmployess 452 44
Numbers of directors, but not emplovees concurrently i) 7
The average craployee benelits L) 1,130 1,198
The average salarics b 063 1,036
Adjostment of the average salaries {7.05)%

Benefits of supervisors b - -

‘The following was the infermation about the Company®s benefits policics (including directors,
exceutive officers and employces):

The Company’s directors” benelits consisied of rernuneration and compensation. [n accordance wath
the pre-amended Asticle of Association of the Compiny, the Company should conlribuoie less than 2
percent as direelers’ remuneration when there 18 profil for the yoar. On August 235, 2021, the
Company smended ils Arlicle of Assoctation based on the resclution approved during the annual
shaieholders” meeting, In accordance with the amended Article of Asseciation, once the Company
has annual eamings, it should contribute less than 1% as directors” remuneration. The compensation
is evaluated by Human Resoworces Department and based on competitive environment and
operational risk. It is proposed by management after considering regulation and bonus plan then
submitted to the Board of Directors for approval,

The benefits of executive officers and employees consigisd of [ixed salary and variable salary. The
[ommer 18 basic salaries ol employees and the laller 15 comnecled lo operational performance and
stralegie objectives that the Company wants lo achieve, The Company’ s benefits policies are
proposed by [Tumin Resources Department, which i based on managemeni regulation and bonus
plan and then submilied 1o the Board of Directors for approval.

{Continued)
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(a) Information on significant transactions:

The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securitics Issuers™ for the Company for the vear ended
December 31, 2021:

(1) Loans to other parties:Nons

(1t} Guarantees and endorsements for other partics:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Coumter-party of
EUAnUEN Bnd
andorsemmt

Walthinship
Hame of with the
Hu. | pusruncor Nume Cutiany

Bighea

Limkation on | balance for
i of | aearansees

AuaTantess and and.

Bulsrict by
guaranteen
and Aernal Property

EnadATmmiELs

for o specifls duaring
$riterprin: the peilod

usage | pieagesfor
asnl oot [gaaTdtees and)
during thel erdorsements

duge | pered | chsnemn |

SR Feud;gmmg] subysidiary

T fhe empanypronEy | Subsidery ol ol 1) 27 40N ziaan| o477 €iaw | el T
" ket LT | FNTher Tech
T phe Taermany J3TCRANLTY 4 e 100,001 190,006| 13,60 tw " ¥
[TELLIGEN
SENET WO
.04

Eako ol
accurnulated
LS Parent
Zuarantess and compay Subsidlary
! u o PR AN s
meLlwonh of the | amount fror
larest prarantees |Hrird parties m |t dird pamdes
Jnanclal angd vehalf ol o Lehall of

Sz
endorrrmmts
T fyird parried

o tigh Al of

anpanizs i

BMazleland

Jp aent sunnpony] Clyign

Mote 1 The ol of Uae gosunbes: and cidorsatol: fr b Aoy ety eceopny shell fuk seeed 2t of the Company' 5 ool werths ol 8556113 dcusiend whon thae
gramatees and madorsemants was pervadad, the totsl amannt of puarantees and endorsemants progided by the Compargye sall net esread St af e Qeinpany' 3 ne

worth ci£2,1

45 282 thousad

{it} Sevurilies held as of December 31, 2021 {excluding invesiment in subsidiaries, associales and
jomnt venlures):

L nit: thousand sharcs/thousand units

Fodng hajance
Fercentage
Categiry and aame | Relstonshilp farrying  [of Owmership
Holder nanc of sctarily wills Compuny Acconnt bhucew Unite|  sanouni (] Fale vilue | Banack
Stockc
e Company DYHASWTT . tion-cumrent finandal (Note 1}
faseets at fair vaiue
Forough proflt or 1os: 3908 227410 1953 217410
» 1T TTolngs - o u
Limibed 1] . 111
» ¥ OBUN - " n
TFTHNE W OGRS,
[INE 3 - A2 -
L3 [Touch Cloud Int. - 240 856 1.50 1] #
’* [Gemini Datn_ Toc. - 2,704 10,930 1.70 10,730 -
" KINGTRL. . o 44% 1,098 1809 1,498 N
Epity:
" [Taiwania Capital - Hule 1) »
{Buffala Fund V. LP 97,602 1478 07 603
IINZPE 335,208
Wote I Unlisted company,
Note i Liited perid erdidp.
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(iv) Individual securities acquired or disposed of with aceumulaled amount exceeding the lower of
NT8300 million or 20% of the capital stock:None

{v)

20% of the capital stock:None

Acquisition of individual real cstate with amount excceding the lowor of NT$300 million or

{vi) Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20%
of the capital stock:None

{vii) Related-party transactions for purchases and salcs with amounts excecding the lower of
NT$100 million or 20% of the capital stock:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan [Dollars)

Transacting degails

Name of Related Hature of
mipany pacty Telaliimshlp Bigrehpsy Buly
I Covopuy s beaguns wof e il
pRaCg

Tranmtions with terms Totewa peoumts recelvable
differamt Sro enbors fpagaldi
Ferventage nl
total
TIORE St OIS
Tecetrable
Faynegl beoms| Dl price ] Puyyoosl lyeops ) Ending balppa | fpuyable) Tyl
120 duy Grom PMosognifianl Qo gl v, R .
hhieend oEthe  [difference Jifforence
et

{vii1} Recervables from related parties wilh amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20%6
of the capilal stock:None

{ix) Trading in derivative insirumenis:Please refer to notes the Company’s consolidated finaneial
slatem Note 6(b).

(b} Information on investees:

The following is the information on investees for the years ended December 31, 2021:
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Criginal tnvesment
Armmant Balance 4s of December 31, 2000 | Not incomne | Share of
Muneor | Bumeof mveste | Location | $6ain busineses pud | Decanber | Deoember | Shures Carrylag | e of [or Hole
investar prodacts AL 2021 31, 203 | (chensands) jof ownepshipy]  amoioet investee | of invest
12 Compasy PSLOEAL Tawan [Trading o hardwaresnd 113142 113,142 10475 380 205,502 185 42381 | Mol 1y
i 2L A ot ovara fgruelwork
NETWORE pmdcorreimininatirnaspate
g3
" BN DET g 1510 g s hegdwipag 14 HEX RS uy fMake 3)
Loy ot Fumirwaods
Bty
v JEvais izLonIn Vaprs [Lats seftware and 2009 w0 FXCT] I (Y, AR L7l i (Bsea| ot b
iy TR, TV IE
.- < il Seuth  [Impare and expert 251,777 1 Tohty A4S 5 &1 Ay pep | Vlole T
Adra [abelankronse producte
fapeke aud purdiene
f bt AT Tanan Wik essard: e i 76 10 g9 24 FHA9T 17 48, 1264 7] Motk T
Frngemant
frnstitnigant dals
prossnnug servaoes
u BTEC TREWDTECT | Tawan [Telecormmeamestionzengind 0000 [EAD> i pasy (ke 3Y
aering
u [Matae aF Tarwan Mubadus) aquinrerd Lt | fioed &7 EETURY &n (127 fr1gy fhckes 2
ranifactiemg g
EXTIELH Tawi Lot walbwige und det W EEEY IR RCEL R DR B A paa | 1t Eh
proenmg Sevans
{Continued)



SYSACGE TECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Criginal investrent
anmynl Hilance iy of Beambet 31 2020 et tcorqe | Sk ol
Hame ot Fiame of vestee | Lacation | Main nd | L 1 Snares carryng | (ossa) o [pr Knte
lirvastar products 31, 2021 31,2020 | (thousands) lof wnership)  anumant invester | of ivesee
e Corpany [ADVAFCEDTERINT | Tawes |Appheations of sottwae 30,031 30021 153 b 739 ) 35,495 18,847 &,337| ok 1)
TATIO AL o et ing sevices
Bl Frertating DiptalE3] Tawan [Daveloprient and e 4310 <rich 2241 ENEE [EA N v 11%eta It
onifiware
ETTZ CLOUD OLOBATINTELLIGE| Tuiwan [Tredmeg el berdw e 172 - 10 [ 3 % 172 R - WMnte 10
PACENET VIR feodtears S netwionk and
Lol eabicns spstas
" e aTL Tijwm [Morkd cesech, 4u - 1 L efg v 40 1T AT B vhicks b}
puleagrarin
fronatlitengand dets
nmﬁmwmnw
FLOBALRETE[D AW [Tradlng = hardwiaennd - 43,748 - kL - . itEets T
T IGERCRR [PRIHHOLOGY poftware Ennstwnrk
TRORY. foyetems
ARV ANCEOT PALED B Copitd | Vi |Applaoilioe of s, 8w 20 - won | Te o 20853 ] a2 | Mate L
R IHTE ST il reril T Sorvide
IOMAL
STATWIC  JLEawn Taiwan [tdacicet revearch, 25,90 - el et w912 R gy (Helke )
frinragmn’ it
fronaiiFugand dath
prooessing
Mote 1 Subidary of lve Company
Male L Agzoniztes of b Company
Ioube 3 Fhe Congrany furs ully dispoesod of e oy, stemss raler Lo ol S0 foe dutwil,
Watkd + The mvactaes ampsny ‘Theva nppl.ud. tior Aumafemes an Mrramier TR ME
(c) Information on mvesiment in Maintand Chma:None
(dy Major shareholders:
Unit: share
Shareholding . . Percentage of
. Shareholding .
ajor shareholders Ownership
isda 96,841,239 51.41 %

(14) Segment information:

Please refor to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended Decomber 31, 2021,
for details.
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SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

Chairman: Michael Lee
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